efg

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
HOUSING, ECONOMY AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 23RD JUNE, 2015

7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA
To all members of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair:
Councillors:

Councillor Jayne McCoy
Councillor Nick Emmerson
David Bartolucci, Jean Crossby, Trish Fivey, Neil Garratt, David Hicks,
Joyce Melican, Daniel Sangster and Amy Haldane

Substitutes:

Councillors Tim Crowley, Adrian Davey, Doug Hunt, Callum Morton and
Tony Shields.

Ex Officio:

Councillor Ruth Dombey

Note
This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the
invitation of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you
wish to submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this
agenda please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before
the meeting date.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s web site.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA
12 June 2015

Enquiries to: Susanne Wicks, Committee Support Team Leader. Tel:020 8770 6540,
Email: susanne.wicks@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the day of the meeting. Any four members of the
Council may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be
reviewed by the full Council at its next meeting. Please contact the Committee
Manager named on the Agenda frontsheet for further information.

AGENDA

1.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 MARCH 2015 (Pages 3 - 6)
To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2015.

5.

OUTER LONDON FUND PROJECT REVIEW HACKBRIDGE
To receive a petition and receive a presentation (as detailed below).
Indicative timing: 60 minutes

a.

Petition from Hackbridge Safety First
A petition bearing 319 names and an online petition bearing 549 names has been
received from Hackbridge Safety First, calling on the Council to install formal
crossings in Hackbridge following completion of the Heart of Hackbridge Scheme.
The prayer reads as follows:
“I’m sure you will agree that Hackbridge looks a much nicer place since the completion
of the ‘Heart of Hackbridge’ scheme. However, is it as safe as before?
Put yourself in the shoes of an 11 year old child travelling to high school independently
or an elderly resident walking to the chemist, or a visually impaired pedestrian trying to
cross the busy roads of Hackbridge.
We now have no formal crossings to help pedestrians cross the busy roads safely,
especially those mentioned above or anyone who may have a disability.
If you feel as strongly as we do, and would like to offer your support in persuading the
Council to install formal crossings in Hackbridge, please sign our petition and
encourage your friends and family to do likewise.”
The Chair has agreed that the petition organiser, Tracey Collins, may address the
Committee.

2

b.

Presentation from the Area Renewal Programme Manager (Pages 7 - 32)

6.

HOUSING STRATEGY DELIVERY PLAN 2015-16 (Pages 33 - 54)
To seek the Committee's approval of the 2015/16 plan to deliver on the
strategic objectives in Council's Housing Strategy.
Indicative timing: 15 minutes

7.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME (Pages
55 - 82)
Indicative timing: 15 minutes

8.

TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY (Pages 83 - 106)
Indicative timing: 30 minutes

9.

REVISIONS TO THE COUNCIL'S TENANCY CONDITIONS (Pages 107 148)
Indicative timing: 30 minutes

10.

SUTTON HOUSING PARTNERSHIP DELIVERY PLAN 2015/16 (Pages 149 202)
Indicative timing: 10 minutes

11.

SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL SCOPING REPORT (SUTTON LOCAL
PLAN) (Pages 203 - 310)
Indicative timing: 5 minutes

12.

ECONOMY WATCH
This report, providing the borough's economic indicators for Quarter 4 of
2014/15 (January to March) has been circulated to the committee and is
available online at:
http://www.opportunitysutton.org/economy-watch/

13.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DISCRETION OF
THE CHAIR

3

4

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Page 2

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

Housing, Economy and Business Committee
3 March 2015

HOUSING, ECONOMY AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE
3 March 2015 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:
(*Absent)

49.

Councillor Jayne McCoy (Chair), Councillor Nick Emmerson (Vice
Chair) and Councillors Sam Bourne, Jean Crossby, Trish Fivey,
Neil Garratt, David Hicks, Nick Mattey, Joyce Melican and Daniel
Sangster.
*Councillor Ruth Dombey (ex-officio)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTES

No apologies were received.
50.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2015 were approved as a correct
record of the meeting, and signed by the Chair.
51.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.
52.

OPPORTUNITY SUTTON REVIEW

The Head of Economic Renewal and Regeneration introduced the report, detailing
the key outputs and deliverables of the Opportunity Sutton programme since its
inception, and the priorities for 2015/16. Comments and questions from members
were invited. Members placed on record a vote of thanks to officers for their
achievements on this programme.
Resolved:
That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:
1.

Endorses the Opportunity Sutton programme’s 2015/16 priority work
streams

2.

Agrees key deliverables and outcomes for 2015/16, subject to
endorsement of the Hackbridge and Beddington Members Steering Group
for the Hackbridge and Beddington Programme deliverables.

3.

Delegates authority for the implementation of the North Sutton Gateway
Project to the Executive Head of Economic Development, Planning and
Sustainability in consultation with the Chair of Housing, Economy and
Business Committee.

4.

Delegates authority for the implementation of the Rosehill District Project
to the Executive Head of Economic Development, Planning and
1

Page 4

Agenda Item 4

Housing, Economy and Business Committee
3 March 2015

Sustainability in consultation with the Chair of the St. Helier, The Wrythe
and Wandle Valley Local Committee
5.

53.

Agrees to receive a review of Economy Watch framework at the next HEB
committee, to ensure that the range of indicators properly track the
impacts and benefits of the revised programme.

SUTTON DECENTRALISED ENERGY NETWORK BUSINESS CASE
APPROVAL TO PROCEED

The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Economic Development,
Planning and Sustainability, together with the Project Manager. They outlined the
progress made to date on the project, together with a revised financial model.
Comments and questions were invited from committee members.
The recommendations were put to the vote. 7 councillors voted for the
recommendations and 3 voted against.
Resolved:
That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:

54.

1.

Accepts the Business Case which confirms that a Sutton Decentralised
Energy Network is viable, with a projected cumulative cash return over 25
years of £1.5m.

2.

Approves an OJEU compliant procurement process to appoint a Design
and Build, Operation and Maintenance, Customer Services and Meter
and Billing Contractor(s), subject to agreeing Head of Terms with
Schroders in accordance with the Business Case.

3.

Delegates authority to the Strategic Director of Environment and
Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the Strategic Director of Resources,
the Chair of Housing, Economy and Business Committee, the Chair of the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee, and Councillor Colin Hall, to
agree amendments to the Business Case that may be required, insofar as
the overall parameters of the Business Case can still be achieved and to
award and sign contracts with preferred bidders.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 2015/2016

The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Community Living and Strategic
Commissioning. He pointed the Committee to the summary of the report and invited
questions on issues not covered in the report.
Resolved:
That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:
1.

Notes and agrees the recommendation from the Task and Finish Group
that the funding arrangements set out in base model in the HRA business
plan are agreed, rather than those in the sensitivity test, where borrowing
resources are diverted to additional investment in existing stock and away
2

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

Housing, Economy and Business Committee
3 March 2015

from new build;

55.

2.

Notes and agrees the recommendation from the Task and Finish Group
that Sutton Housing Partnership carries out further work in 2015/16 to
improve the data used for modelling stock investment needs;

3.

Notes and agrees the recommendation from the Task and Finish Group
that the Committee receives a further report on SHP’s new updated asset
management strategy and that further work is carried out specifically to
appraise the Unity properties on the Clockhouse Estate and their
sustainability;

4.

Notes and agrees the recommendation from the Task and Finish Group
that the case for the potential for installing further door entry security
systems to flatted blocks be assessed against clear criteria and looked at
on a case by case basis;

5.

Agrees the draft HRA business plan, as set out in Appendix A, be
published via the Council’s website, subject to any amendments the
Committee wishes to make and any further updating or minor
amendments that officers consider necessary, after consultation with the
Chair of the Committee, and

6.

Agrees that the HRA Business Plan modelling be updated and reported to
members at appropriate points during the coming year reflecting the
changing picture with regard to projected Right to Buy income and new
build development and major work costs.

TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - SUTTON HOUSING PARTNERSHIP
DELIVERY PLAN

The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Community Living and Strategic
Commissioning. He noted that final version of the Plan will be formally agreed at
the next meeting of this Committee.
Resolved:
That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:
1.

Appoints a task and finish group to review and agree the final version of
the SHP Delivery Plan 2015/16;

2.

Agrees the membership of the Task and Finish Group shall be Councillors
Jayne McCoy, Nick Emmerson, Jean Crossby, Neil Garratt, David Hicks,
and Joyce Melican.

3.

Delegates to the Strategic Director, Adult Social Services, Housing and
Health, in consultation with the chair, authority to agree the terms of
reference of the Group.

3

Page 6

Agenda Item 4

Housing, Economy and Business Committee
3 March 2015

56.

HOUSING STRATEGY 2015/16

The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Community Living and Strategic
Commissioning. He undertook to issue the consultation responses to those people
who had made a response. The Chair requested that an updated delivery plan be
brought to the next meeting of the Committee.
Resolved:
That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee:

57.

1.

Approves the Housing Strategy;

2.

Delegates authority to the Strategic Director, Adult Social Services,
Housing and Health, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, to
make further and final amendments to the Strategy.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF
THE CHAIR

No urgent business was brought foward.
58.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

No discussion took place on items exempt from publication.
The meeting ended at 10.05 pm
Chair:
Date:

4

The Mayor of London’s
Outer London Fund (OLF)
Heart of Hackbridge Project
Page 7
Agenda Item 5b

Agenda Item 5b

Community and Business Collaboration

Page 8

üThree main consultation rounds
üPresentations to Community Forum Meetings
üFliers to every home
üSpecific traders events
ü‘Go-early’ consultations with other key stakeholders
üOver 1,200 responses

Problems Identified by
Community and Local Businesses

Page 9

üDoes not feel like a
place
üTraffic speed
üNarrow footways
üNo street trees
üPoor shopping facilities
and no cash point
üNo stop and shop
parking and no disabled
parking bays

Agenda Item 5b

Page 10

Overall objectives to increase:
• Prosperity
• Sustainability
• Accessibility
Place shaping objectives to create:
• Identity
• Character
• Places for community events
• Putting the Heart back into Hackbridge

Agenda Item 5b

OLF Project Objectives

Community and Business Collaboration

Page 11
Agenda Item 5b

• BioRegional - the Lead Body responsible for the day to day
management
• Hackbridge OLF Delivery Board – Project Management. The
Board includes:
Ø Councillor – the Hackbridge Champion
Ø Council representatives
Ø BioRegional
Ø Hackbridge Neighbourhood Development Group
Ø Local businesses
Ø Head of Culvers’ School
Ø Schroders (developers of the Felnex site)

Page 12

üNew Businesses – Toni Bridal & Sainsbury’s
üBusiness Network
üBusiness Diversification
ü£40k of business grants (£6.5k match from 14
shops)
ü1 apprenticeship

Agenda Item 5b

Objective 1 - Prosperity

Objective 1 - Prosperity

Page 13

ü4 shop interiors
improved
ü10 shop facades
improved
ü C. 600 attended
Christmas and
Summer Events

Agenda Item 5b

Agenda Item 5b

Objective 1 - Prosperity

Page 14

Objective 2- Sustainability

Page 15
Agenda Item 5b

ü45 tonnes reduction in carbon emissions from shops
üFirst MSC Fish and Chip shop in London
üMoh’s solar panels
üSustainable materials/existing materials recycled

Agenda Item 5b

Objective 3- Accessibility/Place Making

Page 16

Objective 3- Accessibility/Place Making

Page 17
Agenda Item 5b

Agenda Item 5b

Objective 3- Accessibility/Place Making

Page 18

Outcomes - Accessibility/Place Making

Page 19
Agenda Item 5b

ü Traffic speed reduced significantly
ü Step free access to shops
ü Disabled parking bays introduced
ü Parking bays regulated so traders benefit from
stop and shop parking
ü Wider footways allow space for additional
activities like the farmers market
ü Town sign/heritage signs introduced
ü Benches/seating now available
ü Bike parking now available
ü Street trees introduced
ü Rain gardens introduced – adds landscaping &
improves drainage

•Baseline assessments – traffic
speed/junction functionality

•Safety Audits at design stage and
post implementation
•Accessibility Audit

Page 20

•Designed in accordance with
Highways Standards

Agenda Item 5b

Scheme Safety

Safety Review
Findings and Action
Audit Findings

LBS Actions

Retain proposed 6.2m wide carriageway

Road width retained

Do not relocate southbound bus stop from
London Road to Hackbridge Road

Bus stop not relocated

Speed reduction measures included

Install warning signs about the new layout
before the railway bridge

Signs installed

Install additional lighting at the uncontrolled
crossings

Additional lighting installed

Agenda Item 5b

Do not install scheme without speed reduction
measures at the Station Junction

Page 21

Move bus stop on Hackbridge Road further away Bus stop moved
from the proposed crossing

Audit Findings

LBS Actions

Familiarity with London Road signs changed to make priority clear
Road as a priority
Roundel needs to be
clearer

Mini roundabout installed

Mile Road junction to
be made clearer

Delivered at the same time as the mini
roundabout

Page 22

Need an audit of vehicle Traffic speeds measured – now average speed
speeds
is less than 24 miles per hour. There will be
consultation on an extension of the 20mph
zone

Agenda Item 5b

Interim Safety Audit
Findings & Action

Stage 3 Road Safety Audit
Findings and Action
LBS Actions

There is a need for controlled crossings in
Hackbridge

Crossings will be introduced. Exact type, number and
location to be considered through the design process.
Stakeholder involvement and wider consultation planned.

Remove the courtesy crossing on London
Road south of the roundabout

The crossing will be removed

Page 23

Audit Findings

Additional signs should be installed along Elm Additional cycle signs and cycle road markings will be added
Road to advise of contra-flow cycling
to Elm Road
The raised table will be removed as part of the works to
introduce the traffic lit/controlled crossing at the Felnex
junction (this was always seen as a temporary speed
reduction measure)

Parking on the forecourt adjacent to Saxon
House should be stopped

LBS will investigate ways of preventing parking on the
footway

Agenda Item 5b

Raised table on London Road near the bus
stop should be removed as soon as possible

LBS Actions

The footway and crossing surfaces are level,
constructed of good quality materials with reasonable
tonal colour contrast. No safety or accessibility issues
identified in relation to pedestrian routes

No actions required

Flush kerb at the Elm Road crossing is difficult to
detect for sight impaired pedestrians.

Tactile paving is to be
extended

Portable advertising boards encroaching onto the
walking route and therefore creating a trip hazard

Regular enforcement of illegal
adverts to be undertaken

Potential for vehicles accessing the parking bay
A bollard will be installed to
adjacent to the Hackbridge Newsagent to over-run the stop cars from over-running
flush kerb at the east side of the courtesy crossing

Page 24

Audit Findings

Agenda Item 5b

Accessibility Audit
Additional Findings and Action

Post Implementation Surveys
•Footfall Surveys
ØFootfall levels increased consistent with
residents spending longer in the area

ØOverall perceptions improved

Page 25

•Residents perceptions

Agenda Item 5b

Agenda Item 5b

Frequency of shop visits in Hackbridge
Jul-12

Mar-15

5%

6%

10%

2%

5%

Daily
31%

Weekly
Monthly

24%

Less Often
63%

Never
44%

Page 26

10%

Time spent in the Town Centre
Jul-12

Mar-15

1%
3%

10%
6%
21%

60 minutes +

45%

15-30
minutes

39%

Page 27

30-60
minutes

0 -15
minutes

75%

Agenda Item 5b

Jul-12

Mar-15

2%

11%

9%
20%

Agenda Item 5b

How well Hackbridge meets the public’s needs as a Local Centre

4%
16%

1 (Not at all)
2
3
4

38%
31%
45%

5 (Completely)

Page 28

24%

Which of the following changes do you like and which has improved
your experience the most?
Improved Experience

Like
2%
17%

Better
Products

3%
24%

20%

30%

Shop Front
Improvements

21%

14%

New Street
Furniture

Page 29

Improved
Parking

26%
20%
10%

13%

Step Free
Access
Other
Agenda Item 5b

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

Agenda Item 5b

Do you agree with any of the following statements? The changes have..

11

..improved my perceptions
of the area

72
17

Page 30

0

10

..made the area more
attractive and appealing

70
20
0

4

..enhanced my satisfaction
with the shopping area

65
31
0

Post Implementation Surveys Comments
Positives
Ø‘All good’/’Looks like a little village’
Ø‘Step free access is good’
Ø‘You can always get space now to park’
Ø‘Went to the Farmers Market – need more like it’

Negatives

Page 31

Ø‘Going in the right direction’

Ø‘Plants died’/’Who is responsible for the upkeep’
Ø‘Disabled parking is not enforced’
Ø‘Crossings need replacing’

Agenda Item 5b

Agenda Item 5b

Lessons Learned
•Involve accessibility organisations early in the
process
•Ensure stakeholder consensus over design

•Ensure clear decision making process with
clear roles and responsibilities
•Ensure clear hand over arrangements where
there are changes in key personnel

Page 32

•Improve communications through the whole
process

Page 33

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Agenda Item 6

Housing, Economy and Business
Committee

Date: 23 June 2015

Housing Strategy Delivery Plan 2015/16
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough wide
Cllr Jayne McCoy
Trevor Hart, Housing Strategy and Commissioning Manager
(020 8770 5844)
 A Fairer Council
Open

Signed:

Date:

10 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks the Committee’s approval of a new Housing Strategy Delivery Plan for
2015/16. The draft plan accompanying this report sets out details of how the aims and
objectives of the Council’s new Housing Strategy, which was approved by the Committee in
March 2015, will be delivered during 2015/16.

2.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:
2.1

approves the Housing Strategy Delivery Plan 2015/16;

2.2

delegates authority to the Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and Regeneration, in
consultation with the Chair of the Committee, to make further and final amendments to the
Delivery Plan;

2.3

agrees that a progress report be provided to the Committee’s December meeting.

3.

Background

3.1

The Housing Economy and Business Committee approved a new Housing Strategy for the
borough in March 2015. Contained within the strategy are five broad aims, and against each of
these a number of more specific objectives have been set.

3.2

Following discussion at the March committee, officers were asked to bring back to the
Committee for approval a plan setting out how the strategy would be delivered during the
coming year. Accordingly a draft Housing Strategy Delivery Plan for 2015/16 is contained in
Appendix A for Committee approval.

Agenda Item 6

Page 34

4.

Issues and Options

4.1

The draft Delivery Plan is structured around the aims and objectives of the new Housing
Strategy. Against each objective are the key actions or milestones required to be carried out in
order to deliver the objective. The number of these varies according to the nature and
complexity of the work to be undertaken. Also, it should be noted that in the case of some of
the objectives, the work to deliver on them is of an ongoing nature and will be carried out
routinely throughout the year.

4.2

Timescales and resources, as applicable are set out against the actions. Most of the work will
be carried out within existing budgets by officers, supplemented by external or consultancy
support where required.

4.3

Given that many objectives are either of an ongoing nature or are relatively long term and will
only be achieved over a period of some years, it is recommended that the first update on
progress be provided to the Committee’s December 2015 meeting.

5.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Capital and revenue
resources that are available to support housing were included in chapter 5 of the draft strategy.
Legal

5.2

This is a delivery plan and as such is a high level report with no immediate specific legal issues
arising. However, detailed legal advice will need to be sort when delivering the Plan in respect
of various actions and activities identified in the report at the appropriate juncture.
Health and wellbeing

5.3

Within the housing strategy strategic aim E (Provide housing support and improve the health
and wellbeing of residents), its supporting objectives and the associated key actions/milestones
directly relate to improving the health and wellbeing of borough residents.
Community

5.4

All of the aims in the new housing strategy and the draft delivery plan have a bearing upon
enabling and sustaining successful local communities, and there is an explicit recognition in the
supporting objectives for strategic aim C (Promote excellent housing management standards
across all types of housing) that services responsive to the needs of local residents need to be a
feature of all tenures.
One Planet Living

5.5

The strategy and draft delivery plan include objectives and associated actions for the delivery of
high quality and sustainable new housing supply, making effective use of existing assets and
promoting energy efficiency across all tenures.
Integrated Impact Assessment

5.6

The integrated impact assessment undertaken in the development of the housing strategy also
applies to the proposed delivery plan and is thus reproduced at Appendix B.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

Risk
5.7

Risks around the delivery of our aims were identified in the strategy. These include the
significant level of budget reductions the Council needs to deliver by 2018/19 and the lack of
adequate levels of alternative sources of funding from other quarters. Where appropriate,
specific resource issues are flagged up in the draft delivery plan

6

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A
B

Title
Draft housing strategy delivery plan 2015/16
Integrated Impact Assessment

Background Documents
Housing Strategy 2015/16 and beyond (LB Sutton, April 2015)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 10 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Claire Williams

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Draft Housing Strategy Delivery Plan 2015/16
Ref.

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

Strategic Aim A: Increase the supply of affordable housing
A.1.1 Work with housing associations
and developers in the marketing
of sites to achieve the affordable
housing target of 180 properties

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

A2

Accelerate the delivery of new homes of all
tenures, including affordable homes, through
being one of the Mayor’s new Housing Zones

A.2.1 Secure a successful outcome
to the Housing Zone Bid

July 2015

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

A.2.2 Conclude negotiations with
developers of the Zone’s ‘priority
sites’, with start on site dates
agreed

March 2016

GLA grant and
DevCo
intervention

Rick Martinez

A3

Identify and make use of land and other assets
to support the provision of affordable housing

A.3.1 Maximise opportunities for
affordable housing via the
Buildings Utilisation Project

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

A4

Deliver a programme of building new councilowned homes making full use of net RTB
receipts and other resources available

A.4.1 Appoint Employer’s (Client)
Agent

April 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

A.4.2 Obtain planning permission for
Ludlow Lodge, Richmond Green
and Century House sites (for
start on site by end March)

January 2016

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

A.4.3 Contract with design and build
partner

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

1

Agenda Item 6

Maximise affordable housing provision and
achieve sustainable communities through the
application of planning policies

Page 37

A1

A5

Objective
Set up a Housing Development Company
(‘DevCo’) to support the supply of new homes
across all tenures

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

May 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A.5.2 Develop project plan

May 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A.5.3 Produce business plan

June 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A.5.4 Establish company and appoint
directors

July 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A.5.5 Approve Council loan facility

July 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A.5.6 Complete first property
acquisitions (for letting in April
2016)

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

A6

Ensure that an appropriate mix of sizes of
affordable units is provided in a range of
locations to best meet need

A.6.1 See actions under A1 and A4

Gill Daw

A7

Ensure that new affordable housing is built to
high eco-levels, is of high quality and that it
meets required design standards

A.7.1 See actions under A1 and A4

Gill Daw

2

Page 38

A.5.1 Appoint Interim Programme
Director

Agenda Item 6

Ref.

Ref.
A8

Objective
Support the development of Hackbridge as a
district centre and sustainable suburb through
the provision of additional housing built to the
highest achievable environmental standards

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.1.1 Identify and agree Council
stock for potential regeneration

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.1.2 Start on site for the
regeneration of Corbet Close

July 2015

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.1.3 Start on site at the remaining
Carshalton Orlit site –
Nightingale Close

September 2015

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.1.4 Deliver Phase 2 of Elizabeth
House regeneration

December 2015

Within existing
resources

Marie Pagan

B.1.5 Agree start on site dates for
later phases of the regeneration
of Durand Close

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.1.6 Start on site for the
regeneration of Richmond
Green (also see A.4.2)

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Rick Martinez

B.2.1 Oversee SHP’s delivery of the
£25.5m 2015/16 major works
programme

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

B.2.2 Monitor the non-decent
proportion of the stock

Quarterly
Within existing
throughout 2015/16 resources

Trevor Hart

A.8.1 Work alongside colleagues in
Area Renewal and Planning to
ensure new housing
developments in Hackbridge
are able to achieve the highest
environmental standards
possible

Strategic Aim B: Invest in and make best use of the borough’s existing housing stock
B1

3

Agenda Item 6

Achieve and improve upon the decent homes
standard across the Council’s stock and invest
in its long term future

Page 39

B2

Regenerate existing council stock where
appropriate to improve the quality of social
housing in the borough

B3

B4

B5

Carry out remodelling, adaptations to and,
where appropriate, redevelopment of sheltered
housing schemes to better meet the needs of
older people
Improve energy efficiency in the borough’s
housing stock across all tenures

Reduce under-occupation and overcrowding in
the borough’s social rented stock

Operate efficient and effective turnaround of
empty or void properties, tenant transfers and
nominations within the social rented stock

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

B.3.1 Deliver Phase 2 of the review of
older people housing and
support

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Jonathan
Williams

B.4.1 Oversee SHP’s delivery of the
energy efficiency works
contained within the 2015/16
major works programme

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

B.4.2 Monitor the SAP (energy
efficiency) rating of the stock

Quarterly
Within existing
throughout 2015/16 resources

Trevor Hart

B.5.1 Promote and facilitate access
to rehousing schemes available
to existing tenants: Housing
Moves, Mutual Exchange,
Seaside and Country Homes

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

B.5.2 Deliver Sutton Help to Buy
scheme to release 10 units of
Social Housing for households
on the housing register

March 2016

Within existing
resources plus
CLG funding

Helen Davies

B.5.3 Facilitate 60 under occupation
moves and utilise vacancies to
assist over-crowded households
on the housing register

March 2016

Helen Davies

B.6.1 Maintain sufficient numbers of
active households on the
Housing Register

Throughout
2015/16

Availability of
suitable void
properties and
Incentive
funding
Within existing
resources

B.6.2 Meet the standards set for
nominating households to
housing association properties

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

4

Lead Officer

Helen Davies

Page 40

B6

Objective

Agenda Item 6

Ref.

Ref.

B7

Objective

Operate an effective housing allocations policy
to ensure that households who cannot meet
their housing needs in the private sector are
assisted

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

B.6.3 Work with SHP to ensure they
monitor and deliver an effective
lettings process throughout the
year

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

B.7.1 Develop an annual lettings plan
to meet the competing demands
on the supply of available
properties

May 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

B.7.2 Collect management
information on a quarterly basis
regarding supply, activity,
household profile and need

Quarterly
throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

B.7.3 Regularly review mechanisms
to manage risk and safeguard
vulnerable households

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

B8

Make best use of private sector housing to meet
the needs of homeless and other housing
applicants

B.8.1 Develop the in-house Private
Rented Sector Accommodation
scheme to become an
accredited social lettings
agency.

September 2015

Homelessness
Grant available
to offer landlord
incentives, rent
in advance and
deposit
guarantees

Lorraine Thomas

B9

Work with property owners to bring empty
properties back into use through the application
of grants, loans or enforcement activity

B.9.1 Identify empty properties and
bring them back into use using
former HCA/Targeted Funding
Stream funding or through
enforcement work

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Jan Gransden/
Marie Pagan

Agenda Item 6

5

Page 41

Key Actions / Milestones

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

Strategic Aim C: Promote excellent housing management standards across all types of housing
C1

C3

C4

Monthly throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

C.1.2 Monitor all performance via the
SHP balanced scorecard

Quarterly
throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

C.1.3 Monitor delivery of the service
improvements contained within
the SHP Delivery Plan 2015/16

Quarterly
throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

Promote excellent standards of service and,
where appropriate, stock/management
rationalisation within the housing association
sector

C.2.1 Share good practice with
housing associations regarding
standards of service and utilise
opportunity for stock
management/rationalisation

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

Work with landlords and tenants to ensure good
standards of management in the private rented
sector

C.3.1 Carry out an enforcement
programme to identify and
inspect unregulated HMOs in
the borough

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Jan Gransden

C.3.2 Run the Council’s annual
private sector landlords
conference

June 2015

Within existing
resources

Jan Gransden

C.4.1 Promote continued resident
involvement amongst housing
associations via SutHAG and
one-to-one liaison meetings

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

C.4.2 Support the work of SHP’s
Resident Scrutiny Group

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

Work with SHP and housing associations with
stock in the borough to ensure effective resident
involvement

6

Page 42

C2

C.1.1 Monitor key performance
indicators via monthly
partnership meetings

Ensure, through robust performance
management, that the Council’s ALMO, Sutton
Housing Partnership (SHP) maintains an
excellent standard of service in all areas

Agenda Item 6

Ref.

Ref.

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

September 2015

Within existing
resources

Trevor Hart

D.1.1 Carry out quality assurance of
the Sutton HomeChoice website
to improve the user’s navigation
and access to pertinent
information

September 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

D.1.2 Increase the number of
locations and the use of Advice
Hubs throughout the borough.

October 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

D.2.1 Evaluate the impact of any
further welfare reform and
identify a response that will
mitigate that impact

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

D.2.2 Increase access points for
delivery of targeted advice for
single vulnerable households

October 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

D.2.3 Investigate opportunities to
respond to households
threatened with homelessness
at the earliest possible stage

October 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

D.2.4 Put in place a single homeless
pathway to manage risk and
safeguard vulnerable
households who are threatened
with homelessness or rough
sleeping

October 2015

Within existing
resources

Helen Davies

C.4.3 Support the development of
and agree the final Resident
Participation Compact
Strategic Aim D: Provide housing options advice and address homelessness
D1

Prevent homelessness wherever possible

Agenda Item 6

7

Page 43

D2

Provide effective and comprehensive housing
advice services across all tenures to ensure that
people are aware of their housing options

Key Actions / Milestones

D3

Work with private landlords to improve access to
the private rented sector for low income and
vulnerable households

D.3.1 Develop the in-house Private
Rented Sector Accommodation
scheme to become an
accredited social lettings
agency

September 2015

D4

Provide suitable temporary accommodation for
statutory homeless households

D.4.1 Develop a temporary
accommodation strategy to
identify future demand

June 2015

D.4.2 Develop a procurement plan to
support the Council’s
Temporary Accommodation
Strategy

D5

Help residents adversely affected by current and
future welfare benefit changes and prepare for
forthcoming changes

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

Homelessness
Grant available
to offer landlord
incentives, rent
in advance and
deposit
guarantees
Within existing
resources

Lorraine Thomas

September 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw/
Marie Pagan

D.4.3 Deliver the Oakleigh project to
provide 43 emergency
accommodation units for
homeless households

November 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

D.4.4 Carry out feasibility of modular
housing and identify potential
sites

March 2016

Within existing
resources and
dependent on
successful
procurement

Marie Pagan

D.5.1 See actions under D2

D.5.2 Work with SHP and other
social housing providers to
share information and prepare
for the further changes to the
welfare benefits system

8

Lorraine Thomas

Helen Davies

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Lorraine Thomas
/ Trevor Hart

Page 44

Objective

Agenda Item 6

Ref.

Ref.

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones

Timescale

Resources

Lead Officer

Strategic Aim E: Provide housing support and improve the health and wellbeing of residents
E1

Support vulnerable households to find and keep
a home in the community and reduce the need
for care and nursing home placements

E.1.1 Work with social work teams to
provide accommodation
solutions across client groups

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Marie Pagan

E.1.2 Deliver 10 units for reablement
following hospital discharge

May 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw

E.1.3 Facilitate independent living by
assisting disabled clients to
adapt their properties to enable
them to continue living at home

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Jan Gransden

E.1.4 See actions under D2

Helen Davies
Within existing
resources

Make use of assistive technology to enable older E.2.1 Continue to upgrade hardwired
and disabled people to live independently in the
and/or replace with dispersed
community
alarm to enable assistive
technology in Council and
housing association stock

E3

Ensure that housing plays its full part in the
Council fulfilling its safeguarding and other
responsibilities under the Care Act 2014

E.3.1 See actions under B7 and D2

E4

Provide sufficient and suitable accommodation
for marginalised groups such as Gypsies and
Travellers who are resident in the borough

E.4.1 Obtain Member approval for a
feasibility study to be carried
out on identified sites

June 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw /
Duncan Clarke

E.4.2 Report the outcome of the
feasibility study to HEB
Committee

December 2015

Within existing
resources

Gill Daw /
Duncan Clarke

Helen Davies

Agenda Item 6

9

Jonathan
Williams

Page 45

Throughout
2015/16

E2

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones
E.4.3 Procure a suitable managing
agent for potential new and
existing site

Timescale
March 2016

Resources

Lead Officer

Within existing
resources

Marie Pagan

Undertake initiatives in the social housing sector
that support residents’ health and well being

E.5.1 See actions under E7

E6

Help long term unemployed vulnerable people
living in the most deprived areas into
employment

E.6.1 Target households in temporary
accommodation to use the Job
Club to assist them to secure
employment

Throughout
2015/16

Within existing
resources

Lorraine Thomas

E.6.2 Raise awareness of the Job
Club amongst staff, stakeholder
and service users

July 2015

Within existing
resources

Lorraine Thomas

E.6.3 Improve the information on the
Enhanced Housing Options
system regarding opportunities
to improve employment
prospects

December 2015

Within existing
resources

Lorraine Thomas

E.7.1 Work in partnership with Public
Health and partner
organisations to deliver targeted
interventions to improve the
health and safety of vulnerable
residents, including preventing
excess winter deaths, falls and
improving security

Throughout
2015/16

£50k Public
Health funding

Jan Gransden

E.7.2 Carry out enforcement action
under the Housing Act 2005 in
private sector homes to reduce
the number of Category 1
Hazards relating to excess cold

March 2016

Within existing
resources

Jan Gransden

E7

Work with partner organisations to tackle and
reduce fuel poverty across all housing tenures

10

Trevor Hart

Page 46

E5

Agenda Item 6

Ref.

Ref.

Objective

Key Actions / Milestones
E.7.3 Reduce the incidence of fuel
poverty in the borough by
improving ten of the least
energy efficient homes via the
installation of first time central
heating

Timescale
March 2016

Resources
Subject to
securing an
award from the
DECC Central
Heating Fund

Lead Officer
Jan Gransden

Page 47
Agenda Item 6

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Appendix B

Housing Strategy 2015/16 and beyond
Integrated Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics

a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?

This is a review of the existing housing strategy that was written in 2011 that requires
updating.
b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?
The new Housing Strategy sets out how the Council, together with its partners and
stakeholders, plans to meet the housing needs of residents in the borough both now and into
the future. It is shaped by local, regional and national policy drivers.
To ensure that the strategy is responsive to the influencing factors, including the Council’s
wider aims for its community, we have developed a vision for housing, which is to create “A
community in which the housing needs of all households are met now and in the future”. This
vision is underpinned by five key priorities. These are to:
1.Increase the supply of affordable housing
2.Invest in and make best use of the borough’s existing housing stock
3.Promote excellent housing management standards across all types of housing
4.Provide housing options advice and address homelessness
5.Provide housing support and improve the health and wellbeing of residents
c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific wards or
state all borough)
Borough-wide

Section 2: Equality and diversity
a. Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at LBS,

residents, third and voluntary sector)
All borough residents irrespective of their housing tenure.
b. Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific impact on

protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME),

1

Agenda Item 6

Page 50

In our role as strategic enabler we have developed this housing strategy to identify a range of
goals and objectives, some relate to residents in specific tenures e.g. decent homes
impacting on Council tenants and others that relate more broadly to the borough population
e.g. the provision of housing advice and the prevention of homelessness. Below are
examples of objectives that have been identified for delivery within the housing strategy:


Maximize affordable housing provision and achieve sustainable communities through
the application of planning policies.



Achieve and improve upon the decent homes standard across the Council’s stock and
investment in its long-term future.



Improve energy efficiency in the borough’s housing stock across all tenures.



Work with landlords and tenants to ensure good standards of management in the
private rented sector.



Provide effective and comprehensive housing advice services across all tenures to
ensure that people are aware of their housing options



Support vulnerable households (including older people, people with disabilities and
long-term conditions, people with a learning disability, people with mental health issues
etc.) to find and keep a home in the community and reduce the need for care and
nursing home placements.
c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

Data available internally – Number of people occupying supported housing, supported living
accommodation and care homes
Data from ONS and GLA - population projections.
Data from POPPI and PANSI - population projections for older people, older people with
dementia, people with physical and sensory disabilities, people with learning difficulties and
with Autistic Spectrum Disorder have been recorded in the Housing Strategy Evidence Base
that accompanies and supports the Housing Strategy
Housing Diversity Monitoring report 2013/14 - Diversity monitoring of housing service delivery
and outcomes.
Strategic Housing Market Assessment – population trends, the estimated level of housing
need, house prices, affordability trends etc.
Consultation with key stakeholders e.g. voluntary sector groups representing particular client
groups have provided some feedback on the needs of particular client groups e.g. older
people, people with a history of crime, violence and alcohol/substance misuse.
d. What equality-related information, for example through consultation with stakeholders,

has been gathered on this proposal? (indicate the type of information gathered and
ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion and sexual orientation.
You can also include people with caring responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to
where the evidence is held.)
See Housing Strategy Evidence Base
See response to Housing Strategy consultation
A comprehensive diversity monitoring report is conducted annually to monitor who is
accessing housing services and to enable plans for improvement.

2

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

e. In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some groups of

people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion and
sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring responsibilities.)
No negative impacts have been identified to date in respect of race, disability, gender age,
sexual orientation, religion/belief or social class.
In view of the current financial climate and the challenge of budget cuts, objectives identified
in the housing strategy may require that resources are invested in one area at the cost of
another. Service managers will determine how resources are prioritised in line with the aims
and objectives as part of their business planning process.
f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

Promoting equality of opportunity, in terms of service delivery to residents and to staff
working for the Council and amongst our partners, is embedded within the culture, aims and
objectives and the policies and procedures of the organisation.
The Housing Strategy is supported by an evidence base that highlights client groups and
household circumstances that are particularly affected by e.g. financial difficulties as a result
of changes to welfare benefits and difficulty accessing housing. This will enable services to
respond to the needs identified.
Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical and/or
mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action will be taken
to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
Various objectives identified in the Housing Strategy will result in improved access to housing
and housing related services as well as support to remain independent, which may indirectly
benefit in terms of their general well being.
Work carried out in partnership with others, e.g. related to a reduction in fuel poverty, via
initiatives to reduce unemployment and through the provision of good quality temporary
accommodation in the borough all have proven positive impacts on mental and physical
health.
b.

In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an individual’s
opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a negative impact
what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has or will be collected?

The housing strategy identifies new initiatives that are being developed e.g. a joint project
with the Council and Sutton Housing Partnership to enable people with mental health issues
to gain employment, to contribute to their general health and well being as well as the
sustainability of their tenancy. Additionally, accessible housing advice, improved access to
suitable housing (both temporary accommodation) supported accommodation and schemes
to maintain independent living will also contribute to this outcome and present greater choice
as well as improved self reliance.
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact disproportionally on the
health and wellbeing of one or more different communities? (e.g. improve the lives
and health of a vulnerable group such as people with learning disabilities). If there is

3

Agenda Item 6

Page 52

a negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this?
No negative impacts have been identified.
The strategy will have a positive impact on older people and people with dementia via the
proposed remodelling of existing social housing sheltered housing scheme to meet the needs
of the older residents of the borough. It will enable the provision of suitable housing that will
enable older people to remain independent. (Further research is being carried out to inform
this work)
The continued provision of supported housing will enable vulnerable client groups e.g. older
people, people with learning disabilities, mental health problems, single homeless people,
people with substance misuse problems, young people etc. to develop skills and confidence
to live independently and in some cases to avoid having to move into more institutionalised
care settings.
Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward investment
to the borough?
It is not possible at this stage to determine the full affect that this strategy will have on the
local economy in terms of job opportunities and inward investment. However, investment in
the local authority stock and delivery of new affordable housing may impact positively on the
local job market and on local businesses.
b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in Sutton?

As above (a)

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and or local
businesses in Sutton?
This strategy will require a partnership approach to its delivery. Integral to its delivery is the
input of the voluntary sector, to support vulnerable clients.

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in Sutton?
The Council will continue to seek opportunities to deliver new affordable housing that will
contribute to a reduction in housing need as well as using existing resources to raise the
standard of existing local authority stock and housing management standards across the
rented sector.

4

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
Yes.
Prior to the delivery of any new initiatives concerning the use of resources, extensive studies
into the feasibility of this approach has and will been carried out – see the HRA Business
Plan and the Market Position Statement.

c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One Planet
Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste, encourage the
use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the environment or encourage the
efficient use of water? Please see guidance for further details if this is relevant to your
policy or review).
Where the delivery of the priorities and objectives contained in the Housing Strategy are
anticipated to impact upon the environment, these will be minimised by having regard to the
Council’s One Planet Sutton principles and targets as well as relevant regional and national
guidance.

Section 6: Actions and Publications
a. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the level of

action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):

1. No major change required (when the assessment has not identified any potential
for discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have
been taken.)
b. What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative impacts

or previously met unidentified needs?
None
c.

What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor the
impact of this proposal?

Six monthly monitoring and review of the Housing Strategy will be overseen by the Housing
Strategy Group. Updates from service managers will be collated and reviewed by the
Housing Strategy Group and reported to the Housing, Economy and Business Committee.
d. Sign- off ( Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

Simon Latham
Executive Head of Community Living and Strategic Commissioning

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 55

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 7

Housing, Economy and Business
Date: 23 June 2015
Committee
Annual Review of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director, Resources
Borough Wide
Councillor Jayne McCoy / Councillor Nick Emmerson (Revenues and
Benefits)
Julie Turner, Head of Revenues, Benefits, Insurance and Pensions
(020 8770 4496)
 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Open
Date: 10 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report sets out the latest position in respect of the Council Tax Reduction scheme,
which was introduced 1 April 2013 and following review and consultation during
2014/15 was revised with an implementation date for the changes of 1 April 2015.

1.2

The report also details the final expenditure on the scheme in 2014/15 along with the
estimated expenditure for 2015/16

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Housing, Economy and Business Committee agree that the scheme remains
unchanged for the 2016/2017 financial year and for this to be recommended to the
next Full Council meeting.

3.

Background

3.1

Previously under the national Council Tax Benefit arrangements the council was fully
reimbursed for benefit payments that it made locally. Responsibility to develop and
operate a local Council Tax Support scheme with effect from 1 April 2013 was
transferred to the local authority in the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as
amended by the LGFA 2012 Act). At the same time the Government funding available
for a local scheme was reduced by 10%.

3.2

A decision was made at Full Council in January 2013 to adopt a local scheme that
reduced the impact of the 10% reduction in Government grant to the council. The 10%
reduction figure (estimated) was based on the amount of Council Tax Benefit paid out
in 2011/12, which in Sutton was £14 million; which meant the council had an expected
£1.4 million to save in benefit or generate in revenue. The net loss for Sutton was
estimated at £1.1m as the GLA element at the time amounted to 21.2%. The principles
of the CTR scheme introduced on 1 April 2013 can be found at appendix B.

Page 56

Agenda Item 7

3.3

The Council received £9.7m allocation for its Council Tax Reduction scheme in
2013/14, which represented a reduction of about £0.4m on previous estimates. The
allocation was adjusted by a pre-determined calculation based on expected budget
pressures. Those authorities whose budget pressure exceeded the ceiling received an
additional allocation and those whose budget pressure was below the floor had their
allocation reduced. The London Borough of Sutton had its allocation reduced.

3.4

National government cuts, as a result of the coalition government’s policy to reduce
the public sector deficit, are being significantly felt by local government. The whole of
local government is changing as Councils face unprecedented reductions to their
funding coupled with increasing demand for services due to demographic pressures
and the consequences of other national government policies such as welfare reform.

3.5

The London Borough of Sutton is no different from other Councils. The Council has
faced a 25% reduction to its budget since 2010 and to address this, the council
identified £32m through its four year Smarter Services Sutton (SSS) programme.

3.6

Projections for the council budget over the next four years (2015/16 to 2018/19) shows
that there is a budget shortfall of £38m or 27% of current net expenditure. This shortfall
will need to be met by identifying and delivering savings or additional income.

3.7

The grant for Council Tax Reduction schemes is now incorporated into the Council’s
overall revenue support grant. Therefore, there is no dedicated allocation within the
overall grant for 2014/15. However, this grant was reduced by 7.9% in 2014/15 and
was reduced by a further 11.2%1 in 2015/16.

3.8

Spending on the scheme for the first full year (2013/14) was as follows:
Table 1: 2013/14 Council Tax Reduction scheme actual costs
Gross Cost
2013/14

£12.701m

GLA
£2.664m

Sutton
£10.037m

Grant
£9.724m

Sutton
net Cost
£313k

The reduction in grant funding was also offset by a number of technical changes to the
Council Tax exemptions. At the time this offered additional income of £540k.
Final Position 2014/15
3.9

As at the 31 March 2015 there were 12,545 households claiming a Council Tax
Reduction. The total number of households claiming Council Tax Benefit in March
2014 was 13,593. The claim base has reduced by 1,048 cases (8%), which could be
as a result of improved circumstances for claimants therefore no longer qualifying or
other changes in circumstances such as moved out of the borough or found work.

3.10 Table 1 in appendix A highlights the households in the borough claiming a Council Tax
Reduction by banding type. Nearly 92% (11,492) of households claiming are in bands

The Revenue Support Grant was reduced by 19.4%, from £41.7m to £33.8m. Total Settlement
Funding Assessment was reduced by 10.1%, but that is after rolling in the 2014/15 council tax freeze
grant so the underlying reduction is 11.2%.
1

Page 57

Agenda Item 7

A to D. The table includes those that are fully protected, a total of 8,366 customers.
3.11 Table 2 in appendix A highlights the non-protected households by band. Nearly 92%
(2,867) of households affected are in bands A to D, However, 8% (259) of households
in bands E to H would be some of the households most affected in monetary terms
due to Council Tax Reduction being capped at band D.
3.12 As the table below shows, using figures at 31 March 2015, the total cost of the Council
Tax Reduction scheme for 2014/15 was £11.879m of which the Sutton share was
£9.412m. This represents an overall reduction in the gross cost of scheme of £625k
(Sutton share) when compared with 2013/14 (£10.037m). However, the net cost of the
scheme after grant to Sutton has increased from £313k in 2013/14 to £456k in 2014/15

Table 2: 2013/14 and 2014/15 Council Tax Reduction scheme actual cost
Gross Cost

Sutton

Grant

Sutton net
Cost

2013/14

£12.701m

£2.664m

£10.037m

£9.724m

£313k

2014/15

£11.879m

£2.467m

£9.412m

£8.956m*

£456k

*
3.13

GLA

Baseline grant £9,724m – £768k (7.9%)

Table 3 below provides a detailed breakdown of the 2014/15 Council Tax Reduction
scheme by classification of claim types.
Table 3: 2014/15 Council Tax Reduction scheme cost by classification

Council Tax Reduction
scheme classification

2014/15
Scheme
cost

Cases

Average
Weekly
Award

*Pensionable

£4.690m

4,805

£18

*Vulnerable household
(children under 5)

£1.837m

1,850

£18

*Vulnerable (disability benefit)

£2.910m

2,765

£20

Working Age – Not In
Employment

£1.503m

1,833

£15

£939k

1,292

£14

£11.879m

12,545

£18

Working Age - In Employment

Total

Page 58

Agenda Item 7

*

These are the protected claims within the overall caseload.

2015/16 Estimated Cost
3.14 During the financial year 2014/15 the Council carried out a review of its Council Tax
Reduction scheme. The report was presented to the Housing, Economy and Business
Committee on 1 July 2014, and recommended proposals for a number of changes to
the scheme. The Council completed a 12 week consultation and undertook a Task
and Finish group.
3.15 To ensure that residents were fully aware of the options proposed, including the
recommended way forward set out above, it was agreed a second consultation period
of 3 weeks would run from 10 November to 2 December 2014. This was following
receipt of the Supreme Court judgement ruling that the London Borough of Haringey’s
consultation on its CTR scheme was unlawful.
3.16 The outcome of the consultations and the proposed Council Tax Reduction scheme
changes were presented to the Housing, Economy and Business Committee on 9
December 2014. The Housing, Economy and Business Committee agreed the
proposed changes, which were duly recommended to Full Council for implementation
on 1 April 2015. The recommended changes are set out in appendix C.
3.17 The changes implemented in 2015/16 were estimated to reduce the net cost of the
Council Tax Reduction scheme to Sutton by £623k. The proposed changes were
estimated to reduce costs further but not to meet the full grant reduction, therefore
leaving a net cost to Sutton of £444k. However, this was based on estimates that are
difficult to predict in a demand led service, which is volatile to customer changes in
circumstances and the final expenditure figures for Sutton in 2014/15 were £365k
higher than the earlier estimates.
3.18 Table 4 below sets out the 2014/15 estimates and the actual net cost of the scheme to
Sutton in 2014/15 and the net grant reductions compared to the estimated costs of the
scheme in 2015/16, following implementation of the changes.
Table 4: Council Tax Reduction scheme cost compared to grant reductions
Gross Cost

GLA

Sutton

Grant

Sutton
net cost

2014/15
Estimate

£11.419m

£2.372m

£9.047m

£8.956m

£0.091m

2014/15
Actual

£11.879m

£2.467m

£9.412m

£8.956m*

£0.456m

2015/16

£11.211m

£2.268m

£8.943m

£7.980m**

£0.963m

(£0.668m)

(£0.199m)

(£0.469m)

(£0.976m)

Estimate
Change
(actual
14/15 to
estimate
15/16)
*

Baseline grant £9,724m – £768k (7.9%)

£0.507m

Page 59

**

Agenda Item 7

Baseline grant £9,724m – £768k (7.9%) - £976k (11.2%)

3.19 The estimated cost of the Council Tax Reduction scheme in 2015/16 and as at 20 May
2015 is suggesting a reduction in the gross cost of the scheme compared to the actual
cost in 2014/15, however, the net cost of the scheme after the grant is taken into
account is estimated to increase by £0.507m.
Table 5: 2015/16 Forecast Council Tax Reduction scheme cost by
classification
Council Tax
Reduction scheme
classification
*Pensionable
*Vulnerable household
(children under 2)
*Vulnerable (disability
benefit)
Working Age – Not In
Employment
Working Age - In
Employment
Total
*

2015/16 Forecast
gross cost

Cases

Average
Weekly
Award

£4.548m

4,749

£18

£649k

662

£19

£2.932m

2,756

£20

£1.969m

2,430

£16

£1.113m

1,535

£14

£11.211m

12,132

£17

These are the protected claims within the overall caseload.

3.20 The number of working age recipients of CTR has reduced from 7,740 to 7,383 a
reduction of 357 cases. There is no clear reason for the fall in the number of working
age recipients, as there has been movement in all classifications of the scheme.
3.21 The main difference between the 2014/15 out turn and the 2015/16 estimate is the
effect of the changes introduced on 1 April 2015. The principles of the CTR scheme
introduced on 1 April 2013 can be found at appendix B with the list of additional
changes introduced from 1 April 2015 attached at appendix C.
3.22 Following the introduction of the 1 April 2015 changes there are 1,188 less claimants
classified as a vulnerable household (children under 2), which is due to the lowering of
the youngest child’s age from 5 to 2. This means those claimants with children aged 2
or over have moved into either working age employed (increased by 243) or working
age not employed (increased by 597).
3.23 It is worth noting that, of the estimated £11.211m gross cost (Sutton share £8.943m) of
the council’s scheme in 2015/16, protected cases (table 5 above) account for £8.128m
(Sutton share £6.484m) 62% and non-protected working age cases in the scheme
account for £3.083m gross cost (Sutton share £2.459m) 38%. Given the statutory
protection for pensioners and the protection for claimants with children under 2 years
of age and claimants with a disability any future cost reduction would need to be borne
by working age customers and could act as a disincentive to work.

Page 60

Agenda Item 7

3.24 A hardship fund of £25,000 was agreed by the Council to help residents receiving a
Council Tax Reduction that were struggling to pay their Council Tax. In 2014/15 there
were 234 hardship awards totalling £12k. Of these, 25 related to Care Leavers.
3.25 Gross spending on the CTR scheme has continued to fall year on year. However, the
reduction in the Revenue Settlement Grant (RSG) has meant that that available grant
funding has also reduced over time. In 2013/14 the Council introduced changes to
Council Tax discounts to offset the original gap in funding. This provided an increase in
funding of £540k. These technical changes are now incorporated into the council’s
Council Tax base and can no longer be stated separately.
Table 6: Spending on the CTR scheme year on year.
Gross Cost

GLA

Sutton

Grant

Sutton
net cost

2013/14

£12.701m

£2.664m

£10.037m

£9.724m

£0.313m

2014/15

£11.879m

£2.467m

£9.412m

£8.956m

£0.456m

2015/16

£11.211m

£2.268m

£8.943m

£7.980m

£0.963m

Estimated
NB. The figures for the grant assume the 7.9% and 11.2% RSG reductions
have been applied to the original grant allocation of £9,724m.
4.

Performance

4.1

The 2014/15 year end collection rate was 98.52%% against a target of 97.61%.
Assumptions, had been made that there would be a dip in collection when trying to
collect small sums from residents who previously had not had to make a contribution
towards their Council Tax. However, there has been a reduction in collection
performance of 0.08% since 13/14 when the out turn was 98.6%. The full year
collection performance is set out in table 3, appendix A.

4.2

Collection performance against each respective scheme was better than previous
assumptions, which helped maintain the overall collection performance. This is set out
in table 4, appendix A.

4.3

The total number of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction claims in payment at
the end of March 2015 was 15,397. Claims monthly average in 2014/15 was 15,692
and range from a high of 15,887 to a low of 15,397; of these there were 12,698
Council Tax Reduction claims on the 31 March 2015. As at 20 May 2015 the council
has 12,132 Council Tax Reduction claims.

4.4

Council Tax Reduction new claims were assessed on average within 23 days against
a target of 17 days. Council Tax Reduction changes in circumstances were assessed
on average within 7 days against a target of 8.9 days.

4.5

Any overpayment of a Council Tax Reduction is recovered from the customer’s
Council Tax account and the amount is allowed to be paid over the remainder of the
financial year. To reduce the number of and size of overpayment it is important that
changes in circumstances are actioned quickly.

Page 61

Agenda Item 7

4.6

For 2014/15 the Benefits team received 7 complaints covering all forms of Benefit but
only 2 have been specifically about customers querying or complaining about their
Council Tax Reduction entitlement. Neither complaint was upheld.

5

CTR scheme review

5.1

The Council is legally required to review its CTR scheme on an annual basis. Having
introduced a number of changes to the scheme on 1 April 2015 it is too soon to have
identified any unintended consequences or areas for review or clarification. Please see
appendix C for the full list of changes.

5.2

Therefore, it is not recommended to make year on year changes to the scheme
as it is likely to cause customer confusion and could lead to a decrease in overall
collection performance.

5.3 The Council will, as previously consulted upon, increase the minimum contribution rate
and the non-dependent deductions from the beginning of the financial year 2016 /2017
to remain in line with any changes proposed in the annual autumn uprating from the
DWP.
6

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The total cost of the scheme in 2014/15 was £11.879m of which the Sutton share is
£9.412m. This is a decrease against the Council’s estimated cost included within the
tax base calculation for that year of £679k. This reduction is most likely due to fewer
people making claims for a Council Tax Reduction, which may be due to the
improvement in the economy and a better collection rate than anticipated for the new
scheme.

Table 7: 2014/15 and 2015/16 Council Tax Reduction scheme tax base calculation
2014/15
Original
Estimate (as
per taxbase
calculation)
£’000
Scheme
cost
Less
GLA
Sutton
Share
6.2

2014/15
Actual
scheme
cost
£’000

Change
£’000

2015/16
2015/16
Change
Original
Estimate
£’000
Estimate of scheme
(as per
costs
£’000
taxbase
calculation)
£’000
(858)
11,127
11,211
84

12,737

11,879

2,646

2,467

(179)

2,251

2,268

17

10,091

9,412

(679)

8,876

8,943

67

The tax base for 2015/16 to 2018/19 including provision for the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme has been reviewed as part of the 2015/16 financial planning process. The
estimate for scheme costs, per the tax base calculation, is £11.127m, of which, the
Sutton share is £8.876m. This calculation takes into account the expected reduction in
cost of the scheme from the implemented changes and 2% for natural reduction due to
the improving economic position. Current estimates suggest the CTR scheme may

Agenda Item 7

Page 62

cost Sutton £8.943m, which is currently £67K above the estimated tax base
calculation.
6.3

It should be noted that there are significant financial risks as there could be increases
in the numbers of eligible residents or changes in the characteristics of applicants
increasing the cost of the scheme.

6.4

The grant for Council Tax Reduction Schemes is now incorporated into the Council’s
overall revenue support grant. Therefore, there is no dedicated allocation within the
overall grant for 2015/16. However this grant was reduced by 7.9% in 2014/15 and a
further 11.2% in 2015/16. If these reductions are applied to the grant amount rolled
into revenue support grant for Council Tax Reduction Schemes, this would mean a
reduction of £768k in 2014/15 and a further £976k in 2015/16 bringing the total
reduction to £1.744m. The reduction in the cost of the scheme to Sutton over the three
years is estimated at £1.094m. This means the overall cost to the council of the
scheme is estimated at £650k over the 3 years.

6.5

It will be difficult to achieve further significant reductions in the cost of the scheme as
62% (£8.943m) of existing costs are paid to protected groups. The remaining nonprotected working age cases within the scheme account for an estimated £2.459m
(Sutton share) or 38% in 2015/16.
Legal

6.6

The Local Government Act 2012 prescribes that a review of the Council Tax Reduction
scheme must take place each financial year. If the scheme is to be revised or replaced
for 2016/17 the decision has to be made no later than 31 January 2015.

6.7

The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) revising a Council Tax
Reduction scheme is reserved to full Council.
Equality Impact Assessment

6.8

The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty and has due regard to the need to:
a) Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it, and
c) Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

6.9

An integrated impact assessment can be found at appendix D.

7

Risks

7.1

The local Council Tax Reduction scheme is one of a number of national benefit
changes in recent years and the Government has pledged to deliver a further £12bn in
further welfare spending reductions over the next parliament.

7.2

Government proposals are likely to include a further reduction in the overall benefit cap
from £26,000 down to £23,000; this would double the existing cases from
approximately 150 to 300. Further proposals are likely to remove housing benefit for
single people under 21 (or possibly 25), removing job seekers allowance for 18 to 21
year olds and replacing with a youth allowance (limited to 6 months) and freezing
benefit rates for 2 years from 2016. All of which are likely to place additional cost

Page 63

Agenda Item 7

pressures on low income and vulnerable benefit recipients.
7.3

In addition, Sutton Job Centre is piloting the rollout of Universal Credit digital service.
This commenced on 26 November 2014 with SM5 2 postal district, with SM6 7 and
SM6 8 being added on 18 March 2015. The Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) has advised the council that it intends to further expand the pilot on 10 June
2015 to SM6 9 and CR0 4. The pilot is based on natural migration based on certain
changes in circumstances or a residents need to make a new claim. Given this, up
take for those requiring housing support costs payment (rent and mortgages) as at 3
May 2015 is less than 1% of the Housing Benefit caseload., which is 12,610 cases.

7.4

There are a number of other risks identified:
a. The impact of the local housing allowance reductions and the benefit cap may
lead to increased migration from high-rent areas and therefore an increase in
the caseload, with a consequential increase in the net cost to the Council.
b. There is an increased likelihood and risk that all of the welfare benefit changes
may make collection of Council Tax due difficult and lead to a reduction in
current collection performance.
c. Interested groups or parties could mount challenges in the form of appeals,
ombudsman investigations, and possibly judicial reviews but these risks are
minimised through the proper decision making processes being undertaken,
which includes consultation where necessary and undertaking and having
regard to the appropriate equality analysis.
d. Customers could face more hardship than was originally intended. To mitigate
against this the Council will ensure that the hardship scheme is more widely
promoted and if necessary consider an increase in the sum available to
minimise the effects of the scheme.

7.5

In order to mitigate the impacts of the reduction in welfare support available to
residents the council employs a welfare reform outreach officer. The officer works
closely with affected residents and both internal and external stakeholders to identify
those affected and offer the most appropriate support. This could be in the form of
financial and budgeting advice, support with their housing options, support for training
and support to make them ‘work ready’.

Appendix Letter
A
B
C
D

Title
Data Tables
Summary 2013/14 and 2014/15 CTR scheme
CTR Scheme changes implemented 1 April
2015/16
Integrated Impact Assessment

Background Documents and Previous Decisions
Strategy and Resources Committee report 17 December 2012
Housing Economy and Business Committee report 8 October 2013
Housing Economy and Business Committee Report 9 December 2014

Page 64

Agenda Item 7

Audit Trail
Version

Final

9 June 2015

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Comments Sought
Finance
Legal

Yes
Yes

Comments checked
by
Sue Hogg
Chris Warner

Page 65

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Data Tables

Table 1 – Households claiming Council Tax Reduction by Banding (as at 31
March 2015)
Banding of households
affected
Band A

241

Average weekly
CTR award
£13.34

Band B

2604

£15.27

Band C

5759

£17.12

Band D

2888

£19.21

Band E

774

£23.05

Band F

221

£26.62

Band G

57

£31.48

Band H

1

£46.63

Total

Number of households

12545

NB. Numbers will vary against estimates as data taken from live database and case
count is measured in real time.

Page 66

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A
Data Tables
Table 2 - Households affected by Council Tax Reduction by banding

Banding of
households
affected

Band A

63

Average
weekly
amount
they
have to
pay
(Working
age
other)*
£7.45

Band B

522

£8.57

£12.97

£10.21

£11.33

Band C

1516

£9.26

£15.35

£11.83

£12.78

Band D

766

£10.17

£17.52

£12.67

£15.02

Band E

192

£14.12

£19.72

£15.94

£17.90

Band F

57

£19.18

£20.82

£22.28

£17.72

Band G

10

£32.03

£14.12

£18.77

£27.38

Total

Number of
households

Average
CTR
award
(Working
age other)

Average
weekly
amount
they have
to pay
(Working
age
employed)*

Average
CTR award
(Working
age
employed)

£11.01

£7.25

£11.21

3126

Pensioner case load is 4,805
* Average amount to pay is gross weekly Council Tax payable for that band,
less CTR award

Page 67

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Data Tables
Table 3 – Collection performance for 2014/15 month on month and compared to
2013/14

2014/2015

Target

%
collected

% +/- to
Target

2013/2014

Target

%
collected

% +/compared
to
2013/14

April

11.60

11.43

-0.17

April

11.44

11.60

+0.16

May

21.10

20.87

-0.23

May

21.09

21.10

+0.01

June

30.43

30.26

-0.17

June

30.43

30.43

0.00

July

39.82

39.58

-0.24

July

39.57

39.82

+0.25

August

49.07

48.93

-0.14

August

48.66

49.07

+0.41

September

58.68

58.62

-0.06

September

58.77

58.68

-0.09

October

68.08

67.89

-0.19

October

68.10

68.08

-0.02

November

77.27

77.09

-0.18

November

77.25

77.27

+0.02

December

86.54

86.41

-0.13

December

86.54

86.54

0.00

January

95.68

95.58

-0.10

January

96.41

95.68

-0.73

February

97.19

97.29

+0.10

February

96.96

97.17

+0.21

March

98.60

98.52

-0.08

March

97.61

98.60

+0.99

Table 4 - 2014/15 Collection performance by scheme
Council Tax
Net Liability
Reduction scheme
Pensionable
£935,834.66
Vulnerable household
£487,631.33
(children under 5)
Vulnerable
£229,620.53
Working Age Other
£649,376.04
Working Age
£695,313.78
Employment
Overall
£2,997,776.34
* Includes credits held on account.

Percentage
collected*
115.48%
92.52%
107.58%
71.82%
86.71%
95.04%

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme
The Council will adopt the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default
Scheme) (England) Regulations 2012 with a number of exceptions the effect
of which will be as set out below;
I.

Eligibility for all non-pensioner cases will be based on a maximum
liability not to exceed the Band D Equivalent in the relevant financial
year.

II.

All non-pensioner cases with savings in excess of £10,000 or more will
not be entitled to reduction under the scheme.

III.

The Alternative Maximum council tax reduction (for persons who are
not pensioners) of the Default Scheme (known as Second Adult
Rebate) shall not apply.

IV.

Where the non-pensioner claimant’s income is more than their
applicable amount; the percentage (also known as taper) rate shall be
25% in the calculation.

V.

Where the non-pensioner working claimant is in receipt of child benefit
then 25% of the child benefit shall be treated as income in the
calculation.

VI.

All non-working but working age claimants shall contribute £3.55 each
week towards their maximum eligibility.

VII.

The applicable non-dependent rates for council tax support will be as
follows
Non-Dependent Deductions
If non dependent is on a passport benefit
If non dependent works less than 16
hours/week or is on maternity, paternity,
adoption or sick leave
Working earning over 394.00
Working earning between 316.00 and
393.99
working earning between 183.00 and
315.99
working earning less than 183.00
not working or working less than 16 hours a
week

£0.00

£

£4.60
13.85

£

11.55

£
£

9.15
4.60

£

4.60

Claimants defined as vulnerable will be exempt from the changes outlined above.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C

Changes from 1 April 2015
1. That Care Leavers become a recognised protected group until their 25th birthday, if on a
qualifying benefit such as job seekers allowance they would receive a full Council Tax
Reduction.
2. That the minimum contribution rate for non working but working age customers is increased
to £3.65 (2014/15 rate) as a minimum but will be uprated to remain in line with any changes
proposed in the annual autumn uprating for 2015/16 and will continue to be uprated on an
annual basis thereafter.
The minimum contribution rat e for 2015/16 is set at £3.75
3. The maximum period for backdating a Council Tax Reduction award is one month, and is
fully aligned with the conditionality set out in Universal Credit; in that the following conditions
must be satisfied, such as you were previously getting a benefit and you were not notified
that your entitlement was going to end, you have a disability, you were unwell and could not
claim online or by telephone or you previously had a joint claim that has been terminated as
you are no longer a couple.
4. That non-dependent deductions are increased to the rates in the table below as a minimum
but that going forward the Council will uprate the non-dependent deduction annually in line
with the consumer prices index (CPI) increase (rounded up to the nearest 5p) announced
by the Minister of State for Work and Pensions in the annual autumn uprating for 2015/16
and will continue to be uprated on an annual basis thereafter.
Non-dependant deductions
In receipt of Pension Credit

Nil

Aged 18 or over and not in remunerative work

£4.75

Aged 18 or over and in remunerative work
- gross income less than £188.00

£4.75

- gross income not less than £188.00 but less
than £326.00

£9.40

- gross income not less than £326.00 but less
than £406.00

£11.90

- gross income in excess of £406.00

£14.25

Agenda Item 7

Page 72
Appendix C

5.

That the Council no longer annually uprates the applicable amounts and premiums currently
used in the assessment of a Council Tax Reduction claim; with the exception of those
stated at 2 (the minimum contribution) and 4 (non-dependent deductions) above.

6.

That with the continued roll out of Universal Credit the Council Tax Reduction scheme is
amended as follows:
i. Claims for Universal Credit will be accepted as the first date of claim for a Council
Tax Reduction
ii. If the Universal Credit award is not decided within the first month the Council will
assess the claim according to the means test applied when claims for other relevant
benefits are received; treating the subsequent award of UC as a change in circumstances.

7.

The Council will use the minimum income floor to calculate self-employed income.
However, for self-employed claimants with caring responsibilities discretion should be
allowed to reduce the hours worked on an individual basis and dependent on the level of
caring support.

8.

Personal Independence Payments to be added to the list of income types used to define a
vulnerable adult.

9.

The Council maintains protection for households with children under the age of two year
olds and removes protection for households with children between three and five.

10. That the level a Council Tax Reduction is calculated at remains capped at Band D.
11. All earned income disregards will be set at £20
12. Carers Allowance shall be fully disregarded as an income.

Page 73

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

Impact Assessment Form
This template sets out questions for the full IIA. The sections you must complete are
sections 1, 2, 3 and 6. The other sections on local economy and sustainability must only be
completed if they are relevant to your proposal. Use any qualitative or quantitative data
where possible, including any financial data in the latter sections.
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
This is a review of the Localised Council Tax Reduction (CTR) Scheme, which was
introduced 1 April 2013.

b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?

All working age customers pay towards Council Tax even if they had previously paid none.
To reduce the ongoing costs of the Council’s Council Tax Reduction scheme while still
providing a level of support to help residents on low incomes or out of work to meet their
Council Tax liability.
c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect?

Borough Wide

Section 2: Equality and diversity
a. Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at LBS,

residents, third and voluntary sector)
Residents.
b. Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific impact on

protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, Black Minority Ethnic
(BME)),
The Council CTR scheme has three protected categories:



Pensioners
Families with Children under 2 years old

1

Page 74

Agenda Item 7

Appendix D


Disabilities

c.

What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

The CTR scheme supported the following groups:
Analysis of CTR scheme April 2014 to May 2014
Age

Percentage

Under 25

Number

4.20%

507

25-59

55.15%

6674

60 or Over

40.65%

4919
12100

Percentage:

100.00%

Sex
Female

65.47%

7922

Male

34.53%

4178

Yes

35.21%

4260

No

64.79%

7840

Single Parent

23.97%%

2900

Single Person

54.28%

6568

Couple without Children

10.51%

1272

Couple with Children

11.24%

1360

Yes

21.75%

2632

No

78.25%

9468

Children in household

Household makeup

Partner in household

NB. Numbers may fluctuate against other data as drawn from the live benefit system and the

2

Page 75

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

claims count is changing all the time.

d. What equality-related information, for example through consultation with stakeholders,

has been gathered on this proposal? (indicate the type of information gathered and
ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion and sexual orientation.
You can also include people with caring responsibilities.)

Current CTR Claimants by Ethnicity
Ethnic Origin
Arab
Asian or Asian British: Bangladeshi
Asian or Asian British: Indian
Asian or Asian British: Pakistani
Asian or British : Any other Backgrnd
Black-Black British: African
Black-Black British: Caribbean
Black-Black British: Other
Chinese
Gypsy/Traveller
Mixed :Any other mixed background
Mixed: White and Asian
Mixed: White and Black African
Mixed: White and Black Caribbean
Unknown
White: Any other White background
White: British
White: Irish
Sum:
Percentage:

Count
18
51
50
129
347
262
132
61
27
1
71
39
10
72
6249
547
3983
51

Percentage
0.15
0.42
0.41
1.07
2.87
2.17
1.09
0.50
0.22
0.01
0.59
0.32
0.08
0.60
51.64
4.52
32.92
0.42

12100
100.00

e. In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some groups of

people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion and
sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring responsibilities.)
The CTR scheme is likely to impact negatively on the number of groups with defined
characteristics who had previously received a full reduction in their Council Tax.
General comments relating to vulnerable people
Ethnicity – as the scheme is accessible by all it should not impact negatively on this group.
Although, it is recognised that this group may be in marginally lower income brackets and

3

Page 76

Agenda Item 7

Appendix D
therefore have greater need to access the scheme. The Council will need to ensure that there
are no barriers to access the scheme for customers where English is not their first language.
Disability
The scheme proposes a level of protection for any individual or dependent child in receipt of
DLA or PIP will be automatically placed into a protected category.
Case Type

Number of cases

Impact of Amending the
existing Council Tax
Reduction scheme

Disability needs currently
receiving full CTR

2490

There are no negative
impacts indentified as there
were no adverse proposals
that would affect this group.
This means they should be
no worse off than they were
under the previous scheme
of Council Tax Benefit.

Disability needs currently
receiving part CTR

266

As above

Age
Working age families could see the biggest impact financially due to the impact of other
reforms i.e Benefit Cap and Universal Credit.
Self- employed households
– no children

42

Self-employed households

450

As the Council is now using
the minimum income floor
to calculate self-employed
income some households
are worse off and some
may no longer receive a
council tax reduction.
Where a person is selfemployed with caring
responsibilities the
minimum income floor is
only applied to the number
of part-time hours the
claimant could reasonably
undertake.
As above – households with

4

Page 77

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

with children

children could be adversely
affected, although those with
children under 2 are
protected and should be no
worse off than they were
under Council Tax Benefit.
The Council has a hardship
fund which will help to
support those in need.

Non working – working age
Household with children
aged over 2

1287

Working age non-working
households are expected to
contribute £3.75 per week
(subject to any annual up
rating announced by
department for Work and
Pensions). This group
previously received full
Council Tax Benefit. The
Council has a hardship fund
which will help to support
those in need.

Employed – working age
Households with children
aged over 2

1311

Working age employed
households with children
aged above 2 are affected
by the changes introduced
by the council’s scheme.
Although, this group may not
have received full Council
Tax Benefit they are likely to
be more worse off due to the
changes introduced by the
council’s scheme.
The Council has a hardship
fund which will help to
support those in need.

Pensioners are not adversely affected as they are protected and therefore should be no
worse off than under the previous council tax benefit scheme. However, they have to qualify
for Pension Credit (PC). With the introduction of Universal Credit (UC) it will be the younger
member of the couple who determines if the couple can claim UC or PC as both partners will
have to achieve the qualifying age for retirement pension. This is not expected to affect

5

Page 78

Agenda Item 7

Appendix D
existing claimants.
Religion
There should be no negative impacts on this group.
Sexual orientation
There should be no negative impacts on this group.
People with caring responsibilities
Carers have been affected by the council’s CTR scheme. Due to the level of income they
receive, financial and caring responsibilities the scheme has proved a problem for this group
of residents.
From 1 April 2015 it was agreed that Carers Allowance will be fully disregarded as an income
in the calculation of a reduction. This will have a positive impact on those claimants with full
time caring responsibilities.
Gender
Single female and single female parents are more heavily affected than single males or
coupled households. It is widely accepted that female workers are generally more low paid
than their male counterparts and there are significantly higher proportions of female single
parents than males.
The council has maintained protection for parents with children under 2, as this is the age
that they can now achieve free nursery or school places. This means they should be no
worse off than they would have been under Council Tax Benefit.
There is a range of additional support in place for families with children, as follows;
Children under the age of 5 receive up to 15 hours each week in free nursery places. From
September 2014 the government extended the number of 2-year-olds qualifying for free
childcare by opening up the offer to families that are on a qualifying benefit or earn less than
£16,190 per year and receive Working Tax Credits.
From September 2014 all pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2 (up to age 8) in state-funded
schools in England are offered a free school meal (FSM). This includes academies, free
schools, pupil referral units and alternative provision as well as maintained schools. FSM for
older children are still available if their parents or carers are in receipt of a relevant state
benefit.
Within its Council Tax Reduction scheme the Council offers a child care cost disregard
subject to qualifying criteria and up to the maximum limit of
£175.00 per week if the claimant has one child; or
£300.00 per week if the claimant has two or more children

6

Page 79

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

The Council also disregards 75% of child benefit received when working out Council Tax
Reduction entitlements.

Social class
There should be no negative impacts on this group. However, it is recognised that those from
deprived areas are more likely to receive support from the government and their local
authority in the form of benefits.

f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

The council communicates and engages widely to ensure that awareness of the CTR scheme
is widely distributed. The council works with the voluntary sector, stakeholders and other
strategic partners to ensure that those affected by the changes receive the right level of
support.

Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical and/or
mental wellbeing of residents? (e.g…..) If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
Deprivation is a known factor in public health matters with those in lower socio-economic
groups suffering from poorer health and shorter life expectancy.
The CTR scheme could have a negative impact of residents struggling financially and are
already finding it hard to meet their day to day living expenses.
b.

In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an individual’s
opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? (e.g ….) If there is a negative
impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has or will be
collected?

The council employs a welfare reform outreach officer who works closely with residents and
vulnerable users affected by the scheme to maximise their entitlement to benefits and
signpost to additional support.
The council has a Hardship Fund to help provide additional support.
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact disproportionally on the
health and wellbeing of one or more different communities? (e.g. improve the lives
and health of a vulnerable group such as people with learning disabilities). If there is
a negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this?

7

Agenda Item 7

Page 80
Appendix D

The scheme is concerned with adult responsibilities and means to make payment of their
council tax. The scheme affords a level of protection for any individual or dependent child in
receipt of DLA or PIP will be automatically placed into a protected category. This means they
should be no worse off than under the previous Council Tax Benefit.

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

No

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward investment
to the borough?
N/A

b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in Sutton?
N/A

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and or local
businesses in Sutton?
N/A

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in Sutton?
Any reduction in the cost of the scheme could help mitigate the need for cuts to frontline or
necessary Council service provision.
b. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in Sutton?
N/A

c. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?

8

Page 81

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

There is balanced view on this question as it may provide a direct reduction in the cost of
CTR scheme, but this may lead to unintended consequences with pressure placed on other
services such as Adults and Childrens. In addition, it may affect council tax collection.
d. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One Planet
Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste, encourage the
use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the environment or encourage the
efficient use of water? Please see guidance for further details if this is relevant to your
policy or review).
N/A

Section 6: Actions and Publications
a. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the level of

action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):
The implemented changes are likely to have a higher impact on females, particularly single
parents with children aged 2 and above. Other protected groups, such as disabled, should not
feel any additional impacts from the changes as they should be no worse off than under the
previous scheme of Council Tax Benefit.
Adjustments to remove barriers identified by the assessment or to better advance
equality.
Within Council Tax regulations a number of exemptions and discounts are available and
offered for people with disabilities and severe mental impairment.
Customers with vulnerabilities or difficulties paying are offered support including extended
payment arrangements and income benefit maximisation. The Council has also made a
provision for hardship.
Maximising collection of Council Tax helps to maximise the provision of support and services
for the Council’s most vulnerable service users including those with a protected
characteristics.
b. What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative impacts

or previously met unidentified needs?
See 6a.
c.

What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor the
impact of this proposal?

The service will continue to collect demographic information and monitor the scheme for
unintended consequences. Data is also collected and monitored on the hardship scheme
expenditure.

9

Agenda Item 7

Page 82
Appendix D

d. Sign- off

Julie Turner
Head of Revenues, Benefits, Insurance and Pensions

10

Page 83

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 8

Housing, Economy and Business
Date: 23 June 2015
Committee
Temporary Accommodation Strategy
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair Housing, Economy and
Business Committee
Lorraine Thomas Housing Needs, Homelessness and Support
Brokerage Service Manager
(020 8770 5794)
 A Fair Council – providing homelessness households
with good quality temporary accommodation within the
borough
 A Smart Council – making best use of resources
Open
Date: 10 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report introduces the Temporary Accommodation Strategy 2015-2018, set out at
Appendix A.

1.2

The Temporary Accommodation Strategy sets out current levels of homelessness in the
borough and forecasts activity in Sutton over the next three years.

1.3

The Strategy provides an appraisal of the Council’s current temporary accommodation
provision and identifies the plans to address issues with supply and future requirements for
temporary accommodation in the borough.

2.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Housing Economy and Business Committee:
2.1

Approves the Temporary Accommodation Strategy 2015-2018, set out at Appendix A.

2.2

Agrees to receive a further report in 6 months on progress made in delivering the Strategy
and to receive annual reports thereafter.

3.

Background

3.1

The Council has a statutory duty to provide temporary accommodation for all homeless
households to whom it owes a statutory housing duty and must ensure that the
accommodation at least meets minimum standards.

3.2

The main objective of the Strategy is to reduce the time spent in expensive nightly paid
emergency accommodation, address the shortfall in the current provision of temporary
accommodation and increase provision of good quality temporary accommodation.

Page 84

Agenda Item 8

3.3

The Strategy will be developed and updated as progress is made against objectives. An
update will be provided to Committee after six months with a full report provided annually.

4.

Issues

4.1

The number of homelessness applications is at its highest since 2008, with the number of
households accepted as homelessness increasing by 41% in 2014/15. This is a marked
increase compared with the percentage increase between 2012/13 and 2013/4, which was
23%.

4.2

The main reasons for homelessness remains similar to previous years with Termination of
Assured Shorthold Tenancy accounting for 27% of all homelessness.
Table 1- Main Reasons for Homelessness

Year

Termination
of Assured
Shorthold
Tenancy
(TOAST)

%*

Homeless
through
Parental
Eviction

%*

Homeless
through Other
Relative Not
Willing to
Accommodate

%*

Homeless
through
Relationship
Breakdown
Violent
Partner

2012/13

59

37%

34

21%

13

8%

12

8%

2013/14

50

25%

42

21%

13

7%

21

11%

2014/15

75

27%

65

23%

28

10%

34

12%

4.3

Between April 2014 and March 2015, 412 households were placed in bed and breakfast
accommodation, of which 302 (73%) were families and of these 99% were in the first
instance placed out of the borough. The average time for all households spent in shared bed
and breakfast was 10 weeks, but when family households are separated from singles, the
average length of stay for family households only is 3 weeks.

4.4

Table 2 below shows the current profile of temporary accommodation.
Type of temporary
housing at 31st March

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Emergency
Accommodation (bed &
breakfast and selfcontained annexes)
90% out of borough

24

55

53

68

60

97

Direct with a Private
Landlord -In borough

0

1

2

2

0

0

Emergency
accommodation
(Andrewes House)
In borough

14

19

18

21

23

22

Page 85

Agenda Item 8

Housing association
leased
In borough

97

95

85

71

60

45

Council
In borough

65

66

86

84

80

115

Supported housing
In borough

15

15

10

7

2

1

Total

215

251

254

253

225

280

4.5

On 31 March 2015 there were 280 households in temporary accommodation, of which 17
were single households in shared bed and breakfast, 34 were families in shared bed and
breakfast accommodation and 41 families in self-contained annexes (these are selfcontained properties charged at a nightly rate, commonly used across London as an
alternative to shared bed and breakfast).

4.6

The use of properties within our own stock provides a valuable resource of good quality
temporary accommodation; however, the use of our own stock as temporary accommodation
is increasing.

4.7

On 2 April 2012, Genesis (the Registered Provider contracted to procure and manage leased
accommodation in Sutton) supplied 85 units of temporary accommodation. Only 8 new units
of temporary accommodation have been procured since April 2011. In contrast to this low
acquisition rate, the number of leases that have ended and not been renewed since April
2012 is 45.

4.8

Therefore, the total number of leased units currently available is 48. However, a further 6
leases will end during 2015/16, 30 in 2016/17 and the remaining 12 in 2017/18. Therefore,
without any new leasing provision the Council will have no units of leased temporary
accommodation remaining by 2017/18.

4.9 In 2014/15, despite pressures on rent levels, 161 households were assisted into the private
sector by the Housing Centre social letting initiative. Of those 161, homelessness was
prevented in 115 cases and the authority discharged its housing duty to 46 households.
4.10 However, given the growing disparity between market rents and the Local Housing Allowance,
securing accommodation in the private rented sector remains challenging.
4.11 Projections indicate a growth in homelessness of between 23% and 41%. Consequently
households in temporary accommodation will rise substantially.
4.12 Using current data, it is estimated therefore that in 2015/16 an additional 172 to 221 units of
temporary accommodation will be required to meet the needs of homeless households. See
Table 3 below.

Page 86

Agenda Item 8

Table 3 - Projected number of temporary accommodation units required.
Number of
Number of
Private
Number of
projected
social
Sector
Additional
homelessness
housing lets
Provision –
Temporary
acceptances
to Band B
Discharge of accommodati
assuming a 23%
Duty
on units
growth p.a.
required
31/03/15
2015/16
341
119
50
172
2016/17
419
409
50
-40
2017/18
515
269
50
196
Number of
projected
homelessness
acceptances
assuming a 41%
growth p.a.
31/03/15
2015/16 390
2016/17 550
2017/18 775

Number of
social
housing lets

Private
Sector
Provision

Temporary
accommodation
units required

119
409
269

50
50
50

221
91
456

Total
provision
required

280
452
412
608
Total
Provision

280
501
592
1048

4.13 New provision of temporary accommodation, located in the borough, is essential to meet the
needs of homeless households if the use of expensive nightly paid temporary
accommodation is to be avoided.
4.14 The cost of providing shared bed and breakfast or self contained nightly paid temporary
accommodation arises from the gap between the rent charged and the recoverable costs.
Costs can be recovered based at 90% of the Local Housing Allowance plus £40 per week.
Table 4 below shows the gap between costs and recoverable charges. The table also details
the total cost per household, based on the current average lengths of stay in bed and
breakfast or self-contained annexes.
Table 4 - Gap between costs and recoverable charges

Size of
Household
2 person
3 person
4 person
5 person
7 person

Ave.
cost
p.w.
£273
£287
£343
£427
£532

Ave.
cost
to
client
p.w.
£218
£222
£254
£276
£374

Current
Ave.
Ave. Net Length
Cost to
of Stay
Authority in
p.w.
weeks
£55
11
£65
12
£89
10
£151
12
£158
4

Current
cost to
Authority
per
household
£605
£780
£890
£1,812
£632

Annual
cost to the
Authority
per
household
£2,860
£3,380
£4,628
£7,852
£8,216

4.15 In 2014/15, net expenditure on bed and breakfast was £327,787. If there were a 23%
increase in homelessness acceptances in 2015/16 and assuming growth replicates the same
pattern of household size and the length of stay in bed and breakfast/self-contained annexes
remains at 10 weeks, expenditure could increase to £403,178 in 2015/16. Should

Page 87

Agenda Item 8

homelessness acceptances increase by 41%, expenditure on bed and breakfast/selfcontained annexes could increase to £462,179.
4.16 However, it should be noted that the current supply of temporary accommodation would not
be able to support the increases forecasted and without any new provision, the length of stay
in bed and breakfast/self-contained annexes could potentially far exceed the 10 weeks.
4.17 In contrast, the provision of a unit of temporary accommodation within our own stock or
through the current leasing scheme is cost neutral to the authority.
5.

Options Considered

5.1 The Temporary Accommodation Strategy has been developed to ensure the Council can
increase the supply of temporary accommodation and sets out the principles of our
procurement approach which are to;
i) Increase supply
ii) Provide a range of temporary accommodation to meet different needs
iii) Provide temporary accommodation at a cost that is affordable to residents
and cost neutral to the Council
5.2 The approach will complement existing work to prevent and manage homeless
demand effectively and increase social housing supply.
5.3 A range of different temporary accommodation is needed in terms of tenure, lease, size of
accommodation and location.
5.4 The Temporary Accommodation Strategy sets out the rationale for procuring new temporary
accommodation and the proposals for increasing the number of temporary accommodation
units.
5.5 The strategy proposes that the number of temporary accommodation units in Sutton is
increased by:
i)
developing an in house Private Sector Leasing scheme (PSL) to meet the needs of
larger sized family households
ii)
developing off-site modular construction schemes (YCube or similar) within the
borough as a longer, more sustainable, response to the need for 2 bedroom temporary
accommodation
iii)
using 1 bedroom properties within our own stock to provide accommodation to
single households or those requiring a 2 bedroom and where there are insufficient units
of alternative temporary accommodation available
iv)
discharging our statutory housing duty into the private sector where appropriate
5.6

(i) A Private Sector Leasing scheme can potentially be developed quickly, does not rely on
any capital investment or the acquisition of land and can work in an integrated way with the
Council’s Social Lettings Scheme.

5.7 The current Housing Association Leased (HALs) scheme is managed by Genesis and new
acquisition or renewal of existing leases have been low. Without new acquisitions or
renewals of existing leases there will be no leased units of temporary accommodation
remaining by 2017/18.
5.8 The current scheme is unattractive to landlords and this is chiefly due to rents being paid to
landlords at only 90% of Local Housing Allowance levels.

Page 88

Agenda Item 8

5.9 Under the current temporary accommodation formula, providers of temporary accommodation
are able to claim £40 per week, per property, management costs. Genesis currently have 40
units of leased accommodation in management. This generates an annual income of
£2,080.00 per property. Compared with the current arrangements for the in-house
management of Andrewes House which costs £28 per unit per week, or £1448.00 per
annum, the case for developing an in-house leasing scheme service begins to become
persuasive.
5.10 The financial benefits of an in house scheme can be demonstrated if we consider how such a
scheme would operate. Using a four person (two bedroom property) as an example, if an inhouse scheme were able to maintain management costs at £1,448.00 per unit, per annum, a
surplus of £632 would be available to offer landlords rents at Local Housing Allowance
levels.
5.11 Table 5 below shows the Local Housing Allowance for a two bedroom property, in the Outer
South London, is £912.47. Under the current temporary accommodation formula the
authority can claim 90% of that rent. If we were to pay landlords at Local Housing Allowance
levels, this would generate a £1092.00 annual gross cost to the authority. However, offsetting
this sum by the surplus above, the net cost reduces to £460.00 per annum.
Table 5 - Shortfall Between LHA Rents and Market Rents
LHA

1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

4 Bed

Outer South London

£724.64

£912.47

£1209.61

£1492.31

Monthly Shortfall

£72

£91

£121

£149

Annual Shortfall

£864

£1092

£1452

£1788

Worcester Park

£909.00

£1215.93

£1466.16

£1807.09

Monthly Shortfall

£91

£122

£147

£181

Annual Shortfall

£1092

£1464

£1764

£2172

5.12 In comparison, the net cost of accommodating a household in nightly paid emergency
accommodation is far in excess of the above figures. The net cost of providing a 4 person
unit of self contained nightly paid temporary accommodation is £3521.44. Therefore, in this
example, the use of a leased property instead would generate a potential saving to the
authority of £3061.44 (void costs at 5% to 10% will need to be factored into the potential
savings figure).
Table 6 - Net cost of self contained annexes
Self-contained annexes

Average net cost per annum

Studio (up to 3 person h/hold)

£2,792.40

1-bed (up to 4 person h/hold)

£3,521.44

2-bed (up to 6 person h/hold)

£4,801.68

3-bed (up to 8 person h/hold)

£8,513.96

Page 89

Agenda Item 8

5.13 (ii) Off site modular construction (for example, YCube) can potentially provide cost
effective temporary accommodation within the borough. Capital costs are limited to the cost
of the units and any land acquisition or leasing.
5.14 Such units attract New Homes Bonus and the GLA is very keen to support development to
meet housing need and have included this type of scheme within their revised Housing
Strategy.
5.15 An options appraisal carried out in July 2014 identified this option as the most cost effective
alternative way of providing a quick new source of good quality temporary accommodation.
Rents will need to be within 5% of Local Housing Allowance rent levels to provide affordable
units for homeless households.
5.16 Using the example of a scheme developed in a neighbouring borough, the projected rent
scheme is £145 p/w for a one bed unit based on covering the cost of purchasing the site and
repayment over 15 years, developing 36 units with a management fee of 30%.
5.17 These variables will be site specific. Where land can be leased on a peppercorn rent, the cost
will be reduced.
5.18 However, it should be noted that there are risks associated with this option, particularly
around identifying suitable sites and obtaining planning permission. Investigation into using
Housing Revenue Account garage sites has revealed complications relating to a number of
them, where individual garages have been sold. If we were to take forward the use of such a
site, this would therefore involve negotiation with individual owners to purchase back and/or
replace their garage elsewhere.
5.19 Alternatively, privately owned vacant sites might be leased in the short to medium term while
the owners decide on a longer term plan.
5.20 Full consultation with residents in the locality about the proposed development would be
undertaken. The procurement of a supplier of the modular units also needs to be factored in
to the delivery timetable. Once on site the speed at which such schemes can be constructed
will compensate for the lead-in time.
5.21 (iii) The use of our own stock to provide temporary accommodation becomes necessary
when supply from other sources cannot meet demand. The data above shows that as leased
accommodation has reduced the use of council stock has increased. We now need to be
ready to over occupy one bedroom properties more frequently.
5.22 Although not ideal, the use of one bedroom properties as temporary accommodation
for two-bed need households is a far better option than the use of self-contained nightly paid
accommodation or bed and breakfast out of borough.
5.23 The current Private Rented Accommodation Scheme offers landlords a financial incentive
in return for a fixed 2 year tenancy, rent in advance and a deposit guarantee.
5.24 Staff are Association of Residential Letting Agents (ARLA) trained and are currently
developing a fully managed service to offer to landlords. This scheme should be
distinguished from the Private Sector Leasing Scheme and properties acquired through this
scheme are used to prevent homelessness or discharge our statutory housing duty to those
homeless households not eligible to be placed on the Housing Register.

Agenda Item 8

6

Page 90

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1 An insufficient supply of temporary accommodation will have a significant impact on the
number of households placed in expensive nightly paid accommodation.
6.2 Consequently the cost of providing nightly paid accommodation will have a fundamental
impact on the Council’s budget and it will be difficult to contain expenditure within the
planned budget for 2016/17.
6.3 The financial implication of any strategy agreed for will have to be assessed through careful
identification and analysis of key drivers of homelessness and designing solutions that would
provide temporary accommodation at a cost that is affordable to residents and also mitigate
incidence of high cost pressure to the Council.
6.4 An over-riding strategy that limits the full impact of the potential cost pressure or
shares/spreads the cost pressure amongst other parties or stakeholders will have to be
designed and implemented. The financial implication of this sort of risk limiting strategy or
cost sharing and service charging arrangement will need to be presented at each annual
reporting cycle to the Committee.
Legal
6.5 The law, through Statutory Instrument, says that when families apply as homeless, councils
should avoid using shared bed and breakfast and where there is no alternative, councils
should use it for no longer than six weeks.
6.6

Statutory guidance issued by the Government in 2010 states that bed and breakfast
accommodation is unsuitable for 16 and 17 year olds, even in an emergency.

6.7

There is a potential risk of the Council being subject to a claim for judicial review or a
complaint to the ombudsman if the order is breached.

6.8

The Council will strive to adhere to the statutory order not to use shared bed and breakfast
as emergency accommodation for homeless households for over six weeks. However,
performance against this target is dependent on a sufficient supply of temporary
accommodation to meet demand.
Integrated Impact Assessment

6.9

Temporary accommodation provision meets our statutory duty to a range of households in
need in including households falling within the definition of protected characteristics in the
Equality Act 2010. These include a significant proportion of households headed by women,
pregnant women, a disproportionate number of Black and Minority Ethnic households in
comparison to the population of the borough and single vulnerable people with a range of
disabilities.

6.10 The strategy will assist us in meeting our duties in ways which provide a better range and
standard of temporary housing and therefore will have an overall positive impact upon
members of the community with a protected characteristic.

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

6.11 A comprehensive diversity monitoring report of housing services is produced annually. This
includes data on homeless presentations, acceptances and the use of different forms of
emergency and temporary accommodation.
7

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
A

Title
Temporary Accommodation Strategy

Background Documents
None
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Comments Sought
Finance
Yes
Legal
Yes

Date: 10 June 2015
Comments checked by
Akin Akintola
Claire Williams

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 93

Agenda Item 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
TEMPOARY ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY

1) Overarching Aims

Page 2

2) Profile of Homelessness

Page 3

3) Meeting Housing Need

Page 3 - 4

4) Demand for Temporary Accommodation

Page 5

5) Current Supply of Temporary Accommodation

Page 5 - 7

6) Future temporary Accommodation Need &
Our Approach to Procurement

Page 7 - 13

7) Summary

Page 14

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

1

Page 94

Agenda Item 8
1. Overarching Aims
●

Reduce reliance on shared bed and breakfast and nightly paid annexes

●

Provide emergency accommodation within the borough

●

Provide good quality temporary accommodation which meets the needs of homeless
households

●

Reduce the use of temporary accommodation units within our own stock which would
otherwise be available to let as permanent homes

●

Use private rented sector lettings to prevent homelessness and to discharge the
Council’s statutory housing duty to households ineligible to be placed on the Housing
Register

●

Maintain the number of social housing properties allocated to eligible homeless
households to keep pace with numbers of households accepted as homeless on the
Housing Register

●

Make the best use of resources available to meet the needs of homeless households

2. Profile of Homelessness in Sutton
Since 2012/13 there has been a year on year increase in the number of households
presenting to the authority as homeless. In 2014/15 there was a 13% (439) increase in
presentations compared with those in 2013/14. Consequently, there has been an increase in
the number of households to whom the authority has accepted a statutory housing duty.
In 2014/15, the authority accepted a housing duty to 277 households, a 41% increase in the
number of households accepted as homeless in the previous year. There was also an
increase in the percentage of households accepted as homeless as a percentage of all
households presenting, consequently in 2014/15 acceptances increased to 63%. However,
this authority’s growth in homelessness has been at a slower pace than other authorities
within our sub region.
Number of Homelessness Applications & Acceptances
Number of
applications

Numbers Accepted

% of all households to
whom the authority
owes a housing duty

2012/13

289

160

55%

2013/14

387

197

51%

2014/15

439

277

63%

The main reasons for homelessness remain similar to previous years with very little increase
in the percentage split associated for each of these reasons (see table below). The benefit
cap appears to have had little impact on the loss of Assured Shorthold tenancies and the
increase appears to be associated with the landlord's own circumstances.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

2

Page 95

Agenda Item 8

Reasons for Homelessness
Termination
of Assured
Shorthold
Tenancy
(TOAST)

%*

Homeless
through
Parental
Eviction

%*

Homeless
through
Other Relative
Not Willing to
Accommodate

%*

Homeless
through
Relationship
Breakdown
Violent
Partner

2012/13

59

37%

34

21%

13

8%

12

8%

2013/14

50

25%

42

21%

13

7%

21

11%

2014/15

75

27%

65

23%

28

10
%

34

12%

* as a percentage of all acceptances
During 2014/15, only five households that became homeless through the ending of an
Assured Shorthold tenancy had had their benefit capped. Of those five households, only two
households lost the property because the cap made the property unaffordable. With regard
to the remaining three households, two landlords required possession of the property for
their own occupation and one landlord sold the property.
However, once lost, if the household is dependent on housing benefit to meet monthly rental
payments, further private sector accommodation is difficult to secure.
96% of homeless households claim housing benefit but 50% are employed.
The Housing Centre works hard to prevent homelessness arising and to reduce dependency
on bed and breakfast by having robust prevention strategies in place.
During 2014/15, 1180 households approached the Housing Advice service threatened with
homelessness. Homelessness was prevented in 332 (28%) cases which, in turn, eases the
pressure on housing resources.
However, it remains the case that there is a severe shortage of decent temporary
accommodation for those households where homelessness cannot be prevented.
3. Meeting Housing Need in Sutton
The housing need of homeless households is met by the provision of i) social housing ii)
accommodation in the private rented sector. However, supply in both the private sector and
the social housing sector during 2014/15 has not been sufficient to meet the needs of
homeless households. Consequently, the number of households in temporary
accommodation continues to rise.
i)

Private sector rented accommodation.

The increase in homelessness applications appears to reflect the current difficulties in
securing accommodation in the private sector and almost certainly relate to high market
rents and the disparity between market rents and the Local Housing Allowance. Local
Housing Allowance is less than the 30th percentile of market rents in the borough of Sutton.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

3

Page 96

Agenda Item 8
LHA Rates 1st April 2015
Sutton

1 Bed

LHA

£724.62

Gap

2 Bed

Gap

£912.47

3 Bed

Gap

£1,209.61

4 Bed

Gap

£1,492.31

Market Rents
Sutton - SM1

£950.25

31%

£1,232.75

35%

£1,417.50

17%

£2,075.00

39%

Sutton - SM2

£851.50

18%

£1,185.00

30%

£1,549.00

28%

£2,207.25

48%

Cheam - SM3

£824.75

14%

£1,204.25

24%

£1,476.50

22%

£1,797.25

20%

Carshalton
SM5

£822.50

14%

£1,096.00

20%

£1,454.75

20%

£2,016.00

35%

Wallington
SM6

£840.67

16%

£1,172.33

28%

£1,401.33

16%

£1,724.50

16%

Worcester
Park

1 Bed

Gap

2 Bed

Gap

3 Bed

Gap

4 Bed

Gap

LHA

£909.00

Market Rents

£819.00

£1,215.93
nil

£1,261.00

£1,460.16
3.7%

£1,689.25

£1,807.09
16%

£2,221.00

23%

https://docs.google.com/a/sutton.gov.uk/spreadsheets/d/1Q9iBTZKoSk9ysjL_WafWrT08NDJ
zI7u4BcO3--10qoA/edit#gid=757442187
As set out above, reforms to Housing Benefit and the Local Housing Allowance have had a
greater impact on the levels of homelessness than the benefit cap.
ii)

Social Housing

The number of households in temporary accommodation and eligible to be placed on to the
Council’s Housing Register during 2014/15 was very low. In August 2014, of the 208
households placed in temporary accommodation only 40 (19%) were eligible to be placed
on to the Housing Register. However, changes to the Council’s Allocations Policy,
implemented on 2nd February 2015, increased the income threshold applied to households
applying to the Housing Register.
Consequently, there has been an increase in the number of homeless households eligible to
join the Housing Register and a snapshot at the end of March 2015 shows that 48% of
households in temporary accommodation are now placed on the Housing Register. This
percentage is expected to increase as applications are re-assessed.
4. Demand for Temporary Accommodation
Temporary accommodation is housing such as bed and breakfast, self-contained annexes,
Housing Association Leasing Schemes (HALS), or another form of short term housing. It is
used to accommodate homeless households who are awaiting a decision regarding their
homelessness application or are awaiting a discharge of the Council’s statutory
homelessness duty into private rented or social housing.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

4

Page 97

Agenda Item 8

The severe shortage of self contained temporary accommodation units has been, in part,
exacerbated by the temporary accommodation funding model introduced in 2009. Councils
are able to recoup some of the costs of temporary accommodation by recharging residents
to live in the accommodation based on a government prescribed formula, which is 90% of
January 2011 Local Housing Allowance plus a management fee of £40 per week, and up to
a £350 per week cap for singles and £500 for families.
Larger units in Sutton are well within the cap but the gap between 90% of the Local Housing
Allowance rent and market rents has had a significant impact on the viability of leasing
schemes.
The cost of providing shared bed and breakfast or self contained nightly paid temporary
accommodation arises from the gap between the rent charged and the recoverable costs.
Under the current temporary accommodation formula costs can be recovered based at 90%
of the Local Housing Allowance plus £40 per week. Table 4 below shows the gap between
costs and recoverable charges. The table also details the total cost per household, based on
the current (2015/16) average lengths of stay in shared bed and breakfast/self-contained
annexes.
Table 4 - Gap between costs and recoverable charges

Size of
Household
2 person
3 person
4 person
5 person
7 person

Ave.
cost
p.w.
£273
£287
£343
£427
£532

Ave.
cost
to
client
p.w.
£218
£222
£254
£276
£374

Current
Ave.
Ave. Net Length
Cost to
of Stay
Authority in
p.w.
weeks
£55
11
£65
12
£89
10
£151
12
£158
4

Current
cost to
Authority
per
household
£605
£780
£890
£1,812
£632

Annual
cost to the
Authority
per
household
£2,860
£3,380
£4,628
£7,852
£8,216

In 2014/15, net expenditure on bed and breakfast was £327,787. If there were a 23%
increase in homelessness acceptances in 2015/16 and assuming growth replicates the same
pattern of household size, expenditure could increase to £403,178 in 2015/16. Should
homelessness acceptances increase by 41%, expenditure on bed and breakfast/selfcontained annexes could increase to £462,179.
In contrast, the provision of a unit of temporary accommodation within our own stock or
through the current leasing scheme is cost neutral to the authority.
However, it should be noted that the current supply of temporary accommodation would not
be able to support the increases forecasted and without any new provision, the length of stay
in bed and breakfast/self-contained annexes could potentially far exceed the average stay in
bed and breakfast/self contained annexes during 2014/15 which, was 10 weeks.
There are a number of factors that may affect the future demand for temporary
accommodation:
1) number of homeless applications
2) private sector supply
3) welfare reform
4) social housing supply

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

5

Page 98

Agenda Item 8

Between April 2014 and March 2015, 412 households were placed in bed and breakfast, of
which 302 (73%) were families and of these, 99% were in the first instance, placed out of the
borough.
Numbers in temporary accommodation have fluctuated. On 1st April 2014, there were 230
households in temporary accommodation. In July 2014, a low of 197 households in
temporary accommodation was achieved but in the last six months of 2014/15 the numbers
of households fluctuated between 260 and 287. On 31st March 2015 there were 280
households in temporary accommodation of which, 17 single households and 34 families
were in shared bed and breakfast accommodation and 41 families in self-contained annexes.
(these are self-contained properties charged at a nightly rate, commonly used across
London as an alternative to shared bed and breakfast).
The average time for all households spent in shared bed and breakfast was 10 weeks but
when single and family households are separated the average length of stay for family
households is only 3 weeks.
Of the 154 households in temporary accommodation (whose application to the Housing
Register has been assessed) 10% (16) need a 1 bedroom property, 51% (78) need a 2
bedroom property, 23% (35) need a 3 bedroom property and 16% (25) need a 4 bedroom
property.
5. Current Supply of Temporary Accommodation
The number of households in temporary accommodation at 31st March 2015, by type of
housing, over recent years are shown in the table below.
Profile of Temporary Accommodation
Type of temporary
housing at 31st March

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Emergency
Accommodation (bed &
breakfast and selfcontained annexes)
90% Out of borough

24

55

53

68

60

97

Direct with a Private
Landlord - In borough

0

1

2

2

0

0

Emergency
accommodation
(Andrewes House)
In borough

14

19

18

21

23

22

Housing Association
Leased (HALs)
In borough

97

95

85

71

60

45

Council
In borough

65

66

86

84

80

115

Supported housing
In borough

15

15

10

7

2

1

Total

215

251

254

253

225

280

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

6

Page 99

Agenda Item 8

i) Own Stock
The use of properties within our own stock provides a valuable resource of good quality
temporary accommodation however, the use of our own stock as temporary accommodation
is increasing. On 1st April 2014, 79 units of social housing were used to provide temporary
accommodation but on the 26th January 2015 that figure had increased to 115.
Although a valuable resource, if we were able to develop alternative sources of temporary
accommodation, these properties would be available to let as permanent homes. The
continued use of family sized properties as temporary accommodation effectively withdraws
that unit from the supply available to meet housing need on a permanent basis.
A review of households currently in temporary accommodation and in a unit within our own
stock identified that potentially 49 households were in a property that meets their needs, of
which 25 were family sized households.
ii) HALs
On 2nd April 2012, Genesis (the Registered Provider contracted to procure and manage
leased accommodation in Sutton) supplied 85 units of accommodation. Only 8 new units of
accommodation have been procured since April 2011. In contrast to this low acquisition rate,
the number of leases that have ended and not renewed since April 2012, is 45.
Therefore, the total number of leased units available on 31st March 2015 was 48. However,
a further 6 leases will end during 2015/16, 30 in 2016/17 and the remaining 12 in 2017/18.
Therefore, without any new leasing provision the Council will have no units of leased
temporary accommodation by 2017/18.
The current leasing scheme managed by Genesis offers landlords 90% of the LHA rents and
given the growing disparity between market rents and the Local Housing Allowance, without
financial support to offer landlords competitive rents, the scheme is no longer viable.
iii) Private Sector
The Housing Centre’s Private Rented Accommodation Scheme remains a significant aid in
preventing homelessness. In 2014/15, despite pressures on rent levels, 161 households
threatened with homelessness were assisted into the private sector by the Housing Centre’s
Private Rented Accommodation Scheme. Of those 161, homelessness was prevented in 115
cases and the authority discharged its statutory housing duty to 46 homeless households.
Of the 161 households, 65 found their own accommodation and were assisted into
accommodation by the Housing Centre by negotiating affordable rent levels with the landlord
and the provision of rent in advance and a deposit guarantee.
The Housing Centre procured 38 new landlords and of the 60 tenancies that came up for
renewal and had originally been let through the Housing Centre Social Letting Scheme, 97%
(58) decided to relet through the Housing Centre.
However, given the growing disparity between market rents and the Local Housing
Allowance securing accommodation in the private sector remain challenging.
Furthermore, our approach to the provision of temporary accommodation should not conflict
with, or undermine our approach to preventing homelessness. Our temporary
accommodation strategy should avoid creating a tension between initiatives and careful

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

7

Agenda Item 8

Page 100

planning of resources should avoid pulling from the limited resources we have available in
the private rented sector to prevent homelessness.
6. Future Temporary Accommodation Need and Our Approach to Temporary
Accommodation Procurement
In 2015, the conversion of a former care home (Oakleigh) to provide 43 units of emergency
accommodation in place of bed and breakfast will enable the Council to develop a housing
pathway that improves the experience of homelessness for Sutton residents. The intended
pathway for homeless families will be directly into self contained units of emergency
accommodation at Oakleigh or Andrewes House with a projected stay of up to 16 weeks.
Following this stay, households will move into good quality, affordable temporary
accommodation until permanent housing is secured in the private sector or through the
Housing Register. Therefore, a sufficient supply of good quality temporary accommodation,
at affordable rents, must be secured.
The suitability of temporary accommodation is defined by legislation in terms of location,
cost, size and condition. Councils are required to offer temporary accommodation in their
district ‘so far as reasonably practicable’.
The principles of our procurement approach are to:
i) Increase supply
ii) Provide a range of temporary accommodation to meet different needs
iii) Provide temporary accommodation at a cost that is affordable to residents
and cost neutral to the Council
Our approach will complement existing work to prevent and manage homeless demand
effectively and increase social housing supply.
i) Increase supply
Numbers
The number of homeless applications is at its highest since 2008 and, as set out above,
homeless acceptances increased by 41% in 2014/15. This is a marked increase, particularly
when compared with the percentage increase in homeless acceptances in 2013/14 which
was a 23%.
Arguably, the initial impact of welfare reform on homelessness has almost been fully felt
however, further reforms yet to be fully defined, are pending and should the benefit cap be
lowered to £23k per annum, then further increases in homeless acceptances may arise.
Additionally, the continued disparity between market rents and the Local Housing Allowance
will continue to have an impact on homelessness and our ability to prevent it. Due to the
number of variables, it is difficult to determine the level of continued growth in homelessness
and therefore a reliable trend has yet to emerge. In determining future need the variables are
greater than they have been in previous years.
We must assume that for each household accepted as homeless, a unit of temporary
accommodation will be required. Therefore, taking into consideration the pattern of growth in
homelessness, an assumed growth between 23% and 41% per annum is not unreasonable.
This percentage growth will have a significant impact on demand for temporary
accommodation units.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

8

Page 101

Agenda Item 8

However, these figures should be moderated by the number of social housing lets to
homeless families. In 2014/15, 51% (143) of households in temporary accommodation were
rehoused from the Housing Register. Furthermore, our statutory housing duty to a further 46
households was met by the provision of accommodation in the private rented sector.
The number of social housing lets to family sized households on the Housing Register in
2014/15, as a proportion of all lets, was 30%. However, during 2014/15, compared with the
previous year, we had an increase in the number of new builds available as first time lets but
this level of provision is not forecasted to continue in 2015/16.
The annual lettings plan for 2015/16, after making provision for Band A households, has
allocated 60% of family sized properties to Band B (homeless households) yet in numbers
that is anticipated to be 109 properties, significantly less that 2014/15.
The forecasted number of new build properties increases again in 2016/17 and 2017/18.
Should the current programme deliver the number of planned new builds it will be possible in
those years to increase the number of letting to Band B.
Given the fluctuating provision of new build properties, in forecasting the number of social
housing lets available to rehouse homeless households, it is more effective to talk in
numbers and not percentages. An assumption is made that lettings can be maintained at
levels indicated below.
Number of
projected
homelessness
acceptances
assuming a 23%
growth p.a.
31/03/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18

31/03/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18

341
419
515

Number of
social
housing lets
to Band B

119
409
269

Private
Sector
Provision –
Discharge of
Duty
50
50
50

Number of
Additional
Temporary
accommodati
on units
required
172
-40
196

Total
provision
required

280
452
412
608

Number of
projected
homelessness
acceptances
assuming a 41%
growth p.a.

Number of
social
housing lets

Private
Sector
Provision

Temporary
Total
accommodation Provision
units required

390
550
775

119
409
269

50
50
50

221
91
456

280
501
592
1048

New provision of temporary accommodation, located in the borough, is essential to meet the
needs of homeless households if the use of expensive nightly paid temporary
accommodation is to be avoided.
Size
Using the current profile of households where a housing duty has been accepted and a unit
of temporary accommodation is required, future provision can be based on the following
percentage split.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

9

Page 102

Agenda Item 8

Temporary Accommodation meets family need.
1 Beds

2 Beds

3 Beds

4 Beds

6%

83%%

10%

1%

Temporary Accommodation over occupied.
1 Beds

2 Beds

3 Beds

4 Beds

63%

33%

4%

0%

Applying this percentage split to the forecasted demand the following numbers of units by
bedroom size are set out below.
Provision to meet growth at 23% by bed size
To meet need
1 Bed 2 Bed
3 Bed
2015/16
27
375
45
2016/17
25
342
41
2017/18
36
505
61
Over Occupying
Accommodation
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18

Total
452
412
608

1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

4 Bed

Total

285
280
383

149
136
201

18
16
24

0
0
0

452
412
608

4 Bed
5
6
10

Total
501
592
1048

Provision to meet growth at 41% by bed size
To meet need
1 Bed 2 Bed
3 Bed
2015/16
30
416
50
2016/17
36
491
59
2017/18
63
870
105
Over Occupying
Accommodation
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18

4 Bed
5
4
6

1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

4 Bed

Total

316
373
660

165
195
346

20
24
42

0
0
0

501
592
1048

However, the profile of homeless households is directly affected by welfare reform and the
supply of housing both in the private and social housing sectors. Therefore, the profile of
household composition should be updated at least every six months to ensure the data
reflects any changes and remains current.
ii) Provide a range of temporary accommodation to meet different needs
A range of different temporary accommodation is needed in terms of tenure, lease, size of
accommodation and location.
New units will be procured in Sutton by:
i) Using the Council’s own stock
ii) Entering into new private sector leasing contracts
iii) Developing sites using modular construction ( for example YCube provision or similar)

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

10

Page 103

Agenda Item 8

iv) Direct purchasing of units by the Council
We need to achieve a mixed source of accommodation building in flexibility in order that
individual properties can be used as temporary accommodation, to discharge our statutory
housing duty or to prevent homelessness.
I recommend that in order to develop a sufficient supply of temporary accommodation we:
i)

develop an in house Private Sector Leasing scheme (PSL) to meet the needs of larger
sized family households

ii)

develop off-site modular construction schemes (YCube or similar) within the borough as
a longer, more sustainable, response to the need for 2 bedroom temporary
accommodation

iii)

use 1 bedroom properties within our own stock to provide accommodation to
single households or those requiring a 2 bedroom and where there is insufficient
units of alternative temporary accommodation available

iv) discharge our statutory housing duty into the private sector where appropriate
Year 1 – Temporary Accommodation Units Required
Opportunity

Range of Estimated units

Size

Modular Construction

48 (based on 2 schemes of 24
units)

2 bedrooms

Private Sector Leasing

50

2 and 3
bedrooms

Use of own stock

74 and 123

1 and some 2
bedrooms

Direct purchase of units by the
Council

To be determined

Total

172 - 221

iii) To provide temporary accommodation at a cost that is affordable to residents and
where possible cost neutral to the Council
i) In house Private Sector Letting Scheme
Develop a private sector leasing scheme to accommodate larger sized households. Larger
size households are more likely to need temporary accommodation since securing
accommodation in the private sector at LHA rents is almost impossible and unlikely to secure
accommodation through the Council’s Private Rented Sector Scheme. The cost of self
contained annexes are high and a PSL scheme will be more cost effective.
A Private Sector Leasing Scheme can potentially, be developed quickly, does not rely on any
capital investment or the acquisition of land and can work in an integrated way with the
Social Lettings Scheme.
The current Housing Association Leased (HALs) scheme is managed by Genesis and we

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

11

Page 104

Agenda Item 8

currently have 48 properties in this scheme, it is anticipated that during this year 2015/16
that number will reduce to 42 and 12 the following year. Genesis currently pay landlords a
maximum 90% of the LHA or below and they have only procured 8 new properties since
April 2011. The scheme is unattractive to landlords as the rents paid to them fall substantially
short of market rents.
Genesis is paid £40 per week per property to manage the properties within their portfolio
providing an annual income of £2080.00 per property. Compared with the current
arrangements for managing Andrewes House which costs £28 per unit per week or
£1448.00 per annum, the case for developing an in-house service begins to become
persuasive.
In addition to possible financial advantages to the authority, an in-house service could offer a
more attractive ‘deal’ to landlords’. We could offer at least rents at LHA levels with a fully
managed service at no cost to the landlord with such a service being funded by a lower unit
cost for the management of properties and the usual month's rent in advance and a three
month deposit guarantee. Landlords would remain responsible for repairs and any rent
losses over the deposit guarantee limit.
The financial benefits can be demonstrated if we consider such how such a scheme would
operate using a two bedroom property as an example. If we were able to maintain
management costs at £28 per unit per week a surplus of £632 would be available to offer
landlords rents at Local Housing Allowance level, this would generate a £1092.00 annual
gross cost to the authority. However, offsetting this sum by the surplus above, the net cost
reduces to £460.00 per annum.
In comparison, the net cost of accommodating a household in nightly paid emergency
accommodation is far in excess of the above figures. The net cost of providing a 4 person
unit of self contained nightly paid temporary accommodation is £3521.44. Therefore, in this
example, the use of a leased property instead would generate a potential saving to the
authority of £3061.44 (void costs at 5% to 10% will need to be factored into the potential
savings figure).
Shortfall Between LHA Rents and Market Rents
LHA

1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

4 Bed

Outer South London

£724.64

£912.47

£1209.61

£1492.31

Monthly Shortfall

£72

£91

£121

£149

Annual Shortfall

£864

£1092

£1452

£1788

Worcester Park

£909.00

£1215.93

£1466.16

£1807.09

Monthly Shortfall

£91

£122

£147

£181

Annual Shortfall

£1092

£1464

£1764

£2172

Net cost of self contained annexes
Self-contained annexes

Average net cost
per annum

Studio (up to 3 person h/hold)

£2,792.40

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

12

Page 105
1-bed (up to 4 person h/hold)

£3,521.44

2-bed (up to 6 person h/hold)

£4,801.68

3-bed (up to 8 person h/hold)

£8,513.96

Agenda Item 8

ii) Off site modular construction (for example, YCube)
Off site modular construction (for example, YCube) can potentially provide cost effective
temporary accommodation within the borough. Capital costs are limited to the cost of the
units and any land acquisition or leasing.
Such units attract New Homes Bonus and the GLA is very keen to support development to
meet housing need and have included this type of scheme within their revised Housing
Strategy.
An options appraisal carried out in July 2014 identified this option as the most cost effective
alternative way of providing a quick new source of good quality temporary accommodation.
Rents will need to be within 5% of Local Housing Allowance rent levels to provide affordable
units for homeless households.
Using the example of a scheme developed in a neighbouring borough, the projected rent
scheme is £145 p/w for a one bed unit based on covering the cost of purchasing the site and
repayment over 15 years, , developing 36 units with a management fee of 30%.
These variables will be site specific. Where land can be leased on a peppercorn rent, the
cost will be reduced.
However, it should be noted that there are risks associated with this option, particularly
around identifying suitable sites and obtaining planning permission. Investigation into using
Housing Revenue Account garage sites has revealed complications relating to a number of
them, where individual garages have been sold. If we were to take forward the use of such a
site, this would therefore involve negotiation with individual owners to purchase back and/or
replace their garage elsewhere.
Alternatively, privately owned vacant sites might be leased in the short to medium term while
the owners decide on a longer term plan.
Full consultation with residents in the locality about the proposed development would be
undertaken. The procurement of a supplier of the modular units also needs to be factored in
to the delivery timetable. Once on site the speed at which such schemes can be constructed
will compensate for the lead-in time.
iii) Use of Own Stock
The use of our own stock to provide temporary accommodation becomes necessary when
supply from other sources cannot meet demand. The data above shows that as leased
accommodation has reduced the use of council stock has increased. We now need to be
ready to over occupy one bedroom properties more frequently.
Although not ideal, the use of one bedroom properties as temporary accommodation
for two-bed need households is a better option than use of self-contained nightly paid
accommodation or shared bed and breakfast out of borough.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

13

Agenda Item 8

Page 106

iv) Social Lettings Scheme
The current Private Rented Accommodation Scheme offers landlords a financial incentive in
return for a fixed 2 year tenancy, rent in advance and a deposit guarantee.
Staff are Association of Residential lettings Agents (ARLA) trained and are currently
developing a fully managed service to offer to landlords. This scheme should be
distinguished from the Private Sector Leasing Scheme and properties acquired through this
scheme are used to prevent homelessness or discharge our statutory housing duty to those
homeless households not eligible to be placed on the Housing Register.
However, the advantage of establishing an inhouse Private Sector Leasing Scheme is that it
can sit by and run alongside the Private Rented Accommodation.
7. Summary.
In the longer term, the level of homeless acceptances is difficult to predict as it is influenced
by macroeconomic factors. However estimates are that they will remain high throughout
London.
Homelessness in Sutton is likely to continue to increase by around 23% to 41% per annum
largely due to the continuing disparity between market rents and Local Housing Allowance.
Should benefits be capped at £23,000 we are more likely to see growth in homelessness
nearer 41% than 23%.
Changes to the Council’s allocations policy should enable us to keep current allocations to
homeless households at a similar pace to acceptances but the private rented sector is
unlikely to have a major impact in meeting housing need if the gap between market rents
and Local Housing Allowance cannot be minimised. However, whilst the Council is able to
provide financial support to residents by the provision of rent in advance and deposit and
landlord incentives to attract landlord, its role in preventing homelessness is more significant.
To meet the needs of homeless households and to make best use of our stock, alternatives
to bed and breakfast must be developed. That accommodation should, preferably, be an
alternative resource to private sector accommodation and our own stock. We need greater
diversity in the resources available and we need to increase supply if we are to avoid an
escalation in the number of households in temporary accommodation. The development of
offsite modular constructions would increase supply and it is therefore the recommended
option to boost the number temporary accommodation units, alongside developing the PSL
scheme and use of our own stock.
The development of new temporary accommodation should be managed through a
procurement plan that delivers a range of accommodation in both size, tenure and type and
which is cost neutral to the authority.

Temporary Accommodation Strategy – 080615/1

14

Page 107

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 9

Housing, Economy and Business
Committee

Date: 23 June 2015

Revisions to the Council’s Tenancy Conditions
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough wide
Cllr Jayne McCoy
Trevor Hart, Housing Strategy and Commissioning Manager
(020 8770 5844)
 A Fairer Council
Open
Date:

10 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks the Committee’s approval of some proposed changes to the Council’s
Conditions of Tenancy following a consultation exercise with tenants carried out by Sutton
Housing Partnership (SHP). Subject to the Committee’s approval it is proposed that the new
Conditions be brought into effect from 1 October 2015.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the proposed changes to the current Conditions of Tenancy, as set out
in Appendix B, be implemented from 1 October 2015.

3.

Background

3.1

The Council’s Conditions of Tenancy, which apply to all secure and introductory tenants, were
last revised in 2010. A copy of the current conditions is set out at Appendix A. Since that time
there have been a number of changes in legislation, policy and practice, which it is considered
now need to be reflected in a revised and updated Tenancy Conditions document.

3.2

In order to make changes to its Tenancy Conditions the Council is required, under s105
Housing Act 1985, to consult with its tenants. Following discussions with the Council, Sutton
Housing Partnership (SHP), in its role as managing agent, notified all tenants of the proposed
changes in a letter dated 10 April, and invited comments, to be sent in by 22 May. Although the
landlord is statutorily required to give just 28 days notice, for good measure a period of six
weeks was given.

3.3

In the next section the proposed changes, and the rationale for them, are briefly discussed. The
responses from tenants are summarised, with commentary set against these including where
further amendments to the proposed changes have been made in light of comments received.

Agenda Item 9

Page 108

4.

Issues and Options Considered

4.1

Set out at Appendix B is a table comprising three columns. The first states the relevant existing
term or condition, the second the proposed change to that term (or in some cases a proposed
new term) where new or replacement wording is shown underlined. Set out in the third column
is a summary of comments received and SHP’s suggested response(s) to these (in bold type).
Also, at the end of the Appendix are listed a number of other comments received that did not
directly relate to one of the clauses or conditions where a change was proposed. In total 18
responses were received from individual tenants or tenant groups.

4.2

It can be seen that a number of the proposed changes are essentially about strengthening or
clarifying the wording of the existing conditions. These apply to (revised number) clauses 1.1
(payment of rent), 2.1 - 2.2 (ending a secure tenancy), 4.3 (leaving the property unoccupied),
4.8 (demoted tenancies), 4.19 - 4.30 (firearms, fire prevention and health and safety issues),
4.32 (keeping of pets), 4.36 (compensation for tenant alterations), 4.38 (installation of
aerials/satellite dishes), 4.39 (parking), 5.5 - 5.6 (succession rights) and 6.2 (changing this
agreement).

4.3 There are, however, also some new clauses proposed. These are :
 3.9 (maintenance of suited locks, proposed wording “We are responsible for maintaining
suited locks, where fitted. You must not remove or replace any suited lock fitted to your
property. Additional keys to suited locks can be supplied by us, but a charge will be made.”)
 3.12 (compliance with landlord requests, proposed wording “You are expected to cooperate
with the management of your home and neighbourhood by, for example complying with
reasonable requests, not to obstruct staff carrying out their duties, and by keeping
appointments.” ),
 4.48 (storage of mopeds and scooters, including motorised scooters used by disabled people,
proposed wording “You must not keep mopeds, motor scooters or motorbikes inside your
home or in communal areas inside the building your home is in (for example, entrance halls,
stairs or landings). Battery-powered scooters for use by disabled people may be permitted in
certain circumstances but you would need to get our written permission first and comply with
any conditions attaching to that permission. Permission will not usually be given where it
could create a health and safety or fire risk. If we provide parking areas for battery-powered
scooters, you must park any battery-powered scooter within those parking areas.”)
 5.10 – 5.11 (Right to Buy, proposed wording “5.10 As long as you qualify under the
legislation, you may have the Right to Buy your home under the Housing Act 1985. 5.11 You
will not be able to exercise the right to buy your home if you live in sheltered housing, or
other housing excluded from this legislation”).
4.4

With regard to the feedback received, SHP has already or will be responding to every individual
or group who sent in comments, including those who provided the comments contained at the
end of Appendix B.

4.5

As a result of the comments received, a number of further amendments have been or will be
made to the original proposed changed wording, as indicated under the SHP responses
sections. In some cases it was deemed that no further amendment was required, for the
reasons given, although in a number of instances SHP has undertaken to provide clarity within
the Tenants Handbook.

4.6

Although not one of the terms or conditions where a change was proposed, a comment was
received regarding clause 3.25 (servicing of gas appliances), and is contained in the additional
comments at the end of Appendix B. Following discussions between the Council and SHP it
has been agreed that the clause will be amended along the lines suggested.

Page 109

5.

Agenda Item 9

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Legal

5.2

It is not considered that that there are any significant legal issues or hurdles to making the
proposed amendments to the tenancy conditions.
Integrated Impact Assessment

5.3

No negative impacts on tenants as a whole or particular groups of tenants have been identified
as a result of the proposed changes to the Conditions of Tenancy. Indeed many of the changes
will be helpful in clarifying the rights and responsibilities of tenants and the Council as landlord,
and the role of SHP as its managing agent. They should also help to foster neighbourliness and
reduce incidences of anti-social behaviour impacting upon the wider tenant community.

6

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
A
B

Title
Current Conditions of Tenancy
Proposed Changes to the Current Conditions of Tenancy

Background Documents
Conditions of Tenancy, LB Sutton (2010)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 10 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Claire Williams

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111

Agenda Item 9

TENANCY CONDITIONS
for
Secure Tenancies
and
Introductory Tenancies
Sutton Housing Partnership
Sutton Gate
1 Carshalton Road
Sutton
SM1 4LE

Your landlord is the London Borough of Sutton
Sutton Housing Partnership is the
Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO)
responsible for managing Sutton Council’s rented and leasehold properties

Produced in September 1999
Revised in October 2007
Revised in October 2010

Page 112
Agenda Item 9
Introduction
This document section sets out your Tenancy Conditions.
Meanings
In these tenancy conditions, when we say “your home” or “the property,” we mean the property let by the
tenancy agreement, and its gardens and outhouses, if any. When we mention “you,” we mean the tenant or
joint tenants. When we say “we” or “us” we mean the Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of
Sutton, or agents or contractors working on behalf of the Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of
Sutton.
Definitions
"Introductory Tenancy"
You will be given an Introductory Tenancy if you have not, immediately prior to being offered this tenancy,
been a secure tenant of the London Borough of Sutton, another Local Authority or an assured tenant of a
registered social landlord. The tenancy will be granted for a trial period of 12 months. This allows us to
monitor your ability to keep to the terms and conditions of your tenancy agreement. If you do not breach
the tenancy conditions you will automatically become a secure tenant after the trial period. If before the end
of 1 year we ask the Court to make an Order for possession of the property, and an Order is made, your
introductory tenancy will come to an end. We may chose to extend your introductory tenancy by 6 months
as an alternative to applying to the Court for possession of your property. If you continue to break the
conditions of your tenancy and do not put matters right, we will seek a possession order against you.
Your rights as an Introductory Tenant are similar to those of a Secure Tenant. The Tenancy Conditions are
also similar. Where conditions or rights are not the same, we have highlighted the differences.
“Demoted Tenancy”
Where you have been given a secure tenancy and you or your visitors or persons living with you have
engaged or have threatened to engage in anti-social behaviour or you have used the premises for unlawful
purposes, the London Borough of Sutton may apply to the Court for an order that your tenancy is down
graded to a ‘demoted tenancy’. If this happens, your rights as a secure tenant will come to an end. This will
usually last for a period of 12 months unless your tenancy is brought to an end because of further anti-social
behaviour or other breaches of your tenancy conditions.
“Additional Charges”
You may become liable to pay additional charges under the following clauses of this agreement:
2.3, 2.10, 2.11, 3.6, 3.7, 3.16, 3.17, 3.18, 3.19, 3.20, 3.21, 3.22, 3.26, 4.13, 4.31, 4.34, 4.44, 4.45, and 4.47.
Additional charges cover our costs including, but not limited to, our contractors’ charges for labour,
materials and equipment hire, as well as our reasonable administration costs. You must either:
• pay additional charges within 14 days of receiving notification that you must pay them, or
• you must make a reasonable offer which is acceptable to us to pay the additional charges, and keep to the

agreement.
If, within 6 months of being notified that additional charges are due:
•
•
•
•

you have not paid the additional charges in full, or
you have not reached an agreement to repay the additional charges, or
you have failed to make agreed payments in respect of additional charges,
you will be in breach of this tenancy agreement.

“Rent”
In these conditions, the word ‘rent’ includes all the items that make up the Total Rent shown on the tenancy
agreement. It also includes anything else which, under these conditions, you must pay as additional charges.
“Rent Account”
This means the account or sub-account detailing monies owed and paid to us.

Page 113

Agenda Item 9

Tenants Handbook
The Tenants Handbook will explain this agreement in more detail. It will give additional guidance and
information about your tenancy.
1. Rent
1.1 You must pay your rent on time, to the London Borough of Sutton.
If you do not pay your rent, or pay it late, we might apply to a court to evict you, or sue you for the
money you owe us.
1.2

We may use any money you pay, or which is paid for you, to cover any rent you owe us for this
property, or any other property you have rented from us.

Changing your rent, service charges and other charges
1.3 We can increase or decrease the rent for your home by giving you four weeks notice.
1.4

We can introduce new services, for which we may charge. We can also withdraw services. However,
if we do this, we must follow procedure set out in Section 6.

Council tax
1.5 You must pay Council Tax (or any other local tax which may replace it) for your home direct to your
local Council. It is not included in your rent.
Services
1.6 We will provide the services listed on page 2 of the tenancy agreement. We may temporarily
interrupt the supply of any service if we or a utility company need to carry out maintenance work or
there are shortages. We will give you notice if possible.
2. Ending the Tenancy
Secure tenants only
2.1 We can only make you leave your home or take away your rights as a secure tenant by getting a
court order, and we can get an order for certain reasons (“grounds”) which are set out in the
Housing Act 1985.
2.2 We will give you at least four weeks' written notice (“Notice of Seeking Possession”) if we plan to
apply for a court order, except in the following cases:
• in cases of nuisance or harassment, or
• if there is a danger to people or property that we must deal with immediately.
2.3 If we apply to the court for a possession order, you must pay additional charges as assessed by the
court (“court costs”).
If the tenancy stops being a secure tenancy
2.4 If the tenancy stops being a secure tenancy (for example, because it is no longer your only or principal
home), we may end the tenancy by giving you four weeks' written notice (“Notice to Quit”).
Introductory tenants only
2.5 We can only make you leave your home by getting a Court Order, and we can get an order where
you break the tenancy conditions described in this agreement.
2.6 We will give you at least four weeks' written notice ("Notice of proceedings for possession") if we
plan to apply for a Court Order, except in the following cases:
• in cases of nuisance or harassment, or
• if there is a danger to people or property that we must deal with immediately.
2.7 If we apply to the court for a possession order, you must pay additional charges as assessed by the
court ("court costs").

Page 114
Agenda Item 9
Demoted Tenants only
2.8 We will give you at least four weeks' written notice (“Notice Of Seeking Possession”) if we plan to apply
for a court order during the demotion period to make you leave your home. This will usually be where
you have continued to cause anti-social behaviour or break the terms and conditions of your tenancy
in other ways.
Your right to end the tenancy
2.9 If you are the only tenant, you can end this tenancy by giving us at least four weeks' written notice,
addressed to Voids & Allocations Team, Sutton Housing Partnership, Sutton Gate, 1 Carshalton Road,
Sutton SM1 4LE.
2.10 This notice must end at 12.00 midnight on a Sunday. We may accept less notice than this, but you must
arrange this with us beforehand.
If this is a joint tenancy, either one of the joint tenants can end this tenancy by giving us at least four
weeks' written notice, addressed to:
Voids & Allocations Team, Sutton Housing Partnership, Sutton Gate, 1 Carshalton Road,
Sutton SM1 4LE
This notice must end at 12.00 midnight on a Sunday. We may accept less notice than this, but you must
arrange this with us beforehand.
2.11 You must give us ‘vacant possession’ of the property when you move out. This means that
• you must return all the keys in person to Sutton Housing Partnership, Sutton Gate, 1 Carshalton
Road, Sutton SM1 4LE and obtain a receipt
• you must return keys by 12.00 noon on the Monday following the last day of your tenancy
• nobody must remain in the property after you go, and
• you must remove all your furniture, personal possessions, pets, and rubbish, and
• Leave our fixtures and fittings in a reasonable condition and state of repair, and
• you must empty any garages or sheds that you rent with the property and dispose of the contents
properly.
2.12 If you do not give us proper written notice and vacant possession, you will have to pay the rent and
other occupancy charges until we get the property back.
2.13 After you have given us notice you are giving up your tenancy, you must let us see inside your home at
any reasonable time. We will normally make an appointment with you.
Moving out
2.14 We accept no responsibility for any belongings you leave in the property after your tenancy has ended.
If you do leave any belongings that we have to dispose of, we may get rid of them without warning you.
You may have to pay additional charges to cover the cost of doing this.
2.15 You must leave the property in a safe and reasonable condition, in line with your responsibilities under
Section 3 of these conditions (Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements). This means it should be in
similar condition to the time you moved in, except for fair wear and tear. If you do not do this, you
may have to pay additional charges to cover the cost of bringing the property back to a safe and
reasonable condition.
3. Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements
Our Responsibilities
3.1 We will repair and maintain the structure and the outside of the property including:
• any shared parts of the building which your property forms part of; and
• roof; walls; foundations; drains; gutters; pipes; doors; door frames; window frames; chimneys and
• chimney stacks; glazing; ceilings; plaster-work; skirting-boards; paths, fences and steps; our boundary
walls and fences; integral garages and stores which form part of your home.

Page 115

Agenda Item 9
We will keep the outside decorated to a reasonable standard. However, if a previous tenant has added
fittings to the property that are not standard, we are not responsible for decorating or maintaining them.
3.2

We will carry out repairs that we are responsible for within a reasonable time of finding out the repair
was needed. The length of time will depend on how urgent the repair is and our published service
standards in force at the time.

3.3

We will insure the property (but not your possessions) against all usual risks covered by a buildings
insurance policy.

3.4

We will keep in good working order, systems installed by us as follows:• for supplying water (including tap washers), gas (where it is available), electricity, and
• for getting rid of rubbish and waste water; and
• any water or room heater or extractor fan that we provide, including inspecting flues, and inspecting
and servicing gas appliances, and;
• fire places and fitted flues (but not sweeping chimneys where there is an open fire).
If you have installed your own system to provide any of the services listed in this clause, you must
maintain it yourself, unless the law says we must do it. You will need our written permission before
you install your own system.
You should also note the things you are responsible for (see clause 3.12-16).

3.5

We will do all we reasonably can to keep any shared facilities that we provide working properly, and to
keep shared areas safe, and maintained to a reasonable standard.

3.6

We will be responsible for deciding if any trees in your garden need surgery or removal, and for
carrying it out if it needs doing. You must get our written permission before planting any trees. If you
do not get our written permission, we may put things back to the way they were before, and you will
have to pay additional charges to cover the cost of doing this.

3.7

We are not responsible for any repairs or maintenance needed because of the following:
• You, a relative or anyone who has your permission to be in your home has caused the damage,
neglected the property, or broken the terms of this agreement, unless you have made a satisfactory
arrangement to pay us for the damage. If the damage is to a shared area we will carry out the work,
but you will have to pay additional charges to cover the cost of the repair.
• The property needs rebuilding because of fire, flood, storm or other accident (though normally our
insurers will pay us to repair or replace the property).

3.8

We are not responsible for
• changing the locks at the start of your tenancy
• providing dustbins for individual homes;
• repairing or maintaining anything which you are entitled to remove from your home: and
• painting and decorating inside your home.

3.9

If the Council, or its agents or contractors, damage the property, we will put it right.

Improvements
3.10 From time to time, we may make improvements to your property or the shared areas. If the
improvements are substantial, we will follow the consultation process described in Section 6.
Your Responsibilities
Reporting repairs
3.11 You must tell us as soon as possible about anything that we need to repair or maintain.

Page 116
Agenda Item 9
What you must repair
3.12 You must keep the inside of your home in good repair, and the decorations, fixtures and fittings in
good condition.
3.13 You are responsible for:
• door-furniture, hinges, and cupboard catches;
• maintaining any additional locks which you or previous tenants have fitted;
• replacing keys, light bulbs, fuses and your own electrical appliances;
• blocked sinks, washbasins, baths and toilets;
• broken pulls for high-level toilet cisterns, and toilet seats;
• sink and bath plugs;
• cracks in the plaster that are not structural;
• changing batteries in battery operated smoke alarms; or
• extra fixtures or fittings that previous tenants added to the property.
You are also responsible for repairs to your own fixtures or fittings, or to anything you are entitled to
take away from the property.
Repairing damage
3.14 You must repair any damage to your home caused by you, members of your family, or other people
living in or visiting your home. You must carry out these repairs as soon as possible and in a careful
and reasonable way.
3.15 If you, members of your family, or other people living in or visiting your home damage any shared areas
or facilities, you must report it, but you must not repair it.
3.16 If we have to carry out repairs because you, a member of your family, or anyone who has your
permission to be in your home, has caused the damage or neglected the property, you will have to pay
additional charges to cover the cost of the work and expenses. This does not include normal wear and
tear.
Rubbish
3.17 You must dispose of rubbish, refuse or other waste properly and safely. If you, or anyone living with
or visiting you, break this condition, we may take action to put things right. You will have to pay us
additional charges to cover our expenses for doing so.
3.18 You and anyone living with or visiting you, must not dump rubbish or other refuse around your home
or anywhere else where rubbish dumping is not allowed. If you break this condition, we may take
action to put things right. You will have to pay us additional charges to cover our expenses for doing
so.
Gardens and balconies
3.19 You must keep your garden or balcony (if you have one) reasonably tidy and in good condition. This
includes cutting grass, and pruning hedges and shrubs. If you do not do this, we may take action to put
things right and you will have to pay us additional charges to cover our expenses for doing so.
3.20 You must not put rubbish, vehicle parts, or vehicles, caravans, boats or trailers, in any garden, unless
you have our written permission. If you do this without permission, we may remove any such items.
You will have to pay us additional charges to cover our expenses for removing, and storing or getting
rid of any such items.
3.21 You must not damage, cut down, or remove any tree within the boundary of the premises without our
written permission. If you do not get our written permission, we may take action to put things right
and you will have to pay us additional charges to cover our expenses for doing so.
3.22 If any part of your home is a fire escape, you must keep it clear and free of obstructions. If you do not
do this, we may take action to put it right. You will have to pay additional charges to cover the cost of
doing this.

Page 117

Agenda Item 9

Access
3.23 You must allow us into your home at any reasonable time to inspect or to carry out repairs,
maintenance or improvements, to this property or to any property nearby. Inspection of the property
includes enquiries into the number of persons residing in your home and to check that the legal tenant
is in occupation. You will be asked to provide photographic identification such as a passport or driving
licence as well as proof of occupation such as a utility bill or bank statement. You do not need to let in
anyone unless they show you official identification. We expect you to move furniture, fittings, carpets
and anything belonging to you to allow us to carry out repairs or maintenance. You should inform us if
you are elderly or have a disability and we will consider providing you with assistance.
Normally we will give you at least 48 hours written notice unless we are carrying out identification
checks.
3.24 In an emergency situation (for example, if water is overflowing or there is a potential health and safety
risk to you, neighbours or other residents) we may break into your home to investigate or to carry
out urgent repairs.
3.25 If your home has gas appliances that we need to service, inspect or repair, you must let us or our
contractors into your home to allow us to do this. Our term gas maintenance contractor will arrange
a reasonable time with you. If you have not let them into your home after two written notices, we can
force entry to your home to allow them to carry out the work. You do not need to let in anyone
unless they show you official identification.
3.26 If we break into your home, we will leave your home secure. We will repair any damage we cause to
the locks, doors, windows or frames. However, if you are responsible for the original fault you must
pay us additional charges to cover our expenses for getting in and for making your home secure, and
for the repair, unless you have a reasonable excuse for failing to let us in.
4. Use of your Home
Illegal or immoral use
4.1 You must not use your home for any illegal or immoral purposes. Illegal or immoral uses include, but
are not limited to:
• illegally supplying, using or growing any prohibited or controlled drug (in your home or the locality
of your home).
• prostitution.
• keeping or supplying, from your home or the surrounding area, any indecent material or child
pornography in any form, including but not limited to printed or computer material.
• using your home for any sexual activity involving children.
This condition also applies to anyone living in, or visiting your home.
Private residential use
4.2 You must move into the property at the start of the tenancy. If you do not use the property as your
only or principal home, we will take action to end the tenancy by serving you with a Notice ("Notice
to Quit"). We may apply to a court for possession of the property.
4.3

If you intend to leave the property unoccupied or you intend to be absent from your property for a
period longer than 6 weeks, you must provide us with written notice of your intention.

4.4

We will from time to time visit your property to make enquiries as to those persons in occupation of
your home. You must allow us into your home at any reasonable time and co-operate with us when
we make our enquiries with you. See condition 3.23.

4.5

You must get our written permission if you intend to be absent for a period longer than 6 months.
Permission will only be given in appropriate circumstances, and so long as the property remains your
only and principal home.

Page 118
Agenda Item 9
4.6 You must get our written permission to run a business at or from your home. We may withhold
permission if:
• your business involves members of the public or customers having to call at your home, or
• your business may cause a nuisance to neighbours or damage the property, or
• it breaks any planning laws.
We may withdraw any permission we do give, by giving you one week’s written notice if we think that
the business is causing nuisance, annoyance, or breaking the law.
4.7

We must not interfere with your right to enjoy possession of your home.

Nuisance and harassment
4.8 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not do anything in your home or in the
area around your home, which causes or may cause a nuisance, annoyance, disturbance or offence to
any person. Things which cause nuisance, annoyance or disturbance may include, but are not limited
to:Loud music; arguing; door slamming; dog barking and fouling; drunkenness; offensive or violent
behaviour; selling drugs or drug abuse; rubbish dumping; inconsiderate car parking; playing ball games
close to someone else's home, and damage to property.
4.9

You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not commit any acts of harassment
towards anyone for any reasons, including but not limited to reasons of colour, race, nationality, ethnic
origin, disability, age, sex, sexual orientation, or religion. Harassment includes, but is not limited to:• violence or threats of violence towards any person
• abusive or insulting words or behaviour
• damage or threats to damage property belonging to another person, including damage to any part of
the person's home
• writing threatening, abusive or insulting graffiti
• anything you do or fail to do which is likely to interfere with the peace or comfort of any person, or
will unreasonably inconvenience someone.

4.10 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not permit, encourage or allow anyone to
commit any act that is in breach of Clauses 4.8 and 4.9.
4.11 If people living with you, or visiting your home, do or fail to do something leading to a breach of
Clauses 4.8 and 4.9, we will consider this a breach of this agreement by you.
4.12 You must pay the Council additional charges to cover the cost of making good any loss or damage
caused by acts in breach of Clauses 4.8 and 4.9 done by you, or anyone living with you or visiting your
home.
4.13 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not deface or damage any wall, door,
fence or other property owned by the Council, by graffiti or in any other way.
4.14 You are responsible for the behaviour of any person living in your home, whether permanently or
temporarily. You are also responsible for the acts of any visitor while they are in your home, and
while they enter or leave your home, any shared parts, or the locality of your home.
Demoted Tenancies
4.15 We may make an application to the court to demote your tenancy where you, persons living with you
or visiting you have been involved in anti-social behaviour.
If your tenancy is demoted you will have been sent details telling you how long your tenancy has been
demoted for and how this affects you. If you don’t cause nuisance or break the terms and conditions of
your tenancy in other ways, you should automatically become a secure tenant again after 12 months.
If you are a demoted tenant you will lose some rights which you previously held as a secure tenant. For
example, the right to buy your home will be suspended during the period of demotion, and you cannot
transfer or exchange your home or be able to take in lodgers or sub-let your home.

Page 119

Agenda Item 9

Domestic Violence
4.16 You and anyone living with you or visiting your home must not commit any act of domestic violence or
abuse against any other person either in the home or in or around the locality of your home.
You or your partner must not cause the other to leave the property because of violence or the threat
of violence.
Domestic Violence includes any form of physical, sexual or emotional violence between people in a
close relationship. It can include rape, threats and intimidation such as degradation, mental and verbal
abuse, humiliation, deprivation, systematic criticism and belittling.
4.17 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not use or threaten violence, intimidate,
or use abusive language towards
• anyone who works for the Council, or
• the Council’s agent, or
• any other person carrying out lawful activity in the area of your home.
Inadequate Flooring
4.18 If you wish to install any type of floor covering which is laminate, wood, other artificial wooden floor
coverings or ceramic tiles or if you want to have bare floorboards within your home, you must receive
our prior written permission. Whilst we will not refuse permission unreasonably, we will only grant
permission if you live in a house which is detached, terraced, or semi-detached. We will not generally
grant permission where you live in a flat or maisonette other than if you are on the ground floor.
We may withdraw permission if at any time your floor coverings cause noise nuisance to your
neighbours, and you will be required to remove the flooring and cover it with underlay and carpet.
Firearms, Fire Prevention and Health and Safety
4.19 You must not store any firearms in your home. Firearms include air rifles, shotguns, and replica guns.
4.20 You must not store ammunition, oxyacetylene and welding equipment in your home, garden or in any
communal areas to your property.
4.21 You must take reasonable precautions to prevent fire, flood or damage to your home.
4.22 You must regularly replace the batteries in any battery operated smoke alarm fitted in your home.
4.23 You must not smoke or allow anyone living with you or visiting your home to smoke in any enclosed
shared communal areas.
4.24 You must not install heaters or use free-standing heaters that burn oil, gas, bottled gas, or paraffin or
other flammable fuels in your home.
4.25 You must not use, or allow anyone else to use, your home to store fuel, hazardous substances, oil or
other materials that can catch fire easily, endanger health, or cause a nuisance.
4.26 You must not change, add or interfere with any electrical, gas or water supplies or do anything that
could interfere with the health and safety of others. This includes but is not limited to changing or
adding to wires, cables, or pipes in the property or installing any new apparatus apart from electrical
appliances that are designed to be plugged into a 13 amp socket without our written permission.
However, you can commission a qualified electrician to attach an electric cooker to an electric cooker
outlet. If we supply your heat and/or hot water, you must only use it for domestic purposes for your
own household.
4.27 If you, and anyone living with you request someone to carry out work in your home, you must ensure
that any works undertaken by that person comply with the appropriate Health and Safety legal
requirements.

Page 120
Agenda Item 9
4.28 You and anyone living with you or visiting your home must not store or accumulate rubbish, refuse or
other waste inside your home, on your balcony, in shared communal areas or in your garden so as to
cause a fire hazard, health hazard or nuisance or prevent anyone from moving freely within these areas.
Pets
4.29 If you, or any person living with you wants to keep an animal at your home, then you must get our
written permission first. We will normally only give permission for up to two animals.
You will also be required to complete a “permission to keep a pet” form. Permission will normally be
given for small domestic animals and birds.
Permission will not be given for:
Animals registered under the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976.
Farm animals – for example, sheep, goats, pigs, cattle, horses, chicken and ducks.
Dogs specified under the Dangerous Dogs Act 1991.
Pets to be kept in your home where there is an ongoing problem with pet ownership in the
household or there has been a problem in the past.

•
•
•
•

If you want to keep a dog, you will normally need to have a private garden, and you will be requested
to provide a photograph along with any details of trace recording methods, i.e. chipping.
You will be responsible for any domestic pet(s) that are bought into your home.
You must provide reasonable care for your pet, and not allow it to:
• Cause nuisance, annoyance or danger to neighbours, visitors to the property, and the Council’s staff

and agents.
• Cause damage to your home or any council owned property. If this happens you may be charged for
any damage caused.
• Foul on any Council property including communal areas. Any fouling of any area must be cleared up
immediately by you, the owner or person in charge of the animal at the time.
• Be present on any Council property without being accompanied by you or a responsible adult at all
times. Your dog must be kept on a lead and completely under control at all times in communal
areas. Your dog must also not be allowed to roam around the communal areas including footpaths
and play areas.
You must not:
• Run a business from your home. This includes breeding animals for sale or boarding kennels.
• Allow your home to become unhygienic.
• Feed squirrels and other vermin either at your home or in the communal area.
• Feed pigeons in communal areas.
If you do not comply with the above terms and conditions, we may withdraw our permission, and you
may be asked to remove the pet(s) from your home. Your friends, relatives, visitors to your home and
any other person living in your home, including children must comply with the above terms and
conditions. If they do something to lead to a breach of this clause, we will consider this a breach of this
agreement by you.
Alterations (changes), and the right to make improvements
4.30 You must get our written permission before you make any alterations or improvements to your home
or common parts of your building. This includes but is not limited to putting up external lighting;
decorating the outside of the property or shared parts; or altering areas so you can park your vehicle;
or altering our fixtures and fittings. We will only refuse to give our permission if we have a good
reason to, but we may set reasonable conditions that you must keep to. If we do refuse, we will tell
you why in writing.
If you do not get our permission, do the work badly, or do not keep to our conditions, you must put
the property back to how it was before. If you do not do this, we may do the work, and you will have
to pay us additional charges to cover the costs of putting the property right.
4.31 Even if we have given our permission, you must get any other approval you need for the work (for
example planning permission or building regulation approval) before you start. You must keep to any
conditions in the planning permission or building regulations approval.

Page 121

Agenda Item 9
4.32 Even if we have given our permission, you must make sure that any work that you do is carried out to
a proper standard, and in line with any conditions we set in our permission.
4.34 We will not take into account any improvements you make when we review your rent.
Secure tenants only
4.33 You may be entitled to compensation for the improvements when you leave your property.
Aerials and satellite dishes
4.35 You must get our written permission if you want to put up aerials or satellite dishes. You must also
get any other approval you need before you start the work. If you do not get our permission, do the
work badly, or do not keep to our conditions, you must put the property back to how it was before.
If you do not do this, we may do the work, and you will have to pay us additional charges to cover the
costs of putting the property right.
Parking
The following clause applies to you, and other people living with or visiting you, if you have a parking space within the
boundaries of your home:
4.36 You can park a vehicle, caravan, trailer, or boat in any parking space within the boundary your home.
It must be safe, of reasonable size and weight for the parking space, and it must not cause nuisance or
inconvenience to your neighbours. You must not use your parking space in a way that breaks the law,
or breaks any restrictions on how you can use your land.
The following parking clauses apply to all tenants, and other people living with or visiting them:
4.37 You can park a vehicle in any parking space that you rent with your home. It must be safe,
roadworthy, and of reasonable size and weight for the parking space. You must not use your parking
space in a way that breaks the law, or breaks any restrictions on how you can use your land.
4.38 If there are allocated spaces in the parking area, you must use only the space that is allocated to you or
your household.
4.39 You must not park vehicles anywhere except in parking areas or on parts of the roadway where
parking is allowed.
4.40 You must not put caravans, trailers, or boats in parking spaces, in a garden, or other estate areas or
estate roads; you must not put parts from caravans, trailers, boats or vehicles in parking spaces or
other estate areas.
4.41 You can carry out reasonable minor repairs to vehicles in the parking areas that you are allowed to
use. You must not use paint spraying equipment, hoists, welding equipment or powered tools.
4.42 You must not carry out vehicle repairs for other people anywhere on council estates or in integral
garages. You must not break up vehicles anywhere on council estates or in integral garages.
4.43 We will not take responsibility for any vehicles (or their contents) parked on Council estates or other
Council property in any circumstances. You, your family, other people living with you and visitors park
there at your own risk.
4.44 If you, or anyone living with or visiting you, leave a vehicle, part of a vehicle or other object anywhere
on our land in breach of these parking conditions, we may place a Notice on it giving 14 days notice
that we will remove or destroy it. This condition also applies to vehicles, parts of vehicles or other
objects which we think:• are abandoned, or
• are dangerous, or
• are unroadworthy, or
• should display a current certificate of taxation, and do not do so, or

Page 122
Agenda Item 9
• should have a current certificate of roadworthiness (MOT) from the Department of Transport,
and do not have one.
You agree to pay us additional charges to cover the cost of removing and disposing of any such item
for which any member of your household was responsible. You, and anyone living with you or visiting
your home, do not have any right to claim against the landlord for any loss arising from the destruction
of a vehicle, part of a vehicle, or other object.
4.45 If you want to make additional parking space from any land you rent as part of your home, you must
first get our written permission, and any other necessary permission. If you do not get permission, do
the work badly, or do not keep to our conditions, you must put the property back to how it was
before. If you do not do this, we may do the work, and you will have to pay us additional charges to
cover the cost of putting the property right.
Shared parts
These clauses relating to shared parts only apply if your home has shared parts, including but not limited to entrances,
landings, staircases, passageways, paths, drives, gardens or balconies.
4.46 You must clean any access balcony, corridor or staircase outside your home, unless the Council
provide a cleaning service.
4.47 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not put anything which may restrict or
hinder access in any corridors, landings, staircases, shared entrances, or any other shared part. If you
break this condition, we may take action to put things right. You will have to pay additional charges to
cover the cost of doing this.
4.48 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not put anything in any shared parts,
entrances, landings, staircases, passageways, paths, drives, gardens or balconies without getting our
written permission first.
4.49 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not tamper with any fire-safety equipment,
lighting or security equipment.
4.50 You must not smoke or allow anyone living with you or visiting your home to smoke in any enclosed
shared communal areas.
4.51 You must not interfere with or enter any unauthorised areas such as communal loft spaces or
communal storage areas.
Communal facilities
4.52 You, and anyone living with you or visiting your home, must not tamper with lifts, lofts, and communal
facilities including but not limited to; communications equipment, bathrooms, kitchens, laundries, and
bin chutes.
Legal requirements
4.53 You must keep to all laws and regulations relating to or in any way affecting your living in the property,
or its shared parts or surroundings.
5. Lodging, Sub-letting, Assignment, Succession and Mutual Exchange
Lodgers and overcrowding
Secure tenants only
5.1 You may take in lodgers or have members of your family living with you as long as this does not
result in an unreasonable number of people living at your home.
Introductory Tenants and Demoted Tenants
5.2 You must not take in lodgers.

Page 123

Agenda Item 9

Secure tenants only
5.3 You must not sublet all of your home, so that you no longer live there. And you must not create a
sub-tenancy with security of tenure.
Introductory Tenants and Demoted Tenants
5.4 You must not sublet all or any part of your home.
Sub-letting
Succession rights
5.5 If you die, your spouse or members of your family may have rights to succeed to a tenancy. We will
use the Housing Act 1985 (as amended), the Housing Act 1996, any legislation which replaces it, and
surrounding case law, in deciding whether you have the right to succeed.
We will treat a Registered Civil Partnership the same as a Civil Marriage, and we will treat persons
living together as if in a Civil Partnership the same as persons living together as husband and wife.
5.6

We may request that anyone who succeeds to this tenancy moves to another property. We will only
do this if your home is larger than we think they need. But they will not have to move if they are your
spouse, registered Civil Partner, over 60, or are over 50 and have lived with you at the current
property for at least 40 years.
If we require you to move, we will serve you with a notice not less than 6 months and not more than
12 months after the death of the tenant. If you do not move, we may apply to a court for possession of
the property.

Assignment
5.7 You can only assign the tenancy to someone else if you get our written permission and the conditions
concerning assignment in the Housing Act 1985 (as amended) and Housing Act 1996 are fulfilled. We
will use this Act, any legislation that replaces it, and surrounding case law, in deciding whether to allow
assignments.
When considering whether to allow assignments, we will treat a Registered Civil Partnership the same as a
Civil Marriage, and we will treat persons living together as if in a Civil Partnership the same as persons living
together as husband and wife.
Before we give our permission, we may set a condition that you must pay any rent you owe us, or put right
anything that breaks this agreement, before you make the exchange.
Secure tenants only
The right to mutual exchange
5.8
If you get our written permission, you can exchange this tenancy with
• a secure Housing Association or Council tenant (who has their landlord’s permission); or
• an assured tenant who can assign their tenancy, who has their landlord’s permission and who
• rents their home from the Housing Corporation, Housing for Wales, a Registered Social Landlord
• or a Housing Trust that is a charity.
We may insist that you use a form or deed approved by us. Before we give our permission, we may
set a condition that you must pay any rent you owe us, or put right anything that breaks this
agreement, before you make the exchange.
6. Remedies, And Other Procedures
Changing this agreement
6.1 We can change the rent and other payments as set out in Section 1.
6.2

We can also change any other part of this agreement by following this procedure. If we are planning to
do this, we will consult you and consider all the comments we receive.

Page 124
Agenda Item 9
Right to consultation
6.3 We will consult you before we make any change to the way we manage, maintain or improve your
home if the change is likely to have an effect on you.
6.4

We will support and assist the development of residents’ groups and consult with them widely in the
management of Council homes. We will encourage you to play an active part in the management of
your home. We will support and provide funding for this.

6.5

When tenants request help from us, we will support initiatives to develop Tenant Management
Organisations, Tenant Participation Compacts, and other models allowing tenant involvement in
decisions about managing their homes. We will investigate funding methods to support such initiatives.

Right to information
6.6 You can see any personal information we hold about you. We will not refuse our permission
unreasonably. We may decide not to give you information provided by other people or organisations
if it would breach our duty of confidentiality to them.
6.7

If you think that any information we hold about you is inaccurate, you can ask us to correct it. We will
not refuse to do this if your request is reasonable.

Compliments, comments and complaints about our service
6.8 We welcome your comments about our housing service. You can use our complaints procedure if you
think we have broken this Agreement or not carried out any of our responsibilities.
Delivering documents
6.9 Under Section 48 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1987, we must give an address where you can send
notices to us. Any letter, notice or other official document, which you send us, will be valid if you send
it to:
The Chief Executive, Sutton Housing Partnership, Sutton Gate, 1 Carshalton Road,
Sutton, Surrey SM1 4LE.
6.10 Any letter, notice or other official document will be validly served if we leave it at your home, send it
there by post, or post it through your letterbox.

Page 125

Agenda Item 9

Agenda Item 9

Page 126

Visit and write to us at Sutton Housing Partnership,
Sutton Gate,1 Carshalton Road, Sutton, Surrey SM1 4LE.
Telephone us on Freephone 0800 195 5552
or from your mobile on 020 8915 2000 (call charges may vary depending on your network).
Email us at customercare@suttonhousingpartnership.org.uk
Visit our website www.suttonhousingpartnership.org.uk
Managing council homes on behalf of the London Borough of Sutton

Appendix B

Proposed changes to the Tenancy Conditions
New Term or Condition

Rent

Rent

1.1 You must pay your rent on time, to the London
Borough of Sutton.

1.1 You must pay your rent on time, to the
London Borough of Sutton. The payment of rent
and service and other charges is due in advance
on the Monday of each week.

Comments received/ SHP
response

-What does rent in advance mean, should
include timescales e.g. clarify to “one week in
advance of payment due on Monday”
-Unable to pay rent in advance

Page 127

Existing Term or Condition

-People pay one week in advance, one in
arrears, the change will cause financial hardship
-I believe the tenant should have the right to
withhold rent where SHP fails to provide
repairs on time, or effective communication
regarding maintenance and repairs to property
-Rent shouldn’t go up every year, should be
kept at a fair, low price to avoid homelessness
SHP response

1

Agenda Item 9

The tenancy agreement is currently
silent on this matter although rent has
always been required to be paid in
advance by whatever frequency tenants
pay by e.g. weekly, two-weekly or
monthly.

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

SHP response (continued)
The requirement to pay rent is totally
separate from any repairing obligations
on the landlord.

Agenda Item 9

Comments received/ SHP
response

The Council’s power to set rents is set
out in s24 of the Housing Act 1985.
Council’s may make such reasonable
charges as they may determine.
Additionally, Council rents are generally
significantly lower than those in the
private rented sector.

Page 128

2

Comments received/ SHP
response

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Ending the tenancy (Secure tenants only)

Ending the tenancy (Secure tenants only)

2.1 We can only make you leave your home or take
away your rights as a secure tenant by getting a court
order, and we can get an order for certain reasons
(“grounds”) which are set out in the Housing Act 1985.

2.1 We can only make you leave your home or take
away your rights as a secure tenant by getting a
court order, and we can get an order for certain
reasons (“grounds”) which are set out in the
Housing Act 1985 as amended, updated, extended
or replaced.

2.2 We will give you at least four weeks' written notice
(“Notice of Seeking Possession”) if we plan to apply for
a court order, except in the following cases:
• in cases of nuisance or harassment, or
• if there is a danger to people or property that we
must deal with immediately.

2.2 We will give you at least four weeks' written
-Can examples be given?
notice (“Notice of Seeking Possession”) if we plan
to apply for a court order, except in the following
cases:
• we are using grounds for which the notice may be
less than 4 weeks; or
• we are using grounds which require us to give 2
months’ notice; or
Suggested word change from “go ahead” to
• the Court has allowed us to go ahead without
“proceed”
serving notice

-Suggested word change from “can get” to
“may obtain”
-Secure tenants should have the right to give
input into such conditions

Page 129

SHP response
Wording will be changed to “may
obtain”.
Examples will be put into the tenant’s
handbook.

3

Agenda Item 9

Wording will be changed to “proceed”

New Term or Condition

Our responsibilities
Currently not included in existing conditions

Our responsibilities
3.9 We are responsible for maintaining suited
locks, where fitted. You must not remove or
replace any suited lock fitted to your property.
Additional keys to suited locks can be supplied by
us, but a charge will be made.

Comments received/ SHP
response
-Locks must be changed for new tenants
-Need to include something about security of
property for a new tenant, change of lock etc
by SHP if the tenant is not allowed to do so.

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

-Will tenant know what a suited lock is,
wording needs to be changed.
-Mention most tenants don’t have suited locks
SHP response

4

Page 130

Locks are routinely changed as part of
our lettings standard for all properties
other than sheltered schemes where
suited locks are fitted. A suited lock is a
lock that can be accessed by a master
key; this explanation can be included in
the tenancy conditions.

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Comments received/ SHP
response

Your Responsibilities
Currently not included in existing conditions

3.12 You are expected to cooperate with the
management of your home and neighbourhood by,
for example complying with reasonable requests,
not to obstruct staff carrying out their duties, and
by keeping appointments.

-Should be a statement about LBS/SHP
responsibilities
-How much notice will SHP give, suggest 2
weeks written notice unless it’s an emergency
tenant shouldn’t expect less due to work
commitments
-SHP shouldn’t “expect cooperation” when
they fail to book appointments before turning
up
SHP response

Page 131

The Landlord responsibility is set out in
section 3 (currently page 9).

This term does not specify a timescale as
any notice will be appropriate to the
situation.
The complaints procedure would be
more appropriate if a tenant was
unhappy with an element of the service
including any failure to book
appointments.

Agenda Item 9

5

New Term or Condition

Private Residential Use

Private Residential Use

4.3 If you intend to leave the property unoccupied or you
intend to be absent from your property for a
period longer than 6 weeks, you must provide us with
written notice of your intention.

4.3 If you intend to leave the property unoccupied
or you intend to be absent from your property for
a period longer than 6 weeks, you must provide us
with written notice of your intention. If you fail to
notify us we may assume you no longer use your
home as your only or main home. In this case we
may take action to end the tenancy.

Comments received/ SHP
response
-Should reflect that person may have cause to
stay away without knowing when they will
return, extended stay in hospital, looking
after a loved one, avoid home due to
domestic violence

SHP response
This is acknowledged and SHP will
consider the facts before determining
what course of action to take, note the
wording “may take action” not “will”.
The provision does not prevent tenants
from leaving their homes-but if tenants
no longer use the property as their only
or main home the landlord would want
to be able to end the tenancy. Notifying
the landlord of prolonged absence would
assist the landlord in understanding the
reason for the absence. It may also be
helpful to know this from a security
perspective. Under 5.1 Secure tenants
can take in lodgers but must notify SHP
and must not exceed the maximum
number for overcrowding.

6

Page 132

-Tenants should be allowed to leave their
homes for 3-6 weeks a year, cruel and unfair
to remove a tenancy on these conditions. All
tenants should be allowed to have family and
friends staying over for as long as they wish
and have lodgers stay if in crisis and homeless

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Demoted Tenancies

Demoted Tenancies

4.15 We may make an application to the court to demote
your tenancy where you, persons living with you or
visiting you have been involved in anti-social behaviour.

4.8 We may make an application to the court to
demote your tenancy under Section 82A of the
Housing Act 1985 (as amended by the Anti-Social
Behaviour Act 2003) where you, persons living with
you or visiting you have been involved in anti-social
behaviour.
If we intend to seek a demotion order we will give
you 2 weeks’ notice in writing unless the Court has
allowed us to go ahead without serving notice on
you.

If you are a demoted tenant you will lose some rights
which you previously held as a secure tenant. For
example, the right to buy your home will be suspended
during the period of demotion, and you cannot transfer
or exchange your home or be able to take in lodgers or
sub-let your home.

If you are a demoted tenant you will lose some
rights which you previously held as a secure tenant.
For example, the right to buy your home will be
suspended during the period of demotion, and you
cannot transfer or exchange your home or take in
lodgers or sub-let your home.

-Query change of numbering to paragraph
-Should come with warnings before applying
for court
-Tenants causing nuisance, harassment or
intimidation should be removed and evicted
after one warning.
SHP response
We have re-ordered some of the clauses
to keep similar issues together.
Warnings before court will depend on
the circumstances e.g. Whether there is
any threat of violence therefore a
without notice might be sought.
Each case will be dealt with
appropriately.

Page 133

If your tenancy is demoted you will have been sent details
telling you how long your tenancy has been
demoted for and how this affects you. If you don’t cause
nuisance or break the terms and conditions of
your tenancy in other ways, you should automatically
become a secure tenant again after 12 months.

Comments received/ SHP
response

Agenda Item 9

7

New Term or Condition

Firearms, Fire Prevention and Health and Safety

Firearms, Fire Prevention and Health and
Safety

4.19 You must not store any firearms in your home.
Firearms include air rifles, shotguns, and replica guns.

4.19 You, and anyone living with you or visiting
your home, must not store any firearms in your
home. Firearms include air rifles, shotguns, and
replica guns.

Comments received/ SHP
response

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

Page 134

8

New Term or Condition

4.20 You must not store ammunition, oxyacetylene and
welding equipment in your home, garden or in any
communal areas to your property.

4.20 You and anyone living with you or visiting your
home, must not store ammunition, oxyacetylene
and welding equipment in your home, garden or in
any communal areas to your property.

4.27 If you, and anyone living with you request someone
to carry out work in your home, you must ensure that
any works undertaken by that person comply with the
appropriate Health and Safety legal requirements.

4.27 If you and anyone living with you request
someone to carry out work in your home, you
must ensure that the person who carries out the
work is suitably qualified.

4.28 You and anyone living with you or visiting your
home must not store or accumulate rubbish, refuse or
other waste inside your home, on your balcony, in shared
communal areas or in your garden so as to cause a fire
hazard, health hazard or nuisance or prevent anyone from
moving freely within these areas.

4.28 You and anyone living with you or visiting your
home must not store or accumulate rubbish, refuse
or other waste inside your home, on your balcony,
in shared communal areas or in your garden so as
to cause a fire hazard, health hazard or nuisance or
prevent anyone from moving freely within these
areas. You must dispose of all rubbish and refuse
securely, safely and hygienically. You must not let
waste or other materials build up around your
home as this may cause a fire or attract vermin.

Currently not included in existing conditions

9

-Independent alterations or fittings needs
more thought than given here
-Tenants should maintain the right to have
repairs taken care of as needed by whoever
they choose where SHP fails to provide a
repair service
-Add dispose of rubbish in the correct
containers and not contaminate recycling.
-Unless the problems are caused by other
persons or influences or outside agencies

-Where there is poor insulation or lack of
drying facilities SHP should expect that homes
will build up condensation
Agenda Item 9

4.29 You must keep your home in reasonable
condition and take steps to prevent condensation
and infestation. You are responsible for eradicating
mice or other vermin at your property, including
any garden.

Comments received/ SHP
response

Page 135

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Comments received/ SHP
response

Currently not included in existing conditions

4.30 If you break conditions 4.28 to 4.29 it will be
treated as a breach of your tenancy conditions and
we may take action (including legal action) to put
things right. You may be charged the cost of any
action we have to take.

-Only if proven that they are at fault
SHP response
SHP would require any repairs to be of a
certain standard to ensure they do not
cause a hazard or risk.

SHP are looking at supporting residents
with condensation issues due to lifestyle
choices.

Page 136

Issues relating to recycling bins would
not be appropriate to include in the
tenancy conditions but can be addressed
separately.

10

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Pets

Pets

4.29 …
Permission will not be given for:….
• Dogs specified under the Dangerous Dogs Act 1991.
…..

4.32
Permission will not be given for:
• Dogs specified under the Dangerous Dogs Act
1991 and any legislation that succeeds it.

If you want to keep a dog, you will normally need to have
a private garden, and you will be requested to provide a
photograph along with any details of trace recording
methods, i.e. chipping.
………

If you want to keep a dog, you will be required to
provide a photograph. Dogs must be chipped and
details of the chipping supplied.

Item not currently included in the list

You must provide reasonable care for your pet,
and not allow it to:
• Cause noise that disturbs neighbours.

Comments received/ SHP
response

-Doesn’t think dogs should be allowed in flats
-Garden should be maintained
-Private garden seem to have been taken out
of the new conditions, do not agree.
-Requesting a photo of a dog is an
unnecessary breach of privacy
-Should add clause on fouling
-Should add “of any kind”
-Should be allowed to feed the birds

You must not:

You must not:

• Run a business from your home. This includes breeding
animals for sale or boarding kennels.

• Run a business from your home. This includes
breeding animals or running boarding kennels.

Currently no provision

Permission will be withdrawn for an animal that
attacks, injures or becomes a threat to any person
or other animals.

-Disagree if all business as some maybe
appropriate e.g. looking after small mammals
-People with disabilities should be able to run
a business from their home if their
impairments mean that they are unable to
travel for regular work
Agenda Item 9

SHP response (see next page)

11

Page 137

Existing Term or Condition

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

The comment about dogs not be
allowed in flats is noted however the
issue is more around responsible pet
ownership as there are a number of
responsible owners in flats and equally
some irresponsible owners who live in
houses with private gardens.

Agenda Item 9

Comments received/ SHP
response

Private gardens were not mentioned in
the previous conditions.

12

Page 138

It would be inappropriate for all business
opportunities to be included if there was
no nuisance caused to neighbours
(clause 4.6, subject to permission). This
clause is specifically for animals.

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Alterations (Secure Tenants only)

Alterations (Secure Tenants only)

4.33 You may be entitled to compensation for the
improvements when you leave your property.

4.36 You may be entitled to compensation for
certain improvements you have made to your
home when you leave the property.

Comments received/ SHP
response

-Not clarified; wording change to “certain
improvements” means SHP are at liberty to
decide on a case by case basis what
improvements they are willing to pay for. This
leads to discrimination and issues of the
ethics of taste and value
-All improvements carried out by tenant
should be reimbursed when the tenant moves
out

The wording needs to stay as it is as this
is a statutory right. However, a further
explanation can be set out in the
Tenant’s Handbook if needed.

Page 139

SHP response

Agenda Item 9

13

Aerials and satellite dishes

Aerials and satellite dishes

4.35 You must get our written permission if you want to
put up aerials or satellite dishes. You must also
get any other approval you need before you start the
work. If you do not get our permission, do the
work badly, or do not keep to our conditions, you must
put the property back to how it was before.
If you do not do this, we may do the work, and you will
have to pay us additional charges to cover the
costs of putting the property right.

4.38 You must get our written permission if you
want to put up an aerial or satellite dish. You must
also get any other approval you need before you
start the work. If you do not get our permission,
do the work badly, or do not keep to our
conditions, you must put the property back to how
it was before. If you do not do this, we may do the
work, and you will have to pay us additional
charges to cover the costs of putting the property
right. Only in exceptional circumstances will
permission be granted for an aerial or satellite dish
where there is access to a communal aerial system.

14

Comments received/ SHP
response

-Most foreign programmes are available on
Freeview etc, there is little need, if any, at all
for many of the dishes set up on estates.
-What are exceptional circumstances, service
to rectify communal systems must be
improved
SHP response
This will be considered on a case by case
basis.

Page 140

New Term or Condition

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Parking

Parking

The following clause applies to you, and other people
living with or visiting you, if you have a parking space
within the boundaries of your home:

The following parking clauses applies to you and
other people living with or visiting you:

4.36 You can park a vehicle, caravan, trailer, or boat in any
parking space within the boundary your home. It must be
safe, of reasonable size and weight for the parking space,
and it must not cause nuisance or inconvenience to your
neighbours. You must not use your parking space in a
way that breaks the law, or breaks any restrictions on
how you can use your land.

4.39 You can park a vehicle in any parking space
that you rent with your home or that falls within
the boundary of your home. The vehicle must be
safe, roadworthy, be of reasonable size and weight
for the parking space and must not cause nuisance
or inconvenience to your neighbours. You must not
use your parking space in a way that breaks the law,
or breaks any restrictions on how you can use your
land.

• are abandoned, or
• are dangerous, or
• are unroadworthy, or

• are abandoned, or
• are dangerous, or

15

-An objection has been received to the
inclusion of motor homes as there are taxed
and insured whereas the other examples are
not.
-A further objection has been received that
the new condition breaches the tenant’s
Human Rights and Right to Family Life by
removing the opportunity to park their
“recreational vehicle” and believes the
wording of the proposal is discriminatory
against social housing tenants as opposed to
owner occupiers.
-Must add clear reference to “classic vehicles”
-Do not agree that motor homes are included.

Agenda Item 9

• should display a current certificate of taxation, and do
not do so, or

4.46 If you, or anyone living with or visiting you,
leave a vehicle, part of a vehicle or other object
anywhere on our land in breach of these parking
conditions, we may place a Notice on it giving 14
days notice that we will remove or destroy it. This
condition also applies to vehicles, parts of vehicles
or other objects which we think:-

-Should be allowed to park anywhere

Page 141

4.44 If you, or anyone living with or visiting you, leave a
vehicle, part of a vehicle or other object anywhere on our
land in breach of these parking conditions, we may place a
Notice on it giving 14 days notice that we will remove or
destroy it. This condition also applies to vehicles, parts of
vehicles or other objects which we think:-

4.42 You must not put caravans, motor homes,
trailers, or boats in parking spaces, in a garden, or
other estate areas or estate roads; you must not
put parts from caravans, motor homes, trailers,
boats or vehicles in parking spaces or other estate
areas

Comments received/ SHP
response

New Term or Condition

Comments received/ SHP
response

• should have a current certificate of roadworthiness
(MOT) from the Department of Transport, and do not
have one.

• are unroadworthy, or

-Works vehicles should not be allowed

•should have a current certificate of roadworthiness
(MOT) and do not have one.
SHP response
• should be taxed and are not.
There needs to be restrictions to
• The 14 days’ notice period may be dispensed with
where we think that the vehicle presents a danger.

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

prevent obstructions, allow access and
to show consideration towards others.
Following discussions with the Council it
was agreed that the reference to motor
homes in 4.42 would be removed.

Page 142

16

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

No current provision

Storing mopeds and scooters
-Very inadequate section. There is a
requirement for proper and secure parking
including “charging stations” for these
vehicles
-Should be allowed to be parked on parking
spaces, charged and locked or stored in
storage shed
SHP response
Unfortunately facilities will not always be
available for charging vehicles.
The agreement wouldn’t prevent
parking spaces being used.

Page 143

4.48 You must not keep mopeds, motor scooters
or motorbikes inside your home or in communal
areas inside the building your home is in (for
example, entrance halls, stairs or landings). Batterypowered scooters for use by disabled people may
be permitted in certain circumstances but you
would need to get our written permission first and
comply with any conditions attaching to that
permission. Permission will not usually be given
where it could create a health and safety or fire
risk. If we provide parking areas for batterypowered scooters, you must park any batterypowered scooter within those parking areas.

Comments received/ SHP
response

Following discussions with the Council it
was agreed to review the necessity for
the inclusion of the word “usually” in the
sentence “Permission will not usually be
given where it could create a health and
safety or fire risk”.

17

Agenda Item 9

This is included because, whilst we
cannot compromise health and safety or
fire safety and so would not grant
permission where such risks apply, we
cannot adopt a policy which allows for
no variation in exceptional
circumstance.

New Term or Condition

Succession Rights

Succession Rights

5.5 If you die, your spouse or members of your family
may have rights to succeed to a tenancy. We will use
the Housing Act 1985 (as amended), the Housing Act
1996, any legislation which replaces it, and surrounding
case law, in deciding whether you have the right to
succeed.

5.5 If you have a joint tenancy, should one of you
die the other becomes the sole tenant and is
regarded as someone who has had a tenancy
passed on to them. This ‘uses up’ the right of
succession.

We will treat a Registered Civil Partnership the same as a
Civil Marriage, and we will treat persons living together as
if in a Civil Partnership the same as persons living together
as husband and wife.

A person who takes over the tenancy or receives
a new tenancy under this Condition is called a
“successor”.

18

-Suggest revised wording from “have not
previously been a successor” to “did not
succeed to the tenancy”
-Suggest revised wording from “deciding” to
“determining”
SHP response
Wording to be amended as suggested.

Page 144

5.6 Where the tenancy is in your sole name, if
you die, your spouse/civil partner or members of
your family may have rights to succeed to a
tenancy as long as you have not previously been a
successor. We will use the Housing Act 1985 (as
amended), the Housing Act 1996, the Localism
Act 2011 and any legislation which replaces it, and
surrounding case law and London Borough of
Sutton policy, in deciding whether you have the
right to succeed. We will treat a Registered Civil
Partnership the same as a Civil Marriage, and we
will treat persons living together as if in a Civil
Partnership the same as persons living together as
husband and wife.

Comments received/ SHP
response

Agenda Item 9

Existing Term or Condition

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Comments received/ SHP
response

5.6 We may request that anyone who succeeds to this
tenancy moves to another property. We will only do
this if your home is larger than we think they need.
But they will not have to move if they are your
spouse, registered Civil Partner, over 60, or are over
50 and have lived with you at the current property for
at least 40 years.

5.7 We may require that anyone who succeeds to
this tenancy moves to another property, and we
will offer the successor alternative
accommodation suitable to their needs. We will
only do this if your home is larger than we think
they need or has been provided or adapted for an
elderly or disabled person and the successor is
not elderly or disabled. They will not have to
move if they are your spouse or partner.

-In cases where a child/spouse is unable to be
a successor to a property after the death of a
parent/guardian/partner, help should be given
to cover costs of moving to another property
if the move has been at the request of SHP

If we require you to move, we will serve you with a
notice not less than 6 months and not more than
12 months after the death of the tenant. If you do not
move, we may apply to a court for possession of the
property.

This is a matter of policy and not for the
tenancy agreement.

Page 145

5.8 If we require a successor to move, we will
serve notice not less than 6 months and not more
than 12 months after the death of the tenant. If the
successor does not move, we may apply to a court
for possession of the property.

SHP response

Agenda Item 9

19

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition
Your Right to Buy Your Home (Secure
Tenants Only)

Currently not included in the existing conditions.

5.10 As long as you qualify under the legislation,
you may have the Right to Buy your home under
the Housing Act 1985.
5.11 You will not be able to exercise the right to
buy your home if you live in sheltered housing, or
other housing excluded from this legislation.

-No timescale specified, is there a reason for
this?

Agenda Item 9

Comments received/ SHP
response

-All secure tenants should be allowed to buy
their homes 1 year after moving in or at a
discount if they have lived there 10-20 years
SHP response

20

Page 146

This is prescribed by statute. A detailed
explanation could be included in the
Tenant’s Handbook or a fact sheet.

Existing Term or Condition

New Term or Condition

Changing this agreement

Changing this agreement

6.2 We can also change any other part of this
agreement by following this procedure. If we are
planning to do this, we will consult you and consider
all the comments we receive.

6.2 Except for changes in rent, or any other
charges, the terms of this agreement can only be
changed if we give you written notice that we
intend to alter the agreement. If we give you
notice that we intend to alter the agreement, we
will give you 28 days to tell us your views on the
proposed changes. After considering your views,
we will issue you with a Notice of Variation,
which sets out the changes. The revised
agreement will come into effect in a further 28
days. This tenancy may also be amended where
you and we agree in writing.

Comments received/ SHP
response
-Considering views must also involve
undertaking any need for required action in
regard to those views. Further consultation
must be taken up as necessary where it is
clear that someone makes a valid argument
against proposals
This section is in contradiction to the spirit of
LBS and TPAS. The resident experience on
the term “we will consider your views” is
tainted. This area needs to be completely
restructured in line with the Councillor’s
stand on these matters.

The statutory consultation process will
be followed.

Page 147

SHP response

Agenda Item 9

21

A number of comments have been received which don’t relate to a specific tenancy condition:

Agenda Item 9

Additional comments received

-Thank you for your letter explaining your proposed changes, however I don’t wish for my tenancy to be changed for reason of many confusions within your
Council, however I see no reason for you to do this.
- The law was changed to what is stated (succession) however there are a number of moral issues which arise from this central Government decision which I
intend to take up with whoever is the next Housing Minister.
-I would be opposed to the finding in the report sent to me 16 April, it contradicts The Mental Health Act 2005

-This is a very one sided document that underlines additions but DOES NOT highlight extractions. The numbering in both column A and B is inconsistent. The
English and terminology is very poor and unclear. This document needs to be perused and amended by a registered member within the legal profession. Case law
numbers and references should be quoted for any legal responsibility. Where can the full legal responsibilities of the landlord be found to be documented?? Noise
abatement and anti-social behaviour of residents or visitors, must follow a formal procedure. In conclusion, I am very shocked by the low level of professionalism
that has led to this document being produced, albeit 'in consultation'.
-Suggested new wording 3.25 If your home has gas appliances that we need to service, inspect or repair, you must let us or our contractors into your home to
allow us to do this. Our term gas maintenance contractor will arrange a reasonable time with you. If you have not let them into your home after two written
notices, we can via a court order force entry to your home to allow them to carry out the work.
-“With certain elements being at odds with the superior common-law, the tenancy conditions, both existing and proposed by SHP, confound the principles
essential to fostering a fair and equal community. The regime of limitation, restrictions and outright-bans listed, clearly create “a stigmatized underclass”,
whereby, according to the nature of the rules imposed, SHP assumes its tenants cannot be trusted with, or, are undeserving of, having the same basic rights and
freedoms as their home-owning counter parts, living just next door. In effect, the tenancy terms and conditions imposed by SHP confiscate certain rights and
freedoms from its tenants which are then sold back to the tenant along with a mortgage granted under the right to buy scheme “how absurdly improper is that”
In short, the tenancy terms and conditions listed by SHP unreasonably discriminate against those who cannot afford to buy their own home, thereby creating a
system of blatant double-standards, founded purely upon a person’s-financial-status and their purchasing power. PS There is little more anti-social than smelly, air
polluting and potentially dangerous back garden bonfires. I note that Sutton Council and SHP do-not have any policy on the issue why?
20

Page 148

-There should be a water tap provided outside to provide water to wash cars and water plants.

Page 149

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Housing, Economy & Business
Committee

Report title:

Sutton Housing Partnership Delivery Plan 2015/16

Report from:

Task and Finish Group

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Jayne McCoy

Author(s)/Contact

Trevor Hart, Housing Strategy and Commissioning Manager

Number(s):

(020 8770 5844)

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:



An Open Council



A Green Council



A Fair Council



A Smart Council

Date: 23 June 2015

Open
Date:

10 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

Annually, through the Housing Economy and Business (HEB) Committee, the Council approves
Sutton Housing Partnership’s (SHP’s) Delivery Plan. This is produced in accordance with the
provisions of the management agreement between the Council and SHP.

1.2

For the first time, in 2013, SHP produced a plan providing a strategic direction for the next three
years - Improving Housing Together: The SHP Plan 2013-16. Contained within it are the
ALMO’s priorities and strategic objectives for the medium term. The SHP Plan is the basis for
the suite of annual plans, which include specific performance targets, budgets and service
improvement proposals for the coming year. Collectively these constitute the annual Delivery
Plan.

1.3

In order to provide effective input and scrutiny before the Delivery Plan for 2015/16 was
finalised, a Task and Finish Group of HEB Committee members was established and met twice,
in April and in May 2015. The Task and Finish Group was authorised to agree the final version
of the plan for formal approval of the HEB Committee.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

The Task and Finish Group recommends that, subject to any changes that the Committee would
wish to see made or minor amendments or corrections that officers consider necessary, the
Sutton Housing Partnership Delivery Plan for 2015/16 be approved.

3.

Background

3.1

Under the management agreement between the Council and Sutton Housing Partnership
(SHP), the ALMO is required to produce “Delivery Plans” on an annual basis, focusing on
service delivery and performance. For the first time, in 2013 SHP produced a plan providing a
strategic direction for the next three years - Improving Housing Together: The SHP Plan 2013-

Agenda Item 10

Page 150

16. Contained within it are the ALMO’s priorities and strategic objectives for the medium term.
A copy of the Plan can be found at:
http://www.suttonhousingpartnership.org.uk/Documents/AboutUs/OurPlansandPerformance/Strategies/SHPPlan-2013-16-with-Supporting-Plans-2013-1,

3.2

In order to provide effective input and scrutiny before the Delivery Plan for 2015/16 was
finalised, a Task and Finish Group of HEB Committee members was established and met twice,
in April and in May 2015, and the minutes of those meetings are respectively contained in
Appendices A (i) and A (ii). The Task and Finish Group was authorised to agree the final
version of the plan for formal approval of the HEB Committee.

3.3

Set out at Appendix B is SHP’s proposed Delivery Plan for 2015/16. It begins, in section1, with
a brief update of the SHP Plan 2013-16, followed by the inclusion of the SHP risk register. The
remainder of the document is made up of a suite of annual plans for 2015/16 - these
comprising: a set of Financial Plans, an Improvement Plan and a Performance Plan. The key
features of the suite of plans are discussed briefly in section 4 following which are set out some
proposals in relation to plans for future years.

4.

Issues
Delivery Plan 2015/16

4.1

The Financial Plans for 2015/16 include the HRA budget, approved by Strategy and Resources
Committee in February, with expenditure split across a range of areas. These include SHP
costs, debt financing and revenue contributions to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital
programme. Secondly there is a breakdown of how SHP’s management fee of £16.1m will be
spent. Thirdly is the proposed £24.5m capital programme for 2015/16, which was also
approved by the Strategy and Resources Committee in February.

4.2

The Improvement Plan sets out a number of actions to be taken to enhance service delivery
under the headings of: customer care, quality, value for money, reputation and planning. In
each case there is an identified lead manager, timescales and outcomes to be achieved. Key
actions include exploring the setting up of a tenant incentive reward scheme and improved
support for vulnerable tenants affected by the welfare reform measures.

4.3

The Performance Plan sets out targets in relation to a wide range of performance indicators those reflecting SHP’s key priorities (Priority Indicators) along with a suite of ‘Strategic
Indicators’ which are reported quarterly to the ALMO Board via a ‘balanced scorecard’.
Confirmed or revised targets for the Priority Indicators are provided for 2015/16 while for the
Strategic Indicators indicative targets are also set for 2016/17 and 2017/18.

4.4

For the Strategic Indicators a similar approach to the target setting adopted for 2014/15 has
been continued. For each performance indicator a target for 2015/16 has been set, while for the
following two years the indicative target will be to either maintain the Minimum Performance
Standard (described in the key on p25) or to improve upon it.
Proposals for 2016/17 onwards

4.5

In addition to scrutinising the proposed Delivery Plan for 2015/16, the Task and Finish Group
also gave some consideration to what arrangements might be put in place for future years,
given that the SHP Plan 2013/16 will need to be redrafted during 2015/16. Arising from the
discussion with SHP colleagues it was agreed that, firstly, the new Plan should be for a period
of five years, this to align it to the term of the management agreement between the parties,
which currently runs to 2021.

Page 151

Agenda Item 10

4.6

It was also agreed that SHP would produce a Resident Consultation Plan detailing how it will
consult with tenants and leaseholders to shape the priorities within the new Plan. It was
proposed that this be undertaken during June, in consultation with the members of the Task and
Finish Group. A verbal update on progress will be provided at the meeting.

4.7

In terms of the structure of the new Plan, it was agreed that there needed to be a clear
distinction between performance indicators (PIs) that measure outcomes via resident
satisfaction, indicators that measure statutory requirements (e.g. gas servicing) and other
measures of performance. It was also felt that once set, targets should not be downwardsadjusted when circumstances arose that made achieving them more difficult.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

As reflected in the minutes of the meetings, the Task and Finish Group considered a number of
options in relation to various aspects of the SHP Delivery Plan including the approach to be
taken to future years’ plans. Discussions covered a number of the performance indicators and
the targets that should be set for them.

5.2

A particular focus was placed in income collection in light of the uncertainties created by the
introduction of Universal Credit. Whilst there was a case made for temporarily suspending
targets until the situation had settled, on reflection it was felt that targets should remain.

5.2

In considering options for future years’ plans, as mentioned, above, it was felt that the new
medium term SHP Plan should cover a five year period rather than just three years. It was also
agreed that the new Plan’s priorities should be informed through a more robust approach to
resident involvement at an early stage.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

Sutton Housing Partnership will meet the costs of the Delivery Plan through the management
fee of £16.1m and the charges made against the capital programme of £563k. A breakdown of
how this will be spent is included in the 2015/16 financial plans which forms part of the delivery
plan attached at Appendix B.
Legal

6.2

This is a delivery plan and as such is a high level report with no immediate specific legal issues
arising. However detailed legal advice will need to be sort when delivering the Plan in respect
of various actions and activities identified in the report at the appropriate juncture.
Integrated Impact Assessment

6.3

An Integrated Impact Assessment is set out at Appendix C.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A (i)

Title
Minutes of the Task and Finish Group meeting held on 17 April
2015

A (ii)

Minutes of the Task and Finish Group meeting held on 18 May
2015

Agenda Item 10

Page 152

B

Improving Housing Together: The SHP Plan 2013-16 Update
and Supporting Plans 2015-16

C

Integrated Impact Assessment

Background Documents
None
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 10 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Claire Williams

Page 153

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A (i)

SHP Delivery Plan – Housing, Economy and Business Committee Task & Finish
Group
Meeting 17th April 9.30 – 11.30
Attendees Councillors: McCoy (Chair), Crosby, Emmerson, Garratt, Melican
Officers: Andrew Taylor, Brendan Crossan (SHP), Simon Latham, Neil Pryor
(LBS)
1. Purpose of the Task & Finish Group
Councillor McCoy clarified the purpose of the Task & Finish Group as being to help
SHP shape and deliver initially the 2015/16 Delivery Plan to go to the HEB
Committee meeting in June and then to help shape the new Delivery Plan for
2016/17 onwards ensuring that residents’ views and priorities are the key drivers
going forward.
2. Terms of reference
The draft terms of reference were agreed by all attendees.
3. Delivery Plan 2013 – 16
Brendan Crossan gave an outline of the background and context of the Delivery
Plan. In the management agreement (or contract) between LBS and SHP, SHP is
due to produce a delivery plan on an annual basis and this was the case up to
2013. In 2013 it was agreed with LBS that SHP would produce a 3 year plan with
annual updates. This plan ends in 2015/16 and so a new plan will be needed for
2016/17 onwards.
When producing the 2013/14 plan SHP carried out various consultation exercises
with residents to enable them to gauge what tenants saw as the key priorities. SHP
also, where possible, linked their plan to the various relevant LBS strategies to
show how they could contribute to achieving the goals in these.
On an annual basis the plan is reviewed and in consultation with LBS Officers, and
where applicable performance indicators have been amended or deleted and
targets updated. The plan is then submitted to the relevant Council Committee (now
the Housing, Economy and Business Committee) for members’ comments and
agreement. Internally within SHP the risks highlighted in the report are monitored on
a quarterly basis.
4. Proposals for development of SHP’s new Delivery Plan 2016 /17 onwards
It was agreed that the next SHP Delivery Plan should be for five years rather than
three as this would align it with the contract it has to manage and maintain the
housing stock for LBS. This contract runs until 2021 but there is a review of the
terms of the agreement between the Council and SHP due to take place in 2015/16.
Also it was agreed that all performance indicators, including priority indicators would
be reviewed and targets updated where applicable on an annual basis.
1

Agenda Item 10

Page 154

SHP will produce a Resident Consultation Plan detailing how it intends to consult
with residents on the shape and priorities of the new Delivery Plan by June. This will
include, but not be restricted to, surveys, postal and online communication,
meetings with residents groups, events (such as the St Helier Festival), focus
groups, and through the Resident Scrutiny Group and the SFTRA. It must, as much
as possible, ensure that those involved in the consultation reflect the makeup of the
residents as a whole.
Councillors want to see what questions will be asked of residents before
consultation begins but believe a key question should be ‘What do you want from
your housing service?’ SHP confirmed once the initial consultation is complete it
will put together the priorities and take this back to the residents to ensure that it
reflects the feedback provided by residents.
Members thought that TPAS (Tenant Participation Advisory Service) should be
involved and SHP should refer to the CIH Estate Management Standards. Any
focus groups should be facilitated by an independent 3rd party to ensure neutrality.
Cllr Crossby cited an example of how customer access priorities should be
focussed upon the outcome of a telephone call, not whether the phone was
answered within a specified timescale. There was also discussion about how
residents who had taken the step of complaining often provide information about
how services could be improved and so any learning from complaints should be
included in the plan.
Andrew Taylor pointed out that SHP are continually trying to improve and so some
suggestions may already be in the process of being implemented and therefore
would not become part of a future delivery plan.
All service areas are currently being benchmarked for VFM but the new Delivery
Plan should reflect the fact that a review of major works investment priorities could
mean capital resources are carried over from one year to the next to ensure best
value. VFM could mean helping groups to become self-sustaining through support
to start and then enabling them to take ownership in the future.
Service development: and high quality housing management should address what
should/could be provided by SHP beyond ‘bricks & mortar’.
Resident priorities need to be compared with Council priorities and SHP’s Delivery
Plan should reflect both. There needs to be clarification as to why using resources
to support residents provides a particular benefit (for example, reducing isolation or
loneliness, or supporting vulnerable people, both or which are wider Council
priorities but have also been seen as priorities for investment in services by
residents when consulted.)
Members stressed that it is very important that Housing Economy and Business
Committee members are involved early in this process of shaping priorities
reflecting the outcome of consultation with residents. Feedback to the SHP Board
could be provided in a joint meeting including Councillors.
5. The proposed structure of the Delivery Plan and its constituent elements
The structure of the Delivery Plan going forward should distinguish between priority
indicators, which will measure the outcome for the resident (often reflecting the level
of satisfaction), those that are just measures of performance, those that reflect
statutory or regulatory requirements (for example, gas servicing) where a required
2

Page 155

Agenda Item 10

standard has to be maintained, and those where there is a need to set targets for
improvement.
Members were clear that when three-year targets had been set these should not be
adjusted downwards to reflect difficulties or challenges in delivery. SHP should
rather provide explanation about why it was proving difficult or not possible to
achieve the target in commentary to the Council. There was discussion about the
need to ensure staff responsible for service delivery remained motivated and
recognition that for management purposes different performance measures and
targets might be applied. It was agreed that improvement should be focussed upon
the key areas where this was most evidently needed, and there was recognition that
for some indicators, if high performance had already been achieved, it might be
more appropriate to maintain performance at this level rather than always striving to
achieve improvement, as the cost of further improvement might pull resources from
higher priority areas of the service.
6. Follow up actions
SHP to circulate revised draft of the 2015/16 Delivery Plan by Monday 11th May
The focus of this meeting will be reviewing the Delivery Plan for 2015/6 and in
particular the Performance Plan.
7. Date of next meeting
The next meeting was set for Tuesday 19th May 9.30-11.30

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 157

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A (ii)

SHP Delivery Plan – Housing, Economy and Business Committee,
Task & Finish Group
Meeting held on 19th May at 9.30 – 11.30am, Civic Offices
Attendees:
Councillors: Jayne McCoy (Chair)
Jean Crossby,
Nick Emmerson
David Hicks
Neil Garratt
Officers:

Brendan Crossan (SHP)
Simon Latham (LBS)
Neil Pryor (LBS)
Roz Morrison (Notes) (LBS)

Apologies:

Councillor Melican
Andrew Taylor (SHP)
Trevor Hart (LBS)

1. Apologies


Councillor McCoy noted the above apologies

2. Minutes of meeting held on 17 April 2015


Correction to spelling of Councillor Crossby’s name.



Correction to last paragraph on Page 2 – Service development: delete ‘and’
high quality housing management etc.



Otherwise minutes were approved.

3. Review of draft SHP Delivery Plan 2015/16
BC gave a quick update since last meeting took place as follows:


The Plan is in four parts, with the original 3-year plan updated.



Financial Plan – not changed since the initial draft. This reflects the HRA
budget and Capital Plan.



Improvement Plan – has changed the most. Key actions are now linked to
priority areas of the Plan.



Risk Register – Task and Finish Group to discuss whether this should be
included as an appendix (see below).



Performance Plan – amended as per initial meeting and still covers three years
for targets – 2015/16 have changed back to the original three year target for
each indicator but the two years will just show the ‘direction of travel’ going
forward. These will be reviewed following the new five year plan. One area
1

Agenda Item 10

Page 158

which is in still under active discussion (see below) relates to income collection
targets and the impact of Universal Credit.
The Chair opened up SHP Delivery Plan 2013-16 for discussion. The Chair noted
that there are no significant changes to the current Plan but there will be more
changes going forward and targets will be reviewed yearly. The following
points/issues were raised:


Page 20 – customer access, outcome of telephone calls – agreed it is more
important that telephone calls are dealt with accurately by directing to the
correct person rather than just being quick at picking up the calls. Also
customers need to be called back within a certain timescale if they are required
to do so.



JC asked for representation by SHP at the Resident Association (RA) meetings
as issues are being raised by residents but it is felt that they are not being
addressed. JC noted that SHP staff are being notified of these meeting dates
with plenty of warning. SHP Neighbourhood Managers (NMs) also receive
copies of RA minutes but it was felt that they do not have the ability or power to
solve issues that they could be empowered to solve. BC responded by noting
that NMs would not be expected to resolve any issues relating to repairs, but
the Chair felt that the NMs should be in a position to respond more positively
and be able to monitor outstanding issues going forward.



Councillor and SHP walkabouts: these are still taking place but issues are not
being followed-up within expected timescales. NG suggested having an issues
tracker as currently being used by Local Committees.



Resident surveys each quarter: NM’s receive an independent report from the
RA’s following the walkabouts – e.g. communal lighting problems which require
feedback from SHP. There is a problem with receiving positive feedback from
SHP which is causing residents to get disappointed, leave the RAs and not
return. This is making it difficult for residents to be motivated to stay involved
and therefore try to make a difference.



Anti-Social behaviour at Shanklin Village: problems relating to 1-bed flats took a
long time to get actioned. The NM has the responsibility for brokering the
actions necessary re anti-social behaviour.



SHP needs to address satisfaction levels as they are not as high as required.



Regarding the Improvement Plan, the targets on p17 are the original 2015/16
ones. Satisfaction outcomes and views of residents reflect the service in
question – ‘reputation’ is an indirect measure. Broadly the targets are not being
changed.



BC confirmed that once consultation with residents has taken place, then
residents’ priorities will shape the PIs, but we need to check how these are
measured. The information will then go to a joint meeting of the HEB
Committee members and the SHP Board for approval.

A discussion then took place specifically regarding income collection in relation to
Universal Credit:


It was agreed that it is better to create ‘soft’ targets for income collection than
not having any targets at all. The Chair noted that the aim is to collect as much
rent as possible but also give an explanation, with evidence as to why the target
2

Page 159

Agenda Item 10

may not be fully met. It was agreed that the targets set for 2015/16 should be
the same as last year.


The Group was advised that the average council rent is now £107 per week.
NG asked that data on tenants in arrears who are in receipt of Universal Credit
be presented separately from other arrears data.



It was noted that there will always a proportion of tenants in arrears but it would
be useful to see if the overall level of arrears is rising. SL proposed that for
tenants in receipt of Universal Credit who are in arrears, it should be possible to
identify those who had arrears already, as opposed to those who had fallen into
arrears following their transfer to Universal Credit. BC advised that it should
be possible to do this but that it would not be straightforward.



So far 19 claimants are in receipt of Universal Credit. Concerns arise from the
fact that Universal Credit is paid monthly in arrears. SHP will need to clarify
which arrears are due to this factor. DH asked, since there is uncertainty
relating to time of implementation and how this is being rolled out, that any
information available should be shared.



Currently there are on average 10% of people in arrears in the Universal Credit
pilot areas. It was noted that SHP can ask the DWP for Universal Credit to be
paid straight into their rent account if the tenant is two months in arrears or if
there were pre-existing arrears.



There was a discussion about the point at which the level of arrears has an
impact on the revenue estimates in the budget. Additional bad debt provision
has been built into the estimates for 2015/16 (£200k approx compared to £150k
approx previously), and in the HRA Business Plan provision for future bad debt
increases incrementally until it stabilises at a fixed level.



There are three trial postcode areas in the borough - SM5 2, SM6 7 and SM6 8
- with two more (SM6 9 and CR0 4) commencing on 10th June, with the trials
applying to single people or couples without children whose circumstances have
changed recently. Some of these people accrue five weeks arrears while they
are waiting for their first Universal Credit payment.

The discussion moved on to how customer satisfaction was measured:


In relation to day to day repairs BC stated that post-works surveys cover two
levels of satisfaction: firstly whether you have had any repairs carried out - yes
or no. Secondly, the satisfaction of the repair/service, which is measured on a
five point scale. This measurement remains consistent, and so satisfaction can
be compared year on year. The annual surveys give a more global picture.


Tenant satisfaction targets on services carried out (e.g. gas servicing) relate
to steady state measures where a ceiling 96% has been agreed as the target
but this on the understanding that SHP will always aim to achieve the best
possible outcome



BC pointed out that the 85% satisfaction target in relation to major works
reflects the contractual position. SL added that as these contracts were let
by SHP on behalf of the Council (as opposed to the repairs and maintenance
contract which is between SHP and the contractor) he would need to check
the position.
3

Agenda Item 10


Page 160
A question was raised as to whether major works targets could or should
exceed 96%. The Chair commented that targets cannot keep on increasing
as they would become unrealistic, thus they become a ‘steady-state’
measure.

Two further points raised were:


After discussion, it was agreed that the risk register should be included within
the Delivery Plan, with as much information as possible as this would be
more meaningful.



With regard to Customer Care actions (p11) the Chair agreed with these
targets but wanted an explanation relating to the use of TPAS.

4. Report to HEB Committee on 23 June 2015


This report will be written by TH and will recommend/ ratify the work the Task
and Finish Group has carried out and will include the minutes of the meetings.



The Resident Consultation Plan is also to go to the HEB Committee in June, the
document to be circulated by 1st June for comments in time for Chair’s Briefing
on 8 June and then committee despatch on 11 June.

5. Further work for Task and Finish Group


The Chair will clarify membership of T&F Group at the June HEB Committee
meeting.



It was agreed that the T&F Group would also scrutinise the following:
-Rent setting report (before January 2016)
-Draft SHP Plan 2016/17 (before March 2016)
-HRA Business Plan (before March 2016)

4

Page 161

Agenda Item 10

Imp
prov
ving
g
Hou
usin
ng To
Toge
etherr:
The
e SH
HP P
Plan
201
13-1
16
UPD
DAT
TE
and
Supp
porting P
Plans
2015
5-16
OU
UR PURP
POSE
W o rki n g t og e th er to de li
l ve r
h om
me s and c o m muniti es wh er e
r e si
s dent s fee l happ y and s e cur e

Page 162

Agenda Item 10

Please feel free to get in touch with us if:
 You feel this document is not as clear and easy to read as you would expect; or
 You believe that we aren’t doing the things that this document says we will do; or
 You just want to talk to someone about this document
Whatever the reason, if you want to talk to us about this document you should contact:
Executive Director (Resources) on 0208 915 2200

Approved:

DRAFT v3

Effective from:

April 2015

Due for review:

January 2016

Page 163

Agenda Item 10

Contents

The SHP Plan 2013-16
Update

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

2

Strategic Risk Register .

.

.

.

.

.

4

.

.

.

.

.

. 12

SHP Management Fees .

.

.

.

.

. 13

.

.

. 14

Financial Plans 2015-16
HRA Budget

.

.

HRA Properties Capital Programme
Improvement Plan 2015-16
Key .

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

. 16

Improvement Actions .

.

.

.

.

. 17

Priority Performance Indicators .

.

.

. 22

Performance Plan 2015-16

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

. 24

Agenda Item 10

Page 164

Update
The SHP Plan
1.1 Our long term plans were set out in The SHP Plan 2013-16 which was approved in March 2013.
Going in to the final year of the Plan, we will continue to pursue the priorities that were identified
in the original Plan, namely:
 Customer Care

To continuously improve the level of customer service to meet all
customers’ expectations;

 Quality

To deliver all services to the highest recognised standards based on
external accreditation and benchmarking;

 Value For Money To operate a framework that maximises the value for money received
from the resources used;
 Reputation

To develop communication channels that most positively promote the
care, quality and value of our service delivery.

1.2 However, the pursuit of these priorities will be influenced by the events of 2014-15 and
particularly the way these have impacted on the key risks facing SHP. Once again, the key actions
we undertake in 2015-16 will be directed towards managing these risks.
1.3 The 2014-15 update recognised that the introduction of a new responsive repairs & voids
contractor in July 2013 has resulted in a deterioration in both service performance and customer
satisfaction and a significant focus of the 2014-15 Improvement Plan and Performance Plan was to
improve service delivery and contract performance.
1.4 Significant efforts were made to manage the contractor to improve the service to SHP and, more
importantly, to residents. Whilst there were some recognisable improvements in the first half of
2014-15, these were neither consistent nor sufficient to raise performance to the contractually
required levels. Ultimately, the contractor was unable to meet the terms of an Improvement
Notice served in November 2014 and the contract was terminated on 19th December 2014. SHP
made arrangements for the delivery of an emergency service over the holiday period and a new
responsive repairs interim contractor was operating fully by mid-January 2015. The interim
contractor also took over the voids service at the start of February 2015.
1.5 The initial signs are that the delivery of the repairs and voids service has improved substantially
and there have already been significant increases in customer satisfaction. However, the service
will remain a focus of activity for SHP in 2015-16 in two ways. Firstly, we will continue to robustly
manage the interim contractor to ensure that high performance levels are maintained. Secondly,
we will undertake a robust process to procure a long term service provider for 2016-17 onwards.

2

Page 165

Agenda Item 10

Update
1.6 Other events in 2014-15 which have impacted on our intentions for 2015-16 include:
 As anticipated there was no large scale introduction of Universal Credit in 2014-15 although it
was introduced on a small scale in a restricted part of the borough in December 2014.
Uncertainty over the full implementation timetable means that the impact on rent arrears
during 2015-16 is also uncertain;
 The regulatory arm of the Homes & Communities Agency has highlighted governance issues in
a number of registered providers relating to statutory compliance in areas such as gas servicing.
The SHP Board, led by the Audit & Risk Committee, has responded by giving greater scrutiny
to these areas of work which, in addition to gas servicing, cover fire safety, electrical testing,
asbestos surveying and legionella testing;
 Plans to expand the provision of the successful tenancy fraud service to other landlords were
curtailed when the Council took the decision to take the service back in-house in November
2014;
 SHP successfully introduced a new tenancy sustainment team to focus on the most vulnerable
tenants and we continued to support financially the Anti Social Behaviour Unit and the Families
Intervention Project to help to ensure that support is available where most needed.
1.7 In response to these and other issues we have reviewed the challenges facing us and updated our
strategic risk register to reflect them. The updated register is given as an appendix to this update.
We have also identified the main actions we need to undertake to manage these risks and this
includes those actions that form part of our Improvement Plan for 2015-16.
Supporting Plans
1.8 To support the implementation of the final year of the SHP Plan 2013-16, we provide a number of
annual plans, namely:
 Financial Plan 2015-16

detailing the HRA budget, SHP management fees and the
housing related investment programme managed by SHP;

 Improvement Plan 2015-16

detailing the key improvement actions that will be taken to
deliver our priorities;

 Performance Plan 2015-16

detailing the key performance targets across SHP for 2015-16.
An indication of the intended ‘direction of travel’ for 2016-18 is
also given but these will be reviewed when the new SHP Plan
2016-21 is developed.

These plans are provided as appendices to this update.

3

Agenda Item 10

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Welfare Reform
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

Under occupation charges and an overall benefits cap potentially
reduces the ability of around ten per cent of tenants to pay their
rent. If uncontrolled then HRA income falls and subsequently SHP
Management Fee

16

9

6

STRK-A02
Introduction of Universal Credit will result
in fewer tenants paying their rent and
arrears will rise

Direct benefit payments to claimants will eventually result in over
half of tenants having the opportunity to not pay at least some of
their rent. If implemented before UC system working properly then
payments maybe ‘chaotic’ and tenants’ ability to pay may be affected.
Further, increase in arrears may affect bad debt provision in HRA
and subsequently reduce SHP Management Fee

20

20

8

STRK-A03
Implementation of Universal Credit will
impact on the provision of a range of SHP
services

As more tenants move onto UC and arrears rise, there will be
increasing demands on other services such as tenancy sustainment
and neighbourhood management

12

12

6

4

Page 166

STRK-A01
Housing benefit changes in April 2013 will
make it more difficult for some tenants to
pay their rent and arrears will rise

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Policy & Service Delivery
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

12

12

6

STRK-B02
Government policies will impact on the
demand for LA housing and expenditure
from the HRA/MRR

Policies that reduce the availability of services from public sector
agencies (as a result of reduced funding) and the changing profile of
those demanding LA housing increase the demands on expenditure
from the HRA and SHP Management Fee to provide and/or fund
relevant services. There is increased spending pressure on SHP to
provide support to vulnerable residents and an increased risk of
tenancy failure

20

20

8

STRK-B03
General election in May 2015 will result in a
change in government and/or policies

Initially there may be an increase in workload from MP enquiries. In
the longer term, new potential policies will be developed in the run
up to the general election that require SHP to be able to respond
which may alter where resources are allocated

9

9

6

STRK-B04
Approach to resident involvement is not fit
for purpose

If the approach to resident involvement is not sufficiently inclusive
and robust, developments in service delivery may not be based on
resident requirements and views

9

9

6

5

Agenda Item 10

Policies such as the reinvigoration of ‘right to buy’, the new
approach to rent setting & convergence and leaseholder major
works charges capping reduce income in to the HRA Business Plan
and consequently negatively impact on the SHP Management Fee
and the LBS capital programmes SHP manages

Page 167

STRK-B01
Government policies will impact on the
supply of LA housing and income into the
HRA/MRR

Agenda Item 10

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Viability & Value
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

Prior to, or as part of, the next review of the management
agreement, LBS chooses alternative options that increase the risks
to the future of SHP

15

15

6

STRK-C02
We are not treated as a strategic delivery
partner by the Council

There is a need to ensure that SHP is treated as a key strategic
partner so that SHP can make an effective contribution to delivering
a wider range of services

8

20

4

STRK-C03
We do not have the capacity or capability
to develop the business

Existing resources within SHP may not be sufficient in quantity or
quality to effectively grow the business

12

12

6

STRK-C04
SHP is overly dependent on the
Management Fee as an income source

Over dependence on the Management Fee makes SHP vulnerable to
reductions in the Management Fee and so puts long term viability at
risk

16

16

6

STRK-C05
Asset management decisions are not
co-ordinated

Decisions concerning responsive repairs, planned maintenance &
major works must be co-ordinated or the allocation and use of
resources will be inefficient

16

16

6

6

Page 168

STRK-C01
Council chooses other options for delivery
of the housing management service

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Workforce
Original
Risk Score

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

STRK-D01
Staff are not appropriately skilled, rewarded
& recognised to ensure delivery of
priorities

Significant policy changes and the continuing difficult economic
climate have heightened our requirement to focus on staff skill,
reward and recognition in meeting our priorities. In addition, the
requirement to more actively manage the repairs service &
contractor and to move staff within the organisation to do it has put
more pressure on resources

12

16

4

STRK-D02
There is a lack of effective leadership to
deliver our priorities

As priorities have been updated and new risks identified it is
important that the leadership of the organisation remains effective.
Further, the current pressures on the organisation are putting
increasing pressure on the leadership team

12

20

4

STRK-D03
Low staff morale effects our ability to move
the organisation forward

Low morale may result in increased sickness absence, lower
performance and a greater turnover of staff and may make it more
difficult to motivate staff to deliver the organisation’s priorities

16

16

8

STRK-D04
We find it increasingly difficult to recruit
appropriate staff

The potential to offer market level salaries and/or a poor reputation
may make it more difficult to recruit appropriate staff, making
achievement of our priorities more difficult

16

16

8

7

Agenda Item 10

Description

Page 169

Strategic Risk

Agenda Item 10

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Reputation
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

There is a need to recognise that SHP’s reputation needs to be built
on our achievements in delivering care, quality and value

12

20

6

STRK-E02
There is a lack of effective communication
to embed our reputation with stakeholders

We will only be able to establish a good reputation by effectively
communicating with all stakeholders

16

12

6

STRK-E03
Failure to convince residents of the benefits
of business growth

If residents are not persuaded of the benefits to them of SHP
business growth they may believe it is being undertaken to the
detriment of their services and our reputation with them may suffer

12

12

6

STRK-E04
Failure to convince political ‘influencers’ of
the benefits of SHP

If those who are in a position to influence local politicians are not
selling the benefits of SHP then it puts the future of SHP at greater
risk. This may also include new local MPs after May 2015

20

20

8

STRK-E05
SHP has a poor reputation in the housing
sector

If SHP develops a poor reputation amongst organisations who are
potential partners in service delivery then this may limit our growth
opportunities

9

9

6

8

Page 170

STRK-E01
Failure to deliver priorities undermines
SHP’s reputation

Strategic Risk Register 2015-16
Contract Management
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

16

20

6

STRK-F02
Not effectively managing the major works
(LBS) programme

The decreasing size of the major works programme brings risks
around contractors attachment to the works and their motivation
to meet resident expectations

12

12

6

STRK-F03
A major contractor ceasing to operate in
the market

In recent years a number of contractors in social housing have
ceased to operate and more recently some contractors have begun
withdrawing from the market especially in responsive repairs. A
contractor who has adopted unsustainable pricing may be forced to
withdraw in the long term

12

16

6

STRK-F04
Lessons are not learned from previous
procurements

Whether previous procurements have been successful or
unsuccessful, lessons need to be learned and put in to practice to
increase the chances of future procurements being successful

15

15

5

9

Agenda Item 10

Achieving our priorities is dependent on effective contract
management especially, as is the case with the repairs & voids, if
they are delivering the largest SHP contract and they are new to
working with us

Page 171

STRK-F01
Not robustly/adequately managing
performance of the repairs & voids
contractors

Agenda Item 10

Health, Safety & Welfare
Strategic Risk

Original
Risk Score

Description

Current
Risk Score

Target
Risk Score

Risk arises in the areas of: (a) whether abuse is identified; (b)
whether action is taken to prevent abuse arising/continuing; (c)
whether the potential for staff to be abusers is minimised

12

12

8

STRK-G02
Not effectively ensuring the safety of staff &
contractors

Risk occurs when staff and contractors are in contact with residents
in areas such as lone working, service notice of or enforcing legal
processes and dealing with vulnerable residents with support needs

12

12

6

STRK-G05
Not complying with statutory requirements
relating to asset management

Risk arises where legal requirements for ‘servicing’ are in place and
SHP needs to ensure compliance in the areas of gas, electrical, fire,
asbestos, legionella and lifts

12

12

6

STRK-G06
Business continuity arrangements are not
sufficiently robust

Where existing business continuity arrangements have not been
reviewed or tested for some time a risk arises that they are not
sufficiently robust or fit for purpose

9

9

6

10

Page 172

STRK-G01
Not adequately managing the safeguarding
of residents

Page 173

Financial
Plans
2015-16

11

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10

Page 174

HRA Budget 2015-16
2014-15
Forecast
£ TOTAL

2015-16
Estimates
£ TOTAL

33,523,300

33,719,800

(466,500)

(437,500)

751,200

773,500

INCOME
1

Dwelling Rents

2

Dwelling Rents (Void Loss)

3

Non- Dwelling Rents

4

TOTAL RENTAL INCOME (13)

33,808,000

34,055,800

5
6
7
8
9

Tenant Charges for Services
Leaseholder Charges for Services
Tenants Water Account Income
Heating Account Income
Fees & Commissions

795,500
1,001,400
1,969,300
407,900
250,600

785,800
1,134,200
1,998,100
374,300
239,700

38,232,700

38,587,900

(14,959,400)
(2,305,100)
(1,963,500)
(459,500)
(280,800)
(7,296,800)
(6,419,300)
(1,662,000)

(15,288,600)
(2,081,900)
(1,998,100)
(386,900)
(312,100)
(7,395,900)
(5,958,700)
(8,485,000)

(35,346,400)

(41,907,200)

10

TOTAL INCOME (49)
EXPENDITURE

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

SHP Costs
LBS Costs
Tenants Water Account Costs
Heating Account Costs
Provision for Bad Debts
Depreciation
Debt Management & Interest
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO)

19

TOTAL EXPENDITURE (1118)

20

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE (10-19)

2,886,300

(3,319,300)

21
22
23

HRA Surplus as at 1 April
Interest on balances
Transfer (to)/from reserves

2,754,800
20,200
(3,514,100)

2,147,200
20,200
3,514,100

24

HRA Surplus as at 31 March (2123)

2,147,200

2,362,200

25
26

of which:
HRA Working Balance
Heating Account Surplus

1,701,700
445,500

1929,300
432,900

12

Page 175

Agenda Item 10

SHP Management Fees 2015-16

SHP Management Fee (HRA)
1

Management Fee paid from HRA

2

Vulnerable People Support Fees

3

TOTAL (1+2)

15,288,600
210,000
15,498,600

SHP Expenditure from Management Fee
4

Repairs & Maintenance of properties

(7,382,000)

5

Estate Services

(1,743,600)

6

Neighbourhood Services

(962,000)

7

Older People’s Services

(494,700)

8

Customer & Quality Services

(530,300)

9

Income Collection Services

(657,000)

10

Support Services

(2,696,500)

11

Other Costs

(1,032,500)

12

TOTAL (411)

15,498,600

SHP Management Fee (MRR)
13

Management Fee paid from MRR

563,400

14

TOTAL SHP MANAGEMENT FEES (3+13)

13

16,062,000

Agenda Item 10

Page 176

HRA Properties Capital Programme 2015-16
INCOME
Decent Homes Grant

£7,200,000

Brought forward from 2014-15

£1,444,400

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)

£7,395,900

Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO)

£8,485,000

TOTAL

£24,525,300

EXPENDITURE
Box bathroom replacements (St Helier)

£2,500,000

Kitchen & Bathroom/WC replacements

£2,000,000

Central heating/boiler installation/replacement/upgrade

£800,000

Electrical re-wiring

£1,400,000

Window replacements

£2,175,000

Roof, canopy, balcony works

£5,000,000

Sheltered Housing Call Systems

£250,000

Lift Renewals

£600,000

Works to communal areas

£610,000

Fire safety works

£575,000

Capital allocation to repairs & voids

£165,300

Chaucer House – phase 2 external works

£8,250,000

Adaptations

£200,000

TOTAL

£24,525,300

14

Page 177

Improvement
Plan
2015-16

15

Agenda Item 10

Introduction
The priorities identified in The SHP Plan 2013-16 are restated in section 1.1 of the SHP Plan Update. The Improvement Plan summarises the actions
planned for 2015-16 that are directed towards these priorities. In addition, as 2015-16 is the final year of the current plan, a number of actions will be
undertaken that enable a new SHP Plan to be developed.

Agenda Item 10

Improvement Plan 2015-16

Key
Priority

Ref.

Summary of action to be undertaken

Reference
IA15.yyxx = 2015-16 Improvement Action (IA15) number xx from service area yy where:
IM = Income Management
AM = Asset Management
CE = Chief Executive
IT = Information Technology
CM = Communications
NH = Neighbourhoods
FS = Finance Services
OP = Older People’s Services
HR = Human Resources
PD = Programme Delivery
HS = Health & Safety
TS = Tenancy Sustainment

Action
starts

RO

Action
Evidence to verify completion of action
complete

Responsible Officers
RO = Responsible Officer for delivery of the action where:
CEO = Chief Executive
HoIM
DoN = Director of Neighbourhoods
HoIT
DoP
= Director of Property
HoMC
DoR
= Director of Resources
HoNE
EMT
= Executive Management Team
HoOP
HoAM = Head of Asset Management
HoPD
HoFS = Head of Finance
HSM
HoHR = Head of Human Resources

16

=
=
=
=
=
=
=

Head of Income
Head of Information Technology
Head of Marketing
Head of Neighbourhoods
Head of Older People’s Services
Head of Programme Delivery
Health & Safety Manager

Page 178

T HE F OL L OWI N G A C T I O NS W I L L B E T A KE N :

Improvement Plan 2015-16
Customer Care
TH E F OLL OWIN G ACT IO NS WI LL BE T AKE N :

Investigate, and make a recommendation on, the suitability of an incentive/reward
scheme as a means of tenancy management

HoN

Mar-15

Jun-15

Stakeholder consultation undertaken, report
with recommendation produced

IA15-CE04

Engage TPAS* to review the Resident Compact and SHP’s approach to resident
consultation

DoN

Apr-15

Sep-15

Agreed Compact, recommendations relating to
resident consultation

IA15-CE06

Work with the Council and other agencies to assist them in meeting their duties, and
to ensure we meet our responsibilities, under the Care Act 2014

DoN

Apr-15

Sep-15

Notes of meetings, action plans, evidence of
implementation

IA15-IM01

Income managers to liaise with the tenancy sustainment team to ensure high risk
tenants affected by welfare reform are identified and appropriately supported

HoI

Apr-15

Mar-16

Referrals recorded, case studies available

IA15-CE07

Maintain and enhance relationships with other agencies involved in safeguarding in
order to improve the protection of residents

DoN

Apr-15

Mar-16

Notes of meetings, workshops, conferences,
etc.

IA15-TS02

Provide regular access to staffed IT facilities at Sutton Gate for Universal Credit
claimants to update claims & receive support

HoOP

May-15

Mar-16

IT facility available & promoted, numbers
attending & being supported recorded

Page 179

IA15-NH01

*=Tenant Participation Advisory Service

Agenda Item 10

17

Agenda Item 10

Improvement Plan 2015-16
Quality
TH E F OLL OWIN G ACT IO NS WI LL BE T AKE N :

IA15-CE03

Restructure the Properties directorate to provide a more co-ordinated approach to
the planning and delivery of asset management

IA15-PD01

Feb-15

Jun-15

New structure in place & operational

Ensure emergency plans are in place for the delivery of contracted services in the event
of contractors being unable or unwilling to deliver the service without notice

HoPD

Apr-15

Jun-16

Business continuity plans for all major
contracts

IA15-OP01

As part of the development of the SHP Plan 2016-19 undertake extensive resident
consultation over the future development of older people’s services

HoOP

Apr-15

Sep-15

Consultation programme produced, delivery
confirmed, report produced

IA15-AM01

Undertake an audit of all statutory compliance areas of work and implement the
recommendations produced by the audit

HoAM

Apr-15

Oct-15

Audit report, recommendations recorded on
Covalent, evidence of implementation provided

IA15-PD02

Embed the robust approach to managing the interim responsive repairs & voids
contractor to provide service delivery that meets residents’ expectations

HoPD

Apr-15

Dec-15

Regular performance reporting, regular
contract meetings

IA15-PD03

Develop a more robust approach to the management of major works contractors to
ensure that residents receive a service that is responsive to their needs

HoPD

Apr-15

Mar-16

Regular performance reporting, regular
contract meetings

18

Page 180

DoP

Improvement Plan 2015-16
Value For Money
THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN:

Undertake a procurement process to secure a long term partner for the responsive
repairs & voids service ensuring resident involvement is integral to the process

DoP

Jan-15

Dec-15

Project plan approved, delivery monitored
through EMT, long term partner secured

IA15-AM02

Develop a fully integrated asset management strategy based on robust stock data
that maintains quality, provides value and supports the HRA Business Plan

HoAM

Apr-15

Jan-16

Approved strategy document

IA15-CE08

Identify appropriate opportunities to deliver services with & for other organisations
and implement or compete for such opportunities

CEO

Apr-15

Mar-16

SHP bids & proposals to other organisations

1A15-FS01

Complete the cost identification & savings projects & implement their
recommendations to provide improvements in value for money

HoF

Apr-15

Mar-16

Projects completed, reports written,
recommendations implemented

1A15-CE13

Ensure SHP undertakes a self-assessment based on the HCA Economic Standards

CEO

May-15

Sep-15

Self-assessment completed and reported to
SHP Board & HEB Committee

IA15-FS02

Develop a 3-year SHP Financial Plan that reflects the HRA Business Plan and
complements the SHP Plan 2016-19

HoF

Oct-15

Jan-16

Plan produced and approved by SHP Board &
HEB Committee

Page 181

IA15-CE01

Agenda Item 10

19

Agenda Item 10

Improvement Plan 2015-16
Reputation
T HE F OL L OWI N G A C T I O NS W I L L B E T A KE N :

IA15-CM01

Ensure all local general election candidates are fully briefed regarding social housing
issues and that enquiries on behalf of residents are dealt with in a timely manner

HoMC

Mar-15

May-15

Briefings undertaken, records of responses to
enquires available

IA15-CM02

Identify opportunities for, and undertake, communications that enhance the reputation
of SHP within the housing sector

HoMC

Apr-15

Mar-16

Record of opportunities taken

Page 182

Planning
TH E F OLL OWIN G ACT IO NS WI LL BE T AKE N :

IA15-CE12

Involving all stakeholders, develop a new SHP Plan for 2016-19 that identifies our
responses to policy changes that will impact during the period of the Plan

DoR

Jul-15

Jan-16

Plan produced & approved by SHP Board &
HEB Committee

IA15-CE11

Undertake a proactive role in the Council’s 5-year review of the SHP Management
Agreement

DoR

Jul-15

Mar-16

Review completed, new management
agreement approved by HEB Committee

20

Page 183

Performance
Plan
2015-16

21

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10

Priority Performance Indicators 2013-16

Key
Ref.

PI
Reference

Description

Description of performance indicator

2013-14
Outturn

2014-15
Outturn

13-14
Milestone

14-15
Milestone

Original
15-16 Target

Confirmed
15-16 Target

1st year
result

2nd year
result

1st year
milestone

2nd year
milestone

Amended
3rd year target
3rd year target
set at start
set at start of
of 1st year
3rd year

Priority Indicators

yy.PI.xx = Indicator number xx of indicator type PI (priority)
and based in service area yy where:

These have a single 3-year target with the 1st and 2nd year milestones representing the desired path
towards the 3rd year target. 2013-14 was the first year of a new three year target period.
The third year target is not necessarily changed because the milestones have not been hit. A decision is
made about whether it is possible to take action to get back on track and the target is only changed if
a decision is made either that the improvement is sustainable or the desired improvement is unlikely
to be achievable.

AM =
CC =
CF =
CM =
VM =

Asset Management
Community Cohesion
Customer Focus
Communications
Value For Money

Notes
1These

two indicators were trialled in 2013-14 through the annual residents’ survey and the 2015-16 targets were set at the end of the 1st year

22

Page 184

Performance Indicator Reference

Priority Performance Indicators 2013-16
Ref.

Description

2013-14
Outturn

2014-15
Outturn

13-14
Milestone

14-15
Milestone

Original
15-16 Target

Confirmed
15-16 Target

Customer Care
CF.PI.05

Tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord

83.2%

83.1%

84.0%

85.0%

86.0%

86.0%

CF.PI.03

Leaseholder satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord

56.6%

59.0%

60.0%

63.0%

66.0%

66.0%

CF.PI.04

Proportion of residents who felt that SHP was able to deal with their enquiry

72.6%

67.7%

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

82.0%

CF.PI.06

Tenant satisfaction that SHP listens to their views and acts upon them

66.5%

68.3%

65.0%

67.5%

70.0%

70.0%

CF.PI.07

Leaseholder satisfaction that SHP listens to their views and acts upon them

34.1%

41.7%

38.0%

43.0%

48.0%

48.0%

AM.PI.01

Percentage of non-decent council homes

12.5%

17.7%

11.9%

16.1%

11.7%

11.7%

AM.PI.02

Tenant satisfaction with the overall quality of their home

81.3%

81.6%

81.0%

84.0%

86.0%

86.0%

AM.PI.04

Leaseholder satisfaction with the overall quality of their block

61.7%

58.3%

60.0%

62.0%

64.0%

64.0%

AM.PI.03

Tenant satisfaction with repairs & maintenance service

78.3%

69.8%

82.0%

84.0%

86.0%

86.0%

CC.PI.01

Tenant satisfaction with their neighbourhood as a place to live

84.1%

85.9%

83.0%

85.0%

87.0%

87.0%

CC.PI.02

Leaseholder satisfaction with the neighbourhood as a place to live

75.2%

77.2%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

78.0%

Quality

Page 185

Value For Money
VM.PI.01

Tenant satisfaction with value for money for their rent

83.6%

83.1%

84.0%

85.0%

86.0%

86.0%

VM.PI.03

Tenant satisfaction with value for money for their service charges

79.0%

71.6%

79.0%

80.0%

81.0%

81.0%

VM.PI.02

Leaseholder satisfaction with value for money for their service charges

32.6%

39.7%

31.0%

38.0%

45.0%

45.0%

Reputation
Resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally1

69.6%

70.0%

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

75.0%

CM.PI.02

Residents who would describe SHP as a good organisation to others1

74.1%

74.8%

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

79.0%

23

Agenda Item 10

CM.PI.01

Agenda Item 10

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators
Balanced Scorecard
The balanced scorecard views the organisation from four perspectives.
Each perspective is split in to a number of elements that identify the main areas within the perspective.
The perspectives and elements in the SHP Balanced Scorecard are as follows:
Perspective

SERVICES

FINANCIAL

ORGANISATIONAL

Customer Access
Complaints
Customer Involvement
Customer Diversity

Major Works
Planned Maintenance
Responsive Repairs
Voids & Allocations
External Services
Tenancy Management
Older People’s Services

Income Collection
Value for Money

Health & Safety
Reputation
Support Services
Governance

Each element contains a number of PIs that together represent a view of the overall performance of that element of the organisation. These PIs and their targets are given below.

24

Page 186

Element(s)

CUSTOMERS

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators
Key

PI
Reference

Description

RO
Reporting
Officer

Ref.

Description of performance indicator

Targets

2014-15
Target

2014-15
Outturn*

2015-16
MPS

2015-16
Target

Current year
Last full year
Last full year minimum Current year
target where
result
performance
target
one existed
standard

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

Strategic indicators have
indicative 3-year targets

Minimum Performance Standard (MPS) = minimum performance required in 2015-16
= maintain performance at least to MPS

85.0%

or

= improve performance compared to MPS
25.0%

Page 187

or

= improve performance to at least the specified level

Performance Indicator Reference

Reporting Officer

yy.SI.xx = Indicator number xx of indicator type SI (strategic)
and from statement of intent yy where:

RO = Reporting Officer where:

Asset Management
Community Cohesion
Customer Focus
Communications
Equality & Diversity
External Services
Finance Services

GO=
HR =
IM =
IT =
OP =
VM =

Governance
Human Resources
Income Management
ICT
Older People’s Services
Value For Money

CC
CCM
HSM
HoAM
HoES
HoF
HoGA

25

=
=
=
=
=
=
=

Complaints Coordinator
Customer Care Manager
Health & Safety Manager
Head of Asset Management
Head of External Services
Head of Finance
Head of Governance & Assurance

HoHR
HoI
HoIT
HoMC
HoN
HoOP
HoPD

=
=
=
=
=
=
=

Head of Human Resources
Head of Income
Head of IT
Head of Marketing & Communications
Head of Neighbourhoods
Head of Older People’s Services
Head of Programme Delivery

Agenda Item 10

AM =
CC =
CF =
CM =
ED =
ES =
FS =

Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

CF.SI.06

Customer satisfaction with reception services

CCM

99.3%

96.0%

CF.SI.16

Average time taken to answer inbound calls

CCM

24.2 sec

25.0 sec

CF.SI.17

Percentage of inbound calls answered

CCM

96.2%

98.0%

CF.SI.18

Percentage of all visitors to reception seen within service standard times

CCM

91.6%

CF.SI.32

Percentage of emails responded to within target timescales

CCM

89.9%

93.0%

CF.SI.33

Percentage of letters responded to within target timescales

CCM

90.8%

93.0%

100.0%
(tol. 0.5%)

Complaints
CF.SI.10

Number of enquiries upheld by the Ombudsman

CC

0

0

CF.SI.20

Customer satisfaction with the way complaints are handled

CC

61.8%

72.0%

CF.SI.21

Customer satisfaction with the outcome of their complaint

CC

61.3%

68.0%

CF.SI.34

Average time taken to resolve a complaint

CC

21.8 days

11.0 days

26

2017-18
Target

Page 188

CUSTOMERS

Customer Access

2016-17
Target

Agenda Item 10

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators
Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

CF.SI.23

Leaseholder satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known

HoMC

63.0%

65.0%

CF.SI.26

Tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known

HoMC

75.2%

80.0%

CF.SI.27

Tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known by age (<25)

HoMC

90.9%

80.0%

CF.SI.28

Tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known by age (25-59)

HoMC

65.4%

74.0%

CF.SI.29

Tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known by age (60+)

HoMC

83.9%

80.0%

CF.SI.30

BME tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known

HoMC

72.8%

80.0%

CF.SI.31

Disabled tenant satisfaction that SHP gives them the opportunity to make their views known

HoMC

78.9%

80.0%

Page 189

CUSTOMERS

Customer Involvement

Customer Diversity
ED.SI.07

Percentage of resident leaseholders on who the landlord has diversity information

HoN

61.2%

94.0%

ED.SI.08

BME tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord

HoN

79.6%

86.0%

n.a.

n.a.

ED.SI.09

Disabled tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord

HoN

86.4%

86.0%

n.a.

n.a.

ED.SI.10

Tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord by age (<25)

HoN

80.0%

86.0%

n.a.

n.a.

ED.SI.11

Tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord by age (25-59)

HoN

73.8%

86.0%

n.a.

n.a.

ED.SI.12

Tenant satisfaction with the overall service provided by their landlord by age (60+)

HoN

90.7%

86.0%

n.a.

n.a.

Agenda Item 10

27

Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

AM.SI.32

Average SHP satisfaction rating for major works projects

HoPD

91.1%

85.0%

AM.SI.38

Tenant satisfaction with internal major works projects

HoPD

99.1%

96.0%

AM.SI.39

Tenant satisfaction with external major works projects

HoPD

94.5%

96.0%

AM.SI.40

Tenant satisfaction with internal major works products

HoPD

100.0%

96.0%

AM.SI.41

Tenant satisfaction with external major works products

HoPD

94.4%

96.0%

AM.SI.27

Tenant satisfaction with major adaptations process

HoPD

100.0%

96.0%

AM.SI.33

Average time taken for major adaptations from order issue to work completion

HoPD

54.8 days

60.0 days

Planned Maintenance
AM.SI.04

Average SAP rating (energy efficiency) of local authority owned dwellings

HoAM

70

70

AM.SI.06

Percentage of gas repair 1st appointments requested by tenants completed within target times

HoAM

99.0%

98.0%

AM.SI.07

Customer satisfaction with the gas servicing process

HoAM

98.5%

96.0%

28

2017-18
Target

Page 190

SERVICES

Major Works

2016-17
Target

Agenda Item 10

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators
Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

AM.SI.08

Percentage of inspections requested by tenants completed within target

HoPD

95.1%

96.0%

AM.SI.10

Percentage of all repairs requested by tenants completed within local target times

HoPD

94.2%

98.0%

AM.SI.12

Tenant satisfaction with their most recent repair

HoPD

84.8%

96.0%

AM.SI.13

Percentage of post inspections accepted as satisfactory by SHP

HoPD

76.5%

97.0%

AM.SI.29

Resident satisfaction with communal responsive repairs

HoPD

67.0%

85.0%

Voids & Allocations
AM.SI.14

Average time taken to re-let local authority housing

HoPD

30.1 days

25.0 days

AM.SI.15

Percentage rent loss from vacant properties

HoPD

1.23%

1.00%

AM.SI.16

New tenant satisfaction with the voids & allocations team

HoPD

88.9%

96.0%

AM.SI.30

New tenant satisfaction with the condition of their property in relation to the lettings standard

HoPD

81.5%

82.0%

AM.SI.45

Percentage of mutual exchanges approved/refused within the statutory 42-day period

HoPD

100.0%

Page 191

SERVICES

Responsive Repairs

100.0%
(tol. 3.0%)

Agenda Item 10

29

Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

ES.SI.01

Percentage of all estate external areas achieving a good or excellent rating

HoES

89.9%

90.0%

ES.SI.04

Resident satisfaction with communal window cleaning services

HoES

73.5%

75.0%

ES.SI.06

Tenants satisfaction with estate services

HoES

71.3%

75.0%

ES.SI.08

Leaseholder satisfaction with estate services

HoES

59.7%

63.0%

2017-18
Target

Tenancy Management
100.0%

CC.SI.01

Percentage of neighbourhood inspections completed on time

HoN

100.0%

CC.SI.03

Percentage of new tenancy 6-week visits undertaken

HoN

100.0%

CC.SI.04

Percentage of new tenancy 8-month visits undertaken

HoN

99.1%%

CC.SI.08

Tenant satisfaction with the way ASB cases are handled

HoN

83.3%

83.0%

CC.SI.09

Tenant satisfaction with the outcome of their ASB complaint

HoN

77.3%

77.0%

HoOP

94.9%

96.0%

(tol. 1 visit)

100.0%
(tol. 5.0%)

100.0%
(tol. 5.0%)

Older People’s Services
OP.SI.02

Sheltered tenant satisfaction with the service provided by sheltered housing team

30

Page 192

SERVICES

External Services

2016-17
Target

Agenda Item 10

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators
Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

IM.SI.01

Rent collected as a proportion of the rent roll (exc. arrears)

HoI

99.2%

99.2%

IM.SI.02

Rent arrears as a proportion of the rent roll

HoI

2.8%

3.0%

IM.SI.03

Percentage of tenants with more than 7 weeks gross rent arrears

HoI

5.5%

5.5%

IM.SI.05

Number of tenants evicted as a result of rent arrears

HoI

27

not
applicable

IM.SI.06

Former tenant debt as a proportion of rent roll

HoI

1.5%

1.3%

IM.SI.07

Percentage of current year’s leasehold service charges collected

HoI

97.8%

100.0%

IM.SI.08

Leasehold service charge arrears

HoI

£102,461

£102,500

Ref.

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

not
applicable

not
applicable

Value For Money
VM.SI.06

Budget spend against profile

HoF

102.2%

min 90-98%2
max 101%

VM.SI.08

Overhead spend against profile

HoF

99.7%

max 101%

VM.SI.09

Next year’s overhead costs as a proportion of next year’s budget

HoF

23.8%

23.6%

Page 193

FINANCIAL

Income Collection

2

Minimum tolerance will be profiled quarterly: Q1 = 90.0%, Q2 = 93.0%, Q3 = 97.0%, Q4 = 98.0%

Agenda Item 10

31

Ref.

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn

2015-16
Target

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

100.0%

AM.SI.05

Percentage of dwellings with a valid CP12 gas certificate

HSM

100.0%

AM.SI.19

Number of RIDDOR incidents on major works projects

HSM

1

AM.SI.21

Percentage of properties with a valid electrical test certificate

HSM

99.6%

AM.SI.42

Percentage of communal areas where an asbestos survey has been undertaken

HSM

100.0%

AM.SI.43

Percentage of communal areas where fire safety risk assessment has been undertaken

HSM

100.0%

AM.SI.44

Percentage of communal water tanks where an annual legionella test has been undertaken

HSM

n.a.

HoF

58.8%

63.0%

(tol. 0.5%)

0
100.0%
(tol. 0.5%)

100.0%
(tol. 0.5%)

100.0%
(tol. 0.5%)

100.0%

Page 194

ORGANISATIONAL

Health & Safety

(tol. 0.5%)

Reputation
FN.SI.02

Proportion of invoices paid by SHP within 30 days

CM.SI.05

Resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally by age (<25)

HoMC

90.9%

75.0%

n.a.

n.a.

CM.SI.06

Resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally by age (25-59)

HoMC

62.9%

75.0%

n.a.

n.a.

CM.SI.07

Resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally by age (60+)

HoMC

82.0%

75.0%

n.a.

n.a.

CM.SI.08

BME resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally

HoMC

69.4%

75.0%

n.a.

n.a.

CM.SI.09

Disabled resident agreement that SHP has a good reputation locally by age (<25)

HoMC

78.7%

75.0%

n.a.

n.a.

32

Agenda Item 10

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

Balanced Scorecard Performance Indicators

Description

RO

2014-15
Outturn*

2015-16
Target

2016-17
Target

2017-18
Target

Support Services
CM.SI.03

Tenant satisfaction with the way SHP keeps them informed

HoMC

84.7%

86.5%

CM.SI.04

Leaseholder satisfaction with the way SHP keeps them informed

HoMC

69.9%

74.5%

HR.SI.02

Number of working days lost due to short-term sickness

HoHR

3.6 days

3.6 days

IT.SI.01

Staff satisfaction with ICT services

HoIT

98.8%

96.0%

IT.SI.02

Reliability of ICT systems (based on system uptime 24/7)

HoIT

99.9%

IT.SI.03

Percentage of all ICT calls responded to within service standards

HoIT

99.7%

HoGA

87.5%

100.0%
(tol. 2.0%)

100.0%
(tol. 2.0%)

Governance
GO.SI.01

Percentage of Board members who meet the minimum attendance requirement for meetings

90.0%

Page 195

ORGANISATIONAL

Ref.

Agenda Item 10

33

Agenda Item 10

Page 196

Care, Q
Qualityy, Value
e

Page 197

Agenda Item 10
Appendix C

Sutton Housing Partnership Delivery Plan 2015/16
Integrated Impact Assessment
Section 1: Aims and demographics
a. Is this a new policy or a review of an existing policy or service?
It is an annual plan for the year 2015/16, essentially comprising three separate plans – a
financial plan (in three parts), a performance plan and an improvement plan. These are set
in the context of the SHP Plan 2013-16, which sets out the ALMO’s strategic direction over
the period 2013/14 to 2015/16.
b. What are the aims and purpose of this proposal?

The main aims are to outline SHP’s intentions with regard to improving service delivery,
financial management and performance.
c. Which of the geographic areas does this proposal affect? (insert any specific
wards or state all borough)
Borough-wide

Section 2: Equality and diversity
a. Which stakeholder group or groups does this proposal affect? (e.g. Staff at

LBS, residents, third and voluntary sector)
Principally council tenants and leaseholders

b. Whose needs is the proposal designed to meet? (e.g. include any specific

impact on protected group members e.g. older people, disabled people, BME)
The plans are designed to meet the needs of all council tenants and leaseholders.
c. What evidence has been collected to inform this proposal?

The SHP delivery plan is informed by the collection of diversity information (across all six
strands). This information is then used when identifying customer requirements through an

Agenda Item 10

Page 198

organisation-wide programme of surveys, consultations, service reviews, etc.
Actions within the Improvement Plan and targets within the Performance Plan are then
devised to address the issues arising from this process.
d. What equality-related information, for example through consultation with

stakeholders, has been gathered on this proposal? (Indicate the type of
information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)
See above

e. In what ways might the proposal impact positively or negatively on some

groups of people? (Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age,
religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities.)
There should be no negative impacts on any groups. Rather a number of actions within the
Improvement Plan have been devised in order to improve the positive impact on various
diversity groups.
f.

What will be done to promote equality of opportunity as part of this proposal?

Promoting equality of opportunity, in terms of both service delivery to residents and to staff
working for SHP, is embedded within the culture, aims and objectives and the policies and
procedures of the organisation and will remain an ongoing process.

Section 3: Health and well being
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
a. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact on the physical
and/or mental wellbeing of residents? If there is a negative impact what action
will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has been or will be collected?
Improved housing management service delivery to residents will be of positive benefit to their
health/mental wellbeing in a variety of ways, two examples of this being: (i) the health
benefits that will result from improving the condition and thermal efficiency their properties via
the ‘decent homes’ programme, and (ii) improving how SHP tackles anti-social behaviour and
the impact this can have on the lives of those who suffer it as well as the wider communities
within estates.
The relationship between housing and health has been long understood and documented
generally. More specifically evidence will come forward over time as further satisfaction
surveys are carried out and the updating of the borough-wide JSNA may reflect improved

Page 199

Agenda Item 10

health outcomes at the local level when data is disaggregated.

b.

In what way could this proposal have a positive or negative impact on an
individual’s opportunity to improve their own health and wellbeing? If there is a
negative impact what action will be taken to mitigate this? What evidence has
or will be collected?

No specific impacts identified
c. In what way could this proposal positively or negatively impact
disproportionally on the health and wellbeing of one or more different
communities? (e.g. improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as
people with learning disabilities). If there is a negative impact what action will
be taken to mitigate this?
A large proportion of tenants are from disadvantaged background as well as minority groups.
These groups will all benefit from the improved service and particularly the programme of
major works which is being carried out across the whole housing stock.

Section 4: Local Economy
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

No

a. Will this proposal affect the local job market, local business or local inward
investment to the borough?
As part of its wider role within the community SHP seeks to take all opportunities to ensure
that its activities have a positive beneficial impact on the local economy in terms of job
opportunities for local people, training and apprenticeships for young people. It also seeks to
ensure through services procured (e.g. day to day repairs and major works) that maximum
use of local labour is made.
b. Does this proposal impact upon employment opportunities for residents in
Sutton?
Yes, as above.

c. Does this proposal provide opportunities for the third sector organisations and
or local businesses in Sutton?
SHP engages with a variety of local third sector groups in carrying out its functions. It also
provides opportunities for local businesses to contribute to the services it delivers through
contractual arrangements (e.g. grounds maintenance, repairs etc).

Agenda Item 10

Page 200

Section 5: Sustainability
Is this section relevant to your proposal?

Yes

No

a. Is this proposal sustainable medium or long term for improving services in
Sutton?
The SHP plan contains proposals for service improvement and performance targets covering
2015/16 and beyond, all of which are considered to be deliverable.
b. Is this proposal a cost – effective use of resources?
Yes

c. If applicable; does this proposal have any impact on the environment and One
Planet Living Principles in Sutton? (e.g. does it impact upon reducing waste,
encourage the use of carbon neutral modes of transport conserve the
environment or encourage the efficient use of water? Please see guidance for
further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).
A number of the works to be carried out to the Council’s housing stock by SHP (e.g. new
windows and boilers, improved insulation etc) will be of direct benefit to the environment, both
in terms of improving thermal efficiency of homes and reducing CO2 emissions. The contracts
SHP has with its major works contractors are geared to ensuring that adverse environmental
impacts in terms of waste, transport etc are minimised.

Section 6: Actions and Publications

1. Please rate the overall impact identified through this assessment with the
level of action that needs to be taken (delete as appropriate):
No major change required (when the assessment has not identified any potential
for discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have
been taken.)
a. What actions are going to be taken as a result of this IIA to address negative

impacts or previously met unidentified needs?

N/A
b. What data monitoring or evaluation activity has been put into place to monitor

the impact of this proposal?

N/A

Page 201
c.

Agenda Item 10

Sign- off ( Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

Please forward this completed IIA to Shama.Sarwar@sutton.gov.uk so that it can be
published on the website.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 203

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 11

Housing, Economy & Business
Date: 23 June 2015
Committee
Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report (Sutton Local Plan)
Mary Morrissey – Strategic Director of Environment, Housing &
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Cllr Jayne McCoy
Patrick Whitter, Strategic Planning
020 8770 6297
 An Open Council
 A Green Council
 A Fair Council
Open
Date:

10 June 2015

1.
1.1

Summary
At the meeting in December 2014, the Housing Economy and Business Committee agreed to
commission a new Local Plan to reflect the growth ambitions of the Council whilst also
protecting the Borough’s quality of life and to meet the statutory duty to prepare, monitor and
review the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF).

1.2

As part of the process, the Council has a statutory requirement to prepare a ‘Sustainability
Appraisal’ (SA) and ‘Strategic Environmental Assessment’ (SEA) at all stages of the Plan
preparation in order to test its soundness against a range of environmental, economic and
social objectives.

1.3

The first stage of this process involves the preparation and publication of an SA ‘Scoping
Report’ to establish the sustainability framework against which the Council’s emerging planning
policies will be assessed and determine the overall scope of the appraisal. As part of this first
stage the council is required to consult specific statutory consultation bodies on the Scoping
Report for a period of 5-weeks. In addition the Scoping Report would be published on the
Council website and will be available for public comment.

2.
Recommendations
The Committee is recommended:
2.1 To agree to publish the SA Scoping Report for consultation for a period of 5-weeks;
2.2 To agree to publish the SA Scoping Report on the Council website;
2.3 To delegate to the Executive Head of Economic Development, Planning and Sustainability in
consultation with the Chair of the Housing, Economy and Business Committee, authority to
make any minor alterations to the SA Scoping Report prior to consultation.

Agenda Item 11

Page 204

3.
3.1

Background
The National Planning Policy Statement (NPPF) makes clear that sustainability appraisal
(SA) must be undertaken as part of the preparation of the Local Plan. In addition, the
Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Regulations 2004 requires SEA to be
undertaken on all plans or programmes likely to have ‘significant environmental impacts’. The
Council has therefore developed an integrated approach to SA which meets the
requirements of the SEA Regulations at the same time.

3.2

The purpose of SA is to identify the key sustainability issues to be addressed by the Local
Plan, develop policy options and report on the significant impacts of emerging preferred
policy options and alternatives on the environmental, economic and social objectives of
sustainable development.

3.3

The SA Scoping Report (Appendix A) addresses the initial stage of SA for Sutton’s Local
Plan. It seeks to define the scope of the appraisal in terms of the national, regional and local
policy context, the local evidence base, the key sustainability issues and the basis for
assessing the likely impacts of alternative options (the proposed SA Framework is included
as Appendix B).

3.4

At the conclusion of the plan preparation process, the final SA Report will describe how the
adopted plan has addressed the sustainability agenda and the choices that have been made
between alternative policy options. This will be considered by the Inspector when
determining the soundness of the Plan at Examination. The relationship between the SA and
the Local Plan process is shown in Appendix C.

4.
4.1

Issues
The SA Scoping Report consists of the following sections which reflect the key tasks set out
in the Government’s updated Planning Practice Guidance (Stage A, Tasks A1 to A5 on
‘Setting the Context and Objectives, Establishing the Baseline and Deciding on the Scope’).

4.2

Section 1 provides an Introduction to the SA Scoping Report in terms of the background to
the appraisal, definitions of sustainable development, planning for sustainability, the purpose
of the SA Scoping Report and consultation arrangements.

4.3

Section 2 sets out the Appraisal Methodology to be followed by the Council in undertaking
SA as part of the preparation of Sutton’s Local Plan, in terms of Government guidance, the
main stages of SA and the key outputs of the appraisal process.

4.4

Section 3 identifies Other Relevant Plans, Programmes and Sustainability Objectives which
are likely to influence the options to be considered in the preparation of the Local Plan.
These are covered at the international, national, regional and local levels. A more detailed
scoping table is provided in the Appendix to the Scoping Report.

4.5

Section 4 describes the Environmental, Social and Economic Baseline for Sutton based on a
range on the initial survey and evidence-gathering stage of LDF preparation and for the
purpose of preparing Sutton’s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 2013-14 published in March
2015. The key social, economic and environmental characteristics and trends likely to be

Page 205

Agenda Item 11

affected by the Local Plan are described in order to provide the basis for identifying
sustainability issues/ problems and for predicting and monitoring effects
4.6

Section 5 identifies the Key Sustainability Issues and Problems facing the Borough.

4.7

Section 6 sets out the proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework as the basis for
predicting and monitoring the social, economic and environmental effects of the emerging
Local Plan. This consists of 16 Core SA Objectives supported by a range of sub-objectives,
indicators, targets and appraisal questions. An overview of the core sustainability objectives
making up the Council’s proposed SA Framework is provided as Appendix C.

4.8

Section 7 describes the Next Steps in undertaking SA in the preparation of Sutton’s Local Plan.

4.9

The Council is required to inform, involve and consult the local community and all interested
parties throughout the preparation of the Local Plan in line with Sutton’s adopted Statement
of Community Involvement (December 2014). In line with the SEA Regulations, the SA
Scoping Report will be published for consultation on the Council’s website for a period of 5
weeks from Tuesday 30 June to Monday 3 August 2015 with copies sent to the following
statutory consultation bodies to seek their input on the proposed scope of the appraisal:

Historic England;

Natural England; and

Environment Agency.

4.10 The SA Scoping Report will also be sent to a range of appropriate bodies and local
stakeholders with environmental interests or responsibilities.
4.11 Feedback from the consultation exercise will inform the appraisal of Sutton’s Local Plan
‘Issues and Preferred Options, which will be published for public consultation in early 2016.
5.

Options Considered

5.1

No other options have been considered in terms of this report’s principal recommendations to
agree to publish the SA Scoping Report for consultation for a period of 5-weeks and to make the
report available on the Council’s website. This is because both the NPPF and the SEA
Regulations 2004 require SA/SEA to be undertaken as part of the preparation of the Local Plan
and that the initial Scoping Report should be made available to consultation bodies for a
statutory period of 5 weeks.

5.2

However, it should be noted that Section 5 of the SA Scoping Report on ‘Key Sustainability
Issues and Problems’ identifies a range of broad strategic options under each planning topic
that will need to be explored in further detail as part of the process of developing Local Plan
‘Preferred Options and Issues’ for the next stage of public consultation in early 2016.

6.

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial
Consultation costs can be met within the 2015-16 revenue budget for Strategic Planning.

Agenda Item 11

6.2

Page 206

Legal
Section 19 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning
authorities to carry out an SA of each of the proposals in a Local Plan during its preparation. A
strategic environmental assessment (SEA) is also required under the 2004 SEA Regulations.
Furthermore, the SA Scoping Report indicates that subsequent stages of the appraisal process
will address the need to undertake an Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) under the various
Acts and Regulations forming the basis of anti-discrimination law in the UK, including the
Equalities Act 2010, and an ‘Appropriate Assessment’ (Habitats Regulations Screening Report)
in accordance with the EU Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC and the Conservation (Natural Habitats
&c) Regulations 1994

6.3

Integrated Impact Assessment
An Integrated Impact Assessment is attached to this report as Appendix D.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A
B
C
D

Title
Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report
Outline of Proposed SA Framework
Relationship between the SA and the Local Plan Process
Integrated Impact Assessment

Background Documents
Sutton Annual Monitoring Report 2013-14 (March 2015)
Borough Five-Year Housing Land Supply Assessment for 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2019
(March 2015)
Borough Employment Land Review’ (Nathaniel Litchfield on behalf of LB Sutton, 2013)
Borough Fuel Poverty Strategy
Borough Housing Strategy
Draft Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) Level 1 Report (AECOM, April 2015)
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal
Housing (Community Living)
Construction & Property
Economic Renewal and
Business Development
Pupil Based Commissioning
Parks
Lead Local Flood Authority/
Highways
Environmental Sustainability

Date: 10 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Christine Little
Allison Letts
Simon Latham
Ade Adebayo
Mandy Cherrington

Yes
Yes
Yes

Kieran Holliday
Mark Dalzell
Davina Millership

Yes

Andrea Crump

Page 207

London Borough of Sutton Local Plan

Sustainability Appraisal
Scoping Report
June 2014

Agenda Item 11

Agenda Item 11

Page 208

Page 209

Agenda Item 11

London Borough of Sutton
Local Plan

Sustainability Appraisal
Scoping Report

Strategic Planning
Environment, Housing & Regeneration
June 2015

Agenda Item 11

Page 210

Page 211

Agenda Item 11

Contents
Non-Technical Summary
ONE

TWO

THREE

FOUR

INTRODUCTION

1

Local Plan

1

What is Sustainable Development?

1

Requirement for Sustainability Appraisal (SA)

2

Purpose of Sustainability Appraisal

2

Purpose of Scoping Report

2

Consultation Arrangements

3

APPRAISAL METHODOLOGY

5

Government Guidance and Best Practice

5

Main Stages of Sustainability Appraisal

5

Key Outputs of the Sustainability Appraisal Process

6

OTHER RELEVANT PLANS, PROGRAMMES AND SUSTAINABILITY
OBJECTIVES (TASK A1)

7

Establishing the Policy Context

7

International Context

7

National Context

7

Regional/ London Context

8

Borough Context

9

Other Local Strategies

20

THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC BASELINE
FOR SUTTON (TASK A2)

21

What is Baseline Information?

21

Introduction to the Borough

21

Social Baseline

22

Economic Baseline

29

Environmental Baseline

32

Map 4.1:Borough Context

41

Map 4.2:Internal Migration to and from Sutton 2012-13

42

Map 4.3::Index of Multiple Deprivation (ID 2010) – Ranked Scores

43

Map 4.4:Preferred Industrial Locations

44

Map 4.5:Green Belt and MOL

45

Map 4.6:Public open Space

46

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 1

Page 212

Agenda Item 11

FIVE

SIX

Map 4.7:Areas of POS deficiency

47

Map 4.8:SICS and Areas of deficiency 8.8

48

Map 4.9:Fluvial Flood Risk

49

Map 4.10:Surface Water Flood Risk and Critical Drainage Areas (CDA)

50

KEY SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES AND PROBLEMS (TASK A3)

51

Housing

51

Gypsies and Travellers

52

Economic Regeneration and Growth

52

Sutton Town Centre and District Centres

52

Community and Leisure Facilities

53

Open Environment and Biodiversity

53

Built and Historic Environment Issues

53

Climate Change, Pollution and One Planet Living

54

Flood Risk Management, Climate Change Adaptation & the Wandle

54

Sustainable Transport

55

THE SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL FRAMEWORK FOR SUTTON
(TASK A4)

57

Developing SA Objectives, Indicators and Targets

SA FRAMEWORK FOR SUTTON’S LOCAL PLAN
SEVEN

58-66

NEXT STEPS

67

Consultation on SA Scoping Report

67

Next Stages of Sustainability Appraisal

67

Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA)

68

Appropriate Assessment (EU Habitats Directive)

68

Appendices
Appendix 1

Scoping of Relevant Strategies Plans and Programmes (Task A1)

Appendix 2

Site Screening and Evaluation Criteria

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 2

Page 213

Agenda Item 11

Non-Technical Summary
This Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Scoping Report has been prepared to identify the key sustainability issues likely to be
affected by Sutton‘s emerging Local Plan and to provide the basis for appraising the environmental, social and
economic effects of preferred policy options and alternatives.
The National Planning Policy Statement (NPPF) and the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance makes clear that SA
must be undertaken as part of the preparation of the Local Plan. In addition, the SEA Directive 2001/42/EC,
implemented in the UK by the SEA Regulations 2004, requires strategic environmental assessment or ‘SEA’ to be
undertaken on all plans and programmes where they are likely to have significant environmental impacts, including local
development documents prepared under the new planning legislation. The Council therefore proposes to adopted an
integrated approach towards SA and SEA in order to test the soundness of emerging policies and proposals against
environmental, economic and social criteria. Therefore, in undertaking SA as part of the preparation of Sutton’s Local
Plan, the Council will seek meet the requirements of the SEA Directive at the same time.
The SA process in Sutton (see Figure 1.1) will apply the procedures and key tasks set out in the Government’s Planning
Practive Guidance and best practice. This SA Scoping Report presents the outcome of Stage A (Tasks A1 to A5) on
‘Setting the Context and Objectives, Establishing the Baseline and Deciding on the Scope’
Section 1 provides an Introduction to the SA Scoping Report in terms of the background to the appraisal,
definitions of sustainable development, planning for sustainability, the purpose of the SA Scoping Report and
consultation arrangements.
Section 2 sets out the Appraisal Methodology to be followed in terms of Government guidance, the main
stages of SA and the key outputs of the appraisal process
Section 3 identifies Other Relevant Plans, Programmes and Sustainability Objectives (Task A1) which are
likely to influence the options to be considered in the preparation of the Local Plan. These are covered at the
international, national, regional and local levels. A more detailed scoping table is provided as Appendix 1.
Section 4 describes the The Environmental, Social and Economic Baseline for Sutton (Task A2) based on a
range on the initial survey and evidence-gathering stage of LDF preparation and for the purpose of preparing
Sutton’s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 2013-14 published in March 2015. The key social, economic and
environmental characteristics and trends likely to be affected by the Local Plan are described in order to provide
the the basis for identifying sustainability issues/ problems and for predicting and monitoring effects.
Section 5 identifies the Key Sustainability Issues and Problems (Task A3) facing the Borough.
Section 6 sets out the proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework (Task A4) as the basis for predicting and
monitoring the social, economic and environmental effects of the emerging Local Plan. This consists of 16 Core
SA Objectives supported by a range of sub-objectives, indicators, targets and appraisal questions. An overview
of the core sustainability objectives making up the Council’s proposed SA Framework is provided overleaf.
Section 7 describes the Next Steps in undertaking SA in the preparation of Sutton’s Local Plan.
The Council is required to inform, involve and consult the local community and all interested parties throughout the
preparation of the Local Plan in line with Sutton’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). In line with the SEA
Regulations, copies of the SA Scoping Report have been provided for the four ‘consultation bodies’ in order to seek their
views and comments on the proposed scope of the appraisal:
Historic England (HE);
Natural England (EN); and
Environment Agency (EA).
The Scoping Report has also be sent to a range of appropriate authorities and local stakeholders with environmental
interests or responsibilities, including the Wandle Trust, Eco-Local, BioRegional and Cyclism Sutton.
Feedback from this consulation exercise will inform the appraisal of Sutton’s Local Plan ‘ Issues and Preferred Options,
which will be published for public consultation in early 2016.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE iii

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

(C) SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

(1) Climate Change Mitigation
To address the causes of climate change by minimising CO2
emissions from new development

(9) Access to Housing
To meet the future local need for housing and the Borough’s
share of London’s need

(2) Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaptation
To avoid, reduce and manage flood risk

10) Access to Education and Health
To ensure access to education facilities and health for all

(3) Pollution and Natural resources
To conserve natural resources & minimise pollution

(11) Access to Sport and Leisure Facilities
To ensure access to Sport and Leisure Facilities for all

(B) SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH

(D) QUALITY OF LIFE AND EQUALITIES

(5) Economic Growth & Inward Investment
To attract inward investment & promote sustainable growth in
support of Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy

(13) Open Environment
To protect and enhance the provision and quality of the Borough’s
open environment

(6) Employment
To promote local employment opportunities, skills and training
within the Borough

(14) Built and Historic Environment
To protect and enhance the quality of the built design, townscape
quality and the historic environment.

(7) Town Centres
To enhance the vitality and viability of town centres

(15) Social Deprivation and Fuel Poverty
To reduce social deprivation, health deprivation and fuel poverty

(8) Area Renewal
To secure inward investment for area renewal programmes to
deliver environmental business improvements.

(16) Equalities, Accessibility and Social Inclusion
To reduce social exclusion, address inequalities & improve
accessibility to essential services & community facilities for all

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE
iv

Page 214

(4) Biodiversity
(12) Sustainable Transport
To protect and enhance biodiversity, habitats and green corridors To reduce traffic levels, congestion, local air pollution and CO2
within the Borough
emissions from transport

Agenda Item 11

CORE OBJECTIVES MAKING UP SUTTON’S PROPOSED SUSTAINABILITY APPRIASAL (SA) FRAMEWORK

Agenda Item 11

ONE

Page 215

1. Introduction
LOCAL PLAN
1.1 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as amended, the Council has a statutory duty to
prepare, monitor and review the current development plan for the Borough (formerly known as the Local Development
Framework or LDF). The Government’s preferred approach is that each planning authority should now produce a single
Local Plan for its area rather than a suite of separate documents. Local plans must be positively prepared, justified,
effective and consistent with the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)1.
1.2 Local Plans should set out what is intended to happen in the area over the plan period, where and when this will
occur and how it will be delivered. This should be done by identifying broad locations for regeneration and growth and
specific allocations of land for different uses; through designations showing areas where particular opportunities or
environmental constraints apply (such as areas at risk from flooding or protected habitats); and through criteria-based
policies to be taken into account when considering development. This should be supported by an updated Proposals
Map showing the application of policies and key planning designations across the Borough.
1.3 The NPPF (Paras 14 and 15) states that Local Plans should be based upon and reflect the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, with clear policies guiding how this presumption should be applied locally. This means that:
local planning authorities should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their area; and
Local Plans should meet objectively assessed needs, with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid change, unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against
the NPPF as a whole; or specific policies in the NPPF indicate that development should be restricted.
1.4 The Government’s Planning Practice Guidance2 indicates that Local Plans should concentrate on the critical issues
facing the area and the strategy and opportunities for addressing them, paying careful attention to both deliverability and
viability. Local Plans should therefore aim to meet the the development and infrastructure needs of the area while
recognising the contribution that Neighbourhood Plans can make in meeting these needs.
1.5 A new Local Plan is therefore needed in order to keep our local policies up-to-date with national and regional
policies and support the Council’s long-term aspirations for the future of the Borough by addressing the challenges,
priorities and opportunities identified in Sutton’s Corporate Plan 2014/15-2018/19, Sutton’s Economic Development
Strategy3 and a range of other Council strategies.These include the need to meet the Mayor’s increased housing targets;
promote sustainable economic growth and new jobs by attracting inward investment and new businesses to the Borough;
promote the success of Sutton Town Centre and other town centres by adapting to changing retail trends; and achieve
One Planet Living objectives while reconciling demands from competing land uses.
1.6 The Council is therefore intending to prepare a new Local Plan together with an updated Proposals Map to guide
the future growth and development of the Borough over the next 10-15 years. When adopted, Sutton’s new Local Plan will
replace the existing Core Planning Strategy and Site Development Policies DPD4 (but not the South London Waste Plan
DPD). Sutton’s adopted local development scheme (LDS), introduced in December 2014, sets out the Council’s
timescales and milestones for the preparation of the Local Plan over the next 2 years. It can be seen from this Table that
the initial stage of Local Plan evidence gathering got underway in September 2014 with adoption scheduled for May 2017.

WHAT IS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT?
1.7 Sustainable development seeks to achieve improved quality of life, community well-being and sustainable economic
growth while protecting against environmental degradation, depletion of natural resources and loss of biodiversity by ensuring:
social progress which recognises the needs of everyone;
effective protection of the environment;
the NPPF (CLG, 2012) is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance (CLG, updated March 2015) is available at http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/
3 ‘Opportunity Sutton - Unlocking Economic Growth’ (LB Sutton, June 2012)
4 Development Plan Document
1
2

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 1

Agenda Item 11

Page 216

prudent use of natural resources;
maintenance of high and stable levels of economic growth and employment.
1.8 The UK Sustainable Development Strategy (ODPM, 2005) defines sustainable development as “enabling all
people throughout the world to satisfy their basic needs and enjoy a better quality of life, without compromising the
quality of life of future generations”. The Strategy expands further on what sustainable development means in terms of
the following guiding principles:
(1) Living within Environmental Limits
Respecting the limits of the planet’s environment, resources and bio-diversity, to improve our environment and
ensure that natural resources needed for life are unimpaired and remain so for future generations.
(2) Ensuring a Strong, Healthy and Just Society
Meeting the diverse needs of all people in existing and future communities, promoting personal well being, social
cohesion and inclusion and creating equal opportunity for all.
(3) Achieving a Sustainable Economy
Building a strong, stable and sustainable economy which provides prosperity and opportunities for all, and in which
environmental and social costs fall on those who impose them (polluter pays), and efficient resource use is incentivised.
(4) Using Sound Science Responsibly
Ensuring policy is developed and implemented on the basis of strong scientific evidence, whilst taking into account
scientific uncertainty (through the precautionary principle) as well as public attitudes and values.
(5) Promoting Good Governance
Actively promoting effective, participative systems of governance in all levels of society, engaging people’s creativity,
energy, and diversity.
1.9 In seeking to regulate the development and use of land in the public interest, the planning system is key to
achieving sustainable development and promoting outcomes in which environmental, economic and social objectives are
achieved together over time.

REQUIREMENT FOR SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL
1.10 Section 19 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning authorities to carry out a
sustainability appraisal (SA) as part of the preparation of the Local Plan. SA applies to any of the documents that can form
part of a Local Plan although Neighbourhood Plans, supplementary planning documents (SPDs), the Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI), the LDS and the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)are excluded from this requirement.
1.11 In addition, SAs should incorporate the requirements of the UK Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
Regulations 2004, which implement the requirements of the EU SEA Directive 2001/42/ECwhich seeks to provide a high level
of protection of the environment by integrating environmental considerations into the process of preparing certain plans and
programmes. Local Plans may also require a Habitats Regulations Assessment, as set out in the Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) if it is considered likely to have significant effects on European habitats or
species. The SA should take account of the findings of the Habitats Regulations Assessment, if one is undertaken.
1.12 This document comprises the initial stage of the SA (incorporating SEA) for Sutton’s emerging Local Plan. It sets
out the necessary information required to determine the scope of the appraisal and establishes an SA Framework against
which the effects of all local development documents will be assessed.

PURPOSE OF SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL
1.13 SA is integral to the preparation and development of a Local Plan. Its purpose is to promote sustainable
development by assessing the extent to which the emerging plan, when judged against reasonable alternatives, will help
to achieve relevant environmental, economic and social objectives. The relationship between the SA and Local Plan
preparation processes is shown in Figure 1.1.
1.14 SA seeks to report on the significant impacts of plan implementation and alternatives (including the ‘business as
usual’ and ‘do-nothing’ options) on the environmental, economic and social objectives of sustainable development.
1.15 By identifying key sustainability issues, developing policy options and assessing their likely effects from the earliest
stages of plan preparation, SA is an important tool for developing more effective and sustainable planning policies which
meet the aspirations of the local community.
1.16 SA also helps planners and the public gain a better understanding of the inter-relationships between the aims of
social inclusion, environmental protection, the use of natural resources and economic growth.
1.17 To be effective, SA must be:

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 2

Page 217

Agenda Item 11

Inclusive: ensuring early and on-going involvement of the public, statutory bodies and other relevant stakeholders
at the appropriate stages of plan preparation;
Objectives-led: so that the direction of desired change is made explicit in terms of measurable targets;
Evidence-based: including relevant baseline information against which the potential effects of the plan and policy
options can be measured and assessed;
Useful: providing clear conclusions and recommendations on how the plan can be made more sustainable and
proposals for future monitoring.
1.18 The SA process also provides the means of identifying and mitigating any potential adverse effects that the plan
might otherwise have.
1.19 At the culmination of the plan preparation process, the final SA Report should describe how the adopted Local Plan
has addressed the sustainability agenda and the choices that have been made between alternative policies and proposals.
This will be considered by the Insector alongside a range of other evidence base documents when determining the
soundness of the plan at the Examination in Public (EiP) stage.

PURPOSE OF SCOPING REPORT
1.20 The Scoping Report (this document) sets out the results of the initial stage of SA for Sutton’s emerging Local Plan
(Stage A). By identifying the policy context, existing baseline conditions within the Borough, key sustainability issues to be
addressed by the plan and the Council’s proposed ‘SA Framework’ – consisting of a range of sustainability objectives,
indicators and targets as the basis for assessing the likely effects of alternative policy options - this report seeks to
determine the overall scope of the appraisal.
1.21 This Report is divided into the following Sections which address Tasks A1-A5 set out in Government guidance:
Section 2: Appraisal Methodology;
Section 3: Other Relevant Policies, Plans, Programmes and Sustainability Objectives (Task A1);
Section 4: The Environmental, Social and Economic Baseline for Sutton (Task A2);
Section 5: Key Sustainability Issues and Problems (Task A3);
Section6: The Sustainability Appraisal Framework for Sutton (Task A4);
Section7: Next Steps.

CONSULTATION ARRANGEMENTS
1.22 The Council is required to inform, involve and consult the local community and all interested parties throughout the
preparation of the Local Plan in line with Sutton’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) (December 2014). In
line with the SEA Regulations, copies of the SA Scoping Report have been provided for the four ‘consultation bodies’ in
order to seek their views and comments on the proposed scope of the appraisal:
Historic England (HE);
Natural England (EN); and
Environment Agency (EA).
1.23 The Scoping Report has also be sent to a range of appropriate authorities and local stakeholders with environmental
interests or responsibilities, including the Wandle Trust, Eco-Local, BioRegional and Cyclism Sutton.
1.24 The Scoping Report has been made available at the following locations for a 5-week period from 30 June to 3 Aug 2015:
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton;
Council offices, 24 Denmark Road, Carshalton
All public libraries within the Borough
1.25 Hard copies of the SA Scoping Report obtained by contacting Sutton’s LDF Team on 020 8770 6297, by e-mail to
patrick.whitter@sutton.gov.uk or by writing to:
Patrick Whitter
Strategic Planning Team
Environment, Housing & Regeneration
London Borough of Sutton
24 Denmark Road,
Carshalton,
Surrey SM5 2JG
1.26 Alternatively, this report can be viewed on the Council’s website from 24 June 2015 at http://www.sutton.gov.uk.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 3

Agenda Item 11

Page 218

Figure 1.1: Sustainability Appraisal as part of the Local Plan Processes
STAGES OF LOCAL PLAN PREPARATION

STAGES OF SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL

Evidence Gathering

Preparation of SA Scoping Report (this report)

CONSULTATION ON SA SCOPING REPORT
Identification of Local Plan preferred options and
issues

Appraisal of emerging preferred options & alternatives
Preparation of SA Report 1 on Issues Preferred
Options

PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON ‘ISSUES AND
PREFERRED OPTIONS’

CONSULTATION ON SA REPORT 1 ON ‘ISSUES AND
PREFERRED OPTIONS’

Appraisal of emerging Proposed Submission Draft
Preparation of Draft Local Plan
Preparation of SA Report 2 on Draft Local Plan

CONSULTATION ON DRAFT LOCAL PLAN

CONSULTATION ON SA REPORT 2 ON DRAFT
LOCAL PLAN

Submission of draft Local Plan to Secretary of State
(incorporating amendments)

Preparation of Final SA Report
(taking account of amendments)

EXAMINATION IN PUBLIC ON DRAFT LOCAL PLAN

PUBLICATION OF FINAL SA REPORT AS PART OF
LOCAL PLAN EVIDENCE BASE

Inspector’s Report on draft Local Plan
ADOPTION OF LOCAL PLAN

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PUBLICATION OF POST-ADOPTION STATEMENT

PAGE 4

Agenda Item 11

TWO

Page 219

2. Methodology
GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE AND BEST PRACTICE
2.1 The Council’s approach to undertaking Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as part of the preparation of Sutton’s Local
Plan is closely based on the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance and current best practice. The proposed
appraisal methodology outlined below is thus designed to ensure compliance with the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act (as amended), the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Regulations 2004 and the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.

MAIN STAGES OF SA
Stage A: Setting the Context and Objectives, Establishing the Baseline and Deciding on Scope
2.2 Stage A, to be undertaken as part of the Local Plan evidence-gathering process, consist of the following tasks:
Task A1: Identify other relevant policies, plans and programmes, and sustainability objectives (Section 3);
Task A2: Collect baseline information (Section 4);
Task A3: Identify sustainability issues and problems (Section 5);
Task A4: Develop the SA Framework (Section 6); and
Task A5: Consult the consultation bodies on the scope of the SA Report (this report).
2.3 The scoping stage must identify the scope and level of detail of the information to be included in the SA Reports to
be prepared subsequently at the ‘Issues and Preferred Options’ and the ‘draft Local Plan’ (i.e. the proposed submission)
stages. It should set out the context, objectives and approach of the appraisal; and identify all relevant environmental,
economic and social issues and objectives. A formal scoping report is not required by law but is a useful way of presenting
information at the scoping stage. A key aim of scoping is to help ensure the SA process is proportionate and relevant to the
Local Plan being assessed.
2.4 The term ‘baseline information’ refers to the existing environmental, economic and social characteristics of the area
likely to be affected by the Local Plan, and their likely evolution without implementation of new policies. Baseline
information provides the basis against which to assess the likely effects of alternative proposals in the plan. Wherever
possible, data should be included on historic and likely future trends, including a ‘business as usual’ scenario (i.e.
anticipated trends in the absence of new policies being introduced). This information will enable the likely effects of the Local
Plan to be assessed in the context of existing and potential environmental, economic and social trends.
2.5 When deciding on the scope and level of detail of the information that must be included in the report, the plan-maker
must consult the consultation bodies. Where a consultation body decides to respond, it should do so within five weeks of
receipt of the request. Regulation 4 of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 defines
certain organisations with environmental responsibilities as consultation bodies. In England the consultation bodies are
Historic England (HE), Natural England (NE) and the Environment Agency (EA).
2.6

The SA Scoping Report (this document) presents the outcome of Stage A in relation to Sutton’s Local Plan.

Stage B: Developing and Refining Options and Assessing Effects
2.7 Stage B, to be undertaken as part of the process of identifying ‘Issues and Options’ and subsequently in the
preparation of the Local Plan ‘Proposed Submission Draft’ for public consultation, involves:
Task B1: Test the Local Plan objectives against the SA Framework;
Task B2: Develop the Local Plan options, including reasonable alternatives;
Task B3: Evaluate the likely effects of the local plan and alternatives;
Task B4: Consider ways of mitigating adverse effects and maximising beneficial effects;
Task B5: Propose measures to monitor the significant effects of implementing the Local Plan.
2.8 All reasonable alternatives should be identified and evaluated at an early stage in the plan-making process as the
basis for identifying the preferred approach. This will involve the appraisal of alternative strategic policy options, planning

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 5

Agenda Item 11

Page 220

designations and potential site allocations against the sustainability objectives, indicators and targets making up the Council’s
SA Framework established as part of Stage A. All alternatives considered must be realistic, deliverable and sufficiently distinct
to highlight the different sustainability implications of each and enable meaningful comparisons to be made.
2.9 Stage B of the appraisal should provide conclusions on the overall sustainability of all reasonable alternatives,
including the preferred approach, and identify and evaluate their likely significant impacts against the baseline environmental,
economic and social characteristics of the area (i.e. the Local Plan evidence base) and the likely situation if the plan were not
to be adopted (the ‘do-nothing scenario’). Where any significant adverse impacts are identified, the appraisal should identify
measures to prevent, mitigate and, as fully as possible, offset them.
2.10 In considering potential site allocations to deliver the new housing, employment opportunities and educational facilities
needed to meet the needs of the Borough’s growing population, the appraisal will both inform and reflect the Council’s site
assessment criteria. In terms of flood risk issues and the requirement in the NPPF to undertake the ‘sequential test’ on all
proposed site allocations, the appraisal will incorporate the findings of the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) Level 1
and Level 2 Reports which is currently being undertaken by AECOM consultants on behalf of the Council together with the
London Boroughs of Croydon, Merton, Wandsworth, Kingston and Richmond.
Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal Report
2.11 The SA Report, which must be prepared alongside the publication version of the Local Plan (i.e the Proposed
Submission Draft) for statutory public consultation, is the key output of the appraisal process.
Task C1: Prepare the SA Report.
2.12 In line with best practice, the Council intends to publish SA Reports for public consultation at both the ‘Issues and
Preferred Options’ and ‘draft Local Plan’ stages in order to present the outcome of Stages A and B. The Council will then
prepare a final SA Report - incorporating any significant amendments - for submission to the Secretary of State alongside the
draft Local Plan (see Figure 1.1). The final SA Report will be examined as part of the evidence base for the Local Plan and
help to demonstrate why the policies and proposals in the Local Plan are the most appropriate.
2.13 The SA Report must include a non-technical summary of the information within the main report. The summary should
be prepared with a range of readers in mind, and provide a clear, accessible overview of the process and findings.
Stage D: Consulting on the Preferred Options of the DPD and SA Report
2.14 Stage D involves the following Task:
Task D1: Seek representations on the SA report from consultation bodies and the public.
2.15 The Council must consult theconsultation bodies and other parties who are affected or likely to be affected by, or have
an interest in, the decisions involved in the assessment or making of the plan as described above in Para 2.5.
Stage E: Monitoring the Significant Effects of Implementing the DPD
2.16 Stage E involves monitoring the significant effects of the plan in order to measure its performance against sustainability
objectives and inform future policy revisions:
Task E1: Finalising aims and methods for monitoring;
Task E2: Monitor significant effects of implementing the Local Plan; and
Task E3: Respond to adverse effects.
2.17 Planning authorities should monitor the significant environmental effects of implementing the Local Plan in order to
identify unforeseen adverse effects at an early stage and enable appropriate remedial actions. Details of monitoring
arrangements must be included in the SA Report, the post-adoption statement or in the Local Plan itself. Monitoring results
should be reported in the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR). Sutton’s next AMR for 2014-15, due in December 2015, will
include updated information on each of the baseline and SA Framework indicators and targets set out in this Scoping Report.

KEY OUTPUTS OF THE SA PROCESS
2.18 In preparing Sutton’s Local Plan over the next 2 years, the Council intends to preparethe following SA documents:
SA Scoping Report (this document) for consultation with statutory bodies and other stakeholders (June 2015);
SA Report 1 on Issues and Options to be published for public consultation alongside the Local Plan Issues and
Preferred Options document (January-February 2016);
SA Report 2 on the Draft Local Plan to be published for consultation alongside the draft Local Plan (OctoberNovember 2016); and
Final SA Report on the Draft Local Plan taking into account any significant to the Local Plan made prior to
submission (April 2017).

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 6

Agenda Item 11

THREE

Page 221

Other Relevant Plans, Programmes and Sustainability
Objectives (Task A1)
ESTABLISHING THE POLICY CONTEXT
3.1 In line with the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance, the Council has undertaken a comprehensive review of
all national, regional and local plans, programmes and sustainability objectives with an influence on the content of Sutton’s
Local Plan. The review of the policy context, together with an understanding of future Borough population trends and the
current environmental, social and economic baseline for Sutton set out in Section 4, have been used to identify the key
sustainability issues and problems to be addressed by the plan and inform the objectives, targets and indicators included
within the Council’s proposed sustainability appraisal (SA) Framework (Section 6).
3.2 This chapter describes the policy context within which Sutton’s Local Plan is being prepared, taking account of the
Council’s corporate priorities and growth agenda, and highlights the objectives of other organisations and service providers
which the Plan needs to support. A more detailed analysis is provided in the Scoping Table included as Appendix 1, which
considers how the relevant policy objectives and Council priorities relate to the key sustainability issues and problems
identified in Section 5 of this document.
3.3 It should be noted that although sustainability objectives, targets and indicators developed for the purpose of testing
the social, economic and environmental effects of policies (see SA Framework) are distinct from plan objectives, there are
many areas of overlap.

INTERNATIONAL CONTEXT
3.4 The sustainability objectives, targets and indicators to be developed for inclusion in the SA Framework should have
regard to the objectives and key targets associated with the following international strategies, plans and programmes:
Johannesburg Declaration 2002;
EU Framework Directive on Waste (1991/156/EEC);
Kyoto Agreement 1997;
EU Landfill Directive (1999/31/EC);
UN Framework Convention: Climate Change 1992
EU Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC);
EU Spatial Development Perspective (1999);
EU Waste Framework Directive 2008;
EU SEA Directive 2001;
EU Directive on the energy performance of buildings
(2002/91/EC);
EU Air Quality Framework Directive (1996/62/EC);
EU Sustainable Development Strategy (2001);
EU Air Quality Daughter Directive (1999/30/EC);
EU Directive on Conservation of Wild Birds
EU Habitats Directive (92/43/EEC);
2009/147/EC;
EU Wild Birds Directive (1997/49/EC);
EU Energy Efficiency Directive 2012/27/EU.
EU Environmental Noise Directive (2002/49/EC)

NATIONAL CONTEXT
3.5 At the national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) together with the following Government
legislation, strategies and guidance provide an important point of reference in developing the SA Framework for Sutton:
Legislation
Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990.
Ancient Monumnts & Archaeological Areas Act 1979
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990
SEA Regulations 2004;
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004;
Sustainable communities Act 2007
Sustainable Communities Act (Amendmt) Act 2010
Sustainable Communities Regulations 2012;

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Climate Change Act 2008
Planning Act 2008;
Flood Risk Regulations 2009;
Flood and Water Management Act 2010;
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010;
Localism Act 2011;
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012;
Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013;
Changes to Part L of the Building Regulations 2013;

PAGE

7

Agenda Item 11

Page 222

Amendment to General Permitted Development
Order 1995 (to enable change of use from offices to
residential without planning permission) June 2013;
Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment)
Regulations 2015;

Deregulation Act 2015 (and ministerial statement on
outcome of Housing Standards Review & Zero Carbon).
Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (implementing
Schedule 3 of Flood & Water management Act 2010);

National Planning Policy and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012; and
Government Planning Practice Guidance (updated March 2015).
3.6 Arising from the outcome of the Government's Review of Housing Standards, the Deregulation Act (Royal Assent
received 26 March) and the accompanying Ministerial Statement, a number of legislative changes have been introduced which
will affect the ability of the Local Plan in setting minimum levels of the Code for Sustainable Homes, CO2 reduction targets
above and beyond the Building Regulations and other standards relating to the environmental performance of new dwellings.
3.7 For any planning application received from March 2015, local planning authorities can no longer require any proposed
residential developments to achieve a specified level of the Code Level 4, or set conditions to this effect. When the
Government's 'zero carbon homes' policy is eventually introduced through further changes to the Building Regulations
expected in late 2016, local planning authorities will no longer be able to either apply or set any policies which require CO2
reduction above and beyond the requirements of the Building Regulations. At this point major residential developments will be
able to meet the ‘zero carbon’ requirement by building to the Code level 4 equivalent on-site (i.e. 25% below Part L 2010) and
making a contribution towards offsite carbon reduction measures (these are known as 'allowable solutions') to offset the
remaining emissions.. Minor residential developments will exempted altogether from offsite allowable solutions - all they have
to do is to demonstrate that the Code level 4 equivalent 25% CO2 reduction standard has been achieved on site.
Government Strategies and Programmes
UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy Securing the future 2005
The Stern Review - The Economics of Climate
Change (HM Treasury 2006)
Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales
and Northern Ireland (DEFRA 2007);
The Energy Efficiency Strategy: The Energy
Efficiency Opportunity in the UK (DECC 2012);
Next steps to zero carbon homes:allowable solutions
(CLG 2013);
The Carbon Plan - reducing greenhouse gas
emissions (CLG 2013) ;
Census and ONS Population Projections
UK Census 2011;
ONS Mid-Year Estimates 2003-13 (26 June 2014);
ONS M-Y Estimates Components of Change 2013;
ONS Vital Statistics 2014;
ONS data on internal migration (June 2014);
ONS 2012-based sub-national population projections
(May 2014);
ONS 2011-based Interim Household Projections
2011-21(April 2013);

Green Deal programme and Energy Company
Obligation (ECO);
National adaptation programme - Making the country
resilient to a changing climate (DEFRA, July 2013)
Economics of the National Adaptation Programme
(DEFRA, July 2013);
Fuel Poverty Strategy for England (DECC, 2015);
Community Energy Strategy (DECC, 2014);
UK Biodiversity Action Plan (UKBAP):
EA’s Thames Catchment Flood Management Plan

(EA, 2009); and
Thames River basin management Plan.
ONS Life Expectancy at Birth, 2010-12
ONS Annual Population Survey 2013 (2014)
School Rolls Data: Department for Education
(provisional data 2014)
CLG Index of Multiple Deprivation (CLG 2010);
NOMIS website on behalf of ONS Employment
Fuel Poverty data (DEFRA 2014); and
UK Climate Projections 2009 (UKCP09) DEFRA
2009.

3.8 It should be noted that the previously existing Governent Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) and Planning Policy
Guidance (PPGs) have been superseded by the NPPF and the Governments on-line planning practice guidance.

LONDON AND SUB-REGIONAL CONTEXT
3.9 The following Mayoral and sub-regional strategies and guidance have also been taken into account:
London Plan
London Plan 2011 (Regional Spatial Strategy); and
Further Alterations to the London Plan (FALP) (10 March, 2015).

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

8

Page 223

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive
Environment SPG (October 2014);
The control of dust and emissions during
construction and demolition (July 2014);
Town Centres SPG (July 2014);
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and
Context (June 2014)
Draft Social Infrastructure SPG (May 2014);
London Planning Statement (May 2014);
Sustainable Design & Construction SPG (2014)
Housing (November 2012);
Mayoral Strategies and Programmes
Sustainable Development Framework (GLA, 2003);
Mayor’s Cultural Strategy (GLA, 2004);
Mayor’s Ambient Noise Strategy (GLA, 2004);
Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy Connecting with
London’s Nature (2002);
Mayor’s Housing Strategy (GLA, 2010);
Mayor’s Health Inequalities Strategy (GLA, 2010);
Mayor’s Transport Strategy (GLA, 2010);

Agenda Item 11

Use of planning obligations in the funding of
Crossrail, and the Mayoral CIL (April 2013);
Land for Industry and Transport (September 2012);
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal
Recreation(September 2012);
All London Green Grid (March 2012);
London's Foundations (March 2012);
SPG: Planning for Equality and Diversity in London
(October 2007);
SPG: Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive
Environment (April 2004).
Mayor's Economic Development Strategy for London
(GLA, 2010);
Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy (GLA, 2010);
Mayor’s Climate Change Mitigation & Energy Strategy
(GLA, 2011);
Mayor’s Climate Change Adaptation Strategy (GLA,
2011);
Mayor’s Water Strategy (GLA, 2011)

3.10 Other relevant non-Governmental strategies at the sub-regional level include the Sutton and East Surrey Water
Business Plan 2015-20 and the Thames Water Strategic Business Plan: 5 Year Plan 2015-20.
BOROUGH CONTEXT
Sutton’s Corporate Plan
3.11 Sutton’s Corporate Plan5 2014/15 - 2018/19 provides a high level, strategic view of the Council's priorities,
challenges, opportunities and key actions over the next few years. The Local Plan is one of the most important ways in
which the Council can deliver on the following objectives at the Borough-wide scale.
Corporate Vision and Priorities
3.12 The Council’s Vision of “Building a community in which all can take part and take pride” is underpinned by
the following corporate priorities:
AN OPEN COUNCIL
Working collaboratively ensuring we involve and listen to residents; and
Helping individuals and communities to work together and to help themselves.
A GREEN COUNCIL
Making Sutton more attractive and sustainable to build on our reputation as a green Borough.
A FAIR COUNCIL
Building safe, strong and healthy communities; and
Increasing economic growth and investment in Sutton making it a place of choice to live and work.
A SMART COUNCIL
Transforming our ways of working to manage reduced budgets and increasing demand; and
Developing an engaged, skilled and entrepreneurial workforce.
Challenges
3.13 The following challenges are identified:
Promoting Sutton as a place to live and work;
Improving and modernising the borough’s transport infrastructure;
Sutton’s Corporate Plan 2014/15-2018/19 is available at on the Council’s website at
file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/patrickwhitter/My%20Documents/Downloads/Sutton_s_Corporate_Plan_201415___201819%20(3).pdf
5

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

9

Agenda Item 11

Page 224

Building on our reputation as the second safest borough in London;
Improving the resilience of residents and communities so that they can take collective responsibility;
Attracting developers, external funding and investment to the borough;
Maximising opportunities for economic growth;
Maximising prevention and early intervention to lessen needs for adult social care and health services;
Transforming the organisation through the Smarter Council Programme;
Harnessing the potential of local, sub-regional andregional partnerships to improve local outcomes; and
Empowering our residents to be more involved in commissioning and delivering services
Opportunities
3.14 In seeking to meet the above challenges the Corporate Plan identifies the following opportunities:
Promoting Sutton as a place to live and work;
Improving and modernising the borough’s transport infrastructure;
Building on our reputation as the second safest borough in London;
Improving the resilience of residents and communities so that they can take collective responsibility;
Attracting developers, external funding and investment to the borough;
Maximising opportunities for economic growth;
Maximising prevention and early intervention to lessen needs for adult social care and health services;
Transforming the organisation through the Smarter Council Programme;
Harnessing the potential of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships to improve local outcomes; and
Empowering our residents to be more involved in commissioning and delivering services.
Key Actions
3.15 Sutton’s Corporate Plan includes a wide range of key actions and success measures for 2018-19 which are set
out in full in the Scoping Table attached to this report as Appendix 1. However, the following actions are highlighted
below since they will be largely dependent on the effective implementation of the Local Plan:
Develop our approach towards community-led renewal and regeneration to deliver effective and sustainable
social, economic and environmental improvements;
Ensure that the borough’s transport network supports the local economy and meets the current and future needs
of the Borough;
Encourage greater use of sustainable modes of transport through our Sustainable Transport Strategy;
Deliver improvements to parks and open spaces to ensure they are accessible and safe for all residents;
Work with our partners and local communities to deliver our One Planet Sutton targets;
Deliver a Decentralised Energy Network and an Energy Recovery Facility by 2017/18;
Deliver integrated health and social care services for older and disabled people;
Deliver the primary and secondary school expansion and new build programme;
Enable children and young people to achieve their ambitions by supporting a high quality education and skills offer;
Work with developers to unlock key development sites across the borough;
Improve the borough’s town and district centres;
Invest £19m to build new council housing; and
Establish a ‘life science cluster’ in the Borough on the site of the Institute of Cancer Research, the Royal
Marsden and Sutton Hospital to the south of the Borough.
One Planet Sutton
3.16 Sutton’s One Planet Action Plan, launched in 2009, sets some of the most challenging sustainability targets in the UK
and committed the Borough to living within our fair share of the earth’s resources by 2025. In 2013-14 the Council reaffirmed
its commitment by reviewing all of our One Planet targets, working in partnership with community groups and businesses.
Following the introduction of the revised targets in October 2013, a progress report was published in March 2015.
3.17 The following One Planet Sutton (OPS) targets are identified under the five themes of cutting carbon emissions,
cutting waste, valuing our natural environment, supporting healthy communities and supporting the local economy:
Cutting Carbon Emissions
3.18 Relevant OPS targets to be achieved by 2017 include:
20% reduction in CO2 from school buildings from 2010-11 baseline;

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 10

Page 225

Agenda Item 11

20% reduction in borough CO2 emissions by 2017 from a 2007 baseline;
all new homes to meet Code for Sustainable Homes level 4 from April 2011 onwards;
all new residential and nonresidential buildings to be Zero Carbon in Hackbridge from 2011 onwards;
40% reduction in CO2 emissions for new residential and major nonresidential developments (compared to Building
Regulations 2010);
new residential developments to meet zero carbon standards from 2016 onwards;
major non-residential developments to achieve a BREEAM rating of 'Outstanding' from 2017 onwards;
To produce and adopt a strategy on fuel poverty to ensure that carbon emissions from vulnerable residents homes
are reduced and their quality of life improved.
increase the percentage of children travelling to school by sustainable transport from 76% (2009) to 80% in 2017;
increase the percentage of residents using sustainable transport from 48% (2010) to 50% in 2017.
Cutting Waste
3.19 Relevant OPS targets to be achieved by 2017 include:
all new developments should use: 10% recycled content by value, 15% local materials by weight, 95% timber
should be FSC certified (or equivalent).
Valuing our Natural Environment
3.20 Relevant OPS targets to be achieved by 2017 include:
produce an Allotment Strategy by 2017;
develop and implement management plans for Council nature conservation sites. (From a baseline of 35 sites with
management plans in 2012) to 39 sites in 2017;
to create 1 Ha new woodland, hedgerows or orchard areas in accordance with tree policies and improve 2 Ha
existing woodland areas for biodiversity;
to implement 3 river improvement projects identified by the Environment Agency (EA) as necessary steps to
achieve targets set through the water framework directive;
ensure that 90% of new dwellings built each year from 2012-13 onwards (including new build, conversions and
change of use) are located on previously developed or ‘Brownfield’ land;
identify all areas at risk of local flooding. Begin to implement flood resilience measures, and document number of
homes with reduced risk of flooding; and.
all new homes in the borough are resilient to flood risk and climate change.
Supporting Healthy Communities
3.21 Relevant OPS targets to be achieved by 2025 include:
produce a local plan to maintain/enhance/revive valuable aspects of culture and heritage (by 2025); and
a One Planet Centre or equivalent environmental exhibition will be created in Sutton
Supporting the Local Economy
3.22 Relevant OPS targets to be achieved by 2025 include:
the Council will promote the Opportunity Sutton programme and specifically the 'matching skills with demand'
project to reduce the inequality gap, seek to reduce Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) figures to
3% NEET not known 7% (current baseline is 4.5% and 10% respectively in January 2012).
Maintain economic activity rate above 80% (80.1% as of October 2011 - December 2012);
25% growth in people employed in the Green Economy compared to 2011 (current baseline is 3,914 people from
Innovas/GLA Study); and
25% growth in Green Businesses compared to 2011 (current baseline is 209 businesses from Innovas/GLA Study).
Economic Development Strategy (Opportunity Sutton)
Vision and Key Themes
3.23 The Council’s Economic Development Strategy, ‘Opportunity Sutton - Unlocking Economic Growth’ (LB Sutton, June
2012), sets out an Agenda for Action which seeks to attract inward investment and promote sustainable economic growth
through the effective development of the physical assets of the Borough. Sutton’s Vision is “to be an enterprising,
enabling borough that is a magnet for business investment; that welcomes new entrepreneurs and social
enterprises; nurtures its business base and removes barriers to enterprise”.
3.24 In June 2012, an Opportunity Sutton Inward Investment event was held in order to demonstrate the Council’s new
approach to economic development and commitment to economic growth and prosperity. An Opportunity Sutton ‘Statement

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 11

Agenda Item 11

Page 226

for Growth’ was launched for business partners and potential investors based on the following 4 strategic themes:
to create a distinctive and competitive offer;
to create an enterprising Borough;
to ensure sustainable growth – the green economy;
to ensure residents share in the growth by matching skills with demand.
Objectives
3.25 Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy identifies the following objectives which the Local Plan should support
making use of the resources set to become available under the reform of the Housing Review Account and the
governments new Rights to Buy policy to deliver a significant programme of new local authority homes for rent.
actively promoting the ‘Sutton Offer’ sites to potential developers through the Opportunity Sutton Inward Investment
Event and the “Sitematch” website;
using new funding to carry out major public realm and shop front improvements in North Cheam and Worcester
Park, alongside a new local business network and the creation of new vibrant areas for the community;
regenerating the Wandle Valley Regional Park identified in the Mayor’s London Plan. This network of green
infrastructure will reach out from the river corridor to adjacent areas of open space, residential and business areas;
seeking London-wide funding for the Regional Park;
lobbying TfL for the extension of the Croydon Tramlink Network to Sutton Town Centre, building on the very strong
business case with funding targeted for 2018;
reviewing the Sutton parking offer to explore inventive ways of encouraging more shoppers into our town centres;
producing a community-endorsed Neighbourhood Plan for Hackbridge by the end of 2012 – and we will roll out a
programme of support for Neighbourhood Plans across the borough to empower communities to shape the growth
and development of their areas;
exploiting a range of funding tools now available to the Council – including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
which is a flexible tariff on all new development; Outer London Funds (OLF) and Growing Places Fund;
providing leadership by using our new powers and existing economic assets in innovative ways to help bring about
improvements in place across the borough;
promoting Sutton as a visitor destination through our heritage sites and historic attractions.
continuing to adhere to the ten principles of One Planet Living framework;
building on Sutton’s ‘jewel in the crown’ – the unique Hackbridge Sustainable Suburb; and
securing 1,500 new homes of the highest environmental standards; the first wave of green economy business
support and public realm investment; and a Decentralised Energy & Heat Network.
3.26 Seven Priority Projects have been identified and a work programme developed in order to deliver the Opportunity
Sutton Economic Growth Programme:
Sutton for Life (Life Science Cluster project);
3.27 The Sutton Life Science Cluster boasts three leading health organisations producing world class patient care, research
and cancer treatment - the Royal Marsden NHA Foundation Trust, the Institute of Cancer Research and the Epsom & St
Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust. These three organisations. An example of this is the ICR, which is a global leader at
isolating cancer related genes and discovering new targeted cancer drugs. The Sutton for Life project seeks to promote the
links between these organisations, develop a joint vision, tell the story of the important work currently undertaken there, and to
provide pathways for increased investment and use of the site for a range of complementary uses. The project will also look at
opportunities to provide business support and encourage knowledge sharing and innovation.
Strengthening Town and District Centres;
3.28 The UK’s high streets and town centres are the focus of the Government and were specifically addressed in Mary
Portas’ report. In the face of emerging threats to the vitality and viability of local and district centres from behavioural shifts
such as out of town shopping areas and the increase in internet shopping, the Council recognises that there is a clear need
for a more strategic and co-ordinated approach to ensure Sutton’s high streets and their businesses thrive.
3.29 The Project has been rolled out through the Opportunity Sutton Roadshow, a series of meeting with traders to
showcase the Opportunity Sutton Project, to listen to business views and work out the support needed. A series of ‘health
checks’ has also been undertaken to establish the current condition of each local and district centre within the Borough and
enable their strengths and unique selling points to be identified. This information will support the implementation of locally
driven and commercially viable schemes.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 12

Page 227

Agenda Item 11

Open for Business
3.30 One of the key aims of the Open for Business priority project is to evolve Sutton’s reputation as an enterprising locality
and a place to do business. In order to achieve this we need to ensure that the Local Authority is fully equipped to make use
of all its existing functions, freedoms and powers drawing them together into a cohesive ‘One Council’ approach. Sutton has a
business base of approximately 7000 businesses, of which a large proportion are micro-businesses employing four people or
less. With a record number of new business start ups formed in 2013-14, the Council intends to build on current momentum
by taking a holistic approach to enterprise working with business start ups and existing firms, supporting Social Enterprises
and other community based companies as well as attracting new business through a robust inward investment campaign.
Tramlink
3.31 The extension of Tramlink from Wimbledon to Sutton Town Centre, via Morden has been promoted by both Sutton
and Merton Councils for over 20 years as part of a shared aspiration to address the transport deficit in South London and
support high quality sub-regional economic growth. The Councils have recently been working in collaboration with Transport
for London (TfL) to make the case for an extension of the Tramlink network.
3.32 In 2014, TfL completed a feasibility study to test the alignment of the route, the location of potential tram stops, and
provide a broad estimate of the cost of construction. The Boroughs identified a funding package that could cover about 20%
of the cost and undertook further public consultation to demonstrate overwhelming public support for the Tramlink extension.
The Councils have separately identified £500m gross value added (GVA) benefits that will be supported by the tram by:
increasing accessibility to and from Sutton for commuters and shoppers;
cutting down journey times within the borough and to /from central London
delivering more customers for local traders;
creating a wider pool of potential employees and increased local employment;
creating up to 3,000 new temporary construction jobs;
bringing greater prosperity to the area by attracting new businesses to Sutton; and
providing a powerful catalyst for the long-term growth of the economy in Sutton.
3.33 The Council will continue to work with the Mayor and the GLA to secure a place for Tramlink in the forthcoming TfL
business plan.
Area Renewal Programmes;
3.34 Sutton has embraced a challenging ambition to become the cleanest, greenest borough in South London, and a
place where business thrives.Area renewal is a programme to promote ‘Place Based Investment’, i.e. generating investment
to strengthen and enhance specific areas by identifying and targeting issues and opportunities to make places more
attractive and functional both for local people and businesses. Opportunity Sutton’s Place Based Investment aims are to:
secure inward investment form the private sector and grant awards to deliver growth and regeneration at a
neighbourhood level;
deliver projects which achieve environmental, social and economic renewal;
secure the vitality and viability of town and district centres; and
engage with businesses, government organisations, the third sector and the community to ensure partnership
working in shaping and delivery of the programme.
Beddington Programme
3.35 The Beddington Programme coordinates Council-wide projects taking place in the Beddington area, together with
projects proactively progressed by the Opportunity Sutton team. The projects are developed and delivered in discussion with
stakeholders. The Council also supports business and resident initiatives to make improvements in the area, through
the Beddington for Business initiative and the Beddington North Neighbourhood Forum. The Council has commissioned
further research and consultation to better understand any issues in the Beddington area – for businesses, residents and
stakeholders – as well as opportunities for making improvements. This work phas led to the production of the following
strategies Beddington, which help to guide on-going project development.
Beddington Environmental Strategy: This document focuses on the industrial location, as well as the environment
throughout Beddington. It includes short, medium and long-term recommendations for making improvements;
Beddington Village Highways Scoping Study: This focuses on roads, and foot and cycle ways, into and around
Beddington Village. It also contains short, medium and long-term recommendations for making improvements.
3.36 Specific Beddington projects include the Beddington Parking Strategy and Improvements, Beddington Business
Improvement District (BID), Beddington Signage and Way-finding Strategy, Air Quality Improvement Programme, Viridor

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 13

Agenda Item 11

Page 228

Community Fund, Environmental Enforcement Programme, Beddington Lane improvements and Beddington Park and The
Grange – Identification, Restoration, Improvement and Interpretation Project.
Hackbridge Programme
3.37 Hackbridge has been identified as Sutton’s flagship OPL community and as a ‘centre for sustainable regeneration
and growth’ within the Borough. Significant levels of regeneration are planned in Hackbridge to create the UK's first truly
sustainable suburb, encompassing the fulfilment of 'One Planet Living' (OPL) principles, whilst enabling the growth of the
centre from a local to a district centre. Sutton’s Core Planning Strategy aims to deliver over 1,000 new homes, more shops,
leisure and community facilities, employment opportunities, sustainable transport links and open space enhancements.
3.38 The Council is seeking to promote the proposed Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN) as the primary longterm approach to delivering low or zero carbon energy to new and existing buildings within Hackbridge. The proposed SDEN
seeks to use 15MW of zero carbon heat available from the permitted Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) plant and 4.5MW of
heat available from the existing landfill gas engines operated by Viridor at Beddington Farmlands to supply space heating
and hot water to new and existing buildings throughout Hackbridge. The ERF will be capable of treating approximately
275,000 tonnes of non-recyclable waste generated within South London. According to recent heat mapping and energy
masterplanning work undertaken on behalf of the Council in May 2014 by the GLA’s Decentralised Energy Project Delivery
Unit (DEPDU), a total of 118,200 MWh/yr of heat supply capacity is estimated to be available from the ERF with potential
carbon savings of around 1,900 tCO2 per year. The heat mapping study identifies a potentially viable network serving new
and existing developments within Hackbridge which could deliver. Further expansion of the network to serve major heat
loads beyond the Hackbridge boundaries could achieve even greater CO2 savings in the region of 5,500 tCO2 per year.
Delivery of the SDEN in Hackbridge is essential to achieving a zero carbon neighbourhood.
Growing the Green Economy
3.39 The low carbon economy is important in Sutton and it already plays a key role by employing over 3,000 people in a
market estimated to be worth £470 million. Whilst Sutton features in the top ten London Boroughs for a number of low
carbon industries there is still a huge opportunity fgor growth. The vision is for Sutton to be a place where low carbon
businesses choose to locate, where there are tangible benefits which they can take advantage of and where economic
growth in the Borough is both economically and environmentally sustainable. To support new and existing low carbon
business to grow in turnover and employee numbers and to take advantage of local, regional, national and international
markets a number of projects are being progressed:
Mapping green businesses in Sutton;
Create a decentralised energy network in Sutton;
Create a Green Business Network;
Exploit Green Deal opportunities;
Create a green business cluster;
Green the local supply chain through Council procurement;
Greening Sutton business;
Green Business Awards.
Matching Skills with Demand
3.40 This project is committed to ensuring that the borough’s residents have the skills required to meet the needs of
businesses and potential future growth sectors. Sutton and its partners will engage with local businesses to understand their
skill requirements and ensure that these can be sourced locally. The project has a number of ambitions and targets which will:
produce an ‘Employment and Skills Strategy’ to analyse the labour market; highlight changes to the benefits
system; provide details of current employment and skills projects; and, set future employment and skills targets
promote Council and external apprenticeship schemes;
broker jobs for LBS residents;
bid for funding to deliver employment and skills projects including the ESF Lone parent scheme;
provide basic employability courses;
provide careers fairs, employment fairs and conferences; and
work with JCP to set up additional work clubs.
Sutton Youth Employment Strategy
3.41 This Strategy supports partnership working with local employers, learning providers and other partners to:
reduce the numbers of young people who are not in education, employment or training in the borough;
increase the employment, work experience, traineeship and apprenticeship opportunities available locally;
identify and support Sutton residents and those in Sutton schools into traineeships and apprenticeships;
raise awareness of apprenticeship and employment route opportunities in schools, pre and post 16;
match prospective trainees and apprentices to local employers - especially those who are currently not in
education, employment or training (NEET) or in vulnerable groups - and increase the number of apprenticeships.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 14

Page 229

Agenda Item 11

Sutton’s Housing Strategy 2015-16
3.42 Sutton’s Housing Strategy for 2014-15 and beyond (April 2015) sets a Vision of “A community in which the housing
needs of all households are met, now and in the future”. To help achieve this Vision, the following 5 priorities and
supporting objectives have been identified based on the Council’s local assessment of housing need throughout the Borough:
Priority A: Increase the supply of affordable housing
Maximise affordable housing provision and achieve sustainable communities through planning policies;
Accelerate delivery of new homes of all tenures, including affordable, [by] being one of the Mayor’s new Housing Zones
Identify and make use of land and other assets to support the provision of affordable housing;
Deliver a programme of building new councilowned homes making full use of net RTB receipts and other resources;
Set up a Development Company to support the supply of new homes across all tenures;
Ensure that an appropriate mix of sizes of affordable units is provided in a range of locations to best meet need;
Ensure that new affordable housing is built to high ecolevels, is of high quality and meets required design standards;
Support the development of Hackbridge as a district centre and sustainable suburb through the provision of additional
housing built to the highest achievable environmental standards.
Priority B: Invest in and make best use of the borough’s existing housing stock
Regenerate existing council stock where appropriate to improve the quality of social housing in the borough;
Achieve and improve upon the decent homes standard across the Council’s stock and invest in its long term future;
Carry out remodelling, adaptations to and, where appropriate, redevelopment of sheltered housing schemes to better
meet the needs of older people;
Improve energy efficiency in the borough’s housing stock across all tenures;
Reduce underoccupation and overcrowding in the borough’s social rented stock;
Operate efficient and effective turnaround of empty or void properties, tenant transfers and nominations within the
social rented stock;
Operate an effective housing allocations policy to ensure that households who genuinely cannot meet their housing
needs in the private sector are assisted;
Make best use of private sector housing to meet the needs of homeless and other housing applicants; and
Work with property owners to bring empty properties back into use through grants, loans or enforcement activity.
Priority C: Promote excellent housing management standards across all types of housing
Ensure, through robust performance management, that the Council’s ALMO, Sutton Housing Partnership (SHP)
maintains an excellent standard of service in all areas;.
Promote excellent standards of service and, where appropriate, stock/management rationalisation within the housing
association sector;
Work with landlords and tenants to ensure good standards of management in the private rented sector; and
Work with SHP and housing associations with stock in the borough to ensure effective resident involvement.
Priority D: Provide housing options advice and address homelessness
Provide effective and comprehensive housing advice services across all tenures etc
Prevent homelessness wherever possible
Work with private landlords to improve access to the private rented sector for low income and vulnerable households
Provide suitable temporary accommodation for statutory homeless households
Help residents adversely affected by current and future welfare benefit changes and prepare for forthcoming changes.
Priority E: Provide housing support and improve the health and wellbeing of residents
Support vulnerable households (including older people, people with disabilities and longterm conditions, people with
a learning disability, people with mental health issues etc.) to find and keep a home in the community and reduce the
need for care and nursing home placements;
Make use of assistive technology to enable older and disabled people to live independently in the community;
Ensure that housing plays its full part in the Council fulfilling its [responsibilities] under the Care Act 2014;
Provide sufficient and suitable accommodation for marginalised groups such as Gypsies and Travellers who are
resident in the borough;
Undertake initiatives in the social housing sector that support residents’ health and well being;
Help long term unemployed vulnerable people living in the most deprived areas into employment; and
Work with partner organisations to tackle and reduce fuel poverty across all housing tenures.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 15

Agenda Item 11

Page 230

Borough Sustainable Transport Strategy
Vision and Objectives
3.43 Sutton’s Sustainable Transport Strategy (LBS, April 2015) sets out the Council’s Vision that:
“Transport policy and provision within the borough should contribute to a more sustainable future, a
better and safer environment, economic prosperity, improved quality of life and greater equality”.
3.44 The Council has agreed the following transport objectives for achieving the aims of the Strategy:
Objective 1: Ensuring that the transport network supports the local economy and meets the current and future needs of
the Borough in a sustainable way;
Objective 2: Reducing car use and the need to travel through the appropriate location of new development, and travel
plans and awareness campaigns;
Objective 3: Enabling smarter travel choices [by] improving & encouraging walking, cycling & public transport;
Objective 4: Reducing the harmful effects of transport on health & the environment & its contribution to climate change;
Objective 5: Improving the safety & security of road users, particularly pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users;
Objective 6: Enhancing transport accessibility for all and improving the public realm and street design.
Public Transport
3.45 The Council will:
Work with partners to support strategic initiatives to develop the public transport network in and around the Borough:
Work with TfL, bus and rail operators to secure improvements to public transport infrastructure and services.
Road Network
3.46 The Council will:
Adopt the Roads Task Force (RTF) road classification system as the basis for the management and development of the
Borough road network [and] for improving the performance of the road network, particularly for sustainable transport.
Implement measures such as linking traffic signals to improve traffic flow, reduce congestion and improve journey
times, particularly for bus users, while giving greater priority to pedestrians and cyclists.
Ensure that roads, bridges, cycleways and footways are invested in and well-maintained to meet the current and future
needs of the Borough.
Implement selective road improvement schemes to reduce congestion and benefit sustainable transport users.
Implement schemes and measures to facilitate efficient freight movement while reducing its adverse impact on the
environment.
Implement improvements around the Beddington Strategic Industrial area to improve accessibility and circulation for
industrial traffic, buses, cyclists and pedestrians.
New Development
3.47 The Council will:
Continue to apply its existing planning policies to help reduce the need to travel and promote sustainable transport by:
– encouraging mixed residential/business use in both new and existing developments;
– ensuring all major trip-generating developments are located in areas of higher public transport accessibility;
– allowing higher residential densities and reduced car parking in areas of higher public transport accessibility such
as town centres;
– applying the Council’s restraint-based parking standards to ensure appropriate levels of parking are provided in
new developments;
– ensuring that all major new developments are accessible by, and make provision for, sustainable forms of
transport, particularly walking and cycling;
– as part of a review of the borough’s Development Plan making sure policies are aimed at reducing the need to
travel and increasing the use of sustainable modes.
Use monies from the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected from new developments for transport infrastructure
Travel Plans
3.48 The Council will:
Require and promote travel plans to maximise use of sustainable transport.
Seek to ensure that all schools in the borough have active school travel plans.
Travel Awareness
3.49 The Council will:
Implement travel awareness and smarter travel campaigns to increase use of sustainable transport.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 16

Page 231

Agenda Item 11

Car Clubs
3.50 The Council will:
continue to support car clubs, which give members access to a pool of cars for flexible periods of time, as and
when required, at rates lower than conventional car hire firms.
Parking
3.51 The Council will:
seek to use its Parking Policy to further its aims to:
– improve road safety throughout the borough;
– promote the use of public transport and other sustainable transport and reduce the number of car journeys;
– improve facilities for disabled people, pedestrians and cyclists;
– reduce the need to travel.
Walking
3.52 The Council will:
implement measures to improve the walking environment and establish new routes. Improve pedestrian routes,
signing and access to bus stops and rail stations.
provide new and improved controlled and uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facilities, with an emphasis on giving
greater priority, convenience and safety to pedestrians.
improve street lighting and CCTV to improve pedestrian safety and security.
ensure that priority is given to pedestrians in all new developments through good planning and design, and in all
highway, traffic and public realm schemes.
Cycling
3.53 The Council will:
implement measures to improve the existing cycling environment and establish new routes.
seek to increase the number and proportion of journeys undertaken by bicycle in the borough and encourage
more people to cycle..
aim to achieve an orbital Cycle Superhighway / Priority Quietway linking Sutton to Kingston and Croydon,
building on the existing orbital cycle route 75.
develop a Quietways network in conjunction with TfL and Sustrans to include all existing cycle routes in Sutton..
develop Safer Cycle Routes to schools across the borough in partnership with TfL (Cycle to School Partnership)
Air Quality
3.54 The Council will:
implement measures to improve air quality in the borough through reducing traffic levels, encouraging more fuel
efficient driving techniques and greater use of zero and low emission vehicles.
Noise
3.55 The Council will:
implement measures to reduce the noise impact of road transport.
Climate Change
3.56 The Council will:
seek to reduce the adverse impact of transport on climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions from
transport and introducing mitigating measures.
Active and Healthy Travel
3.57 The Council will:
reduce the adverse impact of transport on health by encouraging greater use of active travel modes, such as
walking and cycling.
Road Safety
3.58 The Council will:
implement road safety schemes, targeting casualty hotspots in particular and focussing on improving safety for
vulnerable road users such as pedestrians and cyclists..
implement a programme of corridor and neighbourhood schemes aimed at making streets safer for all road
users, particularly users of sustainable transport, giving priority to pedestrians and cyclists..
implement new and innovative solutions to create safer and more liveable streets, including home zones, 20mph
zones, play streets and bike streets.
continue to provide cycle training to schools and to adult learners, carry out road safety campaigns and initiatives in
conjunction with the Safer Sutton Partnership, police and TfL and support the school crossing patrol service.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 17

Agenda Item 11

Page 232

Crime and the Fear of Crime
3.59 The council will:
improve personal security and reduce fear of crime in the public realm through better street design, improved
lighting and sight lines, CCTV and police patrols.
work with public transport operators to improve personal security and reduce fear of crime on public transport.
Access to Services and Infrastructure
3.60 The council will:
work with operators to improve accessibility to public transport services and stations.
implement bus stop accessibility schemes.
Community Transport
3.61 The council will:
support and work with operators of community and accessible transport to improve their services.
Public Realm
3.62 The council will:
implement improvements to the public realm to ensure it is fully accessible to all, especially users of mobility
scooters and wheelchairs.
ensure that the needs of the disabled and mobility impaired, elderly and infirm and young children are fully
provided for in all new developments, transport and public realm schemes.
develop schemes to enhance the accessibility and attractiveness of the borough’s high streets and local shopping
centres, taking into account the principles of the Living Streets ‘Speak up for your High Street’ campaign.
develop borough-specific public realm design guidance to ensure a high quality and consistent approach across
the Borough, using an agreed common palette of street furniture materials and design principles.
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
3.63 As a lead local flood authority (LLFA), the Council is required under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010
to develop,maintain, apply and monitor a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy. This must include:
the risk management authorities within the boundaries of Sutton Council and what management functions each
authority has
the objectives for managing local flood risk, along with how and when they are expected to be achieved. It also
needs to detail how each objective will be paid for along with the cost and benefit of each measure
an assessment of local flood risk
a roadmap of how and when the strategy is to be reviewed
how the wider environment will benefit by achieving the objectives set out in the strategy.
3.64 The aim of the Strategy is to work in partnership with local communities and organisations responsible for
managing flooding, in order to better understand and reduce local flood risk in Sutton where it is economically, technically,
socially and environmentally feasible to do so. To achieve this aim a number of key objectives have been identified:
improve our understanding and data holdings regarding mechanisms of flooding in Sutton;
build on relationships with Risk Management Authorities and maximise joint working opportunities for multiple
benefits;
proactively encourage sustainable practices and identify opportunities for holistic water management across the
Borough;
reduce the number of homes at risk from flooding; and
support local residents to increase their own resilience to flooding.
Borough Climate Change Adaptation Strategy
3.65 The Borough Climate Change Adaptation Strategy6 (LBS, June 2011) was prepared as a key output arising from
Sutton’s participation in the EU ‘GRaBS’ project (Green and Blue Space Adapation for Urban Areas and Eco Towns)
from 2008-11. The Strategy sets out the Council’s Vision to:
"ensure that the location, layout and design of all new developments within the Borough minimise
vulnerability of people and property and are fully adapted and resilient to future climate impacts" by:

6

the Strategy can be accessed at http://www.sutton.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=10960

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 18

Page 233

Agenda Item 11

raising awareness and understanding of stakeholders, the local community and businesses within Sutton about
climate change issues;
minimising all sources of flood risk to and from new and existing developments and, where possible, reduce flood
risks overall, taking future climate scenarios into account;
minimising the contribution to the Urban Heat Island effect and exposure to overheating through a range of urban
design measures at both the neighbourhood and building scales.
maximising the benefits of blue and green infrastructure in terms of flood risk management and sustainable
urban drainage, mitigating Urban Heat Island effects, public access to open space, biodiversity and habitats and
environmental enhancement;
taking account of expected changes in local climatic conditions throughout the lifetime of new developments by
incorporating sufficient flexibility of design and layout to enable further adaptation to the future impacts of climate
change and other changing economic, environmental or social requirements;
creating sustainable, socially cohesive and equitable communities within the Hackbridge sustainable
neighbourhood and other community regeneration areas within the Borough which benefit from an attractive and
healthy environment; and
assisting the Council in adapting its corporate services to meet the challenges of climate change, particularly in
relation to the need for emergency planning and ensuring business continuity.
Sutton Biodiversity Action Plan 2010-15
3.66 Sutton’s Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) is a plan for action to conserve, protect and enhance wildlife in the
London Borough of Sutton. It will do this by achieving measurable targets for priority habitats and species over the next
five years. Following wide consultation the priority habitats are woodland and scrub; parks and open spaces; rivers and
wetlands; private gardens; allotments and chalk grassland. These priority habitats were selected as they are national,
regional and local habitats at risk, areas important for rare species, as well as culturally valued and characteristic
habitats of the Borough. However, the BAP does not just seek to conserve those species that are rare or endangered;
declines of more widespread or common species require action too.
3.67 The BAP sets out measurable targets aim to maintain, improve and extend existing habitat types and to raise
awareness of the importance of these habitats. It follows on from the strategic framework for biodiversity in the UK, from
its initial commitment to protecting and enhancing wildlife and habitats at the ‘Earth Summit’ in Rio de Janeiro in 1992,
where the UK was one of the signatories of the Convention on Biological Diversity, through to the establishment of a UK
Steering Group setting nationwide objectives, habitats and species for priority action. This culminated in the
development of local biodiversity action plans to implement actions and raise awareness at a local level.
Sutton Equality & Diversity Framework 2014/15 – 2018/19
3.68 Sutton’s Equality & Diversity Framework sets out the following equality and diversity principles:
working in partnership with equality and diversity organisations, the voluntary sector, and local businesses to
promote, recognise and celebrate difference within the context of fairness and equality. This can be achieved in a
number of ways including working in partnership to organise and deliver key community events, and supporting
advice, information and advocacy services.
working with residents to create communities which challenge discrimination & embrace difference.
putting the needs of service users at the heart of delivery and embedding and mainstreaming equality into the
work of the London Borough of Sutton.
ensuring an evidence and needs based approach is taken in all decision making through the development and
completion of Integrated Impact Assessments for strategies, policies, programmes and projects and all the
Council’s commissioning activities.
monitoring and assessing the impact of our strategies, policies, programmes, projects and commissioning on
equality, and, where appropriate, improve upon any adverse impacts.
being open and transparent, publishing and ensuring easy access to equality information and outcomes
ensuring consultation and engagement with stakeholders is integral to the development, implementation and
review of our strategies, policies, programmes, projects and commissioning activities.
working towards developing a workforce which is representative of local communities and ensuring employment
policies are fair and robust.
drawing on best practice to continuously improve and strengthen our approach to equality and diversity in the
workplace, when commissioning and delivering services and in our communication with residents.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 19

Agenda Item 11

Page 234

Other Council Strategies
3.69 Other Council strategies incorporating sustainability objectives and associated targets include:
Beddington Environmental Strategy (Dec 2014)
Playing Pitch Strategy;
Sutton’s Crime and Disorder, Drug and Alcohol Strategy;
Older People’s Commissioning Strategy;
Children and Young People’s Plan;
Sutton Open Space Strategy;
Sutton Property Strategy;
Air Quality Action Plan;
Sutton Children and Young People’s Plan;
Sutton Biodiversity Action Plan;
Sutton Play Strategy;
Sutton Contaminated Land Strategy;
Sport and Physical Activity Strategy;

OTHER LOCAL STRATEGIES
Wandle Catchment Plan
3.70 The Wandle Catchment Plan, prepared in 2014 by the Wandle Trust in partnership with the Environment Agency
(EA), Wandle Boroughs (including Sutton), the London Wildlife Trust, local anglers, residents and Wandle Valley
stakeholders sets out a holistic strategy for restoring south London’s River Wandle to its former glory as one of the
world’s most famous chalk streams.
3.71 The Strategy applies the EA’s national Catchment Based Approach for river management planning, and will help
the Wandle to reach a state of health known as ‘Good Ecological Potential’ for the purposes of fulfilling the UK’s
obligations under the European Water Framework Directive. The following Aims have been identified for improving the
health of the Wandle catchment, and its value to local people:
Water: the river’s water should be plentiful and clean, and varied in its flow speeds, widths and depths;
Habitat and wildlife: the river should support a mosaic of habitats with high biodiversity;
Good access: local people should be able to access sympathetically managed pathways along the whole river;
Engagement: everyone in the catchment should be aware of the river, and knows how their actions can affect it,
with councils, businesses, government agencies and the public working together to improve the river.
3.72 In turn, these Aims have generated a suite of shared Objectives:
Water quantity: water supply in all sections of the river should be sufficient to sustain a healthy population of
native flora and fauna and is resilient to risk of drought or flood from extreme weather events or management for
human use;
Water quality: quality of water flowing in the River Wandle should meet the standards required for Good
Ecological Potential and is stable with no risk of deterioration;
Dynamics of flow: the river should have a re-naturalised varied profile that creates a diversity of flow speeds
and water quantity to provide all the key habitat types required by the native flora and fauna associated with
lowland chalk streams;
Fish and fisheries: thriving populations of native fish associated with chalk rivers should be present and able to
move freely;
Macrophytes, trees and the wider river habitat: communities associated with chalk rivers should be abundant
along the river, providing good habitat variety for wildlife and for people;
Invertebrates: the diverse communities associated with chalk rivers should be abundant along the river, playing
important roles in ecosystem function and complexity, such as providing a food source for other wildlife; and
Phytobenthos: good populations associated with chalk rivers should be present along the river.
3.73 Under each Objective, a range of Targets and Actions has also been identified for the river’s benefit, and to
increase the environmental and cultural benefits (also known as ecosystem services) which it provides for local people.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 20

Agenda Item 11

FOUR

Page 235

4. The Environmental, Social and Economic Baseline for Sutton (Task A2)
WHAT IS BASELINE INFORMATION?
4.1 The term ‘baseline information’ refers to the existing environmental, economic and social characteristics of the area
likely to be affected by the plan, and their likely direction of change without any change to current planning policies. This
information has been used as part of the sustainability appraisal (SA) process as the basis for identifying key issues and
problems to be addressed by the Local Plan (Section 5) and for assessing the likely impacts of alternative policy options on
the social, economic and environmental objectives of sustainable development (Section 6).
4.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) emphasies that an up-to-date evidence base is essential for
producing a sound Local Plan. The environmental, social and economic baseline set out in this chapter is therefore derived
from the information included in Sutton’s latest Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 2013-14 and a range of studies currently
being undertaken or commissioned by the Council as part of the Local Plan evidence gathering stage. These include:
Call for Sites - residential and other;
Re-assess the taller buildings policy;
Housing Delivery Assessment, including capacity in
Retail Study (including ‘health checks’ for town and
Sutton Town Centre and rest of the Borough;
local centres);
Deliverability of Allocations Paper - an assessment
Other studies for Sutton Town Centre;
of the viability of the proposals;
Local List Additions;
Refreshed Strategic Housing Market Assessment;
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment; and
Care Home Need;
Evidence carried through from the previous
Gypsy and Traveller Need and Site Search
Examination in Public (EiP).
4.3

This information will enable the Council to gain a better understanding of the following questions:
How good or bad is the current situation? Do trends show that it is getting better or worse?
How far is the current situation from any established thresholds or targets?
Are particularly sensitive or important elements of the environment affected (e.g. people, resources, habitats)?
How difficult would it be to offset or remedy any damages?Are there expected to be such effects in the future?

4.4 The baseline information set out below will be updated as appropriate for inclusion in the next SA Report on Local
Plan Issues and Preferred Options to be published for public consultation in early 2015.

INTRODUCTION TO THE BOROUGH
4.5 The London Borough of Sutton (4,385 ha), forms part of the South London Sub-Region along with the neighbouring
Boroughs of Croydon, Merton, Kingston, Richmond, Bromley and Wandsworth. The Borough forms an important part of
the Wandle Valley, the key regeneration corridor within South London.
4.6 Sutton used to consist of rural villages linked to feudal and royal estates. The ‘village feel’ remains, and people still
refer to places such as Carshalton, Cheam and Belmont as villages. This is reflected in the number of high quality heritage
areas designated as Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character (ASLCs). There are extensive areas of
low-density housing, mainly in the south of the Borough, which were built in the 1920s and 1930s, characterised by large,
detached houses with well landscaped gardens. In contrast, there are pockets of relative social deprivation, characterised
by limited access to employment, social infrastructure and transport services, including areas to the north of the Borough,
such as Rosehill, St Helier and the Wrythe, and parts of South Beddington.
4.7 Sutton Town Centre is one of 4 Metropolitan Centres in South London, which offers a high level of attractive and
accessible shopping, employment and leisure activities well served by public transport. The town centre has over 250 retail
units within an attractive pedestrianised environment. Sutton Town Centre is complemented by 6 district centres, at Cheam,
North Cheam, Wallington, Worcester Park, Rosehill and Carshalton, along with many local centres and dispersed parades.
4.8 Industrial activity is concentrated in the Borough’s established industrial areas, three of which are identified as
strategic industrial locations (SILs). These are Kimpton, Beddington and a small part of the Purley Way SIL. Each of these
is served by key radial routes into London from the M25. The Beddington SIL, the largest area, suffers from a poor quality
environment, notably along Beddington Lane. Elsewhere, the Felnex site in Hackbridge has outline permission for
comprehensive redevelopment to provide a mix of homes, shops, employment and community uses.
Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 21

Agenda Item 11

Page 236

4.9 Towards the south of the Borough, the proposed life science cluster (Sutton for Life) is being promoted by the
Council in partnership with the Institute for Cancer Research (ICR), the Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust and
Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust (Sutton Hospital) and seeks to build upon the world leading patient
care, research and cancer treatment produced by these three organisations. As well as world-class expertise and skills,
there is the potential to create additional research space and capability. It is estimated up to 90,000 square metres of
floor space could be developed, potentially supporting around 3,675 jobs.
4.10 The Borough’s road network (380 km) includes 3 strategic ‘Red Routes’ (17.5 km) managed by TfL (A24, A217
and A232). The remainder of the road network is managed by the Council, and consists of 12 km of other ‘A’ roads, 25
km of ‘B’ roads, 17 km of ‘C’ roads and 308 km of local access roads. The Borough is well-served by a number of
suburban rail services and there 2 Tramlink stops in the north east corner of the Borough.
4.11 Hackbridge, which includes the world-renowned BedZED7 development has been identified as Sutton’s flagship One
Planet Living (OPL) community and as a ‘centre for sustainable regeneration and growth’ within the Borough. Significant
levels of regeneration are planned to create the UK's first truly sustainable suburb whilst enabling the growth of the centre
from a local to a district centre. Sutton’s Core Planning Strategy aims to deliver over 1,000 new homes, more shops, leisure
and community facilities, employment opportunities, sustainable transport links and open space enhancements.
4.12 The Localism Act 2011 gave local communities new powers to plan for their areas through ‘neighbourhood planning’.
In 2011, Hackbridge was selected as one of the original 17 communities across the country to act as a ‘front runner’ for
neighbourhood planning. Hackbridge & Beddington Corner was formally designated as a neighbourhood planning area in
September 2012 and a neighbourhood development group formed in order to oversee the preparation of the plan. Public
consultation on the Hackbridge and Beddington Corner neighbourhood development plan will take place later in 2015.
Building upon the success of Hackbridge and the already high level of community interest in the creation of the Wandle
Valley Regional Park and other key issues, such as the need for investment for Beddington Lane improvements, Beddington
North was formally designated as a neighbourhood planning area and forum in November 2013.
4.13 Map 4.1 shows key strategic features of the Borough.

SOCIAL BASELINE
Resident Population
4.14 According to the latest ONS Mid-Year Estimates8 released in June 2014, Sutton’s resident population reached
195,914 on 30 June 2013. This total represents a net increase of 14,647 (+8.1%) in the Borough’s population over the
preceding 10-year period since 2003 and a 5,814 increase (+3.1%) compared to the 2011 Census figure of 190,100.
Components of Population Change
4.15 Between 2003 and 2013, the annual change in the Borough’s population increased significantly from a net
decrease of 173 residents in 2003-04 to an increase of +2,284 in 2012-13. This trend is mainly due to the large increase
in both births and inward migration from other parts of the UK (Map 4.2) and overseas. Table 4.1 shows that the number
of births increased from 2,009 in 2001-02 to reach a peak of 2,835 in 2011-12 before falling to 2,639 in 2012-13.
Table 4.1: Annual Population Change Analysis 2001-02 to 2012-13
Previous
Natural
Net Migration & Other Overall
Year
Births
Deaths
MYE for Year
MYE
Change
Changes
Change
2001-02
181,461
2,009
1,693
+316
-512
-196
181,265
2002-03
181,265
2,243
1,667
+576
-574
2
181,267
2003-04
181,267
2,172
1,710
+462
-635
-173
181,094
2004-05
181,094
2,345
1,499
+846
163
1,009
182,103
2005-06
182,103
2,320
1,520
+800
-21
779
182,882
2006-07
182,882
2,516
1,430
+1,086
206
1,292
184,174
2007-08
184,174
2,576
1,532
+1,044
642
1,686
185,860
2008-09
185,860
2,716
1,425
+1,291
1,016
2,307
188,167
2009-10
188,167
2,701
1,436
+1,265
-111
1,154
189,321
2010-11
189,321
2,688
1,388
+1,305
497
1,802
191,123
2011-12
191,123
2,835
1,358
+1,477
1,030
2,507
193,630
2012-13
193,630
2,639
1,461
+1,178
1,106
2,284
195,914
Source: ONS Mid-Year Estimates Components of Change 2013 (Published 26 June 2014)

4.16 According to ONS data on internal migration released in June 2014, a total of 10,160 persons migrated to the
London Borough of Sutton from elsewhere in the UK during the year ending June 2013 while 9,490 migrated from the
Borough over the same period. There was thus a net influx of 670 persons as a result of internal migration.
7
8

Beddington Zero Energy Development
Mid-2013 ONS Population Estimates are available at http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/publications/re-reference-tables.html?edition=tcm%3A77-322718

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 22

Page 237

Agenda Item 11

Population Projections
4.17 Figure 4.1 sets out Borough population projections for 2014-29 based on the following alternative GLA and ONS models:
GLA SHLAA-based9 (capped) population projections (GLA’s 2013 Round of Demographic Projections10 - Mar 2014);
GLA Trend-Based (Central) population projections (GLA’s 2013 Round of Demographic Projections - March 2014);
ONS 2012-based sub-national population projections (ONS, May 2014).
Figure 4.1: Population Projections for LB Sutton 2014-29 (GLA and ONS)
240,000

238,200
236,000

ONS 2012-based sub-national Population Projections
235,000

233,700

GLA Trend-Based Population Projections (Central)

230,000

231,300

228,900

GLA SHLAA-Based Population Projections (Capped)
226,400

Borough Population

225,000

223,800

221,200

220,000

218,400

221,828

205,000
200,000
195,000

225,952

218,755
217,107

212,800
215,383

210,000

210,000

224,617

220,333

215,600

215,000

223,253

213,588

211,701

207,100

209,830
208,271
204,300
207,940
206,844 207,557
206,020
201,500
205,434 206,133
204,471
203,665
203,509
198,800
202,543
201,576
201,281
200,622
199,774
198,875
198,932
198,089
197,249
195,625 196,414

190,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Sources: GLA Round of Demographic Projections 2013 (Published 2014) and ONS Sub-National Population Projections May 2014

4.18 The GLA’s trend-based projections - which take no account of housing capacity or development data across London
and assume that recent domestic migration patterns will persist in future years - show that over the next 15 years, the
Borough’s resident population will increase by 27,077 (+13.6%) from a total of 198,800 in 2014 to 225,952 in 2029.
4.19 The GLA’s SHLAA-based (capped) population projections - which follow the growth patterns shown in the trendbased projections, but caps average household size at 2012 levels - show that over the next 15 years the resident
population of the Borough will increase by 12,646 (+6.5%) from 195,625 in 2014 to 208,271 in 2029.
4.20 The ONS 2012-based projections – which assume that observed levels of births, deaths and migration mainly
over the previous five years will continue into the future - show that over the next 15 years the Borough population will
increase by 39,400 (+19.8%) from 198,800 in 2014 to 238,200 in 2029.
Components of Future Population Change
4.21 Figure 4.2 shows components of future population change, in terms of estimated births, deaths and net migration
over the next 10 years from 2014-24, based on the GLA’s SHLAA-based (capped) projections included in the 2013
Round of Population and Household Projections published in 2014.
Figure 4.2: Projected Births, Deaths and Net Migration in LB Sutton 2014-24

2,503

2,522

2,542

2,563

2,586

2,610

2,642

2,682

2,719

2,752

2,000

Births
Deaths
Net Migration

1,500

1,000

+702

+720

+724

+727

+514

+533

+534

+550

+554

+600

+601

Overall Change

500

0
-335

-163

-180

1,403

1,398

1,395

1,393

1,394

-1,394

-146

1,412

-211

1,422

-356

1,434

-377

1,449

-1,000

-409

-436

-495

-498

-500

1,469

Projected Population Change

2,500

2,779

3,000

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

-1,500

Source: GLA SHLAA-Based (Capped) Population Projections 2013 (Published 2014)

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
the GLA’s 2013 Round of Demographic Projections (March 2014) can be accessed via the London datastore at http://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/2013-roundpopulation-projections
9

10

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 23

Page 238

Agenda Item 11

4.22 The biggest increases in population are predicted for Wandle Valley (13.8%), Sutton Central (9.8%), Carshalton
South (8.0%) and Belmont (7.4%). Population growth in each of these four Wards is expected to exceed the rate of
growth across the South London Sub-Region as a whole (7.3%) over the same period.
Age Structure
4.23 According to the GLA’s SHLAA-based (capped) projections for 2014, 19.1% (37,322) of Borough residents are
aged between 0-14, 65.8% (128,806) are aged 15-64 and 15.1% (29,498) are aged over 65+.
4.24 Due to the sharp increase in the Borough birth rate from around 2003 onwards, the number of primary school aged
children (4-10) has grown by 2,089 (+13.5%) from a low of 15,479 in 2008 to 17,568 in 2014. This figure is expected to peak
at 18,943 in 2019. These trends will feed into an increasing demand for secondary school places in future years
4.25 Over the last 10 years from 2004-14, the number of older residents (aged 65 or over) within the Borough has
increased by 1,061 (32.5%) from a total of 3,269 in 2004 to 4,330 in 2014. The number of older persons is predicted to
increase by an additional 1,089 persons (25.2%) to reach a total of 5,419 by 2024.
Ethnicity
4.26 Based on the GLA 2013 Round SHLAA Capped Ethnic Group population projections (August 2014), 76.2% of
Borough residents are white, 13.0% are Asian/ Asian British, 7.2% are Black/ Black British, 1.3% are Chinese and 2.3%
are ‘other’ (including mixed race). The proportion of ‘black and minority ethnic’ (BME) residents living in the Borough is
expected to rise from the current 23.8% in 2014 to 28.9% by 2024.
Household Projections
4.27 Figure 4.3 sets out Borough household projections from 2014-29 consisting of the following alternative GLA and
Office for National Statistics (ONS) models:
GLA SHLAA-based (capped) household projections based on the GLA’s 2013 Round of Demographic Projections
published in March 2014;
GLA Trend-Based (Central) projections, also based on the GLA’s 2013 Round of Demographic Projections;
ONS Interim Household Projections 2011-21 published by the ONS April 2013.
Figure 4.3: Projected Household Growth in LB Sutton 2014-29 (GLA and ONS)
95,000
94,340
91,179
88,509
87,212

Borough Households

91,837

89,835

90,000

88,491

85,927
83,404

90,159

91,002

87,593
86,698

84,649

85,000

89,304

92,665

95,157

93,514

85,810
84,917

84,316 84,594
83,759 84,038
83,098 83,481
82,715
82,331
81,773
81,565 81,948
80,540 80,882 81,223
80,199
79,536 79,857

82,166

83,861

82,824

80,000

ONS Interim Household Projections 2011-21
75,000

GLA Trend-Based Projections (Central)
GLA SHLAA-Based Projections (Capped)

70,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Source: GLA 2013 Demographic Projections (March 2014) and ONS Interim Household Projections (April 2013)

GLA household projections: SHLAA-based (capped) and Trend-Based (Central)
4.28 According to the GLA’s SHLAA-based (capped) projections, the number of Borough households is expected to
increase by 6.2% from an estimated 79,536 in 2014 to 84,494 in 2029 (4,958 additional households). However, the trendbased (central) model predicts a much larger increase in Borough households of 16.4%, from an estimated 81,773 in
2014 to 95,157 in 2029 (13,384 additional households).
ONS household projections: 2011-based Interim Household Projections 2011-21
4.29 According to the 2011-based Interim Household Projections 2011-21 published by the ONS in April 2013 (which only
extends to 2021) the number of Borough households is expected to increase by 11.0% from an estimated 82,166 in 2014 to
91,179 in 2021 (9,013 additional households).

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 24

Page 239

Agenda Item 11

Household Composition
4.30 According to the GLA’s SHLAA-based (capped) projections, the number of ‘couple households with children’ will
increase by 635 from 15,628 in 2014 to 16,263 in 2029, with a fall in the percentage share from 19.6% to 19.3%. ‘Couple
households without children’ will increase by 125 from a total of 17,514 in 2014 to 17,678 in 2029 but also see a decline in
terms of percentage share from 22.0% to 21.3%. Over the same period, the number and proportion of lone parent households
will increase from a total of 5,408 (6.8%) to 6,181 (7.4%); ‘multi-person’ households will increase from 17,023 (21.4%) to
19,872 (23.9%); and ‘one-person households’ will decrease by 1,023 from a total of 23,963 (30.1%) to 22,941 (28.1%).
Household Size
4.31 The average size of Borough households is currently 2.41 persons, below the London-wide average of 2.47. Average
household size within the Borough is predicted to fall steadily to around 2.35 persons by 2029.
Household Tenure
4.32 Most properties were owner-occupied (68.0%) at the time of the 2011 Census. The highest proportion of social
rented households is found in St Helier (40.5%), with Cheam having the lowest proportion at 2.5%.
Car Ownership
4.33 Sutton has the third highest car ownership levels in London (76.6%) with 91,266 cars in total or 1.2 per household.
Social Deprivation (Index of Multiple Deprivation)
4.34 The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), produced as part of the Indices of Deprivation 2010 (ID2010), shows that
Sutton’s overall social deprivation ranking had worsened since 2007 compared to other London Boroughs (ranked 28th out
of 33 where 1 is the most deprived compared to 30th in 2007).
4.35 Despite the strength of the IMD scores across LB Sutton as a whole, 6 of the 121 super output areas (SOAs) in the
Borough are ranked amongst the most deprived 20% in the UK, up from 3 in 2007 (Map 4.3). Two of these SOAs are
located in Beddington South, clustered around the Roundshaw estate, one in Wandle Valley, one in St Helier, one in
Belmont clustered around the Shanklin Estate and one in Sutton Central. 19 out of the 26 most deprived SOAs are located
in Wards identified as deprived: St Helier (7), Wandle Valley (5), Beddington South (3), Sutton Central (3) and Belmont (1).
The other 7 are located within The Wrythe, Wallington North, Wallington South and Sutton North.
4.36 Between 2007 and 2010, 27 SOAs within the Borough moved into a more deprived quintile from 2007 to 2010. In
contrast only 1 SOA moved into a less deprived quintile from 2007 to 2010. Since the previous IMD scores in 2007, the
biggest increases in deprivation have been seen in Sutton West, Wandle Valley and Worcester Park
4.37 Scores measuring the ‘local concentration’ of pockets of social deprivation show that LB Sutton has a greater severity
of localised deprivation than the South London Sub-Region but is lower than for London as a whole.. Figure 4.4 shows that
Sutton has the 28th lowest proportion (out of 33 Boroughs) of the most deprived in London at 5%. However, Sutton has a
higher proportion of LSOAs in the ‘most deprived’ quintile than the South London Sub-Region Boroughs of Merton, Kingston
and Richmond (the least deprived Borough). Over a quarter of SOAs in Sutton are in the ‘least deprived’ quintile.
Figure 4.4: Borough Distribution of LSOAs in England Interquintile Ranges (IMD 2010) compared to other London Boroughs
Least Deprived (5th Quintile)

Most Deprived (1st Quintile)

100%
90%

27

Number of Super Output Areas (SOAs)

80%
70%
40

60%

50%
40%
28

30%
20%
20

10%

Richmond

City of London

Merton

Kingston

Harrow

Barnet

Hillingdon

Redbridge

Bromley

Havering

Bexley

Hounslow

Croydon

Wandsworth

Ealing

Westminster

Kens & Chel

Brent

Camden

Enfield

Hamm & Ful

Lambeth

Southwark

Lewisham

Greenwich

Islington

Bark & Dag

Haringey

Waltham For

Hackney

Tower Hamlets

Newham

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

LB SUTTON

6

0%

PAGE 25

Page 240

Agenda Item 11

Health
4.38 The Council’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment published in 2013 concludes that Sutton is a healthy place to live,
with increasing life expectancies compared to national averages. However there has been a significant widening of health
inequalities for both men and women within the Borough over recent years. Life expectancy within the most deprived areas of
the Borough is currently 7.5 years lower for men and 4.8 years lower for women compared to the least deprived areas.
4.39 At the time of the 2011 Census, the proportion of Borough residents with a long term health problem or disability was
14.3%, slightly higher than that for the South London Sub-Region (13.4%), and for London as a whole (14.2%). The Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment estimates that by 2025, health and social care services will need to provide care or services for
an additional 3,800 people with a long term limiting illness and 2,100 people with a physical or visual disability.
School Provision
4.40 There are 41 primary schools in the Borough, consisting of Infants, Junior and Primary Schools. In 2012-13 these
were attended by a total of 14,534 pupils with 14,726 school places available. The number of pupils attending primary
schools within the Borough increased by over 1,500 pupils or 11% since 2004-05. There are 14 secondary schools in the
Borough. As of 2012-13 these were attended by 17,570 pupils with 17,976 places available. Figure 4.5 shows that the
increasing demand for primary and secondary school places will need to be sustained until at least to the end of the decade.
Figure 4.5: Projected growth in primary and secondary school pupils in LB Sutton from 2012-13 to 2019-20
25,000

20,000

Number of Pupils

17,610
15,000

14,540

18,107

18,553

19,080

15,286

15,839

16,331

19,799

20,197

16,841

17,254

20,907

21,465

10,000

Secondary School Pupils
(Years 7-13)

5,000

Primary School Pupils
(Reception and Years 1-6)

0

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
(actual)

Source: Department for Education Forecasts December 2013

4.41 To meet the increasing demand for school places, the Council introduced a programme in 2011 to expand primary
school capacity. As of April 2014, 18 bulge classes have been established and 15 primary schools enlarged to give a total of
18 forms of additional capacity.. Public consultation to increase Cheam Common Junior, The Federation of St Elphege’s
Catholic Junior and St Mary’s Catholic Junior took place in February-March 2014.
Educational Skills and Training
4.42 According to the Department of Education (DfE), the proportion of 16-18 year olds in LB Sutton who are ‘not in
education, employment or training’ (NEET) was 4.0%, lower than the average for South London (4.2%) and for London as a
whole (3.8%). The proportion of NEETS in the Borough has fallen from 4.2% in 2010 to 4.0% in 2013. Map 3.24 of the
Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows the extent of education, skills and training deprivation across the Borough based on the
‘Educational Skills and Training’ domain of the Indices of Deprivation 2010.
Crime
4.43 According to Metropolitan Police crime statistics, overall crime levels in LB Sutton during 2013-14 amounted to 53.0
crimes per 1,000 residents compared to an average of 61.2 for the South London Sub-Region and 83.0 across London as a
whole. Overall crime is down 9.2% from the previous year’s figure of 58.4. Figure 3.46 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows
the 10-year trend since 2003-04 and Map 3.25 of the AMR shows how the overall crime rate varies across the Borough.
Unemployment
4.44 Figure 4.6 shows that, as of April 2014, the proportion of Job Seekers’ Allowance (JSA) claimants within the Borough
was 1.8%, just below the South London average (1.9%) and well below the London figure of 2.8%.The proportion of JSA
Claimants as a percentage of Sutton’s working age population (16-64) peaked at 2.8% in April 2009 before falling to 1.8% in
April 2014. However, the unemployment rate in Sutton is still higher than it was in April 2008 prior to the economic crash.
4.45 Figure 3.59 and Map 3.31 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 show how the rate of unemployment varies across the
Borough. As of April 2014, the Ward with the highest proportion of JSA claimants is Wandle Valley (4.5%), followed by St.
Helier (4.2%) and Beddington South (3.9%). Cheam Ward has the lowest proportion of JSA claimants at 1.3%.
Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 26

Page 241

Agenda Item 11

4.46 The proportion of long-term unemployed people of working age (JSA claimants for over 12 months) within the
Borough has increased from a low of 0.3% in 2008 to 0.7% in 2013 before falling to 0.6% in 2014. The rate of youth
unemployment as a proportion of residents aged 18-24 has increased sharply from a low of 2.9% in 2008 to a peak of 6.2%
in 2009 before declining to 3.3% in April 2014.
Figure 4.6: Job Seekers’ Allowance Claimants as a percentage of the working age population (aged 16-64) from 2004-14
JSA Claimants as % of Woprking Age pop.

4.5%
4.0%

4.0%
3.5%

3.3%

3.2%

2.9%

2.8%
2.4%

2.5%
2.0%

2.1%

3.8%

3.3%

3.0%

2.7%

2.8%
2.8%

2.8%

2.8%

2.8%
2.6%

2.8%

2.7%

2.6%

2.0%

2.0%
1.5%

4.1%

4.0%

3.8%

1.9%
1.7%

1.8%

1.9%

1.6%

1.5%

1.8%

1.5%

London

1.3%

1.0%

South London Sub-Region
LB Sutton

0.5%
0.0%

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Source: NOMIS website on behalf of ONS December 2014

Fuel Poverty
4.47 A ‘fuel poor’ household is defined as one where the household income is below the poverty line, one energy costs
are taken into account and the energy costs are higher than is typical for their household type. Based on data released by
the Department for Energy and Climate Change (DECC) in August 2014, it can be seen that the proportion of fuel poor
households in Sutton (7.4%) is lower than the average for the South London Sub-region (8.10%) and that for London as a
whole (8.9%). Sutton has the third lowest proportion of fuel poor households in the Sub-Region. Map 3.35 of the Sutton
AMR 2013-14 shows how the proportion of households in fuel poverty varies across the Borough.
Housing Delivery
4.48 Over the previous five-year period, from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2014 a total of 1,652 net additional dwellings were
completed within the Borough from new build, conversions and changes of use. This equates to an average annual
completion rate of just under 330 net additional dwellings per year11. LB Sutton’s annual completion rate over the last five
years has therefore been in line with the previous London Plan target (345 net additional dwellings per year between 200708 and 2010-11) and exceeds the current 2011 London Plan target (210 net additional dwellings per year from 2011-12 to
2020-21) by an average of 120 dwellings a year.
4.49 340 net additional dwellings were delivered between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014, exceeding the 2011 London Plan
target of 210 by 130 dwellings. A total of 378 gross dwellings were completed from new build, conversions or changes of use,
while 38 existing units were lost through conversion, change of use or demolition. The largest residential schemes completed in
2013-14 were at the Former Orchard Hill Hospital, Carshalton (186 dwellings); Durand Close, the Wrythe (31 dwellings); the
Former Glastonbury Centre, St Helier (20 dwellings) and the Former Carshalton War Memorial Hospital (13 dwellings).
4.50 In summer 2013 the Council participated in the GLA’s London-wide Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
(SHLAA) which was a part of the preparation for the Draft Further Alterations to London Plan. In addition the council have
carried out a Five-Year Housing Land Supply Assessment for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2019. Future housing
capacity within the Borough is derived from six sources (a) sites projected to be completed in 2014-15 (b) sites under
construction (c) sites with permission (d) allocated sites. (e) unallocated sites; and (f) change of use from office to residential12.
4.51 Based on the Council’s housing delivery assessment, Figure 4.7 shows net additional dwellings completed within the
Borough from 1997 to 2013-14 against London Plan targets, Sutton’s projected housing trajectory from 2014-15 to the end of
the Core Planning Strategy period in 2023-24 and the annual requirement taking account of past and projected completions.
4.52 Table 4.5 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 provides further details of the annual net additional dwelling requirement (or
managed delivery target) over the period of the Core Planning Strategy from 2009-10 to 2023-24.

Full details of all housing developments within the Borough are maintained on the GLA’s London Development Database see www.london.gov.uk/LDD/LDD/welcome.doc
. In May 2013 there were changes to the Town and Country Planning (GPDO) 1995 to allow changes of use from office to residential subject to prior approval for a temporary
period of 3 years
11
12

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 27

Page 242

Agenda Item 11

Figure 4.7: LB Sutton Housing Trajectory from 1997 to 2023-24
750

Net Additional Dwellings Completed to 2012-13

691

Projected Housing Delivery to 2023-24

650

Annual Requirement taking Account of
Past/Projected Completions

550

Net Additional Dwellings

Target: 345
2007-08 to 2010-11

684

Annual net additional dwelling requirement

612
Target: 363
2015-16 to 2023-24

580

450

450

Target: 370
1997 to 2006-07

447

Target: 210
2011-12 to 2014-15
371

470

406

396

350

364
319

450

450 449

395

340
327

288

250

440 395

227

230

262

208

150

178
137

2023-24

2022-23

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

2006-07

2005-06*

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

-50

1997

50

-150

Office to Residential Prior Approvals
4.53 Since the amendment to the GPDO 1995, which allowed for change of use of offices to residential without planning
permission, a total of 348 residential units were granted prior approval in 2013-14. 164 (47%) were 1-bed flats, 176 (51%)
were 2-bed and 8 (2%) were 3 or more bed. Further details are provided in Figures 4.7 and 4.8 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14.
Dwellings Completed on Previously Developed Land
4.54 In 2013-14, the number of new dwellings built on previously developed land13 within the Borough was 362 (96%),
including new build, change of use and conversions. There were 16 units (4%) completed on backgarden land..
Net Additional Pitches for Gypsies and Travellers
4.55 According to CLG data14, as of January 2014, there are 27 gypsy/ traveller pitches in the Borough. This consists of 15
pitches on the Council-owned site at The Pastures, 80 Carshalton Road, Banstead, and 12 pitches on privately-owned land.
Affordable Housing
4.56 Figure 4.8 shows the total number of net affordable15 dwellings completed within the Borough, including both socialrented and intermediate housing, from 2002 to 2013-14. Over the last 5 years, from 2009-10, affordable housing
completions have accounted for approximately 46% of total net additional dwellings within the Borough, falling just below the
50% target set in the Core Planning Strategy. In 2013-14, a total of 52 affordable dwellings were built of which all (100%)
were provided through Registered Social Landlords. The majority of these affordable completions were delivered as part of
the estate regeneration of Durand Close and the redevelopment of the former Glastonbury Centre.
Figure 4.8: Affordable Dwellings Completed in LB Sutton 2002 to 2013-14
Total

Net Affordable Dwellings Completed

300

Planning agreement or conditions on private development
Registered Social Landlord Developments

Total
253
250

Total
218

143 (57%)

88 (37%)

Total
96

150
Total
77

Total
71

100

50

48 (18%)

Total
159

200

Total
236

49 (64%)

28 (36%)

Total
34

Total
84
108 (68%)

218
(100%)

Total
103
219 (82%)

1(1%)
148 (63%)

110 (43%)

14 (20%)

Total
52

57 (55%)

52

2012-13

2013-14

95 (99%)

57 (80%)

30 (88%)

46 (45%)

48 (57%)

36 (43%)

51 (32%)

4

0
2002

2003

2004-05

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

as defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (CLG, 2012)
see CLG Gypsy and Traveller site data and statistics at https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/traveller-caravan-count-january-2014
15 The Government defines affordable housing as “…social rented, affordable rented and intermediate housing, provided to eligible households whose needs are not met by
the market” (NPPF, 2012).
13
14

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 28

Page 243

Agenda Item 11

Housing Density
4.57 In 2013-14, 260 new-build dwellings were developed at an average density of 30-50 dwellings per ha. 28% of these
were built at a density of over 50 dwellings per ha, 67% were built at 30-50 per ha and 5% were built at under 30 per ha.
Most new build dwellings outside ‘sustainable residential quality’ (SRQ) areas were built at 30-50 dwellings per ha
Dwellings Completed by Location
4.58 Of the 378 gross dwellings completed within the Borough in 2013-14, 8 (2%) were located within the boundaries of
Sutton Town Centre, with 34 units (9%) located within the district centre boundaries. The remaining 335 units (89%) were
built elsewhere beyond the town centre boundaries, although none were within Preferred Industrial Locations.
Dwellings Completed on Backgarden Land
4.59 As shown in Figure 4.16 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14, the total number of dwellings built on backgarden land within
the Borough over the last 5 years since 2009-10 is 75 out of a total of 1,833 gross dwellings completed within the Borough.
Over this period, the percentage of completed units on backgarden land was 4%.
Dwellings Completed by Development Type
4.60 Of the 378 gross dwellings completed within the Borough in 2013-14, 260 (69%) were new-build, 67 (18%) were
conversions, 48 (13%) were created through change of use and 3 (1%) provided by extensions.
Dwellings Completed by Type 2013-14
4.61 Of the 378 dwellings completed in 2013-14, 127 (34%) were flats, 230 (61%) were houses or bungalows and 21 (5%)
were studio or bedsits (Figure 4.22). The proportion of houses has risen to the highest level for the last 5 years.
Character Assessment
4.62 In 2008, the council undertook a comprehensive Character Area Assessment of the Borough in order to inform the
review of the Council’s policies relating to the preferred densities of new residential development in different parts of the
Borough. Map 9.4 shows the distribution of the following character areas/ settings:
Central: very dense development; mix of uses; high buildings (boundary of Sutton Town Centre);
Urban: predominantly dense development e.g. terraced houses; mix of uses;
North Suburban: residential neighbourhoods, predominantly semi-detached and terraced properties; and
South Suburban: predominantly detached and semi-detached, with significant landscaping and grass verges.

ECONOMIC BASELINE
Employment
4.63 As of March 2014, 84.9% (or 111,100) of Sutton’s working age population (16-64) were economically active compared
to 82.0% in South London and 76.8% for London. Figure 4.9 shows that economic activity has increased sharply since 2012.
Figure 4.9: Change in proportion of working age population aged 16-64 who are economically active from 2005-13
Proportion of Working Age Population

86%

84.9%

84%

82.8%

82.4%

82%
80.8%

80.2%
79.5%

78.8%

79.3%

78.4%

73.4%

73.6%

74.2%

74.8%

80.1%

78.9%
78.2%

76%
74%

82.0%
80.2%

79.5%
78.8%

81.8%

80.0%

80%

78%

82.5%

81.3%

75.0%

74.1%

74.6%

76.4%

76.8%

75.0%

LB Sutton
South London Sub-Region
London

72%
70%

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Source: NOMIS website on behalf of ONS

Employment by Industry amongst Borough Residents
4.64 At the time of the 2011 Census, the highest proportion of working age residents were employed in wholesale and
retail (14.4%),followed by health and social work (13.6%), construction (9.8%) and education (9.5%)..
Employee Jobs in LB Sutton
4.65 According to the ONS Business Register Employment Survey (2014) there were 68,100 employee jobs provided in
LB Sutton in 2013, consisting of 44,800 full time and 23,300 part time positions. This represents an overall increase of 7.2%
since 2009 when 63,500 employee jobs were provided, equating to an additional 4,800 jobs. This increase is greater than
the overall 2.2% increase in employee jobs achieved across the South London Sub-Region over the same period.
Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 29

Page 244

Agenda Item 11

4.66 Employment in LB Sutton is dominated by the services sector, which accounts for 90.5% (61,600) of all jobs. 28.2%
(19,200) are employed in ‘public administration, education and health’ and 27.1% (18,400) in ‘Financial & other business
services’. The number of ‘self-employment’ jobs in Sutton increased from 8,500 in 2009 to 10,700 in 2012.
Projected Employment Growth
4.67 According to the latest GLA employment projections set out in Figure 3.56 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14, the total
number of jobs in LB Sutton (including employee and self-employed jobs) is predicted to grow from 76,300 to 83,000
between 2011 and 2031. The projected rate of employment growth in Sutton over this period (+8.8%) is significantly lower
than the average rate of growth predicted for both the South London Sub-Region (+13.3) and for London (+13.8%).
Income: Full-time workers living within the Borough
4.68 According to the ONS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, median gross weekly pay for full-time workers living
within LB Sutton in 2014 was £582.00, the lowest within the South London Sub-Region and below the London-wide median
of £617.80 . Figure 3.65 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows that although median pay for workers living within the borough
has fallen since the 2013 peak of £594.6, there has been an overall increase of around 22% since 2004
Income: Full-time workers employed within the Borough
4.69 According to the ONS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, median gross weekly pay for full-time workers
employed in LB Sutton in 2014 was £504.9, the lowest in South London and below the London-wide figure of £660.5 (Figure
3.68). Figure 3.69 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows that although median pay amongst Borough employees has fallen
since the 2013 peak of £561.1, there has been an overall increase of around 8.6% since 2004.
Business growth
4.70 Figure 4.10 shows active enterprises and business births and deaths within the Borough from 2008 to 2013. Over
this period, the number of active enterprises has increased from 6,905 to 7,805 at an average annual growth rate of 2.6%.
However there was a net decrease in business enterprises between 2008 and 2009 immediately following the economic
crash. Whilst the number of new business enterprises created has been increasing year on year (from 790 in 2008
compared to 1,165 in 2013), the number of businesses failing has also been increasing (from 715 in 2008 to 780 in 2013).
4.71 In 2012 the survival rate of new businesses after 1 year was 92.4%, above the corresponding figures for the South
London Sub-Region (92.4%) and for London as a whole (89.7%), but below the 2007 peak of 97.7%.
Figure 4.10: Active Enterprises and Business Births and Deaths in LB Sutton 2008-13
Number of Business Enterprises

8,000

7,805

7,480

7,240

7,230

6,915

6,905

Enterprise
Births

7,000
6,000

Enterprise
Deaths

5,000
Annual
Change (net)

4,000

Active
Enterprises

3,000
2,000
1,000
+65

+790

+715

-715

+5

+780

0
-840 -125

+160

+860

+65

+910

+385

1,165

-775

-700

-845

-780

2010

2011

2012

2013

-1,000

2008

2009

Source: ONS via London Datastore (GLA) November 2014

4.72 There were 7,725 registered businesses in LB Sutton in October 2014, up by 38.2% from the 2004 total of 5,590.
Figure 3.75 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows that 6,750 (87.4%) of Sutton’s businesses are classed as ‘micro’ with 0-9
employees; 795 (10.3%) are ‘small’ with 10-49 employees; 150 (1.9%) are ‘medium’ with 50-249 employees and 30 (0.4%)
are ‘large’ with 250+ employees. Since 2004 micro businesses have increased by 1,990 (41.8%), small businesses by 115
(16.9%) and medium business by 30 (25.0%). However the number of large businesses remained at 30.
Employment Land Available by Type
4.73 There are 3 Strategic Industrial Locations (SILs) within the Borough at Beddington, Kimpton and Imperial Way/
Purley Way (mostly in LB Croydon). In addition, there are 5 ‘established industrial locations’ at Croydon Road; Gander
Green Lane and Abbots Road; Mill Green Business Park; Oldfields Road Trading Estate; and Restmor Way (Map 4.4).
4.74 Based on the ‘Employment Land Review’ study undertaken by Nathaniel Litchfield in 2013, the Borough’s industrial
land supply is dominated by the Beddington SIL, which comprises 70% of the total area and contains 55% of the total built
floorspace. Together with Stafford Cross/Silver Wings, it forms part of the Purley Way SIL, extending into LB Croydon.
Overall, the three SILs comprise 86% of the total area and contain 74% of the floorspace. Overall, general industry and
Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 30

Page 245

Agenda Item 11

warehousing are dominant, although there is substantial light industry at Kimpton, Restmor Way and Stafford Cross, and a
significant amount of waste recycling at Beddington.
Loss of Employment Land
4.75 During 2013-14, the amount of employment land lost to completed non-employment uses was 0.535 ha, as a result
of 19 developments. Of this total, 0.340 ha of employment land was lost to residential developments (11 schemes creating
a total of 34 net additional units) and 0.195 ha lost to non-residential development (8 schemes). Of these completed
developments, two were lost within preferred industrial locations.
Business Establishments in LB Sutton
4.76 Much of the Borough’s local economy is driven by smaller and emerging businesses, often starting as home-based
businesses before migrating to small offices. Sutton has a slightly higher proportion of very small business with 1-9
employees (90.8%) compared to the regional (89.0%) and the national (88.3%) average.The ‘Employment Land Review’
study undertaken by Nathaniel Litchfield in 2013 shows that the Borough’s largest employment sectors are administration
and support services (15.1%), construction (11.4%), healthcare (10.6%), business services (10.5%) and retail (9.6%).
Change of Use from Offices to Residential Use(Permitted Development)
4.77 In May 2013 there were changes to the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development Order) 1995 to
allow changes of use from office to residential, subject to prior approval, for a temporary period of 3 years. Therefore
between 30 May 2013 and 30 May 2016 a change of use of an office a residential use will be permitted development.
However, on 15 January 2014, the Council confirmed an Article 4 Direction which will require planning permission for the
conversion of offices to residential uses in Sutton Town Centre. The Article 4 came into force on 29 January 2015.
4.78 In 2013-14, 27,531 m2 of office floorspace (B1a) gained prior approval to change use to residential, of which 5,387
m2 was occupied, 16,152 m2 was vacant and 5,992 m2 was part occupied. None of these schemes were completed on 1
April 2014. From 1 April 2014 to November 2014 a further loss of 29,826 m2 of office space was permitted, of which 10,734
m2 was occupied, 13,358 m2 was vacant and 5,734 m2 was part occupied. Overall, 16,121 m2 of occupied office floorspace,
and 11,726 m2 of part occupied office floorspace has prior approval to change to residential use.
Sutton Town Centre
4.79 Sutton Town Centre is well established as one of four Metropolitan centres within South London and is ranked eighth
largest across the whole of London16. Sutton’s Core Planning Strategy identifies Sutton Town Centre as the major location
for retail, employment and residential growth, and a focus for new cultural facilities within the Borough.
4.80 Based on the Sutton Town Centre Health Check 2013, Sutton Town Centre has over 442 A1-A5 outlets17 occupying
over 185,000 m2 of floorspace. There are 257 shops (A1) of which 43 were vacant at the time of the survey. With a
combined floor area of 134,320 m2 , retail accounts for 22% of the total. At the time of the survey, there were 76 office units
of which 20 were vacant. Office uses occupied a combined floor area of 137,648 m2 or 23% of the total. Overall, 46,352 m2
of commercial floorspace in Sutton Town Centre is vacant (8%), including 31,071m2 of vacant offices and 7,905m2 of vacant
retail. The largest amount of vacant floorspace can be found in the station quarter, where the majority of offices are located.
4.81 Between 2009-13, the number of office units (B1a) fell from 90 to 75 (-17%) and the number of shops (A1) fell by 11
from 83 to 73 units (-4%). There was however a slight increase of takeaways, rising from 17 units in 2009 to 21 units in 2013.
District and Local Centres
4.82 The district centres of Carshalton Village, Cheam Village, North Cheam, Rosehill, Wallington, and Worcester Park,
along with Hackbridge which is being promoted as a District Centre, are closely related to established residential areas
and provide a smaller range of shops. However, most have a large supermarket and a good range of local services and
facilities, including some specialist shops.
4.83 As well as having the greatest amount of A1 Shop floorspace, Wallington also has a significant amount of office (B1
Business) floorspace at over 30,000 m2 due to a number of multi-storey office blocks. A significant amount of this office
floorspace is vacant and a number of the office blocks clustered around the station are allocated for mixed use
redevelopment in the Site Development Policies DPD (Site allocation BW29)
4.84 Hackbridge currently has 804m2 of retail floorspace (A1) with no vacancies. There is a small provision of office (B1)
space (140m2) that is currently vacant. The former Felnex Trading Estate has outline planning permission, granted in
March 2012, for redevelopment for up to 725 residential units, a new supermarket, over 6,000m2 of employment
floorspace, a care home and a doctors surgery. Table 6.4 and Figure 6.11 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 provide further
details of existing retail and office uses within each district centre
16
17

2013 London Town Centre Health Check Analysis Report (Mayor of London, March 2014)
A1 to A5 outlets are comprised of Shops (A1) Financial & Professional (A2) Restaurants and Cafes (A3) Drinking Establishments (A4) and Hot Food Take-Aways (A5)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 31

Agenda Item 11

Page 246

ENVIRONMENTAL BASELINE
Open Environment
Green Belt
4.85 616 ha of the open space in the Borough is designated as Metropolitan Green Belt. The Sutton Green Belt consists
of 2 areas: the ‘Little Woodcote’ area (510 ha) to the southeast and the ‘Cuddington’ area’ (106 ha) to the southwest .
Metropolitan Open Land (MOL)
4.86 530 ha of the Borough’s open space is designated as MOL. The following 21 sites are designated on the basis of
their strategic significance for openness, leisure, recreation, sport, landscape, nature conservation or heritage:
Bandon Hill Cemetery and Allotments (11.9 ha);
Roundshaw Park, Downs & Playing Fields (59.4
ha);
Beddington / Mitcham Area (196.8 ha);
St Elphege’s Primary School playing field (0.8 ha);
Beddington Park and Carew Manor (68.0 ha);
St Helier Open Spaces (3 parts) (21.75 ha);
Cheam Park and Recreational Ground (26.4 ha);
Surrey Tennis and Country Club (outdoor facilities)
Green Lane Primary School playing fields and adjoining
(1.0 ha);
land (11.4 ha);
Sutton Cemetery and land north of proposed Link
Grove Park and Carshalton Ponds (8.0 ha);
Road (13.5 ha);
Land Nth of Goat Rd, Beddington Corner (2.12ha)
Sutton Common Recreation Grnd (6.4 ha);
Mill Green (4.85 ha);
Thomas Wall Park & Playground (6.75 ha);
Poulter Park and Playing Fields (20.5 ha);
Wilson’s School Playing Fields (6.55 ha);
Reigate Avenue Recreation Ground (6.3 ha);
Worcester Park Sewage Wks, Buckland Way Rec.
Rosehill Recreation Ground (20.2 ha);
Ground & allotments (24.5 ha).
Rosehill Park East (12.9 ha);
4.87 Map 4.5 shows the location of Green Belt land and MOL within the Borough.
Green Chains
4.88 - Land forming green chains consists of 24 sites (including some MOL). The following main areas of green chain form
an important part of a much wider network of strategically located open land stretching through South London (i) the eastern
arc extending from the Roundshaw Open Spaces through Beddington Farmlands and Poulter Park into the network of open
spaces along the River Wandle (ii) the north eastern arc linking into the open spaces to the south and west of Merton; and
(iii) the open spaces to the west of the Borough which connect with the Green Belt in Epsom & Ewell via Nonsuch Park.
Public Open Space
4.89 There is a total of 518.01 ha of public open space on 244 sites within the Borough consisting of 2 Metropolitan Parks
(125.99 ha), 3 District Parks (80.32 ha); 36 local parks (217.84 ha); and 203 small areas of public open space (93.86 ha)
(Map 4.6). The Sutton Open Space Study 200518 showed that the overall Borough-wide provision of public open space was
2.88 ha per 1000 population, well in excess of the NPFA ‘Six Acre Standard’ of 2.43 ha. Although there has been no net loss
of public open space since that time, the level of provision per 1000 population has fallenfrom 2.88 to 2.64 ha due to the
growth in the Borough’s population. However the phased restoration of Beddington Farmlands landfill to create the Wandle
Valley Regional Park as part of the Mayor’s All London Green Grid will create over 100 ha of additional public open space.
(Map 4.7) shows areas of open space deficiency more than 400m away from a publically accessible open space.
River Wandle
4.90 The River Wandle and the network of adjoining parks and open land acts as a green corridor, which extends over
much of the north and east of the Borough. This corridor provides wildlife habitats as well as providing access to open space,
recreation and leisure. The Wandle Trail provides a strategic recreational and access route for pedestrians and cyclists.
Wandle Valley Regional Park (All London Green Grid)
4.91 The Wandle Valley Regional Park, which is being delivered by the Wandle Valley Regional Park Trust, will include all
adjoining open spaces and footpath/cycleway links along the length of the river between the Thames at Wandsworth and the
sources of the river in Sutton and Croydon. The proposed Regional Park also support the objectives of the All London Green
Grid which lies at the heart of the Mayor’s programme to deliver high quality public spaces across London by “creating a
network of interlinked, multi-purpose open spaces with good connections to the places where people live and work, public
transport, the Green Belt and the Thames, to provide a richly varied landscape that will include diverse uses to appeal to all”.
A key element of the Regional Park within the Borough will be the restoration of Beddington Farmlands.
Beddington Farmlands
4.92 Beddington Farmlands is an extensive area of MOL (92 ha) located adjacent to the Wandle to the east and between
18

prepared by Scott Wilson on behalf of the Council in 2005

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 32

Page 247

Agenda Item 11

Beddington Park to the south and Mitcham Common to the north. This area is also designated as a site of metropolitan
importance for nature conservation on account of its value for birdlife. Following sand and gravel extraction and landfill
operations, the land will be progressively restored and transferred to Council ownership over a 10-15 year period to form part
of the Wandle Valley Regional Park. The restoration proposals include wet grassland, lakes, red beds, meadowland and
heathland and comprise one of the largest nature reserves in London. Phase I is due to be completed in 2015-16.
Landscape Quality
4.93 The Borough has a rich mix of open landscape character areas such as down land, river corridors, woodland and
parkland. The quality of these areas ranges from mature parkland of very good to exceptional quality (e.g. parts of Beddington
Park, Roundshaw Downs and areas of the Green Belt), to poor landscape quality (e.g. parts of Beddington Farmlands).
Nature Conservation
Biodiversity and Habitats
4.94 The Borough contains several important habitats, including important chalk grassland sites such as Roundshaw
Downs and Woodcote Park Golf Course. A number of sites, such as Cuddington Way Grassland, require on-going
management to maintain and enhance their biodiversity value. The Wandle supports many excellent plant communities with
several rare species. However, backgardens represent the biggest single habitat within the Borough.
Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation
4.95 There are 51 Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs) within the Borough, including:
5 sites of ‘Metropolitan Importance’ occupying 313.97 ha, or 7.2% of the total area of the Borough, comprising the
Upper River Wandle; Beddington Farmlands; Mitcham Common; Roundshaw Downs and Woodcote Park Golf Course
24 sites of ‘Borough Importance’ occupying a total area of 313.28 ha and 7.2% of the total area of the Borough, and
16 sites of ‘local importance’ occupying a total area of 41.27 ha (including 1 site adjacent to the LB Merton)
4.96 The location of SINCS and Areas of Deficiency in relation to all publicly accessible Metropolitan or Borough grade
SINCs within the Borough are shown on Map 4.8 Further information on biodiversity and habitats within the Borough,
provided to the Council by the Greenspace Information Database for Greater London (GiGL) in May 2014, is set out in
Appendices 8.2 to 8.8 of the AMR 2013-14.
Biodiversity Action Plan Species and Priority Habitats
4.97 UK Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Species19 include species which (i) are globally threatened; and (ii) have declined
by more than 50% in the last 25 years. In line with Government guidance, London BAP Priority Species must include all UK
BAP Priority Species with native or long-established naturalised populations in London20. Appendix 8.6 of the AMR 2013-14
lists all Biodiversity Action Plan species present in LB Sutton and Appendix 8.7 identifies the extent of priority habitats (May).
4.98 The Council’s Biodiversity team and the Wandle Trust have developed plans for a riverbank restoration scheme with
Rydon Homes, a Sutton Housing Partnership contractor. It is expected that this work will be undertaken within the next two
years resulting in achievement of the target to increase from four per cent of sites improved for biodiversity to six per cent.
Preparation works are in progress for projects which will improve the River Wandle through a variety of measures including
weir removal, habitat improvement works, and feasibility studies. It is anticipated that they will be completed by 2017.
Built Environment
Conservation Areas
4.99 There are 15 Conservation Areas (CAs) within the Borough with special architectural or historic interest. These are
listed in Schedule 1.E of the Appendix to the Site Development Policies DPD and shown on Map 9.1 of the AMR 2013-14.
Areas of Special Local Character
4.100 The Council has designed 22 Areas of Special Local Character (ASLCs) which are listed in Schedule 1.F of the
Appendix to the Site Development Policies DPD and shown on Map 9.1 of the AMR 2013-14.
Townscape Character and Quality
4.101 The Council undertook a Characterisation Assessment of the Borough21 in 2008 in order to provide a comprehensive
assessment of the diversity, quality and sensitivity of the Borough’s townscape and landscape to change, including its
suburban residential heartlands. The Characterisation Report of Studies identified a range of very high quality residential
areas in the Borough. The heartlands of the southern part of the Borough in particular are characterised by very low density,
predominantly detached/semi-detached two storey houses set in well landscaped plots and in leafy tree lined roads.
However, the Report also identified some residential estates that are bland and lack identity and some commercial areas
that need significant enhancement in order to help them achieve their potential.
the 1,149 national BAP priority species (as revised 2007) are defined at: www.ukbap.org.uk/
the 113 London BAP priority species are defined in: www.lbp.org.uk/07library.html
21 ‘Understanding Sutton’s Local Distinctiveness: Characterisation Report of Studies’ (LBS, November 2008)
19
20

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 33

Page 248

Agenda Item 11

4.102 The outcome of the characterisation assessment, in relation to townscape character and quality, townscape and an
assessment of density and setting22 is shown in Maps 9.2 to 9.4 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14.
Listed Buildings
4.103 There are 176 statutory listed buildings and structures (Grade I, Grade II or Grade II*) within the Borough and these
are listed in Schedule 1.A of the Appendix to the Site Development Policies DPD. Currently three buildings/structures have
been identified as ‘at risk’ on English Heritage’s Buildings at Risk Register 2013. These are The Orangery Wall at
Beddington Place on Church Road; the Grotto at Carshalton Park, Ruskin Road; and The Hermitage, Pound, Carshalton.
4.104 The Site Development Policies DPD identifies 90 locally listed buildings or structures following a review in 2011. The
Council has since identified a further 58 ‘Potential Additions to the Local List’ for review in due course.
Historic Parks and Gardens
4.105 There are 5 Historic Parks and Gardens in the Borough at St. Philomena’s School (Carshalton House Gardens) (11
ha), Beddington Park and The Grange (60.8 ha), Carshalton Park (9.2 ha), Grove Park (7.9 ha) and Oaks Park (33.5 ha). The
Park at St Philomena’s School is registered on English Heritages register of Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest.
Archaeological Sites and Scheduled Ancient Monuments
4.106 There are 21 identified Archaeological Priority Areas and 6 Scheduled Ancient Monuments.
Climate Change Impacts
4.107 Greenhouse gas emissions from human activity have increased significantly since the pre-industrial era, driven
largely by economic and population growth, and are now higher than ever. According to the Fifth Assessment Report of the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPPC, 2014), atmospheric carbon dioxide (CO2) levels in 2011 reached their
highest point for almost 1 million years, rising to a new level of over 391 parts per million (ppm) compared to around 280
ppm prior to the industrial revolution. This has contributed to a 0.85ºC increase in average global temperatures between
1880 and 2012. In the northern hemisphere, 1983 to 2012 was the warmest 30-year period of the last 1400 years and 13 of
the 15 hottest years on record globally have all occurred since 2000.
4.108 The UK Climate Impacts Programme projections (June 2009), known as UKCP0923, were developed by the Hadley
Centre for Climate Prediction and Research at the Meteorological Office on behalf of DEFRA24. UKCP09 still provides the best
available climate projections for different parts of the country. Three future emissions scenarios are used - low emissions,
medium emissions and high emissions – which are adapted from the latest IPCC projections for the 2020s, 2050s and the
2080s. UKCP09 projections25 provide probabilistic projections for a number of atmospheric variables, including temperature,
rainfall and humidity. The key UKCP09 findings for London in the 2050s are set out below in Table 4.2.
Table 4.2: UKCP09 Climate Scenarios for London in the 2050s (Low, Medium and High)
Change in Climate
TEMPERATURE
Increase in winter mean temperature
Increase in summer mean temperature
Increase in summer mean daily maximum temp.
Increase in summer mean daily minimum temp.
RAINFALL
Change in annual mean precipitation
Change in winter mean precipitation
Change in summer mean precipitation

UKCP09 Emissions Scenarios for LB Sutton in the 2050s
Low Emissions
Medium Emissions High Emissions
+2ºC
+2.5ºC
+3.5ºC
+2.7ºC

+2.2ºC
+2.7ºC
+3.7ºC
2.9ºC

+2.5ºC
+3.1ºC
+4.3ºC
+3.3ºC

0%
+12%
- 14%

0%
+14%
- 19%

0%
+16%
-19%

4.109 There is now a widespread scientific consensus that in order to prevent catastrophic climate change, the rise in
global annual average temperatures should not exceed 2°C, which means that global CO2 levels must be stabilised at or
below 450 ppm. However many climate scientists now believe that stabilisation at 450ppm or even 550 ppm is now
unachievable. This further emphasises the need for communities to adapt to significant degrees of future climate change.
Per Capita Carbon Dioxide Emissions
4.110 According to local authority emissions data26 published by DECC in June 2014, the total per capita production of CO2
in LB Sutton in 2012 from industrial, domestic, road transport and land-use was 4.2 k tonnes, down by 11.0% from the 2007
baseline of 4.7 k tonnes. Per capita CO2 emissions in LB Sutton are the 12th lowest of the 33 London Boroughs and below
definitions of the ‘central’, ‘urban’, north suburban’ and south suburban residential settings are provided in the key to Map 9.4
UK Climate Impacts Programme http://www.ukcip.org.uk/
24 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs http://ww2.defra.gov.uk/
25 see http://ukclimateprojections.defra.gov.uk/content/view/593/690/
26 this was previously National Indicator 186: Per capita CO 2 emissions in the LA area
22
23

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 34

Page 249

Agenda Item 11

the London average (5.9 k tonnes). Domestic emissions (2.2 k tonnes), arising mainly from electricity and gas consumption
in the home, accounted for 52% of total per capita emissions within the Borough, with industry and commerce (1.3 k tonnes)
and transport (0.7 k tonnes) accounting for 31% and 17% of total per capita emissions respectively.The Council’s One
Planet Action Plan targets a 20% reduction against the 2007 baseline by 2017, equating to an overall saving of 173,140
tonnes or 940kg of CO2 per resident.
Sustainable Design and Construction
Code for Sustainable Homes
4.111 Policy DM5 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD requires all new residential developments to achieve level 4
of the Code for Sustainable Homes. During 2013-14, 98.5% (874) of all residential units granted planning permission within
the Borough were on track to meet this target.. Full details are provided in Table 10.2 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14
BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Scheme)
4.112 Policy DM5 requires all major non-residential developments to achieve an ‘Excellent’ rating under the appropriate
BREEAM scheme27. Only 2 major non-residential developments (i.e. developments with a gross floorspace of over 1,000
m2) were completed within the Borough during 2013-14 and one of these (50%) achieved this policy requirement.
Energy and Carbon Dioxide Emissions
4.113 Policy DM6 of the Site Development Policies DPD requires all new residential developments to achieve a 40%
reduction in CO2 emissions compared to Part L of the 2010 Building Regulations. This is equivalent to a 35% reduction
compared to Part L1A of the current 2013 Building Regulations.
4.114 During 2013-14, 375 out of the 887 residential units granted planning permission (42.3%) were on track to meet the
40% CO2 reduction target. A further 500 permitted units (56.4%) were projected to achieve between a 25% and a 40%
reduction with the remaining 12 units (1.5%) achieving less than a 25% reduction. However, when residential developments
are counted as opposed to units, only 6 out of the 42 permitted schemes were on track to meet the 40% target (14.3%).
Zero Carbon in Hackbridge
4.115 Core Policy BP6 on ‘One Planet Living’ requires all new residential and non-residential buildings in Hackbridge to be
‘zero carbon’. In 2013-14 only 2 permissions were granted for new-build residential developments within Hackbridge. These
are at Corbet Close (54 gross units proposed) and at 134 London Road (1 unit). The Corbet Close development has the
potential to achieve ‘zero carbon standards assuming that it will connect to the future Sutton Decentralised Energy Network
(see below), however the London Road development is only committed to a 30% reduction.
Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN)
4.116 The Council is seeking to promote the proposed Sutton Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN) as the primary longterm approach to delivering low or zero carbon energy to new and existing buildings within Hackbridge. The proposed SDEN
seeks to use 15MW of zero carbon heat available from the permitted Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) plant and 4.5MW of
heat available from the existing landfill gas engines operated by Viridor at Beddington Farmlands to supply space heating
and hot water to new and existing buildings throughout Hackbridge. The ERF will be capable of treating approximately
275,000 tonnes of non-recyclable waste generated within South London. According to recent heat mapping and energy
masterplanning work undertaken on behalf of the Council in May 2014 by the GLA’s Decentralised Energy Project Delivery
Unit (DEPDU), a total of 118,200 MWh/yr of heat supply capacity is estimated to be available from the ERF with potential
carbon savings of around 1,900 tCO2 per year. The heat mapping study identifies a potentially viable network serving new
and existing developments within Hackbridge which could deliver. Further expansion of the network to serve major heat
loads beyond the Hackbridge boundaries could achieve even greater CO2 savings in the region of 5,500 tCO2 per year.
Delivery of the SDEN in Hackbridge is essential to achieving a zero carbon neighbourhood.
4.117 The first stage of the proposed SDEN will involve piping the heat one mile across Beddington Farmlands and under
the railway line to service the Felnex development (7.7 ha), which has outline planning permission for over 750 dwellings, a
superstore, a community centre and commercial floorspace. The energy centre at Felnex will be sized with additional
capacity to distribute heat beyond the site to supply a wider strategic heat network serving new and existing developments
across Hackbridge area. With annual heat demand from Felnex estimated at 7,155 MWh/yr, a heat supply capacity of
111,054 MWh/yr remains available for further connections beyond the Felnex development. The heat mapping study
identifies as many as 68 potential heat loads in the wider Hackbridge area which are suitable for connection, including high
rise social housing, new build residential, schools, public buildings, offices and healthcare facilities amounting to a total heat
load of 52.8 MWh/yr or 48% of the heat available from the ERF. This would address fuel poverty by enabling local residents
and businesses to benefit from the supply of low-cost heat and help to deliver zero carbon standards on an area-wide basis.
the relevant Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Schemes are currently BREEAM New Construction 2014 and BREEAM ‘Non-Domestic
Refurbishment and Fit-Out ‘2014
27

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 35

Agenda Item 11

Page 250

4.118 In 2013 the Council agreed to invest in the SDEN through prudential borrowing and commissioned a technical study
into the first stage of the network serving Felnex. Negotiations with Viridor and Felnex are ongoing and a wholly Councilowned company, Opportunity Sutton Ltd, has been established to oversee the procurement of an energy services company
(ESCo) to design, build and operate the network. The Council has recently prepared a Business Case seeking Committee
approval for forming an arms-length energy services company (ESCo) for the SDEN and investing an estimated £3.2million in
the ESCo to cover the design and construction of the network and for the procurement process.
Flood Risk
Fluvial (River) Flooding
4.119 According to the Environment Agency (EA), around 2,300 properties in Sutton are located in areas at risk of river
flooding. These areas are predominantly located towards the north east of the Borough adjacent to the River Wandle. Other
affected areas include the land adjacent to the Beverley Brook and Pyl Brook towards the west of the Borough. Map 4.9
shows the following EA flood risk extents28 (undefended), which were released by the EA in May 2015:
Flood Zone 1 ‘Low Risk’ (1 in a 1000 annual probability of flooding <1%);
Flood Zone 2 ‘Medium Risk’ (between 1 in a 100 and 1 in a 1000 annual probability of flooding 1% - 0.1%);
Flood Zone 3a ‘High Risk’ (1 in a 100 or greater annual probability of flooding >1%); and
Flood Zone 3b ‘Functional Floodplain (1 in 20 or greater annual probability of flooding >5% - ‘defended’).
4.120 Further flood risk zones have also been mapped by the EA to account the future impacts of climate change, which is
referred to as ‘Flood Zone 3a + Climate Change’ (1 in a 100 or greater annual probability of flooding >1% with climate
change. The EA is currently preparing updated fluvial extents for the Wandle which are scheduled for release in May 2015.
Surface Water Flooding
4.121 According to the EA, Sutton is ranked the 30th settlement in England most susceptible to surface water flooding, with
as many as 9,900 properties estimated to be at risk. Sutton was one of the worst affected London Boroughs by the July
2007 floods with 44mm of rain recorded as falling in a single morning. Rainfall volumes exceeded the design capacity of
water drainage systems (max 50mm rain in 1 hour) and watercourses at multiple locations, affecting at least 52 Council
properties and causing widespread damage and disruption for householders and transport systems.
4.122 Map 4.10 shows areas with a 1 in a 100 or greater annual probability of surface water flooding taking climate change
into account based on the EA’s Updated Flood Map for Surface Water29 (uFMfSW) released in December 2013 and the joint
strategic flood risk assessment (SFRA) Level 1 Report prepared by consultants in June 2015 on behalf of the Sutton,
Croydon, Merton and Wandsworth as part of the Local Plan evidence base. 12 ‘critical drainage areas’ (CDAs) are
identified, including at Trafalgar Avenue, Sutton Junction, Worcester Park, Hackbridge and Carshalton Centre.
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
4.123 Local planning authorities are required to prepare a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) to assess the risk to an
area from flooding from all sources, taking account of climate change, and as the basis for applying the ‘sequential’ and
‘exceptions’ tests to emerging site allocations in the local plan. In September 2014, the Council jointly procured URS
consultants with Croydon, Merton and Wandsworth to undertake an SFRA as part of the Local Plan evidence base.
4.124 The Level 1 SFRA will be used by the Council to inform the ‘sequential’ test on emerging site allocations and include:
maps of areas at risk from all sources of flooding including fluvial and surface water;
a review of critical drainage area (CDA) boundaries and identification of ‘drainage catchments’;
an assessment of existing flood risk management measures, including location and standard of infrastructure;
an assessment of the implications of climate change on flood risk for LB Sutton to 2036;
an assessment of where site specific allocations may significantly increase flood risk elsewhere in the borough if no
mitigation measures were utilised;
guidance on site-specific flood risk assessments for different combinations of flood risk.
4.125 The Level 2 SFRA will inform the ‘Exception Test’ which will be undertaken for site allocations in flood risk areas:
a map to illustrate flood risk from all sources in flood zones to enable a sequential approach of site allocations;
a detailed analysis of the flood characteristics for sites at risk of flooding, with flood depth, flood velocity, rate of onset
of flooding; and duration of flood.
site-specific costed mitigation measures and the requirements of site-specific flood risk assessments for all sites at
risk of flooding; and
non-site specific costed mitigation measures for the borough’s broad areas of growth;
fluvial flood zones can be accessed on the EA website at: http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/homeandleisure/floods/default.aspx3
the EA’s Updated Flood Map for Surface Water29 (uFMfSW) is available via the EA website at http://watermaps.environmentagency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiyby.aspx?topic=ufmfsw#x=357683&y=355134&scale=2
28
29

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 36

Page 251

Agenda Item 11

4.126 The joint SFRAwill also assist the Council in identifying opportunities for flood alleviation schemes and sustainable
urban drainage measures (SUDS) within the Borough’. The sustainability appraisal of Local Plan ‘Issues and Preferred
Options’ will incorporate details of the outcome of the sequential test and the exceptions test to be undertaken on all
potential site allocations to be taken forward as part of the emerging plan.
Flood Alleviation Schemes
4.127 The Beverley Brook scheme (£1.6m) was completed in 2014. This scheme, funded rom DEFRA ‘Grant-in-Aid’ with a
Council contribution of £150k, involved flood alleviation measures along Green Lane, and has already prevented flooding of
nearby homes. The Council has also undertaken studies of 3 CDAs as the basis for future flood alleviation schemes.
River Quality
4.128 The River Wandle is considered to be one of the finest chalk streams in London.Many chalk streams like the Wandle
are affected by increasing urbanisation, over-abstraction, pollution from roads and the impacts of treated sewage effluent. In
recognition of these pressures, the EA, the Wandle Boroughs, the Wandle Trust, London Wildlife Trust, local anglers local
resident and other stakeholders worked together to prepare the River Wandle Catchment Plan30 (September 2014). The
Plan follows the EA’s catchment-based approach for river management, and is intended to help the Wandle to achieve
‘Good Ecological Potential’ in order to meet the UK’s obligations under the EU Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC).
4.129 The EA monitors 2 schemes for the purpose of assessment against the Water Framework Directive: General Quality
Assessment (GQA) and River Quality Objectives (RQO). The Carshalton branch of the Wandle is currently designated as
‘Good’ (i.e. in line to achieve ‘good ecological potential’ for water quality) while the Croydon-Wandsworth waterbody is failing
on phosphate only. The Croydon-Wandsworth water body is therefore eutrophic and requires immediate improvement to
prevent deterioration. The Wandle has been designated a ‘phosphate sensitive area’ under the EU Urban Waste Water
Treatment Directive, and Thames Water must install phosphate stripping equipment at Beddington STW by November 2018.
Air Quality
4.130 Vehicle emissions account for a large proportion of local air pollution within the Borough. The main pollutants of
concern are nitrogen oxides (NOx) and fine particulates (PM10s). Along most of the main roads in the Borough there is a
likelihood of levels of these 2 pollutants exceeding Government air quality objectives, mainly due to road traffic pollution. The
Environmental Research Group at King’s College, operates the London Air Quality Network31 on behalf of all London
Boroughs and uses modelling software that takes into account the data from our monitoring stations, as well as data from the
London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory, traffic flows and meteorological data, to determine air quality over a wide area.
4.131 Following the Council’s initial air quality review and assessment in 2000, required by the 1995 Environment Act, the
Council declared certain locations as Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) within the Borough, mainly along the length of
the busy and congested A232, A217, A24 and A237 routes where either or both PM10 and NO2 annual objectives were
predicted to be exceeded by 2005. A subsequent review in 2003 identified further routes for inclusion as AQMAs, including
along the length of the B272 (Beddington Lane) in the north east of the Borough, where national air quality standards for
PM10s were being exceeded. To deal with this, the Council has introduced an air quality action plan which comprises
various measures designed to reduce pollution levels, with most actions linked to reducing car usage.
4.132 After further assessments of NOx and PM10 levels which showed the national standards were not being met, the LB
Sutton Air Quality Management Area Order came into force on 1 June 2013. This declared the whole Borough as an AQMA.
4.133 The Council currently maintains 4 air quality monitoring sites at Carshalton (Sutton 3), Wallington (Sutton 4),
Worcester Park, (Sutton 6) and Beddington Lane (Sutton 5). A summary of the results of air quality monitoring within the
Borough and performance against national air quality targets during 2012-13 and 2013-14 is shown below in Table 10.9.
Table 4.3: Air Quality Monitoring Results for LB Sutton 2012-13 and 2013-14
Pollutant
CARSHALTON
Nitrogen
Dioxide
Nitrogen
Dioxide
Ozone

Air Quality Objective

2012-13

Achieved

2013-14

Achieved

200 µg/m3 as a 1 hour mean, not to be exceeded
more than 18 times a year

0

YES

0

YES

40 µg/m3 as an annual mean

28

YES

28

YES

100 µg/m3 as an 8 hour mean, not to be exceeded
more than 10 times a year

9

YES

4

YES

the Wandle Catchment Plan can be accessed via the Wandle Trust website at http://www.wandletrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/Wandle_Catchment_Plan__Sept_2014_-_full_document.pdf
31 http://www.londonair.org.uk/london/asp/PublicBulletin.asp?postcode=&borough=29&bulletin=hourly&Submit=Go
30

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 37

Page 252

Agenda Item 11
Pollutant
WALLINGTON
Nitrogen
Dioxide
Nitrogen
Dioxide
PM10

Air Quality Objective

2012-13

Achieved

2013-14

Achieved

200 µg/m3 as a 1 hour mean, not to be exceeded
more than 18 times a year

138

NO

22

NO

40 µg/m3 as an annual mean

70

NO

66

NO

50 µg/m3 as a 24 hour mean, not to be exceeded
14
YES
2
YES
more than 35 times a year
PM10
40 µg/m3 as an annual mean
26
YES
24
YES
WORCESTER PARK
Nitrogen
200 µg/m3 as a 1 hour mean, not to be exceeded
4
YES
7
YES
Dioxide
more than 18 times a year
Nitrogen
40 µg/m3 as an annual mean
51
NO
50
NO
Dioxide
PM10
50 µg/m3 as a 24 hour mean, not to be exceeded
15
YES
11
YES
more than 35 times a year
PM10
40 µg/m3 as an annual mean
28
YES
27
YES
BEDDINGTON LANE
Nitrogen
200 µg/m3 as a 1 hour mean, not to be exceeded
9
YES
0
YES
Dioxide
more than 18 times a year
Nitrogen
40 µg/m3 as an annual mean
39
YES
32
YES
Dioxide
3
Particulates
50 µg/m as a 24 hour mean, not to be exceeded
14
YES
7
YES
PM10
more than 35 times a year
PM10
40 µg/m3 as an annual mean
26
YES
22
YES
Source: LB Sutton Air Quality Monitoring Data and Environmental Research group, King’s College London

Transport
Traffic Growth and Congestion
4.134 Road traffic accounts for around 20% of CO2 emissions in the Borough and also has a significant impact on local air
pollution and health, particularly from NOx and particulates. In order to address both climate change and local air pollution,
there needs to be a reduction in both motorised travel and a shift towards more sustainable modes of transport.
4.135 According to the Department for Transport’s (DfT) and available via the GLA’s London Datastore32, overall volumes of
vehicular traffic within the Borough have fallen by 15.4% over the last decade from a total of 715 million vehicle-km in 2003
to 605 million vehicle-km in 2013. Over the same period, the total volume of car traffic fell by a similar proportion (15.6%)
from a total of 591 million vehicle-km in 2003 to 498 million vehicle-km in 2013. Figure 4.11 shows that, after a significant
decline at the onset of the economic downturn in 2007-08, there has more recently been a levelling off of the rate of decline
as economic conditions improve. The trends observed in LB Sutton reflect those seen across London as a whole.
Figure 4.11 Traffic Volumes (million vehicle-kms) in LB Sutton 2000-13
750
720

722

721

Traffic Volume (million veh.-km)

702

700

700

687

692

640 639

650
608

600

All Vehicles
Cars

715

608

615

606
591

580

612

609

605

500

501

498

577
558

563

550

525

524
504

500
450
400

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Source: Department for Transport (DfT) National Road Traffic Survey 2014
32

DfT National Road Traffic Survey data is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/road-traffic-statistics

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 38

Page 253

Agenda Item 11

Car Ownership
4.136 Sutton has the 6th highest car ownership level in London with particularly high levels in the southern wards and areas
located further away from railway stations, such as North Cheam and Stonecot Hill. According to the 2011 Census, 77% of
Borough households owned at least one car or van compared to 58% across London as a whole. However, car ownership
has remained roughly stable since the 2001 Census.
Road Safety
4.137 There were 31 people killed or seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic accidents during 2013, down by 57.5% compared
to the 2005-08 average of 73. Figure 12.2 of the Sutton AMR 2013-14 shows that there has been a steady decline in this
indicator since the 2006 peak of 83. Sutton has already met the short term target set out in the draft Borough Sustainable
Transport Strategy (T2.1) of 35 people KSI by 2017 and is on track to meet the long term target of 18 KSIs by 2025.
On and Off-Street Parking Provision
4.138 Sutton Town Centre is served by two multi-storey car parks owned by the Council at Gibson Road (919 spaces
including 5 disabled) and Times Square (804 spaces including 17 disabled) providing a total of 1,723 spaces, with 24
reserved for disabled users. Further parking is available at the St Nicholas Centre (740 spaces plus 46 disabled) and ASDA
multi-storey car parks (587 spaces) that are both in private ownership. In addition, Carshalton, Wallington, Cheam, and
Worcester Park district centres are served by 9 Council-owned surface car parks providing 752 spaces.
4.139 With regard to on-street car parking, Sutton Town Centre is designated as a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) and
certain other areas of the borough are now covered by, or are being considered for, CPZs.
4.140 With regard to off-street parking, Appendix 3 of the Site Development Policies DPD sets out restraint-based maximum
parking standards for new development related to the proposed use and the level of public transport accessibility. Different
levels of parking restraint are applied to Sutton Town Centre, the district centres and the remainder of the Borough.
Public Transport
4.141 The GLA’s Public Transport Accessibility Levels (PTAL) map33 (2012), reproduced in the AMR 2013-14 as Map 12.4,
shows that Sutton Town Centre, Wallington and Carshalton enjoy the highest level of public transport accessibility within the
Borough (levels 4-6). However the remaining district and local centres, the majority of the residential areas and the major
industrial areas fall within areas of relatively low accessibility (levels 1 and 2). Although the Borough has a reasonably
comprehensive bus network with 95% of the urban area within 400 metres of a bus service, some areas are poorly served as
shown in Map 12.3 of the AMR 2013-14. However a number of Council-initiated ‘hail-and-ride’ services have helped to
improve accessibility to, from and within some of the poorly connected residential areas.
4.142 According to the London Travel Demand Survey 2013-14, the 3-year rolling average percentage of trips originating
within LB Sutton where public transport (bus, tram, train or Underground) was the main mode, is 15%. This proportion is
below the Mayoral target of 16.75% by 2013-14 and well below the corresponding figure for London as a whole (28%).
Tramlink
4.143 Tramlink, which runs between Croydon and Wimbledon, has stops at Beddington Lane and Therapia lane I the north
east corner of the Borough. The extension of Tramlink from Wimbledon to Sutton Town Centre, via Morden has been
promoted by both Sutton and Merton Councils for over 20 years as part of a shared aspiration to address the transport deficit
in South London and support high quality sub-regional economic growth. The Councils have recently been working in
collaboration with Transport for London (TfL) to make the case for an extension of the Tramlink network.
Cycling
4.144 The Borough has an extensive network of cycle routes, much of which was created as part of the former London
Cycle Network connecting Sutton with neighbouring Boroughs. Despite this, according to the London Travel Demand Survey
2013-14, the percentage of trips originating within LB Sutton, where cycling was the main mode is only 1% (3-year rolling
average). This is below the average for Outer London (2%), inner London (4%) and that for London as a whole (3%).
Sutton’s draft Sustainable Transport Strategy and the Mayor sets targets to increase the modal share for cycling from the
current baseline of 1% to 2% by 2017 and to 4% by 2025..
4.145 In terms of journeys to work, only 2.1% of work trips made by Borough residents aged 16-74 were by bicycle and this
modal share has not changed significantly since 2001. Figure 12.3 shows that cycling as a proportion of all work trips in LB
Sutton is lower than the average for South London (3.6%) and for London as a whole (3.9%).
Walking
4.146 Sutton has an extensive network of public rights of way. A number of strategic walking routes form part of this
network, including part of the London Outer Orbital Path, Sutton Countryside Walk, Pyl Brook path and the Wandle Trail.
33

the GLA’s PTAL map shows relative levels of accessibility to public transport based on the PTAL methodology development by LB Hammersmith and Fulham

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 39

Agenda Item 11

Page 254

4.147 According to the London Travel Demand Survey 2013-14, the percentage of trips originating in Sutton where walking
was the main mode is 29% (3-yr rolling average). Although slightly above the Borough target of 25.4% for 2013-14 and the
Outer London average (28%), this is below inner London average (38%) and that for London (32%). Sutton’s draft
Sustainable Transport Strategy sets targets to increase walking to 29.6% by 2016-17 and 32.0% by 2024-25.
Travel by Sustainable Modes
4.148 According to the London Travel Demand Survey 2013-14, 45% of all trips originating in Sutton are by sustainable
modes, including walking (28%), bus/tram (11%), rail (5%), cycling (1%) and the tube (1%). The remaining 55% were by car,
motorcycle or taxi (Figure 12.4).
4.149 In terms of journeys to work, according to the 2011 Census, 44% of all work trips by economically active Borough
residents aged 16-74 are by car or motorcycle, 32.3% are by public transport (including bus, train and tram), while 15% are
made by sustainable modes, including walking and cycling. A further 9% work from home (Figure 12.5).
Distance Travelled to Work
4.150 According to the 2011 Census, 50% of Borough workers travelled under 10 km to work, compared to 56% in 2001;
28% travelled between 10-30km (27% in 2001); 2.8% travelled over 30km (2.6% in 2001) and 9% worked at home compared
to 8% in 2001 (Figure 12.6).
Walking to School
4.151 As of 2009, 76% of children at Borough schools, travelled by sustainable modes of transport. The draft Borough
Sustainable Transport Strategy seeks to increase this to 80% by 2017 and 85% by 2025. By 2008-09, all 70 schools within
the Borough had a school travel plan in place.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 40

Map 4.1

Mitcham Junction

Borough Context
Rosehill

Sutton Town Centre
Middleton
Circle

Stonecot Hill

Hackbridge

Kimpton

Felnex

ww
w

Beddington
Farmlands

Strategic Industrial Location

Beddington

Suburban Residential Heartlands
Strategic Open Land
Strategic Heritage Area

www

w

A2
04
3

C

ww

Worcester
Park

Priority Community Regeneration
Area

Wrythe
Green

Sutton
Town
Centre

78
B2

North
Cheam

A24

Wandle

Carshalton

Centre of Regeneration & Growth

1
27

Centre of Consolidation

Wallington

Banstead
Road

Hackbridge Sustainable
Neighbourhood

Stafford
Road

Developing Mixed Uses

17
A2

Roundshaw

C

to M23, M25
and Gatwick
Airport

Belmont

A237

Establishing Low Carbon Zone
Developing Sporting, Leisure and
Cultural Facilities

S

S

Cuddington

Centre of Intensification

B

C

Cheam

Major Developed Site
in the Green Belt

A232

Developing New Pathfinder School
Developing Wandle Valley
Regional Park
Upgrading Public Transport
Facilities
Option for Developing Strategic
Healthcare Facility

to M25

ww Developing Strategic Flood

A2022

Alleviation Scheme

N

December 2014
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of
Her Majesty’s Stationery Office ©Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Option for Extending London
Tramlink
Improvement to Thameslink 2000
Strategic Road Improvement

Page 256

Agenda Item 11

H
IT
SM M
ER HA
M
M UL
HA & F
40

11
0

SOUTHWARK
140

RICHMOND
UPON
THAMES

LAMBETH

WANDSWORTH
0

70 120

LEWISHAM

380 170

78

0

100

120

28

80

MERTON
0

KINGSTON
UPON
THAMES

206

710

BROMLEY

620

100 130

360

+50
+260

+1350

+70

+500 +210
+40

CROYDON

0
11
0

580

0

-150
430

94

+40

SUTTON
-120

+160
-30

EPSOM &
EWELL

-400
-130

79

0

60

190 70

MOLE VALLEY

REIGATE
&
BANSTEAD

190 60

TANDRIDGE

Map 4.2
Internal Migration
to and from
Sutton 2012-13

December 2014

Internal Migration during
the year ending June 2013
to LB Sutton
from LB Sutton

+160
-130

Net Gain
(No. of people)
Net Loss
(No. of people)

Not to Scale

N

This map is based on Ordnance Survey
material with the permission of Ordnance
Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Map 4.3
Index of Multiple
Deprivation - Borough
Distribution (ID 2010):
Ranked Scores

4
1

0 to 20%
21 to 40%

2

6

41 to 60%
60% +

Ward Boundary
Local Committee Area
1 Cheam North and Worcester Park

3

5

Page 257

Lower Level Super
Output Area Boundary

2 Sutton
3 Sutton South, Cheam and Belmont
4 St Helier, Wrythe and Wandle Valley
5 Carshalton and Clockhouse
6 Beddington and Wallington

Source: Indices of Deprivation 2010 (CLG)

N

Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission
of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controllerof Her Majesty’s
Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead
to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Agenda Item 11

December 2014

Map 4.4
Wandle
Trading Estate
Beddington
Area

Preferred Industrial
Locations

London
Road

Kimpton Area

Strategic Industrial
Area

Restmor Way/
Felnex Trading
Estate

Other established
industrial locations

Oldfields Road
Gander Green Lane
and Abbotts Road

St Andrew’s Road
Plumpton Way
Paynes
Works

Imperial
Way
Area

N

December 2014
Not to Scale

126

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office ©Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Map 4.5
Green Belt and
Metropolitan
Open Land
Metropolitan
Open Land
Green Belt

N

December 2014
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office ©Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Map 4.6
Public Open Space
Public Open Space

N

December 2014
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office ©Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Map 4.7
Areas of Open
Space Deficiency
400m or more from
a publicly accessible
open space
Areas 400m or more
actual walking distance
from a publically
accessible open space
Main Road
Railway

Page 261
December 2014
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Agenda Item 11

N

Map 4.8
Sites of Importance
for Nature
Conservation and
Areas of Deficiency

Site of Metropolitan
Importance
Site of Borough
Importance Grade 1
Site of Borough
Importance Grade 2
Site of Local Importance

Area of deficiency

Source: Green Space Information for
Greater London (GiGL) Sept 2008

N

December 2014
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2014

Map 4.9
Fluvial Flood Risk
Rosehill

Zone 2

Worcester
Park

Medium Probability
(land with an annual
probability of river flooding
of between 1 in 100 and
1 in 1000)

Hackbridge

Zone 3a

North
Cheam

High Probability
Sutton

(land with an annual
probability of river flooding
of greater than 1 in 100)

Carshalton

Zone 3b
Functional Floodplain
(land with an annual
probability of river flooding
of greater than 1 in 20 or
greater and where water
has to flow or be stored in
times of flood)

Wallington
Cheam

Town Centres

Source: Updated EA Wandle Modelling Data
(May 2015)

N

January 2015
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2015

Map 4.10
Surface Water
Flood Risk

Critical Drainage
Area Boundary
High - each year the
chance of flooding is
greater than 1 in 30
(3.3%)
Medium - each year the
chance of flooding is
between 1 in 100 (1%)
and 1 in 30 (3%)
Low - each year the
chance of flooding is
between 1 in 1000 (0.1%)
and 1 in 100 (1%)
Very Low - each year the
chance of flooding is less
than 1 in 1000 (0.1%)

N

January 2015
Not to Scale

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2015

Agenda Item 11

FIVE

Page 265

Key Sustainability Issues and Problems (Task A3)
THE COUNCIL’S GROWTH AGENDA
5.1 The Local Plan is a key planning document in that it sets out the spatial vision for the development of the borough for
the next 15 years. It needs to focus on the key issues facing the borough, including identifying development needs and the
strategy and opportunities for addressing them. It provides detailed policies against which the council will determine
planning applications for proposals for development. It also allocates sites for new development that are needed to ensure
the Plan can be delivered. Changes to legislation and planning guidance have occurred including the introduction of the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2012) which includes the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’,
promoting economic growth and giving greater emphasis to deliverability and viability considerations
5.2 The Council considers that there is a need for a new positive and proactive approach to economic regeneration and
growth within the Borough. To support this vision, Sutton’s new Local Plan will need to demonstrate how opportunities for
economic regeneration and growth can be delivered in a way which seeks to maximise social and economic benefits for
local residents while maintaining the Borough’s distinctive local character and fulfilling the principles of One Planet Living.
This vision for growth will need to show clearly how the Local Plan can meet the need for new housing, including affordable
housing, promote the growth of Sutton Town Centre as a focus for new development; grow high potential employment
opportunities; and deliver adequate sustainable transport infrastructure to support new development.
IDENTIFYING KEY SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES AND PROBLEMS
5.3 The Council has identied a range of sustainability issues and environmental problems which emerging Local Plan
policies and proposals will need to address. The following key issues have been derived from an assessment of the current
legislative and planning policy context at national, regional and Borough levels as described in Section 3 (‘Other Relevant
Plans, Programmes and Sustainability Objectives’) and the findings of initial evidence gathering undertaken by the Council,
(or by consultants on behalf of the Council) as set out in Section 4 (‘Environmental, Social and Economic Baseline for
Sutton’) and the Sutton AMR 2013-14.
5.4 Further key sustainability issues and problems are likely to be identified through consultation with authorities with
social, environmental and economic responsibilities, other relevant stakeholders, and the public.
HOUSING ISSUES
5.5 Key housing issues for the Local Plan to address are as follows:
should the Local Plan seek to limit housing growth in line with the minimum London Plan target of 363
dwellings per annum or set a housing target in excess of this in order to meet the Borough’s identified
needs, including for family and affordable housing?
if a Borough housing target is set in excess of the minimum London Plan target of 363 dwellings per annum,
at what level should this target be set?
where should additional housing be located and what proportion of future housing growth over the period of
the Local Plan should be accommodated within each of the following locations:
- Sutton Town Centre?
- district centres?
- Hackbridge?
- other town centres?;
- suburban heartlands?
- industrial areas? and
- open land?
how should additional housing be accommodated within the Borough?
- permitting tallers buildings over a larger areas of the Borough?
- expanding town centre boundaries and ‘sustainable residential quality’ (SRQ) areas outwards?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 51

Agenda Item 11

Page 266

- redeveloping residential areas at higher densities, having regard to the local setting and prevailing
levels of public transport accessibility?
- promoting mixed use developments or reuse of redundant buildings for residential use?
- redeveloping established industrial areas for residential or mixed uses?
- promoting additional backgarden development in residential areas?or
- building on greenfield sites including on metropolitan open land (MOL) and public open space.
should the Local Plan seek to go further in meeting the shortfall in affordable housing in the Borough by
increasing the proportion of affordable units to be delivered as part of proposed housing developments?
how can the Local Plan deliver additional family housing?
how can housing growth be delivered while maintaining and enhancing the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, promoting good design and townscape quality, protecting local distinctiveness,
maintaining access to open space and meeting sustainable transport objectives?
how should the Local Plan meet the needs of older people and other groups who need specialist housing?
GYPSIES AND TRAVELLERS
5.6 Key sustainability issues for the Local Plan to address in relation to gypsies and travellers are as follows:
what targets should the Local Plan set for the provision of suitable sites for gypsies and travellers as
required by the NPPF and the London Plan?
how can the Local Plan best accommodate the needs of gypsies and travellers if there is an identified need?
ECONOMIC REGENERATION AND GROWTH
5.7 Key sustainability issues in relation to economic regeneration and growth are as follows:
how should the Local Plan support the objectives of Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy and the
delivery of the Council’s priority growth projects, including Sutton for Life (Life Science Cluster project),
area renewal programmes for Hackbridge and Beddington; the proposed Sutton Decentralised Energy
Network (SDEN) and the Tramlink extension;
how can the Local Plan support the growth of Sutton’s the green economy?
how should the Local Plan make provision for sufficient employment land and premises to support

economic prosperity?
should the Local Plan prevent further loss of employment land and floorspace within established industrial
areas to residential or mixed uses?
should the Local Plan promote intensification or expansion of existing employment sites and floorspace?
should the Local Plan give consideration to extending employment sites onto adjacent open land?
how should the Local Plan maintain the quality and provision of office floorspace within town centres
and elsewhere?
how should the Local Plan reduce disparities in economic performance and promote inward investment
particularly within urban renewal areas suffering from high levels of social deprivation?
SUTTON TOWN CENTRE AND DISTRICT CENTRES
5.8 Key sustainability issues in relation to town centres are as follows:
how can the Local Plan help to maintain the status of Sutton Town Centre as a Metropolitan Centre
within South London and compete with other regional centres, such as Croydon and Kingston, by
adapting to changing patterns in retailing, employment and business behaviour?
how can the Local Plan address the declining amount of retail floorspace in Sutton’s town centres? What
level and what type of retail activity should the Local Plan seek to promote?
how can the Local Plan ensure that Sutton’s town centres are developed to ensure that they continue to
function as important centres for retail, and other town centre uses?

should the Local Plan consider a more flexible approach to Sutton’s town centres, for example
by encouraging non-retail businesses, community uses and health services in the high street?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 52

Page 267

Agenda Item 11

how should the Local Plan promote the role of district and local centres in providing a sufficient range of
shops, community facilities and leisure activities to meet the needs of local residents?
should the sustainable regeneration and growth of Hackbridge continue to be promoted in line with zero
carbon and One Planet living principles to support its transition to district centre status?
COMMUNITY AND LEISURE FACILITIES
5.9 Key sustainability issues in relation to community and leisure facilities, including schools and healthcare, are:
how should the Local Plan support the Council’s core duty to ensure that there are sufficient school places
to meet the needs of its children by providing for the expansion of primary and secondary school capacity?
which locations should be identified for new primary and secondary schools within the Borough?
how should the Local Plan address the increasing demand for healthcare provision due to an growing
ageing population?
should the Local Plan continue to encourage the retention of major health infrastructure?
should the Local Plan identify additional sites for health care facilities such as GP surgeries particularly in
town centre locations?
should the Local Plan seek to protect pubs for their Community value?
OPEN ENVIRONMENT AND BIODIVERSITY ISSUES
5.10 Key sustainability issues in relation to the Borough’s open environment and nature conservation are as follows:
should the Local Plan maintain strong policy protection for the permanence and integrity of Green Belt land
and MOL?
should the Local Plan introduce new, well-defined and defensible Green Belt boundaries?
should the Local Plan maintain strong protection for open land within the Borough, including public open
space, urban green space and allotments? Alternatively, should the Local Plan allow for some development on
open land to accommodate the need for additional school provision, employment floorspace or housing?
should the Local Plan seek to maintain the Borough-wide provision of public open space at the current level
or seek to increase this?
to what extent should the Local Plan seek to enhance the role of open space for recreation, local amenity,
nature conservation and climate change adaptation objectives?
how should the Local Plan contribute to promote the creation of the Wandle Valley Regional Park as a major
new recreational public open space of Borough and regional significance?
should the Local Plan seek to maintain strong policy protection for all sites of importance for nature
conservation (SINCs) and other important habitats and species within the Borough?
how should the Local Plan contribute towards meeting the local Biodiversity Action Plan targets for
improving priority habitats within the Borough and support the creation of new habitats?
BUILT AND HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT ISSUES
5.11 Key sustainability issues in relation to the Borough’s built and historic environment are as follows:
to what extent can the Local Plan maintain and enhance the suburban character and local distinctiveness of
many parts of the Borough and protect the Borough’s historic environment while accommodating the need
for additional housing?
to what extent should the Local Plan protect the character of Conservation Areas and other areas with
features of townscape or architectural value, including Areas of Special Local Character (ASLCs)?
how can the Local Plan successfully combine accommodating growth with ‘place making’ for example by
allowing larger developments to create their own sense of place while ensuring that smaller developments
respect their setting?
should the Local Plan incorporate additional locally listed buildings where appropriate?
is there a need to strengthen planning policies on good design to ensure that the Local Plan is effective in
protecting and enhancing the character and local distinctiveness of the Borough’s suburban environment,
townscape quality and the street scene?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 53

Agenda Item 11

Page 268

CLIMATE CHANGE, POLLUTION AND ONE PLANET LIVING
5.12 Key sustainability issues in relation to climate change, pollution and One Planet Living objectives are as follows:
should the Local Plan continue to promote the highest standards of sustainable design and construction
within the Borough within the context of recent changes to legislation arising from the Government’s
housing standards review (which effectively prevent the Council from requiring new dwellings to achieve
specified levels of the Code for Sustainable Homes and from setting carbon dioxide reduction standards
over and above the minimum requirements of the Building Regulations) ?
to what extent can the Local Plan seek to minimise carbon dioxide emissions from new residential and nonresidential developments by (i) promoting the highest standards of energy efficient design and layout (ii)
being designed to connect to or contribute towards existing or future decentralised energy (DE) networks; or
(iii) using renewable sources of energy generated on site ?
how should the Local Plan facilitate the delivery of the proposed Sutton Decentralised Energy Network
(SDEN) within Hackbridge and beyond?
should Local Plan policies continue to require that proposed developments close to existing or planned
district heating networks or within identified decentralised energy (DE) Opportunity Areas are designed to
connect?
should the Local Plan identify a suitable site for a further ‘zero carbon’ residential development within the
Borough and where should this be located?
should the Local Plan include policies to require that residential developments comply with the
Government’s ‘optional’ technical standards for water efficiency, which are due to be set out in the updated
Building regulations in late 2016?
should the Council continue to require green roofs, green walls etc in new developments?
how should the Local Plan continue to support the growth of the Borough’s Green Economy?
FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT, CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION AND THE RIVER WANDLE CATCHMENT,
5.13 Key sustainability issues in relation to flood risk management , sustainable urban drainage (SUDS) and climate
change adaptation are as follows:
how can the Local Plan minimise all sources of flood risk to and from new and existing developments
and, where possible, reduce flood risks overall, taking future climate scenarios into account?
should the Local Plan apply a stronger presumption against proposed development swithin flood risk
areas or against development that would increase risk of flooding downstream?
should the Local Plan impose a policy requirement for all major developments to limit peak surface water
run-off rates in the 1 in 100 year storm event (plus climate change) to 50% of the pre-development rate in
line with the Mayor’s supplementary planning guidance or go further to require greenfieldrun-off rates?
should the Local Plan also require that minor developments incorporate sustainable urban drainage
measures (SUDS) in order to achieve a specified reduction in the run-off rate below the pre-development rate
over and thus go beyond the requirements of the Government’s non-statutory National SUDS Standards?
should the Local Plan seek to apply variable standards for SUDS and reduced run-off rates in different
parts of the Borough, according to whether or not the development is located with a critical drainage
area (CDA) or should the same standards apply across the whole Borough?
how can the Local Plan policies ensure that SUDS measures are maintained over the lifetime of the
development?
should the Local Plan have regard to the need to reduce domestic water consumption?
how can the Local Plan maximise the benefits of blue and green space linkages at a strategic scale for a
range of climate change adaptation objectives, including flood risk management, urban cooling,
mitigation the impact of drought conditions, maintaining biodiversity and habitats and environmental
enhancement?
how can the Local Plan support the objectives of the Wandle Catchment Plan, including the need to
ensure that water quality meets the standards required for ‘Good Ecological Potential ‘and that water
supply in all sections of the river is sufficient to sustain a healthy population of native flora and fauna
and is resilient to risk of drought or flood from extreme weather events or management for human use.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 54

Page 269

Agenda Item 11

SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT
5.14 Key sustainability issues in relation to sustainable transport issues are as follows:
how can the Local Plan ensure that the transport network supports the local economy and meets the
current and future needs of the Borough in a sustainable way?
how can the Local Plan reduce car use and the need to travel through the influencing the location of new
travel-generating development?
how can the Local Plan enable smarter travel choices by improving & encouraging walking, cycling &
public transport;
how can the Local Plan improve local air quality throughout the Borough towards meeting national
standards for NO2 and PM10s?
how can the Local Plan Improving the safety an security of road users, particularly pedestrians, cyclists
and public transport users
how can the Local Plan transport accessibility for all and improving the public realm and street design
should the Local Plan consider tightening or relaxing restraint-based maximum parking standards in
areas of higher public transport accessibility?
how can the Local Plan reduce car dependence by securing new investment for improved transport
infrastructure serving Sutton Town Centre, the district centres, local centres and residential area?
should the Local Plan continue to require developers to produce and implement green travel plans and
introduce car clubs as part of new development?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 55

Agenda Item 11

Page 270

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 56

Agenda Item 11

SIX

Page 271

Sustainability Appraisal Framework for Sutton’s Local Plan

6.1 The Council has developed a proposed Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Framework, consisting of sustainability
objectives, indicators and targets, in order to assess the environmental, social and economic impacts of emerging Local
Plan preferred options and alternatives. This is based on the requirements of other relevant policies, plans, programmes
described in Section 3 (Task A1), the environmental, social and economic baseline set out in Section 4 and Sutton’s
AMR 2013-14 (Task A2) and the key sustainability issues and problems identified in Section 5 (Task A3).
6.2 Sutton’s proposed SA Framework ( Table 6.1), consists of 16 objectives arranged under 4 categories of (A)
Environmental Sustainability (B) Sustainable Economic Growth (C) Sustainable Communities; and (D) Quality of Life and
Equalities. These categories reflect the following UK Sustainable Development Strategy Principles:
“Living Within Environmental Limits - Respecting the limits of the planet’s environment, resources and biodiversity –
to improve our environment and ensure that the natural resources needed for life are unimpaired and remain so for
future generations” (Category A);”
“Achieving a Sustainable Economy - Building a strong, stable and sustainable economy which provides prosperity
and opportunities for all, and in which environmental and social costs fall on those who impose them (polluter pays),
and efficient resource use is incentivised” (Category B);”and
“Ensuring a Strong, Healthy and Just Society - Meeting the diverse needs of all people in existing and future communities,
promoting personal wellbeing, social cohesion and inclusion, and creating equal opportunity for all.” (Categories C and D).
6.3 Each sustainability objective is broken down into a number of sub-objectives, indicators and targets. A series of
questions is also set out as part of the framework to guide the appraisal of alternative policy options.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

(C) SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

(1) Climate Change Mitigation
To address the causes of climate change by minimising CO2
emissions from new development

(9) Access to Housing
To meet the future local need for housing and the Borough’s share
of London’s need

(2) Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaptation
To avoid, reduce and manage flood risk

(10) Access to Education and Health
To ensure access to education facilities and health for all

(3) Pollution and Natural Resources
To conserve natural resources and minimise pollution

(11) Access to Sport and Leisure Facilities
To ensure access to Sport and Leisure Facilities for all

(4) Biodiversity
To protect and enhance biodiversity, habitats and green
corridors within the Borough

(12) Sustainable Transport
To reduce traffic levels, congestion, local air pollution and CO2
emissions from transport

(B) SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH

(D) QUALITY OF LIFE AND EQUALITIES

(5) Economic Growth & Inward Investment
(13) Open Environment
To attract inward investment & promote sustainable growth in To protect and enhance the provision and quality of the Borough’s
support of Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy
open environment
(6) Employment
(14) Built and Historic Environment
To promote local employment opportunities, skills and training To protect and enhance the quality of the built design, townscape
within the Borough
quality and the historic environment.
(7) Town Centres
To enhance the vitality and viability of town centres

(15) Social Deprivation, Health Deprivation & Fuel Poverty
To reduce social deprivation, health deprivation & fuel poverty

(8) Area Renewal
(16) Equalities, Accessibility and Social Inclusion
To secure inward investment for area renewal programmes to To reduce social exclusion, address inequalities & improve
deliver environmental business improvements.
accessibility to essential services & community facilities for all

6.4

The Council’s proposed criteria for the assessment of potential site allocations for inclusion in the Local Plan is set
out in Appendix 2.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 57

SA Objective

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

Indicators and Targets

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Agenda Item 11

Table 6.1: Sustainability Appraisal Framework for Sutton’s Local Plan

UK Sustainable Development Strategy Principle: “Living Within Environmental Limits - Respecting the limits of the planet’s environment, resources and biodiversity – to improve our environment
and ensure that the natural resources needed for life are unimpaired and remain so for future generations”

(1) Climate Change
Mitigation
To address the causes
of climate change by
minimising
CO2emissions from
new development

Will the policy or proposal reduce CO2
emissions by promoting energy
efficient design and layout in new
developments?

1.2 Decentralised and
Renewable Energy
To promote decentralised and
renewable energy in new
developments

Will the policy or proposal reduce CO2
emissions by promoting site-wide or
district heatingnetworks and/or
renewable energy generated on-site?

1.3 Sustainable Design and
Will the policy or proposal promote
Construction
the use of responsibly sourced
To promote the highest standards construction materials with lower
of sustainable design and
environmental impact?
construction in new developments

(2) Flood Risk and
Climate Change
Adaptation
To avoid, reduce and
manage flood risk

2.1 Flood Risk Management
Will the policy or proposal avoid
and sustainable urban drainage inappropriate development in flood
(SUDS)
risk areas in line with the sequential
To avoid or minimise all sources and exceptions tests, having regard
of flood risk, and manage any
to the vulnerability of the proposed
residual risks, without increasing use?
flood risk elsewhere

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Percentage reduction in CO2 emissions achieved by new-build
Para 5.12 page 54
residential and major non-residential developments compared to
Part L 2010 (Target: 40% reduction)
Percentage reduction in CO2 emissions achieved through by
energy efficient design and layout ‘(be lean’)
Percentage reduction in CO2 emissions achieved by new-build
Para 5.12 page 54
residential and major non-residential developments compared to
Part L 2010 (Target: 40% reduction)
Percentage reduction in CO2 emissions achieved through efficient
supply (‘be clean) and through on-site renewable energy (be green)
Developments within ‘DE Opportunity Areas’ enabling connection
to future district heating networks (Target: 100%)
Extent of Sutton decentralised energy network (SDEN) with
Hackbridge (Target: completion of phase 1 serving Felnex by 2019)
Number and proportion of new-build residential dwellings achieving Para 5.12 page 54
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 (Target: 100%)
Number and proportion of major non-residential developments
achieving BREEAM Excellent (Target: 100%)
Environmental impact rating of construction materials against
Building Research Establishment (BRE) Green Guide (Target: 3
out of the 5 key elements achieve an A rating)
Construction materials that are ‘responsibly sourced’ (Target: 80%)
Para 5.13 page 54
Number of residential developments permitted within EA Flood
Zones 2 Medium Risk; and 3a High Risk (Target: To minimise
inappropriate development in flood risk areas in line with the
sequential and exceptions tests)
Number of residential developments permitted within EA Flood
Zones 2 (medium risk) and 3a (High Risk) (Target: To minimise
inappropriate development in flood risk areas in line with the
‘sequential’ and ‘exceptions’ tests)

Page 272

1.1 Energy Efficiency
To achieve the highest standards
of energy efficient design and
layout in new developments

PAGE

58

SA Objective

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

2.3 Climate Change Adaptation
To ensure that all new
developments are fully adapted
and resilient to future climate
impacts
(3) Pollution and
Natural resources
To conserve natural
resources and
minimise pollution
within the Borough

3.2 Water Quality
To minimise water pollution and
improve the quality of the River
Wandle and other watercourses
(Pyl Brook and Beverly Brook).

Will the policy or proposal reduce
water pollution from urban runoff,
sewer flooding or other sources by
promoting sustainable urban
drainage (SUDS) measures and

Para 5.12 page 54

Para 5.12 page 54

Para 5.12 page 54

Para 5.14 page 55

Para 5.13 page 54

PM10s = particulate matter less than 10 microns in size

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

59

Agenda Item 11

34

3.1 Air Quality
To minimise local air pollution
within the Borough and
associated health impacts

Will the policy or proposal ensure that
new developments maximise the
benefits of blue and green space for
flood management, urdan cooling,
resilience to drought, biodiversity and
other adaptation objectives.
Will the policy or proposal maintain or
reduce local air pollution for new
developments and associated
transport movements?

Number and proportion of residential and non-residential
developments incorporating appropriate sustainable urban
drainage (SUDS) measures (Target: 100%)
Rate and volume of surface water run-off in the 1 in 100 year 6hour storm event with climate change (Target:For brownfield
sites, to minimise the rate of run-off to at least 50% of the predevelopment rate and achieve greenfield rates where possible
Number and proportion of developments supporting the objectives
of the River Wandle Catchment Plan (Target: 100%)
Number and proportion of developments incorpoprating the
principles of water sensitive urban design (WSUD) in order to
reduce water pollution from urban runoff (Target: 100%)
‘General Quality Assessments’ relating to chemical, biological and
aesthetic quality and ‘River Quality Objectives’ for the purpose of
assessing the River Wandle against EU Water Framework
Directive targets (Target: To achieve EU standards by 2016)
Number and proportion of developments incorporating green and
blue space climate change adaptation measures in line with the
Mayor’s Climate Change Adaptation Strategy and the Council’s
Green Space Guidelines (Target: 100%)
Number and proportion of developments supporting the objectives
of the Mayor’s ‘Green Grid’where appropriate
NO2 (nitrogen dioxide) levels in µg/m3 (Target: 200 µg/m3 as a 1hour mean no more than 18 days per year)
PM1034 levels in µg/m3 (Target: 50 µg/m3 as a 24-hour mean no
more than 35 days/year; not to exceed 40 µg/m3 as annual mean)
Ozone levels in µg/m3 as an 8-hour mean (Target: No more than
100 µg/m3 as an 8 hour mean more than 10 times a year)
EA monitoring of River Wandle (Target: To achieve EU Water
Framework standards by 2016)
- ‘General Quality Assessments’ (i) general chemistry – 6 grades
from A to F for dissolved oxygen, biological oxygen demand and
total ammonia (ii) biology – benthic macro-invertebrate monitoring;

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

Page 273

Will the policy or proposal minimise
surface water run-off from new
developments by incorporating
sustainable urban drainage systems
(SUDS), managing run-off as close to
its source as possible and aiming to
achieve greenfield run-off rates?
2.2 River Wandle (Catchment Will the policy or proposal promote a
Management)
holistic approach for improving the
To improve the health of the River health of the River Wandle catchment
Wandle catchment and its value and its value to local people by
to local people
sustaining a healthy population of
native flora and fauna, restoring
natural floodplain, ensuring drought
resilience and enabling access?

Indicators and Targets

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions
‘water sensitive urban design’?

(4) Biodiversity
To protect and
enhance biodiversity
and habitats

Will the policy or proposal improve
water efficiency standards?
Will the policy or proposal protect or
enhance wildlife habitats and
species diversity?

4.2 Backgarden land
Will the policy or proposal protect
To protect backgarden land and backgarden land and its value for
its value for nature conservation nature conservation?

4.3 Green Corridors
To protect and enhance green
corridors within the Borough

Will the policy or proposal protect
and enhance the integrity of green
corridors with in the Borough?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

and (iii) aesthetic quality
- ‘River Quality Objectives’ from RE1 (best – very good water
quality suitable for all fish species) to RE5 (worst – water of poor
quality likely to limit coarse fish populations
Number/proportion of developments SUDS measures an the
principles of ‘water sensitive urban design’? (Target: 100%)
Domestic water consumption (litres/p/day) in new dwellings
(Target: 125 litres/person/day)
Number and area (ha) of SINCs of metropolitan importance;
Borough importance (Grade I & Grade II); and local importance
(Target: To maintain number and area);
Number and area (ha) of local nature reserves (Target: To maintain
number and area of SINCs);
Area of built up land greater than 1km walking distance from a
Metropolitan or Borough SINC (Target: To reduce area of built up
land greater than 1km walking distance from a SINC);
Change in priority habitats and population of Sutton BAP species
(Target: No loss in in priority habitats and of Sutton BAP species)
Area of chalk grassland habitat restored or created (ha). (Target: To
enhance the quality of 12 ha chalk grassland habitat and restore or
create 2 ha by 2017)
Area of new woodland habitat, hedgerows or orchard created (ha)
(Target: To create 1 ha new woodland, hedgerows or orchard and
improve 2 ha existing woodland areas for biodiversity by 2017)
Number and percentage of dwellings completed (gross) on
backgarden land (Target 90%)
(i) GLA definition ( only counting residential developments on
garden land where no existing dwellings have been lost)
(ii) LBS definition (including cases where existing dwellings on the
site have been demolished and new dwellings built in their place)
Extent of green corridor with the Borough (Target: To maintain
extent and integrity of green corridor within the Borough))

PAGE

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

Para 5.13 page 54
Para 5.10 page 53

Page 274

3.3 Water Efficiency
To minimise water consumption
4.1 Biodiversity and Habitats
To protect and enhance sites of
importance for nature
conservation (SINCs), other key
wildlife habitats and biodiversity
action plan (LBAP) species

Indicators and Targets

Agenda Item 11

SA Objective

Para 5.10 page 53

Para 5.10 page 53

60

SA Objective

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

Indicators and Targets

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

(B) SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH
UK Sustainable Development Strategy Principle: “Achieving a Sustainable Economy - Building a strong, stable and sustainable economy which provides prosperity and opportunities for all, and
in which environmental and social costs fall on those who impose them (polluter pays), and efficient resource use is incentivised”.

(5) Economic Growth
& Inward Investment
To attract inward
investment and promote
sustainable economic
growth in support of
Sutton’s Economic
Development Strategy
(Opportunity Sutton)

6.2 Skills and Training
To promote education, skills and
training to ensure that residents
have the skills required to meet
the needs of new businesses
and future growth sectors
7.1 Sutton Town Centre
To encourage vitality and viability
of Sutton Town Centre

Will the policy or proposal promote
education, skills and training and
reduce the proportion of residents
who are ‘not in education,
employment or training’ (NEETs)?
Will the policy or proposal promote
the vitality and viability of Sutton
Town Centre?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

business investment (£) (Target: Increase)
Business Improvement Districts (Target: Implement further BIDS)
active business enterprises and growth rate (Target: Increase)
proportion of new enterprises surviving 1 year (Target: Increase)
proportion of businesses failing per year (Target: Reduce)
Proportion of population aged 16-64 who are economically active ;
number of people employed in the Green Economy compared to
2011 (Target: a 25% increase in people employed in the Green
Economy compared to 2011); and
number of Green Businesses (Target: a 25% increase on 2011).
implementation of proposed Tramlink extenstion (Target: TfL
support for Tramlink extension)
Retention of established industrial areas for employment uses
(Targets: 25% of Felnex; 30% of the Land adjacent to Hackbridge
Station and 40% of the Wandle Valley Trading estate)
employee jobs and self-employment jobs in LB Sutton
Unemployment - Job Seekers' Allowance Claimants aged 16-64
Youth unemployment – JSA Claimants aged 18-24
Income Domain of the CLG’s Indices of Deprivation 2010
‘fuel poor’ households (Target: reduce from the current 7.4%)
residents (16-74) with educational qualifications
19 year olds with 5 + GCSEs at grades A* to C (Target: Increase);
scores and ranking of super output areas (SOAs) against
‘educational skills and training’ domain of Indices of Deprivation;
proportion of 16-18 year olds who are Not in Education,
Employment or Training (NEETs) (Target: Reduce)
Sutton Town Centre Health Check data and footfall
Vacant commercial properties and diversity of uses.
New retail floorspace in Sutton Town Centre;
redevelopment of major site allocations;
completed employment floorspace (A1-A5 and B1a offices);
PAGE

Para 5.7 page 52

Para 5.7 page 52

Para 5.7 page 52
Para 5.14 page 55
Para 5.7 page 52

Para 5.7 page 52
Para 5.9 page 53

Para 5.8 page
52

61

Agenda Item 11

(7) Town Centres
To enhance the vitality
and viability of town
centres throughout the
Borough

Will the policy or proposal promote
the competitiveness of the local
economy by attracting business
investment, removing barriers to
enterprise, supporting start ups and
promoting social enterprises?
5.2 Green Economy
Will the policy or proposal support
To promote the growth of
the growth of new and existing low
Sutton’s green economy
carbon businesses and assist in
greening the local economy?
5.3 Strategic Transport
Will the policy or proposal support
Infrastructure Promote Tramlink the proposed Tramlink extension?
6.1 Local Employment
Will the policy or proposal increase
To increase access to local
access to local employment
employment opportunities and
opportunities and reduce economic
reduce economic inactivity rates inactivity rates amongst Borough
within the Borough
residents?

Page 275

(6) Employment
To promote local
employment
opportunities, skills
and training within the
Borough

5.1 Business Competitiveness
To promote a strong, vibrant and
sustainable local economy that
enhances business
competitiveness

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

7.2 District & local centres
Will the policy or proposal promote
To encourage vitality and viability the vitality and viability of district
of district and local centres
and local centres, particular
Hackbridge?
8.1 Hackbridge Neighbourhood Will the policy or proposal support
To promote the sustainable
the sustainable regeneration and
regeneration and growth of
growth of Hackbridge to create a
Hackbridge to create a district
district centre in line with One Planet
centre, public realm investment Living principles and the aspirations
and further green economy
of the local community?
business support in line with One
Planet Living principles and the
aspirations of the local community
To work with developers and the Will the policy or proposal promote
community to deliver the Sutton the delivery of the proposed SDEN?
Decentralised Energy Network
8.2 Beddington North
Will the policy or proposal support
Neighbourhood To support
the delivery of Council-led, business
Council-led, business and
and community initiatives to deliver
community initiatives to deliver environmental and business
environmental and business
improvements to the Beddington
improvements to the Beddington North area in line with the aspirations
North Neighbourhood
of the local community?
8.3 Sutton for Life Project
Will the policy or proposal support
(Belmont) To support the ‘Sutton the delivery of the Sutton for Life
for Life’ project by working with theproject?
Royal Marsden, the Institute of
Cancer Research (ICR) and the
Epsom & St Helier University
Hospitals NHS Trust secure
redevelopment of the site for a
range of complementary land uses

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

district centre Health Check data
Vacant commercial properties and diversity of uses.
New retail floorspace in each district centre and footfall;
redevelopment of major site allocations;
completed employment floorspace (A1-A5 and B1a offices);
implementation of public realm and shop front improvements
redevelopment of strategic sites;
uptake of vacant employment land and premises for business
development;
expenditure on infrastructure, environmental and transport
improvements in industrial areas;
number of green businesses and business start ups in Hackbridge
zero carbon developments within Hackbridge

Para 5.8 page
52

implementation of Phase 1 of the SDEN serving Felnex
implementation of subsequent phases of the proposed SDEN

Para 5.7 page 52

Para 5.8 pages
52-53

implementation of environmental and business improvements within Para 5.7 page 52
the Beddington North Neighbourhood e.g. Beddington Business
Improvement District (BID), Air Quality Improvement Programme,
Viridor Community Fund, Environmental Enforcement Programme,
Beddington Lane improvements and Beddington Park and The
Grange
implementation of the ‘Sutton for Life’ project

PAGE

Para 5.7 page 52
Para 5.9 page 53

62

Page 276

(8) Area Renewal
To secure inward
investment for area
renewal programmes
in order to deliver
environmental and
business
improvements at
neighbourhood level

Indicators and Targets

Agenda Item 11

SA Objective

SA Objective

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

Indicators and Targets

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

(C) SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES
UK Sustainable Development Strategy Principle: “Ensuring a Strong, Healthy and Just Society - Meeting the diverse needs of all people in existing and future communities, promoting personal
wellbeing, social cohesion and inclusion, and creating equal opportunity for all.”

(9) Access to
Housing
To meet the future
local need for housing
and the Borough’s
share of London’s
need

9.1 Housing Provision
To provide for sufficient net
additional dwellings h in order to
meet and exceed Borough
housing targets over the period
of the Local Plan (10-15 years)
and to support economic growth

Will the policy or proposal provide
for sufficient net additional
dwellings to meet and exceed
Borough housing targets over the
period of the Local Plan (10-15
years)

Will the policy or proposal maximise
the provision of affordable housing
and ensure that an appropriate mix
of sizes of affordable units is
provided in a range of locations to
best meet identified needs?
(10) Access to
10.1 Schools Provision
Will the policy or proposal support
Education and Health To provide for new schools and the provision of new schools and
To ensure access to
expanded school capacity as
expanded school capacity as
education and health
appropriate to accommodate the appropriate to accommodate the need
facilities for all
need for additional primary and for additional primary and secondary
secondary school places
school places?
throughout the Borough
Will the policy or proposal support
the provision of additional healthcare
facilities as appropriate to meet the
identified needs in different parts of
the Borough?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

63

Agenda Item 11

10.2 Health Provision
To provide for additional
healthcare facilities as
appropriate to meet the identified
needs in different parts of the
Borough

Para 5.9 page 53
number of primary and secondary schools and school places;
number of pupils attending primary and secondary schools within
the Borough (school rolls)
number of pupils in excess of total secondary/primary school
capacity and number of schools over capacity
new schools/ school capacitybuilt each year
future demand for primary and secondary school places
provision of healthcare facilities (hospitals and health centres) within Para 5.9 page 53
the Borough

Page 277

9.2 Affordable Housing
To maximise the provision of
affordable housing within the
Borough in order to meet
identified needs.

Para 5.5 page 51
net additional dwellings completed within the Borough per year
Para 5.6 page 52
(Target: 363 net additional dwellings per year from 2015-16)
net additional dwellings completed in Sutton Town Centre,
Hackbridge, other district centres and elsewhere in the Borough
(Targets:40% of housing growthfrom 2009-24 in Sutton Town
Centre, 20% in Hackbridge – based on existing Core Strategy)
5 Year housing land supply assessment (SHLAA) – identification of
5 year supply from (a) sites projected to be completed by 2014-15
(b) sites under construction (c) sites with planning permission (d)
allocated sites (e) unallocated sites; and (f) ‘office to residential’
net additional dwellings completed by type and by size
housing density with SRQ areas and elsewehere (fwellings/ha)
Para 5.5 page 51
number of affordable dwellings completed per year (gross)
affordable dwellings completed as a percentage of total net
additional developments(Target: 50% of net additional dwellings)

(11) Access to Sport
and Leisure Facilities
To ensure access to
sport and leisure
facilities for all

SA Sub-objective

Indicators and Targets

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

Will the policy or proposal support
the provision of additional sports
and leisure facilities as appropriate
to serve the needs of different parts
of the Borough?

provision of sports and leisure facilities within the Borough

Will the policy or proposal support
the provision of additional
playspace facilities as appropriate to
address identified deficiencies
across the Borough?
Will the policy or proposal reduce the
need to travel?

Para 5.9 page 53
local equipped areas of play (LEAPs) within the Borough
area of the Borough 400m or more from a local equipped areas of Para 5.10 page 53
play (LEAP) in hectares (Target: Reduce)
neighbourhood equipped areas of play (NEAPs) within the Borough
area of the Borough 400m or more from a NEAP (Target: Reduce)
Para 5.14 page 55
monitored traffic levels in million vehicle kilometres per annum
(Target from Sutton Transport Plan 2011-31: Reduce traffic levels)

Will the policy or proposal reduce
increase the proportion of trips made
by public transport, cycling and
walking?

Para 5.14 page 55
proportion of the urban area of the Borough within easy walking
distance (400m) of frequent bus services (at least 2 buses per hour)
(Target: Increase proportion)
percentage of trips originating in LB Sutton where the main mode is
by public transport (Target: To increase public transport mode share
to: 16.75% by 2013-14; 17.60% by 2016-17; 20% by 2025-26; and
22% by 2030-31)
percentage of trips originating in LB Sutton where the main mode is
by cycling (Target: To increase cycling mode share to: 1.8% by
2013-14; 4.0% by 2025-26; and 5.0% by 2030-31
percentage of trips originating in LB Sutton where the main mode is
walking (Target: To increase walking mode share to 25.4% by 201314; 29.6% by 2016-17 and 32.0% by 2024-25.

.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Para 5.9 page 53

Page 278

11.1 Sports and Leisure
Provision
To provide for sports and leisure
facilities as appropriate to serve
the needs of different parts of
the Borough
11.1 Playspace
To provide for playspace
facilities as appropriate to
address identified deficiencies
across the Borough
(12) Sustainable
12.1 Traffic Reduction (trips)
Transport
To reduce traffic levels,
To reduce traffic levels, congestion, local air pollution and
congestion, local air
greenhouse emissions by
pollution and CO2
reducing the need to travel
emissions from
12.2 Sustainable Modes
transport
To reduce traffic levels,
congestion, local air pollution and
greenhouse emissions by
promoting public transport
accessibility, walking and cycling

Appraisal Questions

Agenda Item 11

SA Objective

PAGE

64

SA Objective

SA Sub-objective

Appraisal Questions

Indicators and Targets

Sustainability
Issue Ref.

(D) QUALITY OF LIFE AND EQUALITIES
UK Sustainable Development Strategy Principle: “Ensuring a Strong, Healthy and Just Society - Meeting the diverse needs of all people in existing and future communities, promoting personal
wellbeing, social cohesion and inclusion, and creating equal opportunity for all.”

(13) Open
Environment
To protect and
enhance the provision
and quality of the
Borough’s open
environment

Para 5.10 page 53

area of unrestricted open space per 1,000 pop (ha/ 1,000 pop.).
(Target: Maintain POS with unrestricted access at 2.88 ha/ 1,000
population)
detailed landscape appraisal survey data

Para 5.10 page 53
Para 5.10 page 53
Para 5.11 page 53

Para 5.11 page 53
assessments of ‘local distinctiveness’ and ‘identity’(survey)
Urban Characterisation: areas falling in ‘local settings’ categories:
- central: very dense development; mix of uses; high buildings
- urban: predominantly dense e.g. terraced houses; mix of uses.;
- north suburban: residential neighbourhoods, predominantly semidetached and terraced properties;
- south suburban: predominantly detatched and semi detatched,
implementation of environmental improvement schemes
Para 5.11 page 53
number and area of Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local
Character (ASLCs), Grade I & II Listed and locally listed buildings
number of character appraisals of Conservation Areas undertaken
number of Conservation Areas with an adopted management plan
Para 5.7 page 52
scores and rankings of lower level super output areas (SOAs)
based on the Government’s Indices of Deprivation (ID2010)
number and proportion of SOAs with derivation scores ranked within
each quintile nationally and change since the previous
proportion who live in the most deprived 20% of wards in the UK
scores and rankings of SOAs in relation to the Deprivation domains
of ‘income’, ‘health,‘employment’ and ‘education, skills and training‘;
JSA Claimants as a proportion of working age population (16-74);
proportion of 16-18 year olds who are NEETs (Target: Reduce)
PAGE

65

Agenda Item 11

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

area of Green Belt (ha) (Target: No loss)
area of MOL (ha) (Target: No loss)

Page 279

13.1 Strategic Open Land
Will the policy or proposal safeguard
To safeguard the permanence
the permanence and integrity of the
and integrity of Green Belt and Green Belt and MOL?
Metropolitan Open Land (MOL)
13.2 Public Open Space
Will the policy or proposal maintain
To maintain and enhance the
or enhance provision of and
provision and quality of POS
accessibility to public open space?
13.3 Landscape Quality
Will the policy or proposal enhance the
To maintain and enhance open quality of open landscape and views?
landscape quality and views.
(14) Built and Historic 14.1 Built Design & Townscape Will the policy or proposal protect
Environment
To protect and enhance the qualityand enhance the character,
To protect and
of the Borough’s residential
appearance and local distinctiveness
enhance the quality of environment by ensuring that
of the Borough’s residential
the built design,
development respects the positive environment?
townscape quality and features of Sutton’s suburban
the historic
character, reinforces local
environment.
distinctiveness and local identity
14.2 Historic Environment
Will the policy or proposal ensure that
To preserve and enhance the
development is of a high standard of
character of heritage areas,
design which preserves and
including Conservation Area,
enhances the character of heritage
ASLCs and listed buildings.
areas and features of the Borough?
(15) Social
15.1 Social Deprivation
Will the policy or proposal reduce
Deprivation, Health
To reduce poverty, social
poverty and social exclusion and
Deprivation and Fuel exclusion, deprivation and
health inequalities, particularly
Poverty
health inequalities within the
within relatively deprived areas of
To reduce social
Borough
the Borough
deprivation, health
deprivation and fuel
poverty

SA Sub-objective
15.2 Health deprivation
To improve the health of the
population overall, reduce health
inequalities and promote healthy
lifestyles

Will the policy or proposal improve
the health of the population overall,
reduce health inequalities and
promote healthy lifestyles?

male and female life expectancy;
mortality rate per 100,000 population;
proportion of 5 yr olds, 10-11 yr olds and adults who are obese
proportion of adults who are smokers
scores and rankings of super output areas (SOAs) in relation to
the Government’s Deprivation domains of ‘health‘;
Will the policy or proposal tackle fuel proportion of fuel poor households within the Borough (a fuel poor
poverty in support of the objectives of household is one where the household income is below the
the Borough Fuel Povery Strategy?
poverty line, once energy costs are taken into account and the
energy costs are higher than is typical for their household type)

15.3 Fuel Poverty
To address fuel poverty within
the Borough in support of the
objectives of the Borough Fuel
Povery Strategy
16.1 Equalities Impact
Will the policy or proposal have a
Assessment (EqA)
positive or negative impact on one
To promote equal opportunities or more of the equality target groups
and address inequalities affecting or, improve equal opportunities
one of more of the following
and/or relationships between
equalities target groups:
groups?
- Women
- Black & minority ethnic (BME)- Older people
- Young people and children
- Disabled people
- Lesbians, gays, bi & trans
- Different faith groups
- social deprivation
16.2 Balanced Communities
Will the policy or proposal
To promote mixed and balanced contribute to the creation of mixed
communities throughout the
and balanced communities?
Borough
16.3 Community Safety
To reduce crime, fear of crime
and anti-social behaviour

Indicators and Targets

Will the policy or proposal reduce
actual crime, fear of crime or antisocial behaviour?

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Assement of positive or negative impacts on one or more of the
following equalities target groups:
- Women
- Black and minority ethnic (BME) - Older people
- Young people and children
- Disabled people
- Lesbians, gays, bisexuals and transgendered
- Different faith groups
- social deprivation

Sustainability
Issue Ref.
Para 5.7 page 52
Para 5.9 page 53

Para 5.7 page 52
Para 5.12 page 54

All issues (Paras
5.5-5.14; pages
51-55)

Page 280

(16) Equalities, Social
Inclusion and
Community Safety
To reduce social
exclusion, address
inequalities and improve
accessibility to essential
services and community
facilities for all

Appraisal Questions

Agenda Item 11

SA Objective

Para 5.5 page 51
range and mix of tenure and household types and sizes within
residential areas
relative proportions and mix of social, intermediate and market
housing affordable in an area
relative proportions of 1 bed, 2-bed, 3-bed and family dwellings
scores and rankings of super output areas (SOAs) in relation to the Para 5.11 page 53
Government’s Deprivation domains of ‘crime‘;
crimes per 1,000 population (overall, violent offences, burglary etc)

PAGE

66

Agenda Item 11

SEVEN
OONE

Page 281

Next Steps
CONSULTATION ON SA SCOPING REPORT
7.1 In line with the Government Planning Practice Guidance and the requirements of the Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) Regulations 2004, copies of the SA Scoping Report have been made available to the statutory
consultation bodies and a range of key environmental stakeholders for a period of 5 weeks from 30 June to 3 August 2015.
7.2

In dealing with the outcome of the consultation the Council will:
acknowledge all responses made;
contact respondants if there is a need to clarify any points raised;
summarise all responses;
prepare a report to the Council’s Housing, Environment and Business Committee (HEB) on all responses, and,
set out the Council’s views on these, including recommendations on the way forward. This report will be made
publicly available on the Council’s website (http://www.sutton.gov.uk ) and in local libraries; and

7.3 The feedback from consulation exercise will inform the range of SA objectives, targets and indicators to be used
in the appraisal of Sutton’s Local Plan ‘Issues and Preferred Options’ which will be made available for public
consultation in early 2016 (see Figure 1.1).

NEXT STAGES OF SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL
7.4 In line with the Council’s proposed approach set out in Figure 1.1, the next SA Report will be prepared at the
Local Plan ‘Issues and Preferred Options’ stage in order to evaluate the likely effects of the Council’s preferred options
for the future development of the Borough on the environmental, social and economic objectives of sustainable
development together with the impacts of all alternatives considered (including the ‘no plan’ or ‘do-nothing’ scenario).A
further SA Report will be prepared for public consultation at the Draft Local Plan stage, which is scheduled for Autumn
2016, and this will be amended as necessary to reflect any changes made to the Local Plan for the purpose of
submission to the Secretary of State.
7.5 It is intended that the Council’s proposed SA Framework set out in this document (Table 6.1) will be further
developed and refined at each stage of the preparation of the Local Plan for the purpose of appraisal and plan
monitoring.Sutton’s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR), which will be published n December every year, will report on the
full range of sustainability indicators and targets within the SA Framework, in order to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Council’s existing and future Local Plan policies in achieving both the objectives of the development plan and of
sustainable development.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
What is Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA)?
7.6 Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is designed to ensure that plans and policies do not discriminate against
specific equalities target groups and, where possible, make a positive contribution to improving quality of life for local
communities. The requirement to consider the impacts of Local Plan policies and proposals upon certain equality target
groups through the EqIA process arises from the following legislation.
Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000
7.7 The amendment requires Local Authorities to be pro-active and positive in promoting racial equality. The authorities
are required to undertake a Race Equality Impact Assessment of their strategies and plans. Failure to do so may lead to
legal action being taken against them by the Commission for Racial Equality (CRE). The CRE is now part of the Equalities
and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) as detailed on the next page.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 67

Agenda Item 11

Page 282

Disability Discrimination (Amendment) Act 2005
7.8 The Act requires local authorities to promote equality of opportunity for disabled people and avoid discrimination.
The authorities must ensure that their policies, practices, procedures and services are not discriminatory against disabled
people.
Equality Act 2010
7.9 The primary purpose of the Equality Act 2010 was to consolidate the various Acts and Regulations, which formed
the basis of anti-discrimination law in the UK. This included the pre-existing Equality Act 2006, the Sex Discrimination Act
1975, the Race Relations Act 1976, the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and three major statutory instruments protecting
discrimination on grounds of religion or belief, sexual orientation or age.
Equalities Impact Assessment as part of Local Plan Preparation
7.10 The first stage of EqIA involves screening to identify the potentially beneficial and adverse impacts of the plan or
policies on each of the specific equality target groups and identifies any gaps in knowledge. If any potentially significant
adverse effects are identified and/or if the impact is not intended and/or illegal, then a full stage two assessment should be
carried out. The second stage of the process forms a more detailed assessment focusing on the significant negative
impacts and identifying possible mitigation scenarios. Consultation with stakeholders and members of the equality target
groups should be undertaken during this phase.
7.11 It is intended that the next SA Report on Local Plan ‘Issues and Preferred Options’ will incorporate a full
EqIA Screening Report (stage 1). However it should be noted that Objective 16.1 of the Council’s proposed SA
Framework set out in Section 6 already addresses the likely scope of EqIA by seeking to “promote equal opportunities
and address inequalities affecting one of more of the following equalities target groups: Women; Black & minority ethnic
(BME); Older people; Young people and children; Disabled people; Lesbians, gays, bisexual & transgender; different
faith groups and people affected by social deprivation”.

APPROPRIATE ASSESSMENT(EU HABITATS DIRECTIVE)
What is Appropriate Assessment?
7.12 The requirement for Appropriate Assessment (AA) of plans or projects is outlined in Article 6(3) and (4) of EU
Directive 92/43/EEC on the ‘Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Fauna and Flora’ (the Habitats Directive). The
Habitats Directive established a Europe wide network of sites known as Natura 2000, which provides for the protection
of sites that are of exceptional importance for rare, endangered or vulnerable natural habitats and species within the
European Union. These sites, also referred to as ‘European sites’, consist of Special Areas of Conservation (SACs),
Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Offshore Marine Site (OMS). Ramsar sites (wetlands of international importance)
are included as if they are fully designated European Sites for the purpose of considering development proposals that
may affect them.
7.13 The Habitats Directive was implemented in the UK through the Conservation (Natural Habitats &c) Regulations
1994. The Regulations are responsible for safeguarding designated European sites and therefore protecting the habitats
and species listed in the Annexes of the Directive.
7.14 The purpose of undertaking AA in the preparation of land use plans is to ensure that the protection and integrity
of European sites is part of the planning process at the regional and local level. In October 2005, the European Court of
Justice ruled that AA must be carried out on all land use planning documents in the UK. In response to this ruling, a new
section (Part IVA) was inserted into the Habitats Regulations in August 2007 (Regulations 85A -85E) which requires
local planning authorities to undertake AA of land use plans in England and Wales in accordance with the Directive.
Proposed Timescale for preparing a Habitats Regulations Screening Report on Sutton’s Local Plan
7.15 It is intended to prepare a Habitats Regulations Screening Report as part of the next stage of public consultation
on Local Plan ‘Preferred Options and Issues’in early 2016. The purpose of the Screening Report will be to assess
whether any of the emerging preferred options are likely to have significant effects, either alone or in combination with
other plans or projects, on the protection or integrity of any designated European site within or adjacent to the London
Borough of Sutton.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 68

Page 283

Agenda Item 11

Sustainability Appraisal
Scoping Report

APPENDICES

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 69

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

SCOPING OF RELEVANT STRATEGIES PLANS AND PROGRAMMES (TASK A1) - TO COMPLETE

APPENDIX 1

Local Plan Implications

INTERNATIONAL/ EUROPEAN LEVEL

EU Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) Directive
(2001/42/EC)
EU Air Quality Framework
Directive (1996/62/EC)

EU Habitats Directive
(92/43/EEC)

EU Wild Birds Directive
(1997/49/EC)

The SEA Directive requires SEA to be undertaken for all plans and programmes with ‘significant’ environmental effects, including Local Plans Implemented in the UK through the
SEA Regulations 2004.
The Directive covers the revision of previously existing legislation and the introduction of new air quality standards for previously unregulated air pollutants, setting a timetable for the
development of supporting directives addressing specific pollutants. The main requirement is for the assessment of outdoor air quality. Target thresholds are set to alert a local
authority to when air quality issues may arise. The Directive states that action plans must be drawn up for short term actions when there is a risk of limit values and/or thresholds
being exceeded. The Directive states the necessity to meet the following air quality standards:
sulphur dioxide (SO2) - limit values350 ug/m ³ SO2 not to be exceeded for more than1hour 24 times a year by 2005125 ug/m ³ SO2 not to be exceeded in a 24 hour period more
than 3 times a year by 200520 ug/m ³ SO2 over the calendar year
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) - limit values200 ug/m³ NO2 not to be exceeded for more than 1hour 18 times a year by 1 January 2010 40 ug/m³ NO2 over the calendar year by 2010
particulate matter (PM10) - limit values50 ug/m³ PM10 not to be exceeded in a 24 hour period more than 35 times a year by 2005, and 7 times a year by 201040 ug/m³ PM10
over the calendar year by 2005, and 20ug/m³ by 2010.Lead - Limit values0.5 ug/m³ over the calendar yr by 2005
The Habitats Directive (more formally known as Council Directive 92/43/EEC on the Conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna and flora) was introduced as a response to the
Berne Convention. The Directive (i) requires the Designation of Special Areas of Conservation (SACs), selected for their importance as natural habitat types and as habitats for species
listed in Annexures to the Directive (ii) puts in place a management plan to protect SACs combining long-term preservation with economic and social activities, as part of a sustainable
development strategy; and (iii) requires that any plan or project likely to have a significant impact on a designated site should undergo an appropriate assessment of its implications for
the conservation objectives of the site
Member States have a duty to sustain populations of naturally occurring wild birds by sustaining areas of habitats to maintain populations at ecologically and scientifically sound levels
and taking measures to preserve, maintain or reestablish a sufficient diversity and area of habitats for all the species of birds referred to in Article 1. The preservation, maintenance and
reestablishment of biotopes and habitats shall include primarily the following measures (a) The creation of protected areas (b) Upkeep and management in accordance with the
ecological needs of habitats inside & outside the protected zones (c) Re-establishment of destroyed biotopes and (d) Creation of biotopes

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

Consider how the Plan can
contribute to the objectives and
key commitments of the
Declaration.
Consider how the Plan can
contribute to the objectives and
targets of the Protocol.
Consider how the Plan can
contribute to the objectives and
targets of the Protocol.

Page 284

Johannesburg Declaration on The Johannesburg Declaration promotes the integration of the three components of sustainable development, economic development, social development and environmental
Sustainable Development
protection.Poverty eradication, changing unsustainable patterns of production and consumption and protecting and managing the natural resource base of economic and social
(United Nations 2002)
development are overarching objectives of, and essential requirements for, sustainable development.Key commitments around: sustainable production and consumption; renewable
energy and energy efficiency; production of chemicals in ways that do not lead to significant adverse effects on human health and the environment; develop integrated water resources
management and water efficiency plans by 2005.
The Kyoto Agreement (1997) The Kyoto Protocol is an international agreement linked to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, which commits its parties by setting internationally binding
emission reduction targets to (i) limit the emissions of 6 greenhouse gases including: carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride
(ii) Reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 5% of 1990 levels by 2008-12; and (iii) UK has an agreement to reduce emissions by 12.5% below 1990 levels by 2008/12 and a national goal
to a 20% reduction in CO2 emissions below 1990 levels by 2010.
UN Framework Convention:
The Convention on Climate Change sets an overall framework for intergovernmental efforts to tackle the challenge posed by climate change. It recognizes that the climate system is a
Climate Change (1992)
shared resource whose stability can be affected by industrial and other emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases. Key commitments include (i) to gaher and share
information on greenhouse gas emissions, national policies and best practices (ii) launch national strategies for addressing greenhouse gas emissions and adapting to expected
impacts, including the provision of financial and technological support to developing countries; and (iii)cooperate in preparing for adaptation to the impacts of climate change
European Spatial Development The ESDP is a suitable policy framework for the sectoral policies of the Community and the Member States that have spatial impacts, as well as for regional and local authorities, aimed
Perspective
as it is at achieving a balanced and sustainable development of the European territory. Key commitments around (i) Economic and social cohesion (ii) Conservation of natural resources
and cultural heritage (iii) more balanced competitiveness of the European territory; and (iv) To achieve more spatially balanced development;

Consider how the Plan can
contribute towards the objectives
and targets of the Spatial
Development Perspective.
Ensure that the SA process meets
the requirements of the SEA
Directive
Ensure that the Local Plan
supports the achievement of air
quality standards for SO2, NO2
and PM10 within the Boroughwide
Air Quality Management Area
designation and the aims of
Sutton’s Air Quality Action Plan

A Habitats Regulations Screening
Report as part of the next stage of
public consultation on ‘Preferred
Options and Issues’ as outlined in
Paras 7.12-7.15.

70

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

EU Environmental Noise
Directive (2002/49/EC)

The Local Plan must comply
with noise action plans, to make
sure that new development and
associated activities does not
exacerbate existing noise
issues.
The Plan should support regional
objectives for the management of
the Thames River basin including
the River Wandle and prevent
deterioration of the status of all
bodies of water within the borough
according to EU Water Framework
Directive standards...
Arising from the Government's
Review of Housing Standards, the
Deregulation Act (26 March 2015)
and the Ministerial Statement, the
Council will no longer be able to
adopt new planning policies which
require CO2 reductions above and
beyond the Building Regulations
from late 2016 when 'zero carbon
homes' are introduced.

NATIONAL LEVEL

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

71

Agenda Item 11

Planning (Listed buildings &
An Act to consolidate certain enactments relating to special controls in respect of buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest with amendments to give effect to
Conservation Areas) act (1990) recommendations of the Law Commission.
SEA Regulations 2004
The SEA directive is a European Union requirement that seeks to provide a high level of protection of the environment by integrating environmental considerations into the process of
preparing certain plans and programmes. Key Commitments:
To contribute to the integration of environmental considerations into the preparation
and adoption of plans and programmes with a view to promoting sustainable
development , by ensuing that, in accordance with this Directive, an environmental
assessment is carried out of certain plans and programmes which are likely to have
significant effects on the environment
Planning and Compulsory
An Act to make provision relating to spatial development and town and country planning; and the compulsory acquisition of land
Purchase Act (2004)
Changes to development control including a reduction of the time in which planning permission consent can be implemented, a new definition of development to incorporate
mezzainine floors, and various provisions to end the ability for developers to ‘twin track’ applications.
The current system of unitary local and structure development plans is to be replaced by regional spatial strategies and local development documents prepared by LPAs
changes to the basis on which a local authority may acquire land compulsorily for the purposes of regeneration and major urban development projects
regional planning bodies and LPAs will have a statutory duty to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development
the crown will no longer be immune from planning control
Sustainable Communities Act
An Act to make provision about promoting the sustainability of local communities; and for connected purposes. Key Commitments
(2007)
To promote the sustainability of local communities
Giving people the power to shape the future of their lives and communities
Sustainable Communities
The principal aim of the Sustainable Communities Regulations to promote the sustainability of local communities, ie to encourage the improvement of the economic, social or
Regulations (2012)
environmental wellbeing of the authority’s area. It imposes a duty on the Secretary of State to assist local authorities in promoting the sustainability of local communities in the ways
specified in the Act.

Page 285

The Environmental Noise Directive aims to “define a common approach intended to avoid, prevent or reduce on a prioritised basis the harmful effects, including annoyance, due to the
exposure to environmental noise”. It furthermore aims at providing a basis for developing EU measures to reduce noise emitted by major sources, in particular road and rail vehicles
and infrastructure, aircraft, outdoor and industrial equipment and mobile machinery. Key commitments include: Monitoring the environmental problem; Informing and consulting the
public; Addressing local noise issues; Developing a long-term EU strategy; Monitor environmental noise pollution; Inform and consult the public about noise exposure, its effects and
the measures considered to address noise; Address local noise issues by requiring local authorities to draw up action plans to reduce noise where necessary and maintain
environmental noise quality where it is good.
EU Water Framework Directive The purpose of the Directive is to establish a framework for the protection of inland surface waters (rivers and lakes), transitional waters (estuaries), coastal waters and groundwater.
(2000/60/EC)
It will ensure that all aquatic ecosystems and, with regard to their water needs, terrestrial ecosystems and wetlands meet 'good status' by 2015. Key commitments:
Achieve ‘good’ ecological and ‘good’ chemical status of aquatic ecosystems by 2015.
Identify and reverse any significant and sustained upwards trend in the concentration of any pollutants.
Prevent further deterioration and protect and enhance the status of aquatic ecosystems;
Promote the sustainable consumption of water use;
Protect and enhance the aquatic environment through specific measures for the progressive reduction and cessation of discharges, emissions and losses of priority substances;
Prevent the deterioration in the status and to progressively reduce pollution of groundwater.
EU Energy Performance of
The objective of the Directive 2002/91/EC on the Energy Performance of Buildings is to promote the energy performance of buildings within the European Community taking into
Buildings Directive
account outdoor climatic and local conditions as well as indoor climate requirements and cost-effectiveness. Key commitments include (i) the establishment of methodologies for
(2002/91/EC)
calculating the integrated energy performance of buildings (ii) the establishment of methodologies for calculating the integrated energy performance of buildings (iii) the application of
minimum standards on energy performance to new buildings and certain existing buildings when they are renovated. These standards must be reviewed at least every five years (iv)
making available energy performance certificates (EPCs) when buildings are constructed, sold or rented out, and in certain cases necessitating display of these certificates; and (v)
schemes for inspecting and offering advice on the energy efficiency of boiler and air conditioning systems.

Local Plan Implications

Climate Change Act (2008)

Planning Act (2008)

Flood Risk Regulations (2009)

Neighbourhood Planning
Regulations (2012)
Growth and infrastructure Act
(2013)

Local Plan Implications

Key Commitments:
To reduce the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions to at least 80% lower than the 1990 baseline by 2050, to be achieved through action at home and abroad
To amend the provisions of the Energy Act 2004 about renewable transport fuel obligations; to make provision about carbon emissions reduction targets; to make other provision
about climate change; and for connected purposes
The Bill introduces a new system for approving major infrastructure of national importance, such as harbours and waste facilities, and replaces current regimes under several pieces
of legislation. The objective is to streamline these decisions and avoid long public inquiries. Key Commitments
Decisions would be taken by a new Infrastructure Planning Commission
Decisions would be based on new national policy statements
The hearing and decision-making process by the Commission would be timetabled
The new regime would be used for energy developments like nuclear power
The Secretary of State would no longer have the final say on major infrastructure decisions
There would be a new Community Infrastructure Levy on developments to finance infrastructure. The idea of this would be to raise money from developers to pay for facilities
needed as a consequence of new developments, such as schools, hospitals and sewage plants.
Planning appeals for minor developments would be heard by a panel of local councillors rather than by a planning inspector.
The flood risk regulations implement the requirements of the European Floods Directive which aims to provide a consistent approach to managing flood risk across Europe. The
approach is based on a 6 year cycle of planning which includes the publication of:Preliminary Flood Risk Assessments (PFRAs) by 22 December 2011; Hazard and risk maps by 22
December 2013; Flood risk management plans by 22 December 2015. Key Commitments
Managing flood risk from main rivers, the sea and reservoirs
To assess the manage flood risks in order to reduce adverse consequences for human health, the environment (including cultural heritage) and economic activity
Provides for better, more comprehensive management of flood risk for people, homes and businesses, helps safeguard community groups from unaffordable rises in surface water
drainage charges, and protects water supplies to the consumer.
Sets out a new charge which local authorities in England and Wales will be empowered, but not required, to charge on most types of new development in their area.

Page 286

Flood and Water
Management Act (2010)
Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulation (2010)
Localism Act (2011)

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

The Localism Act 2011 (c. 20) is an Act of Parliament that changes the powers of local government in England. The aim of the act is to facilitate the devolution of decision-making
powers from central government control to individuals and communities.
Neighbourhood planning is a new way for communities to decide the future of the places where they live and work. They will be able to: • choose where they want new homes,
shops and offices to be built • have their say on what those new buildings should look like and what infrastructure should be provided • grant planning permission for the new
buildings they want to see go ahead The government has introduced the community right to do neighbourhood planning through the Localism Act.
To make provision in connection with facilitating or controlling the following, namely, the provision or use of infrastructure, the carrying-out of development, and the compulsory
acquisition of land; to make provision about when rating lists are to be compiled; to make provision about the rights of employees of companies who agree to be employee owners;
and for connected purposes.

Amendment to GPDO (1995) to
enable change of use from
offices to residential without
permission (June 2013)
Neighbourhood Planning
(General) (Amendment)
Regulations (2015)
Deregulation Act (2015) and
ministerial statement on
outcome of Housing Standards
Review& Zero carbon Town and
Country Planning
(development)Management
Procedure) (England) Order
(2015) (implementing Schedule
3 of Flood & Water
management Act 2010)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

72

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Local Plan Implications

National Planning Policy and Guidance
National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) 2012

Government Planning Practice
Guidance (updated March
2015)

This document condenses existing planning policy guidance into a single more concise document. It aims to ensure that all development achieves sustainable development and also
provides more detailed guidance on a range of issues from the economy to waste, biodiversity, cultural heritage and gypsies and travelling communities. Key Commitments:
Making the planning system less complex and easier to understand
Sets out the planning policy for England and how they are excepted to be applied
Provides guidance for local planning authorities and decision-takers both in drawing up plans and making decisions about planning applications
TO COMPLETE

Government Strategies and Programmes
UK Government Sustainable
Development StrategySecuring the future (2005)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

73

Agenda Item 11

The Energy Efficiency
Strategy: The Energy
Efficiency Opportunity in the
UK (DECC 2012)

Priorities for action are as follows:
Sustainable Consumption and Production – Sustainable consumption and production is about achieving more with less. This means not only looking at how goods and services
are produced, but also the impacts of products and materials across their whole lifecycle and building on people‘s awareness of social and environmental concerns. This
includes reducing the inefficient use of resources which are a drag on the economy, so helping boost business competitiveness and to break the link between economic growth
and environmental degradation.
Climate Change and Energy – The effects of a changing climate can already be seen. Temperatures and sea levels are rising, ice and snow cover are declining, and the
consequences could be catastrophic for the natural world and society. Scientific evidence points to the release of greenhouse gases, such as carbon dioxide and methane, into
the atmosphere by human activity as the primary cause of climatic change. We will seek to secure a profound change in the way we generate and use energy, and in other
activities that release these gases. At the same time we must prepare for the climate change that cannot now be avoided.
Natural Resource Protection and Environmental Enhancement – Natural resources are vital to our existence and that of communities throughout the world. We need a better
understanding of environmental limits, environmental enhancement and recovery where the environment is most degraded to ensure a decent environment for everyone, and a
more integrated policy framework.
Sustainable Communities – Our aim is to create sustainable communities that embody the principles of sustainable development at the local level. This will involve working to
give communities more power and say in the decisions that affect them; and working in partnership at the right level to get things done. The UK uses the same principles of
engagement, partnership, and programmes of aid in order to tackle poverty and environmental degradation and to ensure good governance in overseas communities.
The Review first examines the evidence on the economic impacts of climate change itself, and explores the economics of stabilising greenhouse gases in the atmosphere. The
second half of the Review considers the complex policy challenges involved in managing the transition to a low-carbon economy and in ensuring that societies can adapt to the
consequences of climate change that can no longer be avoided.
This Air Quality Strategy sets out air quality objectives and policy options to further improve air quality in the UK from today into the long term. As well as direct benefits to public
health, these options are intended to provide important benefits to quality of life and help to protect our environment.
Key commitments
sets out a way forward for work and planning on air quality issues
sets out the air quality standards and objectives to be achieved
introduces a new policy framework for tackling fine particles
identifies potential new national policy measures which modelling indicates could give further health benefits and move closer towards meeting the Strategy's objectives
The Energy Efficiency strategy sets the direction for energy efficiency policy for the coming decades. Key commitments
Connecting energy efficiency knowledge and technologies to finance seeking strong returns.
Supporting energy efficiency innovation.
Harnessing the power of improved energy use information, driving its availability and disclosure.
Encouraging collective action to act on this new and better information.

Page 287

The Stern Review – The
Economics of Climate Change
(HM Treasury 2006)
Air Quality Strategy for
England, Scotland, Wales and
Northern Ireland (DEFRA
2007)

The UK Strategy sets out the Government‘s key commitments to enabling sustainable development. The Strategy is based on the five principles of:
Living within environmental limits.
Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society.
Achieving a sustainable economy
Promoting good governance
Using sound science responsibly

Next steps to zero carbon
homes: allowable solutions
(CLG 2013)
The Carbon Plan – reducing
greenhouse gas emissions
(CLG 2013)
Green Deal Programme &
Energy Company Obligation
(ECO)

Community Energy Strategy
(DECC, 2014)
UK Biodiversity Action Plan
(UKBAP)
EA’s Thames Catchment
Flood Management Plan (EA,
2009)

Thames River Basin
Management Plan

Local Plan Implications

This consultation sets out and seeks views and further evidence on the main principles, price cap and processes for the delivery of ‘allowable solutions’ - off-site projects or
measures that reduce carbon emissions - which house builders may support to achieve the zero carbon homes standard.Key Commitments
The government’s latest thinking on how it intends to take forward work on developing fabric energy efficiency and carbon compliance performance standards from 2016.
For consultation, a set of design principles for Allowable Solutions.
This plan sets out how the UK will achieve decarbonisation within the framework of our energy policy: to make the transition to a low carbon economy while maintaining energy
security, and minimising costs to consumers, particularly those in poorer households.
The Energy Companies Obligation (ECO) is a domestic energy efficiency programme which works alongside the Green Deal to provide added support for packages of energy
efficiency measures.These measures can help with cutting down energy loss from a building and lead to less energy use. Support includes insulation and heating packages to low
income and vulnerable households and insulation measures to low income communities.
Key Commitments
The Carbon Emissions Reduction Obligation (CERO) which focuses on hard-to-treat homes and, in particular, measures that cannot be fully funded through the Green Deal.
Solid wall insulation and hard-to-treat cavity wall insulation are two examples. Other insulation measures and connections to district heating systems are also eligible if they are
promoted as part of a package that includes solid wall insulation or hard-to-treat cavity wall insulation.
The Carbon Saving Community Obligation (CSCO) which focuses on the provision of insulation measures and connections to district heating systems to domestic energy users
that live within an area of low income. 15% of this target must be achieved by promoting measures to low income and vulnerable households living in rural areas.
The Home Heating Cost Reduction Obligation (HHCRO) under which suppliers provide measures which improve the ability of low income and vulnerable households to
affordably heat their homes.
The National Adaptation Programme sets out what government, businesses and society are doing to become more climate ready.

Page 288

National adaptation
programme (DEFRA, July
2013)
Fuel Poverty Strategy for
England (DECC, 2015)

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Aims to set a durable framework for future fuel poverty policies with an ambitious new legal target, accompanying milestones and a strong accountability system. Key Commitments
As many fuel poor homes in England as is reasonably practicable to Band E by 2020
As many fuel poor homes in England as is reasonably practicable to Band D by 2025
It sets out the role that communities can play in helping to meet the UK’s energy and climate change challenges, including supporting a sustainable and secure energy system;
reducing UK greenhouse gas emissions; and lowering consumer bills.
Catchment flood management plans (CFMPs) consider all types of inland flooding, from rivers, groundwater, surface water and tidal flooding. Shoreline management plans consider
flooding from the sea. CFMPs also include:
the likely impacts of climate change
the effects of how we use and manage the land
how areas could be developed to meet our present day needs without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs
This plan is about the pressures facing the water environment in this river basin district and the actions that will address them. It has been prepared under the Water Framework
Directive, and is the first of a series of six-year planning cycles. Key Commitments
Prevent deterioration in the status of aquatic ecosystems, protect them and improve the ecological condition of waters;
Aim to achieve at least good status for all water bodies by 2015. Where this is not possible and subject to the criteria set out in the Directive, aim to achieve good status by 2021
or 2027;
Meet the requirements of Water Framework Directive Protected Areas • promote sustainable use of water as a natural resource;
conserve habitats and species that depend directly on water;
Progressively reduce or phase out the release of individual pollutants or groups of pollutants that present a significant threat to the aquatic environment;
Progressively reduce the pollution of groundwater and prevent or limit the entry of pollutants;
Contribute to mitigating the effects of floods and droughts.

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

74

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Local Plan Implications

REGIONAL/ LONDON LEVEL
London Plan 2011 (Regional
Spatial Strategy)
Further alterations to the
London plan (FALP) (March
2015)
Supplementary Planning
Guidance (SPG)
Accessible London: Achieving
an Inclusive Environment
SPG (October 2014)

Town Centres SPG (July
2014)

Draft Social Infrastructure
SPG (May 2014)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

75

Agenda Item 11

Shaping Neighbourhoods:
Character and Context (June
2014)

Page 289

The control of dust and
emissions during construction
and demolition (July 2014)

The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of the capital
to 2036. It forms part of the development plan for Greater London. London boroughs’ local plans need to be in general conformity with the London Plan, and its policies guide
decisions on planning applications by councils and the Mayor.
On 10 March 2015, the Mayor published (i.e. adopted) the Further Alterations to the London Plan (FALP). From this date, the FALP are operative as formal alterations to the London
Plan (the Mayor’s spatial development strategy) and form part of the development plan for Greater London.
The London Plan has been updated to incorporate the Further Alterations. It also incorporates the Revised Early Minor Alterations to the London Plan (REMA), which were published
in October 2013
The Mayor produces Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) documents to provide further detail on particular policies in the London Plan.
Supplementary guidance can be useful where:
the level of detail is inappropriate for a development plan, for example development briefs, design guides and master plans for areas of intensive change
there is a need for an urgent policy response to an emerging issue.
An inclusive environment and of other policies in the Plan with specific reference to inclusive design. It also provides guidance on Lifetime Neighbourhoods to support London
Plan Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities.Key Commitments
Provides guidance on the policies contained in the London Plan regarding the creation and promotion of an accessible and inclusive environment.
Gives local planning authorities advice on how to incorporate and implement these policies.
Explains the principles of inclusive design and how these principles should be applied in London.
Gives designers ideas on where to find good technical advice and guidance.
Provides disabled people, older people and others who experience barriers in the built environment with an understanding of what to expect from planning in London.
Identifies legislation and national planning policy guidance relevant to the promotion of an inclusive environment.
Provides signposts to other relevant London Plan SPG documents and Implementation Guides which impact on the delivery of an inclusive environment.
This SPG seeks to reduce emissions of dust, PM10 and PM2.5 from construction and demolition activities in London. It also aims to manage emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) from
construction and demolition machinery by means of a new non-road mobile machinery Ultra Low Emissions Zone (ULEZ). This SPG
Provides more detailed guidance on the implementation of all relevant policies in the London Plan and the Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy to neighbourhoods, boroughs, developers,
architects, consultants and any other parties involved in the demolition and construction process;
Sets out the methodology for assessing the air quality impacts of construction and demolition in London; and
Identifies good practice for mitigating and managing air quality impacts that is relevant and achievable, with the over-arching aim of protecting public health and the environment.
This SPG provides guidance on the implementation of London Plan Policy 2.15 Town centres and of other policies in the Plan with specific reference to town centre development and
management. It also provides guidance on Policy 2.16 Strategic Outer London Development Centres and their potential to be developed as business locations with distinct strengths
of greater than sub regional importance.Key Commitments
Supporting the evolution and diversification of town centres;
Delivering mixed use housing intensification;
Quality matters;
Promoting Accessibility and Connectivity;
Town centre regeneration and initiatives;
Proactive town centre strategies;
Strategic Outer London Development Centre implementation guidelines.
Understanding the existing character and local context of a place is essential to an appreciation of how a place can and should develop in the future, whether that is to protect
important elements crucial to an area’s distinctive sense of place or identifying those elements that should be enhanced through managed change. Key Commitments
This guidance sets out an approach and process to help understand the character and context of a place so that its results can inform the planning and design process, and
guide change in way which is responsive to individual places and locations.
The Mayor has published for public consultation draft Supplementary Planning Guidance on Social Infrastructure. Social infrastructure includes a wide range of services and
facilities, including health, education, community, cultural, play, recreation and sports facilities, faith, emergency facilities and many other local services and facilities that contribute to
quality of life.The draft guidance;
Gives a range of information sources to evaluate need for social infrastructure at the strategic planning level, starting with the GLA’s own demographic projections and the ways
in which these can be used to understand need for health, education and sports facilities.
Emphasises the need for planning across services to ensure the efficient and timely delivery of social infrastructure in a way the meets the broader built environment aims of the

London Planning Statement
(May 2014)

Sustainable Design &
Construction SPG (2014)

Use of planning obligations in
the funding of Crossrail and
the Mayoral CIL (April 2013)
Land of Industry and
Transport (September 2012)

Shaping Neighbourhoods:
Play and informal recreation
(September 2012)

Local Plan Implications

London Plan.
Describes Department of Health models for service delivery in a way that should help planners and health professionals to communicate with each other.
Sets specific targets for the provision of burial space based upon projections of need and survey of existing capacity set out in the 2011 Audit of London Burial Provision.
Provides a comprehensive range of resources for the assessment of social infrastructure need arising from individual applications.
The London Planning Statement is intended to fill the gap left by the Government’s revocation of the former Government Office for London Circular 1/2008 by pulling together
information about the Mayor’s role in the London Planning system. Key Commitments
The first of these is the overriding importance of ensuring that decisions are taken (and clearly seen to be taken) in accordance with the principles of propriety – that is in
compliance with all legal requirements regarding procedural fairness, and ensuring that decisions are properly based on relevant planning considerations
Encourage and promote sustainable growth and development
Giving particular attention to ensuring development is viable – making sure that landowners and developers both make enough through the development process to make
development worth their while.
This SPG provides guidance on the implementation of London Plan policy 5.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction, as well as a range of policies, primarily in Chapters 5 and 7 that
deal with matters relating to environmental sustainability. To support the policies in the London Plan this draft SPG includes guidance on:
Energy efficient design
Meeting the carbon dioxide reduction targets
Decentralised energy
How to off-set carbon dioxide where the targets set out in the London Plan are not met
Retro-fitting measures
Support for monitoring energy use during occupation
An introduction to resilience and demand side response
Air quality neutral
Resilience to flooding
Urban greening
Pollution control
Basements policy and developments
Local food growing
The SPG provides guidance on how to implement the housing policies in the 2011 London Plan (LP). In particular, it provides detail on how to carry forward the Mayor’s view that
“providing good homes for Londoners is not just about numbers. It is informed by the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework and by its Housing Strategy for England.
This updates guidance on implementation of London Plan policies on the funding of Crossrail, planning obligations and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and it replaces the
SPG on "use of planning obligations in the funding of Crossrail" published in July 2010.
This sets out guidance to supplement the policies in the 2011 London Plan (LP) relating to land for industrial type activities and transport. The SPG provides advice on how to
implement these policies, in particular LP Policy 2.17 on Strategic Industrial Locations, Policy 4.4 on Managing Industrial Land and Premises; and Policy 6.2 on Providing Public
Transport Capacity and Safeguarding Land for Transport. Key Commitments
Ensure an adequate stock of industrial capacity to meet the future needs and functional requirements of different types of industrial and related uses in different parts of London,
including that for good quality and affordable space (London Plan Policy 4.4Aa).
Plan, monitor and manage the release of surplus industrial land so that it can better contribute to strategic and local planning objectives, especially those to provide more
housing (including affordable housing) and, in appropriate locations, to provide social infrastructure and to contribute to town centre renewal (Policy 4.4Ab)
Ensure provision of sufficient land, suitably located, for the development of an expanded transport system to serve London’s needs (Policy 6.2C).
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) updates and replaces the Mayor’s SPG on Providing for Children and Young
People’s Play and Informal Recreation published in 2008. The guidance supports the implementation of the London Plan Policy 3.6 on ‘Children and Young People’s Play and
Informal Recreation Facilities,’ and other policies on shaping neighbourhoods (Chapter 7 of the London Plan), in particular Policy 7.1 on Lifetime Neighbourhoods.
Key Commitments
Promotes an approach that supports the presence of children and young people in the built environment/public realm and encourages the creation of ‘shared’ public and
communal space used by adults and children at the same time (Chapter 3);
Introduces the concept of lifetime neighbourhoods and the importance of play and recreation opportunities to create places that meet the needs of all Londoners, at every stage
of their lives (Chapter 3);

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

Page 290

Housing (November 2012)

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

Undertake audits of existing play
and informal recreation provision
and assessments of need in
their areas, considering the
qualitative, quantitative and
accessibility elements of play
and informal recreation facilities

76

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

All London Green Grid (March
2012)

Promotes more innovative approaches to play provision in terms of facilities, locations, design and management such as the opening of schools’ play facilities to the community,
the use of natural features (Chapter 3);
Promotes healthy lifestyles and access to nature (Chapter 3)
Provides benchmark standards on play requirements that can be used as a reference to guide boroughs in the development of their own local standards and to secure places to
play in existing and new housing developments (Chapter 4)
Provides updated child yield figures for boroughs and developers to assess child occupancy and play space requirements (See 'Assessing child occupancy and play space
requirements' calculator file linked below);
Supports community involvement and volunteering to increase the use and enhanced the quality of play provision (Chapter 5); and
Provides more detailed guidance on the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Chapter 5)
The ALGG SPG aims to promote the concept of green infrastructure, and increase its delivery by boroughs, developers, and communities, by describing and advocating an approach to
the design and management of green and open spaces to deliver hitherto unrealised benefits. These benefits include sustainable travel, flood management, healthy living, and creating
distinctive destinations; and the economic and social uplift these support.
London’s Foundations (2009) was a joint publication with Natural England setting out London’s geological heritage, explaining the process for identifying sites of national, regional and
local geological importance, identifying important geological sites for protection and advising boroughs on how to promote as well as protect geodiversity.

Local Plan Implications
Produce strategies on play and
informal recreation supported by
LDF policies to improve access,
safety and opportunity for all
children and young people in
their area.

The purpose of this Supplementary Planning Guidance Policies have been included throughout the London Plan (published February 2004) to promote social inclusion and to help
eliminate discrimination. This Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) provides detailed advice and guidance on the policies which promote an inclusive environment in London.
Key Commitments
Provides guidance on the policies contained in the London Plan regarding the promotion of an inclusive and accessible environment
Gives local planning authorities advice on how to implement those policies
Explains the principles of inclusive design and how these principles should be applied in London
Gives designers ideas on where to find good technical advice and guidance
Gives disabled people an understanding of what to expect from planning in London
Identifies legislation and national planning policy guidance relevant to the promotion of an inclusive and accessible environment.

Page 291

London Foundations (March
2012)
SPG: Planning for equality
and diversity in London
(October 2007)
SPG: Accessible London:
Achieving an Inclusive
Environment (April 2004)

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Mayoral Strategies and Programmes
Sustainable Development
Framework (GLA 2003)

Mayor’s Cultural Strategy
(GLA, 2004)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

77

Agenda Item 11

Mayor’s Ambient Noise
Strategy (GLA,
2004)

This Framework sets out the 13 sustainable development objectives for London, designed to achieve environmental, social and economic development simultaneously, and provide the
context for policy development and decision-making. The Framework should be used to:
Provide the context for policy development and decision-making;
Undertake sustainability appraisals of projects, plans and strategies;
Monitor progress towards a more sustainable city
The Mayor’s Cultural Strategy has four key objectives focused on:
Excellence: to enhance London as a world class city of culture: London’s status as a world city of culture, and the benefits this offers to Londoners and visitors alike, are
dependent on preserving and enhancing the city’s world-class institutions, events and cultural diversity.
Creativity: to promote creativity as central to London’s success: creativity is central to the excellence of cultural expression and experience in London, and to the outstanding
economic performance of both creative businesses and the wider city economy.
Access: to ensure that all Londoners have access to culture in the city: equality of access for all to the full range of cultural activities is crucial to ensuring that all Londoners
participate in and share the benefits of the city’s cultural life, but also to promote excellence and creativity.
Value: to ensure that London gets the best value out of its cultural resources: London’s cultural and creative sectors make a massive contribution to economic and social life right
across the city. It is essential that they receive appropriate investment and that that investment is distributed fairly and productively in the interests of excellence, creativity and
access.
The key aim of the Strategy is to minimize the adverse impacts of noise on people living and working in, and visiting London using the best available practices and technology. The
three key issues are:
Securing good, noise reducing road surfaces;
Securing a night aircraft ban across London;
Reducing noise through better planning and design of new housing

Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy
Connecting with London’s
Nature (2002)

The document details the Mayor's vision for protecting and conserving London's natural open spaces. It seeks to ensure that there is no overall loss of wildlife habitats in London, and
that more open spaces are created and made accessible, so that all Londoners are within walking distance of a quality natural space. The strategy is an important first step in
establishing a Londonwide framework for maintaining London’s diversity of wildlife. Key Objectives:
Biodiversity for people: to ensure all Londoners have ready access to wildlife and natural green spaces
Nature for its own sake: to conserve London ís plants and animals and their habitats.
Economic benefits: to ensure the economic benefits of natural green space and greening are fully realised.
Functional benefits: to ensure London enjoys the functional benefits that biodiversity can bring
Sustainable development: to recognise biodiversity conservation as an essential element of sustainable development.
The document sets out more details on policies which the Mayor is setting out to help meet his aim of empowering people and transforming places. Key Objectives:
Raise aspirations and promote opportunity: by producing more affordable homes, particularly for families, and by increasing opportunities for home ownership through the new
First Steps housing programme;
Improve homes and transform neighbourhoods: by improving design quality, by greening homes, by promoting successful, strong and mixed communities and by tackling empty
homes;
Maximise delivery and optimise value for money: by creating a new architecture for delivery, by developing new investment models and by promoting new delivery mechanisms.
This is the very first London Health Inequalities Strategy. The Greater London Authority Act 2007 requires that the Mayor sets out the health inequalities facing London, the priorities
for reducing them and the role to be played by a defined list of key partners in order to deliver the strategy’s objectives. Key objectives
To empower individuals and communities to improve health and well-being
To improve access to high quality health and social care services particularly for Londoners who have poor health outcomes
To reduce income inequality and the negative consequences of relative poverty
To increase the opportunities for people to access the potential benefits of good work and other meaningful activity
To develop and promote London as a healthy place for all
The Strategy makes transport users ’priorities the prime focus for those providing transport services. It promotes close partnership between the relevant agencies and transport
operators to help achieve this. The Strategy contains the following transport priorities.
Reducing traffic congestion;
Increasing capacity, reliability and frequency of the Underground services;
Increasing the bus system ’s capacity, improving reliability and increasing frequency of services;
Better integration of the National Rail system with London ’s other transport systems;
Improving journey time reliability for car users, whilst reducing car dependency by increasing travel choice.
Supporting local transport initiatives, including improved access to town centres and regeneration areas, walking and cycling schemes, and road safety improvements
Making the distribution of goods and services in London more reliable, sustainable and efficient, whilst minimising negative environmental impacts.
Improving the accessibility of London ’s transport system so that everyone, regardless of disability, can enjoy the benefits of living in, working in and visiting the Capital, thus
improving social inclusion.
Bringing forward new integration initiatives to: provide integrated, simple and affordable public transport fares; improve key interchanges; and enhance safety and security across all
means of travel.
The Strategy takes a targeted approach to prioritising transport improvements, addressing the diverse needs of outer, inner and central London – and of areas within them. It will be
progressively implemented across London over the next decade, taking account of local circumstances.
In general the Strategy seeks to:
Increase the capacity of the bus system by up to40% over the next 10 years;
15% more morning peak passengers on the existing Underground network, alongside an increase in capacity of 17%;
9% more morning peak passengers on National Rail services in London (excl Cross Rail and Thameslink), alongside increase in capacity of12%;
A reduction of 15% in traffic in Central London, reducing growth from 4.5% to zero in Inner London, and reducing the rate of traffic growth in Outer London by a third to 5% - with
greater traffic reductions in sensitive locations

Mayor’s Housing Strategy
(GLA, 2010)

Mayor’s Health Inequalities
Strategy (GLA, 2010)

Mayor’s Transport Strategy
(GLA; 2010)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

Local Plan Implications

Page 292

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme

The Plan should seek to assist in
implementing the key transport
priorities of the Transport Strategy
at the local level. In particular the
Plan should look to consider:
Improvements in key
transport interchanges;
Accessibility of public
transport and public
transport facilities;
Parking and other initiatives
to encourage people away
from private vehicle use;
Means of reducing traffic
congestion in and around
the main transport routes
and main transport
destinations; and
The safety and security of
people walking, cycling,
driving, or using public
transport within the
borough.

78

Key Requirements
of Plan/ Programme
Mayor’s Economic
Development Strategy for
London (GLA, 2010)

Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy
(GLA, 2010)

Mayor’s Climate Change
Adaptation Strategy (GLA
2011)

The Plan should seek to ensure
that air quality is addressed
through Plan objectives and
aimed at improving the
integration of land use and
transport policy and reduce the
need to travel, especially by
private car. The Plan should
also seek to manage pollution
generating development within
the borough. The SA should
demonstrate that the Plan will
address the long term issue of
air quality management within
the borough.

Delivering London’s Energy Future is the Mayor’s climate change mitigation and energy strategy. It sets out his strategic approach to limiting further climate change and securing a
low carbon energy supply for London.
To limit further climate change the Mayor has set a target to reduce London’s CO2 emissions by 60 per cent of 1990 levels by 2025. Delivering London’s Energy Future details the
programmes and activities that are ongoing across London to achieve this. These include:
RE:NEW – retrofitting London’s homes with energy efficiency measures, and helping Londoners save money off their energy bills.
RE:FIT – retrofitting London’s public sector buildings, saving millions of pounds every year.
RE:CONNECT – ten low carbon zones in London aiming to reduce CO2emissions by 20% by 2012 across the community.
Decentralised energy programme – aiming to supply 25 per cent of London’s energy from secure, low carbon local sources.
A strategic framework for enhancing quality of life in London and protecting the environment. The aim of the London Climate Change Adaptation Strategy is to assess the
consequences of climate change on London and to prepare for the impacts of climate change and extreme weather to protect and enhance the quality of life of Londoners.
Identify and prioritise the climate risks and opportunities facing London and understand how these will change through the century
Identify and prioritise the key actions required to prepare London, and to define where responsibility for delivering and facilitating these actions lies
Promote and facilitate new development and infrastructure that is located, designed and constructed for the climate it will experience over its design life
Improve the resilience of London’s existing development and infrastructure to the impacts of climate change
Ensure that tried and tested emergency management plans exist for the key risks and that they are regularly reviewed and tested
Encourage and help business, public sector organisations and other institutions prepare for the challenges and opportunities presented by climate change
Promote and facilitate the adaptation of the natural environment
Raise general awareness and understanding of climate change with Londoners and improve their capacity to respond to changing climate risks
Position London as an international leader in tackling climate change.
The strategy is intended to complement the plans and strategies of other organisations, including the national water strategy, by presenting a London-specific view of water
management

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE

79

Agenda Item 11

Mayor’s Water Strategy (GLA,
2011)

This strategy sets out the Mayor’s vision with respect to London’s economy. He will use his role as London’s elected leader to encourage the conditions and business environment in
which London’s powerful economy can thrive. Underlying the Economic Development Strategy is a projection of continuing growth in London’s economy and population to 2031 and
beyond. Key objectives:
To promote London as the world capital of business, the world’s top international visitor destination and the world’s leading international centre of leading and creativity
To ensure that London has the most competitive business environment in the world.
To make London one of the world’s leading low carbon capitals by 2025 and a global leader in carbon finance.
To give all Londoners the opportunity to take part in London’s economic success, access sustainable employment and progress in their careers
To attract the investment in infrastructure and regeneration which London needs, to maximise the benefits from this investment and in particular from the opportunity created by
the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and their legacy.
The overall aim of the Strategy is to improve London’s air quality to the point where pollution no longer poses a significant risk to human health. It recognises the importance of clean
air and acknowledges that London is failing to reach its objectives for nitrogen dioxide (2005) and particles PM10 (2004). The strategy states that road traffic is the main source of
emissions of the main pollutants of concern in London and that the primary focus of the strategy is to reduce pollutants from this source. Achieve reductions in pollutant emissions. No
objectives or targets are provided however, boroughs are reminded that they have a very important role in improving air quality, particularly through providing air quality action plans.
The measures to reduce air pollution are:
Reduce the amount of traffic
Reduce emissions from individual vehicles
Minimising emissions from airport and airport related activities
Improve public transport use to and from the airport
Promote sustainable design and construction
Reduce emissions by energy efficiency through sustainable building design
Support the reuse of existing buildings in preference to demolition and rebuild where appropriate.

Local Plan Implications

Page 293

Mayor’s Climate Change
Mitigation & Energy Strategy
(GLA, 2011)

Key Objectives, Targets and Indicators relevant to Core Planning Strategy and SA

Agenda Item 11

Page 294

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 80

Page 295

PROPOSED SITE ASSESSMENT CRITERIA
Assessment
Refs
Scores/Thresholds
Criteria
(A) TRANSPORT ACCESSIBILITY AND SITE LOCATION
- SA Frame
10 – < 200m from a train station
1. Railway
work
8 – 200-400m from a train station
network

2. Bus Network

3. Proximity to
shopping and
other town
centre facilities
& services

Indicator 1.2
- Atkins
Appendix F
- SA
Framework
1.2
- Atkins
Appendix F
- SA
Framework
Indicators 8.1
and 8.2

4. Community
and leisure
facilities

SA
Framework
Indicator 11.1

5. Publicly
accessible open
space

SA
Framework
Indicator 3.2

6 – 400-600m from a train station
4 – 600-800m from a train station
2 – > 800m from a train station
10 - Site fronts a frequent bus route
8 - < 200m from a frequent bus route
6 - 200-400m from a freq bus route
4 - 400-600m from a freq bus route
2 - > 600m from a frequent bus route
10 - Within STC or District Centre
8 - < 400m from STC/ DC boundary
6 - 400-800m from STC/ DC boundary
(OR within local centre boundary)
4 - 800-1200m from STC/ DC boundary (OR <
600m from local centre boundary)
2 - > 1200m from STC/ DC boundary
(AND > 600m from local cntre boundary)
Sites located within < 400m from each of the
following
(i) Primary Schools (including infants)
(ii) Health Facilities (hospital, health centre or
clinic)
(iii) Indoor Sports and Leisure Centres
(iv) Local and Neighbourhood Equipped Areas of
Play
(v) Theatres and Libraries
Scoring system:
10 - < 400m for all 5 categories
8 - < 400m for 4 out of 5 categories
6 - < 400m for 3 out of 5 categories
4 - < 400m for 2 out of 5 categories
2 - < 400m for 1 out of 5 categories
10 - < 200m from a publicly accessible open
space
8 - 200-400m from a publicly accessible open
space
6 - 400-600m from a publicly accessible open
space
4 - 600-800m from a publicly accessible open
space
2 - > 800m from a publicly accessible open
space

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

Agenda Item 11

APPENDIX 2
Scoring Scheme

Data

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor
10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor
10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
contours

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
contours

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
contours

GIS
contours

GIS
contours

PAGE 81

Page 296

Agenda Item 11

Assessment
Refs
Criteria
(B) ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINTS
6. Flood Risk

SA
Framework
Indicator 6.3
- PPS25
Zones
-SFRA

7. Biodiversity &
Habitats

SA
Framework
Indicator 3.3

8. Greenfield
development

SA
Framework
Indicator 3.2

9. Physical
access and
infrastructure
constraints

SA
Framework
Indicator 5.1
and 5.4

10. Soil
Contamination/
hazards

SA
Framework
Indicator 5.3

Scores/Thresholds

10 - Site located within a ‘Low Probability’
flooding area (EA Zone 1)
8 – n/a
6 - Site partially located within a ‘Medium
Probability’ flooding area (EA Zone 2).
4 – n/a
2 - Site located within a ‘Medium Probability’
flooding area (EA Zone 2)
10 - Site not located within, partially within or
adjacent to a SINC (Policy OE22) or green
corridor (Policy OE31)
86 - Site located directly adjacent to a SINC
(Policy OE22) or green corridor (Policy OE31)
42 - Site located within or partially within a SINC
(Policy OE22) or green corridor (Policy OE31)
10 - Site located on prev.-developed or
‘brownfield’ land
86 - Partially located on ‘greenfield’ land
42 - Site located on ‘greenfield’ land
10 - Site has no access or infrastructure
constraints
6 - Site is partially affected by access or
infrastructure constraints
2 - Site affected by physical access or
infrastructure constraints (e.g. severance, pylons
etc)
2 - Site known to be contaminated (needs
remediation)
46 - Site likely to be contaminated/ uncertain
810 - Site unlikely to be affected by soil
contamination

Scoring Scheme

Data

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
analysis
EA Flood
Maps
SFRA
(when
available)

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
analysis
based on
UDP layer

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

GIS
analysis
based on
UDP layer

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

Site survey

10 - Very Good
8 - Good
6- Moderate
4 - Poor
2 - Very Poor

LBS ‘Sites
of potential
concern’

Total % score out of 100)

Sutton Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report: June 2015

PAGE 82

Page 297

Agenda Item 11

Agenda Item 11

Strategic Planning
Environment, Housing and Regeneration
London Borough of Sutton
Environment and Leisure
24 Denmark Road
Carshalton SM5 2JG
June 2015

Printed on recycled paper - this paper can be recycled

Page 298

APPENDIX B
OUTLINE OF SUTTON’S PROPOSED SUSTAINABILITY APPRIASAL (SA) FRAMEWORK

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

(C) SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

(1) Climate Change Mitigation
To address the causes of climate change by minimising CO2
emissions from new development

(9) Access to Housing
To meet the future local need for housing and the Borough’s
share of London’s need

(2) Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaptation
To avoid, reduce and manage flood risk

10) Access to Education and Health
To ensure access to education facilities and health for all

(3) Pollution and Natural resources
To conserve natural resources & minimise pollution

(11) Access to Sport and Leisure Facilities
To ensure access to Sport and Leisure Facilities for all

(B) SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH

(D) QUALITY OF LIFE AND EQUALITIES
(13) Open Environment
To protect and enhance the provision and quality of the Borough’s
open environment

(6) Employment
To promote local employment opportunities, skills and training
within the Borough

(14) Built and Historic Environment
To protect and enhance the quality of the built design, townscape
quality and the historic environment.

(7) Town Centres
To enhance the vitality and viability of town centres

(15) Social Deprivation and Fuel Poverty
To reduce social deprivation, health deprivation and fuel poverty

(8) Area Renewal
To secure inward investment for area renewal programmes to
deliver environmental business improvements.

(16) Equalities, Accessibility and Social Inclusion
To reduce social exclusion, address inequalities & improve
accessibility to essential services & community facilities for all

Agenda Item 11

(5) Economic Growth & Inward Investment
To attract inward investment & promote sustainable growth in
support of Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy

Page 299

(4) Biodiversity
(12) Sustainable Transport
To protect and enhance biodiversity, habitats and green corridors To reduce traffic levels, congestion, local air pollution and CO2
within the Borough
emissions from transport

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 301

Agenda Item 11

APPENDIX C
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL AND THE LOCAL PLAN PROCESS
STAGES OF LOCAL PLAN PREPARATION

STAGES OF SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL

Evidence Gathering

Preparation of SA Scoping Report (this report)

CONSULTATION ON SA SCOPING REPORT
Identification of Local Plan issues and preferred
options

Appraisal of emerging preferred options & alternatives
Preparation of SA Report 1 on Issues and Preferred
Options

PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON ‘ISSUES AND
PREFERRED OPTIONS’

CONSULTATION ON SA REPORT 1 ON ‘ISSUES AND
PREFERRED OPTIONS’

Appraisal of emerging Proposed Submission Draft
Preparation of Draft Local Plan
Preparation of SA Report 2 on Draft Local Plan

CONSULTATION ON DRAFT LOCAL PLAN

Submission of draft Local Plan to Secretary of State
(incorporating amendments)

EXAMINATION IN PUBLIC ON DRAFT LOCAL PLAN

CONSULTATION ON SA REPORT 2 ON DRAFT
LOCAL PLAN


Preparation of Final SA Report
(taking account of amendments)

PUBLICATION OF FINAL SA REPORT AS PART OF
LOCAL PLAN EVIDENCE BASE

Inspector’s Report on draft Local Plan
ADOPTION OF LOCAL PLAN

PUBLICATION OF POST-ADOPTION STATEMENT

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 303

Agenda Item 11

APPENDIX D
INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM FOR
SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL SCOPING REPORT (LOCAL PLAN)
HEB COMMITTEE 23 JUNE 2015
Integrated Impact Assessments (IIAs) are a tool that the Council’s uses for assessing
the possible impact (positive and negative) of policies, service delivery plans,
strategies, projects, programmes, commissioning activities or other initiatives. IIAs
are a mechanism through which the Council demonstrates compliance with the
Equality Act 2010, Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, and Localism Act 2011.
A comprehensive IIA will facilitate evidence-based and informed decision making.
Data to complete an IIA should be collected and considered from the beginning to the
end of the project cycle. An IIA for each project will be revised and have several
iterations as the project/programme cycle is scoped, developed, implemented and
reviewed.
It is an expectation that a completed IIA is an appendix to all reports to committee
where there will be an impact on employees, the organisation, customers and/or
residents. Where a project is not being submitted to Committee, an IIA should be
provided to the Policy & Customer Service Team.
In all instances Section 1: Aim & Demographics, Section 2: Equality &
Diversity, Section 3: Health & Wellbeing and Section 6: Action & Publication
must be completed. Section 4: Local Economy and Section 5: Sustainability must
be completed if they are relevant to the proposal.
For more information on IIA’s please see the intranet page or the Policy & Customer
Service Team (Key contacts Fiona Cameron 020 8770 6181; Rebecca Escott-New
020 8770 6880).

1
VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 11

Page 304

SECTION 1: AIMS AND DEMOGRAPHICS
A. IS THIS A NEW POLICY OR A REVIEW OF AN EXISTING POLICY OR SERVICE?
Sutton’s new Local Plan will replace and update the current local development framework
(LDF) for the future growth and development of the Borough, consisting of the Core Planning
Strategy (December 2009), the Proposals Map (December 2009), the Site Development
Policies Development Plan Document (DPD) (March 2012) and a range of Supplementary
Planning Documents (SPDs).
B. WHAT ARE THE AIMS AND PURPOSE OF THIS PROPOSAL?
The purpose of sustainability appraisal (SA) is to identify the key sustainability issues to be
addressed by the Local Plan, develop policy options and report on the significant impacts
of emerging preferred policy options and alternatives on the environmental, economic and
social objectives of sustainable development.
The SA Scoping Report (Appendix A) addresses the initial stage of SA for Sutton’s Local
Plan. It seeks to define the scope of the appraisal in terms of the national, regional and
local policy context, the local evidence base, the key sustainability issues and the basis for
assessing the likely impacts of alternative options (the proposed SA Framework is
included as Appendix B).
C. WHICH OF THE GEOGRAPHIC AREAS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT?
(Insert any specific wards or state all borough)
All Borough

2
VERSION JUNE 2014

Page 305

Agenda Item 11

SECTION 2: EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
A. WHICH STAKEHOLDER GROUP OR GROUPS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT? (E.G. STAFF AT







LBS, RESIDENTS, THIRD AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR)
Borough Residents
Local Businesses
Statutory Bodies (e.g. Environment Agency)
Voluntary Sector
LBS Staff

B. WHOSE NEEDS IS THE PROPOSAL DESIGNED TO MEET?

(Include any specific impact on protected group members)
The sustainability appraisal (SA) will evaluate the significant impacts of emerging preferred
policy options and alternatives on the environmental, economic and social objectives of
sustainable development. In doing so the SA will inform the preparation of Local Plan policies
and proposals to ensure that competing pressures for residential and commercial
development are managed in a sustainable manner while having regard to protecting the
Borough’s environment. The SA will also incorporate Equalities Impact Assesment (EqIA) to
ensure that the Local Plan does not discriminate against specific equalities target groups and,
where possible, make a positive contribution to improving quality of life for local communities.
C. WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN COLLECTED TO INFORM THIS PROPOSAL?

Section 4 of the SA Scoping Report provides an overview of current environmental, social
and economic baseline conditions within the Borough. This is based on initial local evidence
gathering undertaken by the Strategic Planning Team, or by consultants working on behalf of
the Council, as part of the initial stages of the Local Plan review. Population and household
projections along with other socio-demographic data (e.g. social deprivation) has been
obtained from the UK Census 2011, the Office for National Statistics (ONS), the GLA
Intelligence and data published by the Environment Agency or Government departments
such as the CLG or DECC.
D. WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED INFORMATION, FOR EXAMPLE THROUGH CONSULTATION WITH
STAKEHOLDERS, HAS BEEN GATHERED ON THIS PROPOSAL?

The ‘social baseline’, included in Section 4 of the SA Scoping Report 4.14 to 4.62, provides a
comprehensive review of equalities related information in relation to issues such as ethnicity,
gender, age, social deprivation and fuel poverty.
E. IN WHAT WAYS MIGHT THE PROPOSAL IMPACT POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY ON SOME GROUPS
OF PEOPLE?

(Please ensure you address ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion and sexual
orientation. You can also include people with caring responsibilities.)
The proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework, set out in Section 6 of the SA Scoping
Report, identifies the following core sustainability objective, sub-objectives and specific
appraisal criteria
(16) EQUALITIES, SOCIAL INCLUSION AND COMMUNITY SAFETY
“To reduce social exclusion, address inequalities and improve accessibility to essential services and
community facilities for all”
16.1 Equalities Impact Assessment (EqA)
To promote equal opportunities and address inequalities affecting one of more of the following equalities

3
VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 11

Page 306

target groups: Women; Black & minority ethnic (BME); Older people; Young people and children; Disabled
people; Lesbians, gays, bi & transgender people; Different faith groups; and social deprivation
Question: Will the policy or proposal have a positive or negative impact on one or more of the
equality target groups or, improve equal opportunities and/or relationships between groups?
16.2 Balanced Communities
To promote mixed and balanced communities throughout the Borough
Question: Will the policy or proposal contribute to the creation of mixed and balanced
communities?”

F. WHAT WILL BE DONE TO PROMOTE EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY AS PART OF THIS PROPOSAL?

Yes - the proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework (Objectives 9 to 12) incorporates the
following specific appraisal criteria
(9) ACCESS TO HOUSING

Will the policy or proposal provide for sufficient net additional dwellings to meet and exceed
Borough housing targets over the period of the Local Plan (10-15 years)

Will the policy or proposal maximise the provision of affordable housing and ensure that an
appropriate mix of sizes of affordable units is provided in a range of locations to best meet
identified needs?
(10) ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND HEALTH

Will the policy or proposal support the provision of new schools and expanded school
capacity as appropriate to accommodate the need for additional primary and secondary school
places?

Will the policy or proposal support the provision of additional healthcare facilities as
appropriate to meet the identified needs in different parts of the Borough?
(11) ACCESS TO SPORTS AND LEISURE

Will the policy or proposal support the provision of additional sports and leisure facilities as
appropriate to serve the needs of different parts of the Borough?

Will the policy or proposal support the provision of additional playspace facilities as
appropriate to address identified deficiencies across the Borough?
(12) ACCESS TO SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT

Will the policy or proposal reduce the need to travel?

Will the policy or proposal reduce increase the proportion of trips made by public transport,
cycling and walking?

4
VERSION JUNE 2014

Page 307

Agenda Item 11

SECTION 3: HEALTH AND WELL BEING
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this
section of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
A. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY IMPACT ON THE PHYSICAL
AND/OR MENTAL WELLBEING OF RESIDENTS? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION
WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN OR WILL BE COLLECTED?
Yes - The proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework (sustainability objectives 15.1 to
15.3) incorporates the following specific appraisal criteria:
(15) SOCIAL DEPRIVATION, HEALTH DEPRIVATION AND FUEL POVERTY
“To reduce social deprivation, health deprivation and fuel poverty”
15.1 Social Deprivation
To reduce poverty, social exclusion, deprivation and health inequalities within the Borough
Will the policy or proposal reduce poverty and social exclusion and health inequalities,
particularly within relatively deprived areas of the Borough?
15.2 Health deprivation
To improve the health of the population overall, reduce health inequalities and promote healthy lifestyles
Will the policy or proposal improve the health of the population overall, reduce health inequalities
and promote healthy lifestyles?
15.3 Fuel Poverty
To address fuel poverty within the Borough in support of the objectives of the Borough Fuel Povery
Strategy
Will the policy or proposal tackle fuel poverty in support of the objectives of the Borough Fuel
Poverty Strategy?

B. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL HAVE A POSITIVE OR NEGATIVE IMPACT ON AN
INDIVIDUAL’S OPPORTUNITY TO IMPROVE THEIR OWN HEALTH AND WELLBEING? IF THERE IS A
NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS OR
WILL BE COLLECTED?
As outlined above, the SA process will evaluate the impacts of emerging Local Plan policy
options on a range of health and well-being indicators
C. IN

WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY IMPACT
DISPROPORTIONALLY ON THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF ONE OR MORE DIFFERENT
COMMUNITIES? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE
THIS?

(For example, improve the lives and health of a vulnerable group such as people with
learning disabilities, but impact negatively on a different vulnerable group)
The SA process is intended to inform the preparation of Local Plan policies and proposals to
ensure that the health and wellbeing of all groups will benefit over the long-term.

5
VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 11

Page 308

SECTION 4: LOCAL ECONOMY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)
YES
A. WILL THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT THE LOCAL JOB MARKET, LOCAL BUSINESS OR LOCAL INWARD
INVESTMENT TO THE BOROUGH?
Yes - The proposed Sustainability Appraisal Framework (sustainability objectives 15.1 to
15.3) incorporates the following specific appraisal criteria:
(15) SOCIAL DEPRIVATION, HEALTH DEPRIVATION AND FUEL POVERTY
“To reduce social deprivation, health deprivation and fuel poverty”
15.1 Social Deprivation
To reduce poverty, social exclusion, deprivation and health inequalities within the Borough
Will the policy or proposal reduce poverty and social exclusion and health inequalities,
particularly within relatively deprived areas of the Borough?

B.

15.2 Health deprivation
To improve the health of the population overall, reduce health inequalities and promote healthy lifestyles
Will the policy or proposal improve the health of the population overall, reduce health inequalities
and promote healthy lifestyles?
DOES THIS PROPOSAL IMPACT UPON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS IN
SUTTON?

Yes - the proposed SA Framework (sustainability objectives 6 and 8) incorporates the
following specific appraisal objectives and criteria
(6) EMPLOYMENT
“To promote local employment opportunities, skills and training within the Borough”
6.1 Local Employment
To increase access to local employment opportunities and reduce economic inactivity rates
Will the policy or proposal increase access to local employment opportunities and reduce
economic inactivity rates amongst Borough residents?
6.2 Skills and Training
To promote education, skills and training to ensure that residents have the skills required to meet the
needs of new businesses and future growth sectors
Will the policy or proposal promote education, skills and training and reduce the proportion of
residents who are ‘not in education, employment or training’ (NEETs)?
(8) AREA RENEWAL
“To secure inward investment for area renewal programmes in order to deliver environmental and
business improvements at neighbourhood level”

C.

8.3 Sutton for Life Project (Belmont) To support the ‘Sutton for Life’ project by working with the Royal
Marsden, the Institute of Cancer Research (ICR) and the Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals NHS
Trust secure redevelopment of the site for a range of complementary land uses Will the policy or
proposal support the delivery of the Sutton for Life project?
DOES THIS PROPOSAL PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE THIRD SECTOR ORGANISATIONS
AND OR LOCAL BUSINESSES IN SUTTON?

Yes - the proposed SA Framework (sustainability objective 6) incorporates the following
specific appraisal objectives and criteria
(5) ECONOMIC GROWTH & INWARD INVESTMENT
To attract inward investment and promote sustainable economic growth in support of
Sutton’s Economic Development Strategy (Opportunity Sutton)
5.1 Business Competitiveness
To promote a strong, vibrant and sustainable local economy that enhances business competitiveness
Will the policy or proposal promote the competitiveness of the local economy by attracting
business investment, removing barriers to enterprise, supporting start ups and promoting social
enterprises?
5.2 Green Economy
To promote the growth of Sutton’s green economy
Will the policy or proposal support the growth of new and existing low carbon businesses and
assist in greening the local economy?

6
VERSION JUNE 2014

Page 309

Agenda Item 11

SECTION 5: SUSTAINABILITY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)

YES

A. IS THIS PROPOSAL SUSTAINABLE MEDIUM OR LONG TERM FOR IMPROVING SERVICES IN
SUTTON?
Long term

B. IS THIS PROPOSAL A COST – EFFECTIVE USE OF RESOURCES?
Yes

C. IF APPLICABLE; DOES THIS PROPOSAL HAVE ANY IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND ONE
PLANET LIVING PRINCIPLES IN SUTTON?
(For example, does it impact upon reducing waste, encourage the use of carbon neutral
modes of transport conserve the environment or encourage the efficient use of water?
Please see guidance for further details if this is relevant to your policy or review).
The core purpose of the sustainability appraisal (SA) process is to ensure that Sutton’s Local
Plan is consistent with and actively promotes environmental sustainability objectives and the
principles of One Planet Living.

7
VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 11

Page 310

SECTION 6: ACTIONS AND PUBLICATION
A. PLEASE RATE THE OVERALL IMPACT IDENTIFIED THROUGH THIS ASSESSMENT WITH THE LEVEL
OF ACTION THAT NEEDS TO BE TAKEN (DELETE AS APPROPRIATE):

1. No major change required (when the assessment has not identified any potential
for discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have
been taken.)

B. WHAT ACTIONS ARE GOING TO BE TAKEN AS A RESULT OF THIS IIA TO ADDRESS NEGATIVE
IMPACTS OR PREVIOUSLY MET UNIDENTIFIED NEEDS?

The next stage of the SA process, culminating in the production of the SA Report on
‘Preferred Options and issues’ in early 2016, will identify a range of mitigation measures (i.e.
further policy recommendations) designed to address any potential negative impacts on the
environmental, social and economic objectives of sustainable development.

C. WHAT DATA MONITORING OR EVALUATION ACTIVITY HAS BEEN PUT INTO PLACE TO MONITOR
THE IMPACT OF THIS PROPOSAL?

A Local Plan Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) is prepared in December each year and the
monitoring procedures are already in place and well established within the Strategic Planning
team.

D. SIGN- OFF

(Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

Andy Webber – Head of Planning and Environmental Sustainability

8
VERSION JUNE 2014

